


H$% CONTENTS

2 NGIR-§ )

Corporate Information

6 ERERE

Chairman’s Statement

9 B2 E R wm MDA
Management Discussion and Analysis

23 RIE e kERRE
Environmental, Social and Governance Report

(3 REERRE
Corporate Governance Report

88 E=gRE

Directors’ Report

113 B R AR
Independent Auditor’s Report

122 FEEm REME2ER R
Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and
Other Comprehensive Income

125 RE R SRR &R
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

128 FakEn#x
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

130 HEReRsE
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

134 4RE RIS R I R
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Sta

316 B2

Financial Summary



BAAFEREXEEGRALT TONGFANG KONTAFARMA HOLDINGS LIMITED

NEER

CORPORATE INFORMATION

R E BE As at the date of this report

EEg
HITES
SR L

aEE
B TRAH

B BEHTE

BUFHTES

BRI
o i

RieE
HITRESY

S T
AT E
#h

BHX
BEREE"

B% /EILEI\ H«%‘\ iy i‘E /l_%‘-_
5 It

REE
FMEEE

RInM - T
RB IR

Rigw
REZEES

R B
5 i

REE

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Chai Hongjie, Chairman

Bai Pingyan

Huang Yu, President

Jiang Chaowen, Chief Executive Officer

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Chan Sze Chung
Zhang Ruibin
Zhang Junxi Jack

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

Chai Hongjie, Chairman
Bai Pingyan

Huang Yu

Jiang Chaowen

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Chan Sze Chung, Chairman
Zhang Ruibin
Zhang Junxi Jack

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Zhang Ruibin, Chairman
Chan Sze Chung
Zhang Junxi Jack

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Chai Hongjie, Chairman
Chan Sze Chung
Zhang Ruibin

Zhang Junxi Jack



EREEZES

RERE - LE
BEIX
R
S o

BROXZEES

REN FE
A¥E
=l

BEx
REZES
SR T

BRI
SR In

FEERRIT

T8

BHRT(FB)BRAT
RERT (FE)BRAT
BITRTT (BAR)BR QA
B LSESRITAERAA

B A it

ERRITRDER A A
BERITRNERAF
PERERRITROBRAA]
REXARNRITROBRRAA]

¥ hn 3

RERITARAA

AfMMEE

Windward 3

Regatta Office Park

P.O. Box 1350

Grand Cayman KY1-1108

Cayman Islands

RISKS MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

Zhang Junxi Jack, Chairman

Jiang Chaowen

Chan Sze Chung

Zhang Ruibin

SHARE DEALING COMMITTEE

Chai Hongjie, Chairman

Bai Pingyan
Huang Yu
Jiang Chaowen

INVESTMENT COMMITTEE

Chai Hongjie, Chairman
Chan Sze Chung

Zhang Ruibin

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

Hong Kong

Fubon Bank (Hong Kong) Limited
Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited
Standard Chartered Bank (Hong Kong) Limited

ZZ T —FF 3 ANNUAL REPORT 2021

NEER

CORPORATE INFORMATION

RAIRE HEY As at the date of this report

The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited

Mainland China

Bank of Beijing Co., Ltd.

China Merchants Bank Co., Ltd.
China Construction Bank Corporation
China Everbright Bank Co., Ltd.

Singapore

United Overseas Bank Limited

REGISTERED OFFICE

Windward 3

Regatta Office Park

P.O. Box 1350

Grand Cayman KY1-1108

Cayman Islands



BAAFEREXEEGRALT TONGFANG KONTAFARMA HOLDINGS LIMITED

NREH
CORPORATE INFORMATION

R E BE As at the date of this report

BREERFTELE LI HEAD OFFICE AND PRINCIPAL PLACE
OF BUSINESS

BB BT EEIE30%R Room 12A09-12A20, 12A/F, Sun Hung Kai Centre

FTBEFLI12A12A09F 12A20F 30 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong

e . 2731 6500 Tel. . 2731 6500

BE 2731 6599 Fax 2731 6599

Eocl . info@tfkf.com.hk E-mail . info@tfkf.com.hk

RHOBFEIERE PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR

Ocorian Trust (Cayman) Limited Ocorian Trust (Cayman) Limited

Windward 3 Windward 3

Regatta Office Park Regatta Office Park

P.O. Box 1350 P.O. Box 1350

Grand Cayman KY1-1108 Grand Cayman KY1-1108

Cayman Islands Cayman Islands

EBROBFERETE BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR IN HONG KONG

BENMEEEERAQA Tricor Secretaries Limited

B Level 54, Hopewell Centre

2R KNEHR1835 183 Queen’s Road East

& T 541 Hong Kong

BEEMBERRATABE CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER AND
COMPANY SECRETARY

AIESE Si Tou Man Wai

B R INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

BBV ERERETAMEBAERAQR BDO Limited

2Em SOLICITORS

BoR % SR 7 B =5 75 Py B2 )22 {2 D 55 S T e CFN Lawyers in association with Broad & Bright

BN SIS AT Appleby

THE B AEMERET Wellington Legal



IR A7 1K 5%
1312
83k

http://www.tfkf.com.hk
http://www.irasia.com/listco/hk/tfkf/index.htm

MEE -

(1) ERANEETBETESSEFEUARESS
WITZES REZES BHXRIHEES
IREZBEERANER MNAESZH
TZESRBRNRIZEESTEAMNKE ' B
TR FMATNABREMS -

2 ABAFEXRLEE-Z-__FWNAt+ARERE
TEEGIREUREESNTEES &S
ZEE® BONXZEEENRREZEEXAE

BER e

ZZ T —FF 3 ANNUAL REPORT 2021

RRER
CORPORATE INFORMATION

RAIRE HEY As at the date of this report

STOCK CODE

1312

WEBSITES

http://www.tfkf.com.hk
http://www.irasia.com/listco/hk/tfkf/index.htm

Notes:

(M

Mr. Chai Hongjie ceased to act as the Chairman of the Board and a
chairman of each of the executive committee, the nomination
committee, the share dealing committee and the investment
committee of the Board; and remains a member of each of the
executive committee and the share dealing committee of the Board
with effect from 19 April 2022.

Mr. Bai Pingyan has taken up the role of the chairman of the Board
and the chairman of each of the executive committee, the nomination
committee, the share dealing committee and the investment
committee of the Board with effect from 19 April 2022.
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On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”) of Tongfang
Kontafarma Holdings Limited (the “Company”), | am pleased to
present to you the audited annual results of the Company and its
subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) for the year ended 31
December 2021.

RESULTS

The revenue of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2021
was approximately HK$961.1 million (2020: approximately
HK$1,009.1 million), representing a decrease of approximately 4.8%
as compared to the previous year. The loss for the year of the
Group was approximately HK$4.6 million (2020: approximately
HK$20.1 million). The basic loss per share amounted to
approximately HK0.27 cent (2020: approximately HK0.76 cent).

DIVIDEND

The Board has resolved not to recommend any final dividend for the
year ended 31 December 2021 (2020: Nil).

Dividend Policy

The Company has adopted a dividend policy in December 2018. The
Company considers stable and sustainable returns to our
shareholders to be its goal and endeavours to maintain the dividend
policy to achieve such goal.

In deciding whether to propose a dividend and in determining the
dividend amount, the Board would take into account the Group’s
results of operations, earnings performance, cashflows, financial
condition, future prospects, as well as statutory and regulatory
restrictions on the payment of dividends, and other factors that the
Board may consider relevant.

Whilst the Board will review from time to time for determination on
proposed dividend with the above factors taken into account, there
can be no assurance that dividends will be declared or paid in any
particular amount for any given period.
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Corporate Culture and Visions

Adhering to the people-oriented philosophy, the Group extensively
recruits talents from different fields, regards our staff as the
cornerstone of the enterprise, and insists on unity within the
enterprise and internal care and communication. By actively putting
the subjective mobility of our staff into play with care and soul, the
Group continuously enhances team cohesion and realizes
complementary advantages and sincere cooperation.

During the new era of development, the Group will focus on the
target of universal health. On one hand, we look forward to the
national deployment on universal health and orient our product
research and development efforts on the market direction to benefit
the health of people. On the other hand, we strive to contribute to
universal health by offering quality service while create value for all
stakeholders. The Group will uphold its corporate responsibilities to
pave a new path for promoting health, join hands with various
parties and forge ahead for the health of people nationwide.

OUTLOOK
Pharmaceutical Business

For the Group’s pharmaceutical business, medium and long-term
development plans in terms of, among other things, new product
research and development and cooperation, expansion of new
cooperation model, exploration of new channels and new regions as
well as the construction of new production lines and new facilities
have been formulated, which are actively progressing with various
parties. Meanwhile, with the intent to produce better
pharmaceuticals for patients, the Company has established an
advanced safe production management system, strict quality control
criteria and comprehensive pharmaceutical sales system. Through
practical research and development and production of
pharmaceuticals based on truthful research and development data,
the Company manages to protect the health of patients.
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Fitness Business

After experiencing the COVID-19 pandemic, people realise that in
addition to medical measures, like vaccines and medicines, their own
immunity is also one of the essential factors in fighting the virus.
Therefore, we believe that as the COVID-19 pandemic will be
gradually getting under control, more people tend to improve their
health and wellness through exercise and an increasing number of
consumers are opting to return to gyms, which will lead to a boom
in the fitness business. The Group is well prepared to play a key
role to embrace the upcoming opportunity.

The Group’s fitness business has demonstrated its strength and
resilience through the past years and will proactively keep the good
performance. The vaccine rollout in Singapore is well under way,
and we expect that the local restrictions on gyms’ capacity and safe
distancing will be further loosen up during 2022. Assuming there is
no major resurgence of COVID-19 pandemic that causes member
disruptions in 2022, we will focus our resources on business
recovery and reducing loss in membership, while attracting new
members as well as former members at the same time. On such
regards, we feel more confident about the coming new vyear.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | would like to take this opportunity to
thank our shareholders, customers and suppliers for their continuous
support to the Group. | would also like to express the Group's
appreciation for the contributions of the members of the Board and
all staff.

Chai Hongjie
Chairman

30 March 2022
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group was principally
engaged in the (i) manufacturing and sales of prescription drugs,
including chemical drugs and prescribed traditional Chinese
medicines in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”), and
laboratory related products; and (ii) operating of fitness centres and
provision of consultation services for fitness and health activities,
and operating of franchise business for royalty fee income. The
Group used to engage in the cement business, which represents the
manufacturing and sales of cement and clinker and trading of
cement with operations in Shandong province and Shanghai in the
PRC. The Group completed the disposal of the cement business on
21 December 2020, and the comparatives for the year ended
31 December 2020 have been presented as discontinued operation
accordingly.

FINANCIAL RESULTS
Continuing Operations

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group’s revenue and
gross profit of approximately HK$961.1 million and HK$482.9
million (2020: approximately HK$1,009.1 million and HK$555.7
million) decreased by approximately 4.8% and 13.1% respectively
against last year. The net loss of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2021 was approximately HK$4.6 million (2020:
approximately HK$20.1 million), representing a decrease in loss by
approximately HK$15.5 million as compared to the previous year.
The basic loss per share amounted to approximately HK0.27 cent
(2020: approximately HKO.76 cent).
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The decrease in the Group’s revenue and gross profit was mainly
attributable to the following reasons:

In the pharmaceutical business segment, the effective control
to combat the spread of COVID-19 pandemic in Mainland
China has impact on the subsidiaries in different manners. The
excess demand of the active pharmaceutical ingredients
("API") Chloroquine Phosphate manufactured by Chongging
Kangle Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.* (EE R EEFR A F)
("Chongging Kangle”) has slowed down in 2021, which
resulted in the decline in Chongging Kangle's revenue and
gross profit, while the revenue and gross profit from other
pharmaceutical business subsidiaries, such as Shaanxi
Unisplendour Life Care Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.* (BRFELE /R
B GR A F]) (“Shaanxi Life Care”), which mainly focuses
on the manufacturing and sales of Chinese medicine products,
and SPF (Beijing) Biotechnology Co., Ltd.* (7B & (b =) &£
YT AR AR]) (“SPF”), which mainly focuses on the sales of
laboratory related products, have also gradually recovered,
which alleviated the impact of the decrease in revenue and
gross profit in Chongging Kangle to a certain extent; and

In the fitness business segment, due to the outbreak of the
COVID-19 pandemic in the second quarter of 2021 in
Singapore and Taiwan, the operation of the fitness centres in
these two regions were suspended for approximately 10
weeks and 9 weeks respectively, leading to the decrease in
the gross profit in the fitness business segment.
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The decrease in net loss was mainly attributable to the gain of
approximately HK$51.4 million from the disposal of a subsidiary of
the Company, Apros Therapeutics, Inc. (“Apros”), which offset the
Group's (i) decrease in gross profit; (i) expected credit loss on
receivables and one-off impairment on goodwill in the fitness
business; and (iii) increase in segment loss in the fitness business
segment resulting from the suspension of operation of our fitness
centres in Singapore and Taiwan for approximately 10 weeks and 9
weeks respectively due to the outbreak of the COVID-19 pandemic
in the second quarter of 2021 in these two regions.

Discontinued Operation

The Group has completed the disposal of its cement business on
21 December 2020, and the comparatives for the year ended
31 December 2020 have been presented as discontinued operation
accordingly.

11
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BUSINESS REVIEW
Continuing Operations
Pharmaceutical Business

In 2021, as the PRC government took solid and effective measures
to prevent and control COVID-19 pandemic, though occasionally
affected by the intermittent surges of COVID-19 pandemic in some
regions, the overall risks faced by various industries, including the
pharmaceutical industry, were under control. Operation has
gradually returned to a level approaching or close to pre-COVID-19
pandemic period. Benefitted by the successive rebound of the
number of outpatients in hospital and smooth logistics, resources in
terms of staff and raw materials were relatively abundant for
operating business. The other aspect is the gradual progression of
medical system reform in Mainland China and orderly
implementation of national centralized procurement system,
resulting in more and more pharmaceuticals and medical products
being included into the centralized procurement catalogue.
Meanwhile, with the immediate coverage of increasing number of
newly launched pharmaceuticals into the medical insurance, the
competition landscape of the pharmaceutical industry has gradually
changed.
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Tongfang Pharmaceutical Group Co., Ltd* (A5 X5 H
BER 2 7)) (“Tongfang Pharmaceutical”)

Tongfang Pharmaceutical is principally engaged in the
production and sales of chemical generic drugs. It has a
preparation workshop covering 30,000 square meters in
Yanging District, Beijing. Its key products are prescription
drugs and its therapeutic areas mainly include drugs for local
anesthesia and gynecological purposes. In 2021, its revenue
amounted to RMB329.6 million (2020: RMB339.9 million),
representing a decrease of 3.0%; gross profit amounted to
RMB294.9 million in 2021 (2020: RMB312.6 million),
representing a drop of 5.7% as compared to last year.

In 2021, one of the raw material suppliers of Tongfang
Pharmaceutical’s major products failed to make delivery on a
timely basis due to the outbreak of COVID-19 pandemic in
some regions and the factory renovation. Even though
Tongfang Pharmaceutical immediately ordered from reserve
suppliers, their limited production capacity has affected the
sales of the respective products to a certain extent. Benefitted
from the timely adjustment of its strategy, Tongfang
Pharmaceutical concentrated its resources on the other major
products and strengthened its marketing efforts, thereby
alleviating the influence of sales decline of individual major
products to a certain extent. Besides, Tongfang
Pharmaceutical proactively explored emerging markets by
focusing on the promotion of products such as UCAN
probiotic solid beverages and Vigor solid beverages for
reproductive health. With deployment in new marketing
channels such as new media and self-media, Tongfang
Pharmaceutical has achieved relatively promising results and
laid a solid foundation for sustainable development in the
future. 13
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HiLs One-step granulation in

solid dosage workshop of Shaanxi UNWO., Ltd.

Shaanxi Life Care

In 2021, Shaanxi Life Care recorded revenue of RMB66.6
million (2020: RMB54.4 million), representing a growth of
22.4% from the corresponding period of last year, and
recorded a gross profit of RMB31.1 million in 2021 (2020:
RMB23.2 million), representing a growth of 34.1% from last
year.

Shaanxi Life Care’s operation was severely affected by the
COVID-19 pandemic in 2020. In 2021, through various
responsive measures, Shaanxi Life Care has made a
turnaround from the adverse environment and gradually
resumed to the same operation level prior to the COVID-19
pandemic. At the same time, Shaanxi Life Care has also
formulated its long-term development plan. Shaanxi
Unisplendour Hi-tech Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.* (BRPEEE S 3
BEHR/NAE]), a wholly-owned subsidiary of Shaanxi Life
Care, has been building its new production base in the
hi-tech industrial development area in Baoji, Shaanxi Province,
China. Currently, all efforts are made in the construction
project, which targets to solve the production capacity issue
that restricts the development of Shaanxi Life Care. The
existing resources will be revitalized to the maximum extent
for creating higher value for shareholders of the Company.
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Chongqing Kangle

Chongging Kangle recorded revenue of RMB145.2 million in
2021 (2020: RMB281.2 million), representing a decrease of
48.4% as compared with last year; and recorded gross profit
for 2021 of RMB47.8 million (2020: RMB158.3 million),
representing a decrease of 69.8% as compared with last year.

With the effective control of the global COVID-19 pandemic
and the COVID-19 pandemic in Mainland China, the price and
supply of related APl of Chongging Kangle have gradually
dropped to a stable range, while the positive effect brought
by the massive demand of the APl Chloroquine Phosphate
manufactured by Chongging Kangle in 2020 has continued to
a certain extent. In 2021, the revenue and profit level of
Chongqging Kangle have both increased as compared to the
status of those prior to the COVID-19 pandemic.

SPF

SPF recorded revenue of RMB132.3 million in 2021 (2020:
RMB87.9 million), representing a growth of 50.5% as
compared with last year, and recorded gross profit of
RMB70.1 million in 2021 (2020: RMB36.2 million),
representing a growth of 93.6% as compared with last year.
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I, located in the heart of,
usiness District

The aforesaid growth in the revenue and gross profit of SPF
was mainly due to the increasing demand for research and
development of new drugs as well as the mass production of
COVID-19 vaccines in Mainland China. However, SPF continues
to observe increasingly intense industry competition and it is
expected that SPF will inevitably need to encounter the
continuing pressure from competitors in the future, which will
compel SPF to offer more competitive prices to its customers.
In order to sustain the market share and pursue business
development under the highly competitive market, SPF's
capital pressure has gradually emerged and became the main
constraint factor.

Apros

On 22 October 2021, Tongfang Konta Capital, L.P.,, a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, Swiss Talent Group
Limited GaANE B AR AR) and the Company (as the
guarantor of Tongfang Konta Capital, L.P.) entered into a sale
and purchase agreement, pursuant to which approximately
79.83% of the issued share capital of Apros held by
Tongfang Konta Capital, L.P. was sold to Swiss Talent Group
Limited. The transaction was completed on 25 November
2021. Upon completion, Apros ceased to be a subsidiary of
the Company, and the Group ceased to own any interests in
Apros, therefore the financial results of Apros were no longer
consolidated into the financial statements of the Group. For
details of the transaction, please refer to the announcement
of the Company dated 22 October 2021 and the circular of
the Company dated 18 November 2021, respectively.

True Fitness at HarbourFront Centre, located on Level
impressive view of Sentosa island
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Fitness Business

The revenue of the Group’s fitness business for the year ended
31 December 2021 was approximately HK$161.3 million (including
royalty fee income of approximately HK$37.8 million), representing
a decrease of approximately 14.1% as compared to HK$187.7
million (including royalty fee income of approximately HK$53.5
million) recognised in the year ended 31 December 2020. The net
loss for the year ended 31 December 2021 was approximately
HK$26.4 million (2020: approximately HK$12.9 million).

The drop in revenue and increase in net loss of the Group’'s fitness
business in 2021 are primarily due to the decrease in royalty fee
income of approximately HK$15.7 million from Taiwan, which was
affected by COVID-19 pandemic since May 2021. According to the
local authority’s requirements, all the fitness clubs in Taiwan were
forced to close between May and July 2021, and the impact of
COVID-19 pandemic has not fully diminished until the second half
of 2021. Excluding the impact of lower royalty fee income for the
Group's fitness business, the net loss from our fitness club business
in Singapore was narrowed in 2021 by approximately HK$2.2 million
as a result of effective cost control measures adopted.

The Group’s fitness business in Singapore has approximately 19,000
active members for the year. We suffered a higher churn rate
during the year as a result of COVID-19 pandemic, and all our clubs
have lower membership levels comparing with
pre-COVID-19 pandemic period, especially for some of the clubs
located in the central business district. We have taken various
measures throughout the year to ensure that the Group’s fitness
business can endure the period of hardship and it is noteworthy
that no fitness club of the Group was permanently closed due to
the COVID-19 pandemic. Such achievement is attributable to the
endeavors of the staff and management of the Group, the trust of
our suppliers and customers as well as the local government’s
financial support.

Readers’
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We monitor market trend closely and adjust operation strategy
accordingly. During the year, we have launched a new brand named
“Urban Den” and successfully rebranded two clubs in Singapore.
One was converted into a boutique gym to attract and focus on
like-minded members who enjoy strength trainings and want to
achieve aesthetic fitness. The other one was converted into a high
intensity interval training (“HIIT”) group exercise studio to boost the
revenue from paid classes in addition to membership income.

The Group's fitness business keeps placing customer experience as
top priority all the time. In 2021, we went further by adopting
advanced technology. Contactless entry using our APP booking was
introduced during the year, which has been well received by the
members. We will continue to invest in and enhance our technology
capability. The key development for 2022 in this area is to refresh
our website and to upgrade our existing proprietary APP. We are
confident that the strength of our technology team and their
innovation will continue to drive competitive edges in this area over
the coming years.

We have also taken the opportunity to review our member value
proposition to ensure that our future products will be even more
customer oriented in the post-COVID-19 pandemic era. Not only we
will maximize the benefits of product consistency across the two
regions where we and our associate operate, we will also enhance
the Group’s overall brand image through the launch of signature
group exercise offer across the business, such as for the 60-min HIIT
class.

1ﬁﬁé‘|nczﬁe @ Tampines JunctionyTrue Fitls B AUR—ERBERRENHSE o

True Fitness at Income @ Tampines Jdnc@i_x?_r]'f'serves members residing in the East since January 2012
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FINANCIAL REVIEW
Liquidity and Financing

The Group's capital expenditure, daily operations and investments
during the year ended 31 December 2021 were mainly funded by
cash generated from its operations, loans from principal bankers and
an intermediate holding company.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group maintained bank balances and
cash reserves of approximately HK$174.2 million (2020:
approximately HK$165.8 million), including cash and cash
equivalents of approximately HK$168.0 million (2020: approximately
HK$165.8 million) and restricted bank deposits of approximately
HK$6.2 million (2020: Nil).

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had outstanding borrowings
repayable within one year of approximately HK$226.7 million and
outstanding borrowings repayable after one year of approximately
HK$17.1 million (2020: approximately HK$167.6 million and
HK$29.2 million). 82.9% of the Group’s outstanding borrowings
were denominated in Renminbi (“RMB”) and 17.1% in Singapore
dollars (“SGD"). All of the Group’s outstanding borrowings were
charged at fixed rates.

The gearing ratio (total borrowings over total assets) of the Group
as at 31 December 2021 was as follows:

2021 2020

—E-—F —EEF

HK$°000 HK$'000

TH&xT &I

EE®E Total borrowings 243,802 196,777

BEE Total assets 2,558,775 2,542,284

BEAGLE Gearing ratio 9.5% 7.7%
BEEERBER Financial Management and Policy

AEB M BBRREESAEEEYE 215
RERERE  AEBZBRAS T2 EERK
MZTESRR S TTERRBESHRE
RERRERER -
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The Group's financial policy aims at minimising the Group's financial
risk exposure. Our policy is not to engage in speculative derivative
financial transactions and not to invest current capital in financial
products with significant risks.
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Risk of Foreign Exchange Fluctuation

The Group's operations are mainly located in the PRC and
Singapore and most of its transactions, related working capital and
borrowings are denominated in RMB, SGD, United States dollar
("US$"”) and HK$. The Group closely monitors such foreign
exchange exposure and will consider hedging significant currency
exposure if necessary. However, since the Group’s consolidated
financial statements are presented in HK$ which is different from its
functional currency, the Group would inevitably face foreign
exchange exposure, whether positive or negative, arising from
translating the accounts to its presentation currency.

Pledge of Assets

As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s bank borrowings of
HK$167,046,000 (2020: HK$104,364,000) and lease liabilities of
HK$4,776,000 (2020: HK$6,169,000) were secured by the
following:

2021 2020

—E-—F —E-FF

HK$'000 HK$'000

THET F7& 7T

BFNEEY Buildings and structures 98,586 41,775
FREEE Right-of-use assets 24,563 24,320
e EZ 578 Trade receivables 20,123 30,827
IRITEE R Bank balance 889 1,552
144,161 98,474
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Material Capital Commitments and Investments

The Group had the following capital commitments:

2021 2020
—E_-—fF

—E-TF

HK$'000
TR

HK$’000
TERT

B RER B Capital commitments contracted for but
not provided in the consolidated

financial statements:

— BEWE BELREB

— Acquisition of property, plant and
equipment

118,572 14,589
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EMPLOYEES

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had 1,305 (2020: 1,221)
employees. The Group maintains a policy of paying competitive
remuneration packages, and employees are also rewarded salary and
bonus on a performance related basis. In addition, share options
and awarded shares may be granted to eligible employees pursuant
to the terms of the share option scheme (which was expired on 17
January 2022) and the share award scheme of the Company,
respectively. The purpose of the schemes is to provide incentives to
the selected employees to contribute to the Group and to enable
the Group to recruit and retain high-calibre employees, and attract
and retain human resources that are valuable to the Group.

*  For identification purpose only
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OVERALL APPROACH, STRATEGY, REPORTING
SCOPE AND REPORTING PRINCIPLES OF
ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE

About this Report

This Environmental, Social and Governance Report (the “Report”)
aims to illustrate the system establishment and performance of
Tongfang Kontafarma Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (the “Group” or “we") in fulfilling its environmental and
social responsibilities, and is also published on the respective
websites of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”) (https://www.hkexnews.hk) and the
Company (http://www.tfkf.com.hk).

Reporting Scope

This Report covers the reporting period from 1 January 2021 to 31
December 2021 (the “Reporting Period”) and makes relevant
disclosures in accordance with the Environmental, Social and
Governance Reporting Guide (the “ESG Reporting Guide”) as set out
in Appendix 27 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the
“Listing Rules”) of the Stock Exchange. The board of directors (the
“Board”) of the Company considers that we have complied with the
mandatory disclosure requirements and the “comply or explain”
provisions as set out in the ESG Reporting Guide for the year
ended 31 December 2021.

The current scope of this Report covers the Group’s principal
businesses, including (1) the manufacturing and sales of prescription
drugs, including chemical drugs and prescribed traditional Chinese
medicine, and laboratory related products in the People’s Republic
of China (the “PRC”) (the “Pharmaceutical Business”); and (2) the
operation of fitness centres and provision of consultation services for
fitness and health activities in Singapore and Taiwan, and the
operation of franchise business for royalty fee income (the “Fitness
Business”). As the disposal of the cement business was completed
in 2020, and certain subsidiaries of the Pharmaceutical Business,
including Beijing Huakong Health Technology Co., Ltd.* (b R&ZE4E
EERHEAERAT]) and Tibet Linzhi Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.* (FHiE
MEZmEEERAA) had no actual operation and Apros
Therapeutics, Inc. had been disposed during the year of 2021, the
relevant ESG data and information during the Reporting Period of
the above subsidiaries are not included for disclosure in this Report.
In addition, as the Hong Kong office does not involve any
significant business of production/provision of services to the Group,
it is also not included in the reporting scope of the Environmental,
Social and Governance Report for the year of 2020 and 2021.
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This Report summarises our ESG performance during the Reporting
Period, and covers our management policies, mechanisms and
measures for environmental protection, emission reduction, safe
workplace, staff training and drills, supply chain management and
community investment and engagement during the Reporting
Period. We are fully committed to operating in a manner that is
economically, socially and environmentally sustainable while
balancing the interests of our stakeholders and bringing positive
impacts to the society.

Reporting Principles

This report is prepared in accordance with the ESG Reporting Guide
and based on the following four reporting principles — materiality,
quantitative, balance and consistency.

Materiality: We have collected, through the materiality assessment
questionnaires, and reviewed the views of internal management and
stakeholders to identify the Group’s ESG issues and assess their
relevance and materiality, so as to determine the reporting scope
and the required information for the preparation and verification of
the ESG Report.

Quantitative: The ESG key performance indicators disclosed in this
Report are supported by quantitative data and measurable criteria.
The sources of all applicable data, calculation tools, methodologies,
references and conversion factors used are disclosed in the
presentation of emission data, where applicable.

Balance: This Report provides a complete, fair, clear and
comparable overview of the Group’s ESG policies and performance.

Consistency: To facilitate stakeholders’ comparisons of the ESG
performance of the Group from year to year, the same reporting
and calculation methodologies are used as reasonably practicable in
the preparation of this Report and material changes in the
methodologies are set out in the relevant sections in detail. The
Group will also add a note in the corresponding contents of the
report to indicate any changes that may affect the comparison with
previous reports.
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Governance Structure

The Group understands that ESG are crucial to the sustainable
development of an enterprise. The Group has established an ESG
management framework with clearly defined responsibilities to
ensure top-down and effective implementation of the ESG policies.
The Board is responsible for overseeing the effective implementation
of the Group’s ESG policies, including determining the Group’s
overall ESG initiatives, understanding and controlling ESG-related
risks, as well as supervising and leading the executive committee of
the Board (the "Executive Committee”) , the management and
relevant functional departments in formulating and implementing
relevant policies and measures, directing the management to
monitor the effectiveness of the ESG risk management and internal
control systems, and regularly reviewing the progress of relevant
performance and objectives. The Board approves and supervises the
preparation of the ESG Report and formulates its approach. The
working group will be responsible for the specific preparation of the
ESG Report in accordance with the instructions of the Board and
the Executive Committee.

The Group has established an ESG governance structure and
implemented the concept of sustainable development in its daily
work. The structure consists of three parts:

The decision-making level (the Board), the organisation level (the
Executive Committee, the management) and the executive level (the
working group, the functional departments, the subsidiaries of the
Group), which are responsible for different ESG functions and work,
respectively.

The Board is responsible for:

o developing the ESG management framework,
strategy, priorities and objectives;

approach,

° overseeing the Group’s overall ESG risks and its relevant
objectives, and reviewing the relevant progress and
performance;

o ensuring that appropriate and effective ESG risk management
and internal control systems are in place;

° supervising and leading the Executive Committee, the
management and relevant functional departments to conduct

the ESG-related work; and

3 approving the disclosure in the ESG Report.
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The Executive Committee and the management are
responsible for:

° developing and implementing relevant policies and measures in
accordance with the ESG approach, strategy, priorities and
objectives set by the Board;

o assessing and determining the ESG-related progress,
performance, risks and opportunities, and reporting to the
Board;

° providing guidance on the implementation of the ESG policies

and measures to the functional departments and the
subsidiaries of the Group; and

° reviewing the ESG Report and submitting it to the Board for
approval.

The working group is responsible for:

° integrating information and data collected by functional
departments and subsidiaries of the Group relating to the
Group’s ESG performance; and

o engaging in the preparation of the ESG Report in accordance
with the instructions of the Board and the Executive
Committee, and reporting to the Executive Committee on the
work progress.

The functional departments and the subsidiaries of the Group
are responsible for:

o coordinating and implementing specific ESG policies, objectives
and measures;

° reporting the ESG-related work to the management;
o collecting information and data relating to the Group’s ESG
performance; and

° coordinating with the working group in preparing the ESG
Report.
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Governance Approach and Strategy

The Board implemented a clear and prioritised ESG management
approach and initiative that is closely aligned with the Company’s
overall business strategy. The Executive Committee and the
management are responsible for the formulation of policies and
guidelines, and the allocation of budgets for the ESG activities and
projects in achieving sustainable development. Our vision is to
promote sustainable economies, build a solid foundation and a
bright future for the Group and enhance the value for business
partners of the Group and shareholders of the Company. Our
strategy is to comply with all environmental requirements applicable
to its scope of business and to continuously improve our
environmental management of every aspect towards the industry
best practice.

Stakeholder Engagement

The management is committed to incorporating the ESG elements
into the strategic assessment of daily operation, and has considered
the long-term impact of stakeholders on our ESG issues. We have
appointed internal functional department and engaged external
advisor to assist the management of the Group in reviewing our
operation, in order to identify the relevant ESG issues and assess
their importance to our business and stakeholders’ interests.
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The Group values the intelligence gained from the stakeholders’
insights, inquiries and continuous interest in the Group's business
activities. The Group has identified key stakeholders that are
important to the business and established various communication
channels. The following table provides an overview of the Group's
key stakeholders, and various platforms and communication
methods that are used to reach, listen and respond to them.

HERER

Expectations and requirements

BEAR

Communication methods

FEROE
Key stakeholders

AMEEFHE
Key internal stakeholders

==

Employees

B IHER

i R A

EERR

BEMBERS

Labour rights and interests
Benefits and welfare

Career development

Health and occupational safety

BT)A%

BRERZ

BT FM
Bl R E
Employee activities
Performance appraisal
Employee handbook
Trainings and drills

IBEERHE
Key external stakeholders

KEH R

Investors/shareholders

R E& B
RENEREBRSR
RAERNERERKE

Return on investment

Good corporate governance system
Transparency and disclosure of corporate
information

e

PHRFERE

NAEIE A

EFHMH

Shareholders’ meetings
Interim and annual reports
Announcements and circulars
Official company website
Emails

BT/ EEHE

Government/regulatory

BFIRRIER
BITEREREE

Compliance with laws and regulations

EHI R R
ERER

Regular reporting

authorities e Fulfillment of corporate legal Laws and regulations
responsibilities
BEEREBERF o BEEmMBERY B
e REFRE BFEHHE  EELBEAEARER
o SIEEMR BEFmBERE
s R%EE

Customers and potential
customers

Quality products and services
Timely delivery

Reasonable price

Value of services

Business visits

Email, telephone and
communication applications
Customer satisfaction survey
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TERGE HMEEER BEAR
Key stakeholders Expectations and requirements Communication methods
eSS R o [TRREFREIR o REBHD
e REMBEK s BEFEHM ERNABMEREN
o HERKRIRTMG
Suppliers/business e Payment schedule e Business visits
partners e Stable demand e Email, telephone and
communication applications
e Supplier performance evaluation
Za o RERE . "ﬂﬁﬁiﬁﬁ
o HEER o ftEAH
o REmER e BIRIED
Community e Environmental protection e Official company website
e Community contribution e Community involvement
e Economic development e Staff volunteering activities
EEMTG Materiality Assessment
AEEDFEBTHNLSHTEHERE LERE The Group has assessed the materiality and importance of the ESG
B HECERNEREE Y aspects through the following steps:
S EBR — SIETEREE Step 1: Identification — Formulation of industry benchmark

c ASBBEBEHEHIERREZ AR *
RE - @ RERRE MAEER ER
HEARE e REREHE -

e RERR HEREARERIEZMIIR °
BRI - LB REARE RS 2 BE K
LLEE@WEBHT %TZ’S%IZJ—”SAA

TEE °

The relevant ESG areas were identified by the Group through
the review of relevant ESG reports and relevant information of
local and international industry peers.

The importance of each ESG area was determined based on
the recommendations of the ESG Reporting Guide as well as
the risks on the Group through internal discussion of the
management.

B2 BERNFE — BEHESHE Step 2: Prioritisation — Stakeholder engagement

. AEBER EMESHMER T ZBEEIR O
B e kELEBETHESESTG U
HBRAEREEAEBEREREMSBEE
BOAEBBLEENIRE HERER

PR -

s REVIBEEUNGER HARE  °
MEBAHIRE HEKE /MﬁﬁfﬁuﬁmL
TTEEYF SEEHZEETEE
BFE ZRTHREODENEZEMY
EBNERNKE -

The Group conducts questionnaire assessments on the key ESG
areas concerned by its key stakeholders above, so as to
identify all key and material ESG issues that they consider to
be material to the Group’s business development.

All the key and material ESG-related issues were prioritized base
on the preliminary materiality assessment result. The Group
takes into account the materiality to stakeholders and
materiality to business in prioritizing the issues.

B3 BE — ErTEESE Step 3: Validation — Determining material issues

. RIR a5 4 REITR E&%'J&T?F e
F - ?‘“%ﬂﬁé,\ SIRIRIE - LB RER
$&%?EIE_;| &ﬁEHL\EEIEFli-J‘%,%Q%k@%
EECMARREERIRE Hgk®E
AR GEEEE o

Assessment, identification and prioritization were made based
on the above questionnaire results, and the Executive
Committee determined and confirmed all key and material
ESG issues and areas that are important to the business
development in accordance with the ESG Reporting Guide.
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BER MG AREEHEEEBRRE Based on our assessment, this Report provides a summary disclosure
SEBOMEEE  UTHERER g8 kE of the Pharmaceutical Business and the Fitness Business. The
AEEWREAKRMNBRER - following five ESG issues are identified as our key aspects.

EENRERE
HERERSHE JIRERZRENREANS RNER

Key ESG issues Reasons for identifying as material issues and risks involved

1. EmAaERESE s EmEARBEERGCENRLUBRFNNEBEE  WEERET UEEBRKER B
BEEAGAMS A& BEE-
e ERYEMMBRETABEMMNEBERREHNERFIEN BREQTSHEEE
KEAREEMEEMEE -
1. Product liability and e Product liability and quality are the core competitiveness and strategic goals of an
quality enterprise. An enterprise aims to survive with quality and develop with reputation.
Only enterprises with quality will have market, benefit and development.
e The relevant requirements and penalties for product sampling inspection and
substandard products are increasing, and it is essential for the Group to ensure that
the products meet the relevant requirements.

2. ERERE o RERREEBRAIRE S - IEEREIE - SREMRRE - SRR AR EEELE
E RACEGEHS) HERREFREWEE -
e BURFREERZUKEERAFZENTHE
(1) BERARRKRNESOMEENE  REEELEHR
2 HRAFANEZE EE RELELIBNRE
() BAYPRAREFSERMEMIEBR LR RRENa -
o BEFEIMEMER  TAREELERNERER  RSLBEME -

2. Energy e Energy is the source of enterprise development. The strengthening of energy
management management, energy conservation and consumption reduction, energy conservation
and emission reduction can help enterprises optimise production and enhance
comprehensive competitiveness, which are essential to their long-term development.
e The establishment of an energy management system is beneficial for the Group to
achieve its objectives as follows:
(1) to help the Company save and use energy reasonably and reduce production and
operation costs;
(2)  to ensure the Company’s safe, continuous and stable production;
(3) to help the Company obtain economic and environmental benefits supported by
national energy conservation and emission reduction policies.
e Reasonable planning and use of energy can reduce energy consumption per unit product
and improve economic efficiency.

3. RigEHERERE o« REEHERNEEIATRRTNEENELRRE -
s HERMHEMASUHEEEEEINEATPREE  UKFELEHERERAK -
RITEEMS -
s BRHKBEMAREE FHRELAENIRBNERNEE  BIRRESEENRLE
T REEEINEERE o
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Key ESG issues

RERBRENRENS RNER

Reasons for identifying as material issues and risks involved

3. Procurement and e Procurement and supply chain management is the basic guarantee for timely completion
supply chain of production.
management e The reliability and flexibility of supplier delivery can help improve customer satisfaction,

reduce the total supply chain cost of the enterprise, and improve production efficiency.

e Effective procurement and supply chain management helps to ensure smooth production
and product quality, and to improve the core competitiveness of an enterprise and
enhance its economic benefits.

ATEBRBERELEFEBUEADNEARNEEASTARENEARARE  REXERN
F-BRCREEZRNERNRE  HEENBRAZRANEDIER  KERERS
RBMESRENMASHE -

Talent management and development is an essential element for an enterprise’s strategic
human capital management plan, and is the primary resource and the basic guarantee
for enterprise development, which greatly promotes the development of an enterprise.
The Group shall maintain and expand its high-quality talent pool.

TEEAMEREEELERIMBREERNER -

o BRKELGCXEAMAREEIN TRAUESREFEHREART HERINRE
BIEK -

4, NAEBRER .

4. Talent management e
and development

e
HE
o
]
X
=
£
il

5. Corporate e Corporate governance and risk management are the foundation for the steady and
governance and risk healthy development of an enterprise.
management e The Group shall ensure that its corporate governance and risk management are in place,
otherwise it may result in legal liability, regulatory penalties and goodwill loss.
EREDE ) Objectives and Review

AEEEBHREBORAER BHOTEXHE
BEE - AKRENEE-—RANEERRSEME
ETHEST BUHAMEIBERERSES
K e T —E AR P ~ B RAKRE
BERRBER RO HEEMEMERR
BHEE - AN RARERENERHIE
BY—BZTHREREZE2MNTHERE
VHEESTHFETBR  UBEBRETNE
Z - LHRZEHZESE  UEIR2 KRB
RER REFTENEIRHHEARNE
HR TEZHE - TR ASRMNEZRZ -

While developing its business, the Group is committed to improving
its business operation management. The Group’s operations are
generally based on the nature of production and service. Therefore,
the resources we use are mainly electricity and water. We always
aim to reduce emissions, reduce water consumption and cherish
resources, so as to reduce the impact on the surrounding
environment where we operate. At the same time, we have a
sound employment system to create a diverse, inclusive, healthy and
safe working environment, and maintain close communication with
employees to understand their needs, in particular, during the
pandemic prevention and control period, the Group gives priority to
employee safety and well-being, and provides pandemic prevention
supplies and flexible working arrangements for employees in need.
The table below summarises our key objectives.

31



RAEREXEEGRALT TONGFANG KONTAFARMA HOLDINGS LIMITED

RE A ERERERE
ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

BMHER

7
P
‘

Our objectives

1.

HITZEENEEEEBERGHEMBA

B STIER

. Strict compliance

with regulations

Foid

m & R7
Quiality assurance

R

M
e

LT_

Environmental
protection

AANBA

People-oriented

Ol fEtt &
Giving back to
society

RN EREET

El TET%

KRR

HEE

£ R IR

BB R PTGV IR IR

BF BERE

B oHekERER

32

BEIRE L2k
Eﬁﬁf&&%eﬁ WrEEGER - EF
SERK 1B L HE 1T 2 B 0 Y 4B R R ER
RBGETTE - Ry - E2SHIHEER
EARE -HER
o BEEXBHTHBRE
FEREFHIRE g REREBEZE
HEREAEBATE B
e REARAREIES
R EEM T ° $ RIMER AT BB R
BAEERBTHEETZEEZ
ﬁ%%ﬁﬁﬁﬁlm%%ﬁﬁﬂmﬁ%Z%

EARBAAKEM 2

B /A 8 &=

BEEHR — BREENEBEETSEROERER

BEAE — RTEAXACBERE HUaHROXXE

Legal compliance — ensuring that the Group’s business operations are in compliance
with applicable laws and regulations

Ethics — adhering to ethical standards of business integrity and establishing a culture
of compliance

EmBEE —HBREMBERRE FEaEPHNEX

Emir — BREMTEREBEREK

Product quality — ensuring good product quality and meeting customers’ requirements
Product safety — ensuring that products meet safety standards and requirements

RRERE — THESSERESE BRI EENREZE  BNSHNER K
DHEM R D EE ERBERY

RIREBRE — CHmE EEREERERE(CH T & 055w KA E R E %S
N AR RA FE S e B
Environmental management — regularly monitoring various environmental parameters
to minimise the relevant environmental impact, committed to saving resources,
reducing emissions and reducing the generation of solid waste
Climate change strategy — regularly reviewing the Group’s approach to climate change,
and identifying risks and opportunities, and relevant countermeasures

ZRNER — BEMAEIMNSIRENRARE #HSBREE  WEBIBANE
REBEE  TEQRAREBEEENXE

2T — REIRHARIE WREREENIERE

Diversity and inclusion — Respecting the labour rights and human rights of all
employees, maintaining high ethical standards, clearly stating human resources
management policies and advocating an inclusive culture within the company

Work safety — providing employees with a supportive, happy and healthy working
environment

MARMNFERMNEIR - SEBHAEN L ERS

Leveraging our expertise and resources to serve the communities in which we operate

A The Executive Committee and the management determine and
A review the progress of ESG objectives and provide feedback through
regular reports provided by the relevant responsible persons of each
business and report to the Board. The Board reviews the
achievement of objectives and reviews the progress and effectiveness
of related matters. Meanwhile, the Board will continue to monitor
the risks brought by these material ESG issues to the Group. As the
business continues to develop, the Board has been paying attention
to new ESG-related issues and will continue to oversee ESG-related
work to keep abreast of the latest disclosure requirements of the
ESG Reporting Guide of the Stock Exchange. The Company also
ensures that all departments work closely together to achieve the
objectives of operational compliance and social responsibility, and will
continue to formulate corresponding ESG objectives in response to
the Group’s business development.
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A. Environmental
1. Emissions

Pharmaceutical Business

The Group aims to reduce gas emissions and ensures that the
concentration of exhaust gas emissions meets the emission
standards stipulated in government regulations, such as the Emission
Standard of Air Pollutants for Catering Industry* (CE#RZE AR )54
YIHEIZ 4E)), the Emission Standard of Air Pollutants for Boilers*
(CGRIEAXFS2MHEMIZZE)) and the Integrated Emission Standard
of Air Pollutants* ((RKRSRYER S BEMIEA)), etc. Relevant
emission reduction works were carried out during the year to
achieve the goal.

In response to the promotion of alternative energy use by the PRC
government, we have continuously implemented a solar energy
power generation project (the “Solar Energy Generation Project”) in
our plant in Beijing. In this project, solar photovoltaic modules were
installed, covering an area of over 30,000 square feet and fulfilling
the daily energy consumption requirement of our plant in Beijing.
Any surplus solar power would be sold to the plants nearby. The
Solar Energy Generation Project effectively promotes the
development of alternative energy and contributes to a better
environment by reducing greenhouse gas emissions.

Meanwhile, Tongfang Pharmaceutical Group Co., Ltd* ([FlJ7 224
E AR A 7] (“Tongfang Pharmaceutical”) has regularly carried out
various energy-saving actions and eliminated heavily-polluted
production lines and related facilities to reduce emissions. The
exhaust gas generated by Tongfang Pharmaceutical in its workshop
during the production process of pharmaceutical preparations mainly
includes dust, exhaust gas, chemical reagent volatilisation of
laboratories, boiler exhaust gas, etc. Tongfang Pharmaceutical has
regularly carried out the monitoring of the concentration of exhaust
gas emissions and replaced relevant facilities, such as installing
electrostatic fume purifier facilities and replacing low-nitrogen
burners. In accordance with the requirements of the pollutant
discharge permit, it engaged a qualified inspection company to carry
out self-monitoring of pollutant emissions, so as to reduce emissions
and ensure that exhaust gas emissions are controlled in accordance
with the total amount permitted by the pollutant discharge permit.
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The safety and environmental protection committee of Chongging
Kangle Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.* (EEELEEH R Q7))
("Chongging Kangle”) led various departments to implement energy
conservation and emission reduction, and gradually started to
implement various energy conservation and emission reduction
work, including the purchase of a new set of exhaust gas treatment
equipment, the application of the equipment with high energy
efficiency to eliminate obsolete machines, the centralised production
to reduce the use of packaging and forklifts, and the strengthened
inspections to deal with abnormal situations in a timely manner and
to completely eradicate environmental pollution incidents. During the
year, Chongging Kangle officially operated the renovated temporal
storage sites for hazardous wastes and waste gas collection and
treatment facilities at the sewage station, which effectively collected
and controlled the fugitive emissions of temporal storage sites for
hazardous wastes, and processed it together with the waste gas
from the sewage station treatment pool and then gas emission is
required to meet the standard. At the same time, the waste gas
treatment system of the sewage station has been upgraded to
level-three deep treatment device of “condensation + water
absorption + activated carbon adsorption”, so as to further reduce
exhaust gas (such as formaldehyde) concentration emissions,
effectively ensuring the up-to-standard emission of the relevant
exhaust gas.

In addition, unpleasant smell (mainly composed of ammonia) is
emitted from the experimental laboratory animal workshop of SPF
(Beijing) Biotechnology Co., Ltd.* (HTE4& (At R) £WEMARAR)
(“SPF”) during the process of raising animals. We adopt isolated
ventilation cage to raise the animals, collecting 100% of the waste
gas from the cage, and have it diverted to the spray tower by way
of power fan. Inside the tower, water recycled from other processes
is sprayed from the top to react with the ammonia, neutralising and
purifying the waste gas. To improve the efficiency of the spray
tower, hackettens are used to increase the surface area and
effectively disperse the airflow. Purified gas is discharged through
chimneys to achieve reduced emission of waste gas. Currently,
100% of the waste gas is discharged in compliance with the
emission standards, and a third-party test on waste gas emission is
conducted twice a year to ensure compliance with the emission
standards.
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During the Reporting Period, since the emissions, such as nitrogen
oxides (“NOx"), sulphur dioxide (“SO,”) and dust (“PM”) and
greenhouse gases emitted directly, produced from the
Pharmaceutical Business were not significant, a decision was made
not to disclose such information. In 2021, indirect carbon dioxide
("CO,") emission from electricity consumption was approximately
4,034 tonnes (2020: approximately 3,913 tonnes). The increase was
due to the increase of electricity consumption in 2021. For the
reasons for the increase in electricity consumption, please refer to
the “Use of Resources” section below.

During the period, the Group classified wastes, aims to reduce the
generation of hazardous and non-hazardous wastes, and treated the
disposal of all wastes in strict accordance with laws and
regulations.

Clinical waste such as reagent bottles, disposed drugs and
experimental liquid waste are the major hazardous wastes of the
Pharmaceutical Business. We start with the design of process
research and development, strengthen material recovery and
application, and negotiate with suppliers to reduce or reuse the
packaging of raw materials to reduce waste generation. We
centralise the handling of all hazardous wastes in accordance with
the relevant laws and regulations. All hazardous wastes have to go
through detoxification treatments by qualified vendors before
disposal. During the year, Tongfang Pharmaceutical has completed
the works relating to self-monitoring and environmental licensing of
the 2021 pollutant discharge permit and improved the existing
environmental protection facilities. Tongfang Pharmaceutical’s
hazardous waste management has been renovated and hazardous
waste store room administrators have been employed to manage
hazardous waste, while implements a more standardised and safer
environmental protection process and addresses environmental
hazards.

In respect of solid waste, during the year, Tongfang Pharmaceutical
has fully implemented waste sorting, strengthened the publicity and
education of employees, and the waste at construction sites and
domestic waste produced every day have been properly disposed of
in compliance with the Beijing Municipal Regulations on the
Management of Municipal Solid Waste* ({1t 5 4 & b7 3 & 1 {5
fI)); Chongging Kangle has set up the temporal storage sites that
meet the reasonable regulations to dispose of the domestic waste
and solid waste respectively, so as to lower the distillation residue
and the water content of sludge and reduce the disposal cost. SPF
manages wastes by classification, and enters into agreements with
qualified waste treatment companies to dispose of the wastes
produced by the Company, so as to ensure that wastes are treated
and disposed of in accordance with the requirements.
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Tongfang Pharmaceutical has disposed of approximately 7 tonnes
(2020: approximately 8 tonnes) of hazardous wastes in total in
2021, including chemical wastes and hazardous chemicals. The
chemical wastes generated by Tongfang Pharmaceutical are mainly
waste drugs, chemical reagent wastes and waste liquid that expired
within the year; hazardous chemicals are mainly activated carbon,
ink cartridges, empty reagent bottles and waste organic solvents
produced in daily office operation.

The production base of Chongqing Kangle produced approximately
496 tonnes (2020: approximately 610 tonnes) of chemical wastes in
2021, representing a decrease as compared to the corresponding
period of last year which was due to the improvement of
production technology in 2021. SPF recorded a decrease in medical
wastes as a result of the improvement of breeding technology and
raw materials. Its experimental laboratory animal workshop
produced approximately 2 tonnes (2020: approximately 20 tonnes)
of medical wastes, including animal carcasses, in 2021. Chongging
Kangle and SPF continued to implement the following measures to
reduce and control the discharge of hazardous wastes:

—  Carrying out official inspections (e.g. National Medical Products
Administration of China, and U.S. Food and Drug
Administration (“FDA"), etc.) and multiple domestic and
foreign customer audits, and pushing forward clean
production and improvements on process technology, resulting
in significant improvements of product qualities and technical
indicators as well as substantial reductions in costs and
chemical wastes;

— Improving solvent recycling fixtures to increase the recycling of
distillation and condensation facilities and cooling water,
resulting in significant increase of solvent recovery rate and
effective reduction of chemical wastes emission;

—  Adopting front-end collection of chemical wastes in batches
and applying distillation-concentration regime for highly
concentrated chemical wastes, which effectively lowered the
volume of emissions and processing costs;

— Using quinclorac by some external procurements to reduce its
production; and

—  Engaging professional outsourcing companies to uniformly
recycle and dispose of hazardous wastes.
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Shaanxi Unisplendour Life Care Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.* (PRFEE
REZEZEAFR AR (“Shaanxi Life Care”), a subsidiary engaged in
planting, manufacturing and distribution of Chinese medicines,
produced approximately 230 tonnes (2020: approximately 240
tonnes) of non-hazardous wastes during 2021. Such wastes included
slag/coal-fired boiler wastes after heating and dregs/wastes
produced after extraction of Chinese medicines. The decrease in
total non-hazardous waste during the year was within normal
production fluctuation. In addition to the above non-hazardous
wastes produced by Shaanxi Life Care, non-hazardous wastes
consumed by finished products consisted mainly of paper boxes,
plastics and general commercial wastes. We consider the amount of
materials consumed by finished products and non-hazardous wastes
was not significant, and thus the Group decided not to disclose
such information.

Fitness Business

Since Fitness Business is a service industry, it only indirectly
produces greenhouse gases emission from electricity consumption,
and does not constitute other significant direct discharge of waste
gas, greenhouse gases, hazardous or non-hazardous wastes. During
the Reporting Period, CO, emission from electricity consumption was
approximately 5,739 tonnes (2020: approximately 8,262 tonnes),
representing a decrease as compared with the previous year's
emission, which was mainly due to the decrease in electricity
consumption in the fitness centres in Taiwan in 2021. Please refer
to the section “Use of Resources” below for electricity conservation
measures in the Fitness Business.
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Emissions Performance Table

BHEXK

Pharmaceutical Business

=

2020

ot T

e XK

Fitness Business

&

.

=

2020

Al HFRRERARIERE @ NAREHE - NEER/BEEREIA MRS R ATE SN (IINOX - SO, &
P BUR - PMZ) WAEX  BUAETKEABEH -

A1.1 The types of During the Reporting Period, the Group considered that the emissions such as NOx,
emissions and SO, and PM from the Pharmaceutical Business and the Fitness Business were not
respective significant, and thus a decision was made not to disclose such information.
emissions data.

A2 EE(BE1) kg 4,034 3,913 5,739 8,262118
R (BE2))8
ERBEHERE (KA
MRSt E)

A1.2 Direct (scope 1) 4,034 tonnes 3,913 tonnes 5,739 tonnes 8,262 tonnes
and indirect (scope
2) greenhouse gas
emissions from
electricity
consumption (in
tonnes)

A13 FMEEBEZEEEY {LEREY) - {LE2REY) - 3@ A
#E (LA HE) 502 61808

BEEREY BEREY)
2145 2008

A1.3 Total hazardous Chemical wastes: Chemical wastes: Not applicable
wastes produced 502 tonnes 618 tonnes
(in tonnes) Medical wastes: Medical wastes:

2 tonnes 20 tonnes

Ald FEEEZEREY mEREY) mEREY) BEEBRAEBEREKN
HE (LAMEETE) 23008 2401 BEBERY YW -

Al.4 Total non- Non-hazardous Non-hazardous The Fitness Business had no significant
hazardous wastes wastes: wastes: emission of
produced (in 230 tonnes 240 tonnes non-hazardous wastes.

tonnes)
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emission targets set
and steps taken to
achieve them.
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Pharmaceutical Business
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The Group classifies wastes, aims to
reduce the generation of hazardous and
non-hazardous wastes, and treats
emissions in accordance with regulations.
During the year, we officially operated
the renovated temporal storage sites for
hazardous wastes and waste gas
collection and treatment facilities at the
sewage station. We have implemented
the Solar Energy Generation Project and
carried out various energy conservation
and emission reduction measures, such as
removing and phasing out any
production lines and relevant facilities
that have serious pollution problems,
acquiring new exhaust gas filters,
applying equipment with high energy
efficiency and adopting centralised
production, to reduce concentrated
exhaust gas emission. Meanwhile, we
adopted isolated ventilation cages to
raise our animals and collected 100% of
the exhaust gas, and a third-party test
on waste gas emission was conducted
twice a year to ensure compliance with
the emission standards for purification
purposes.
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Apart from replacing our lighting system
with Light Emitting Diodes (“LED(s)"), we
also promoted energy saving by putting
up posters in our fitness centres.
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Description of how
hazardous and
non-hazardous
wastes are
handled, and a
description of
waste reduction
targets set and
steps taken to
achieve them.

CEES

Pharmaceutical Business

—7—7

2020

REREZEEBEN R BT EUR
REHE - M ARERFRMEE D5
REERAREAEBERY KKK
BENREEER RERFEREE - M
e TEMERFE  MRMHEKRE
A REHERERE  RARERRT
SNEEY - IRDBEERMNES - FTBA
EEEVEREMSAAEBRN AR
TEESCRE BREATEREER
KRB E - KBBCENEEMF B RN
REWERE  RETILERBEEYH
EE -

We have implemented waste sorting in
all respects during the year. Through
improving our environmental protection
facilities as well as utilising hazardous
waste storage sites, any domestic wastes
and solid wastes were disposed of
separately. In the future, we would
continue to enhance our hazardous
waste management to prevent any
potential impacts on the environment.
We started with design of process
research and development, strengthened
material recovery and application, and
negotiated with suppliers to reduce or
reuse the packaging for raw materials to
reduce waste generation. All hazardous
wastes will go through detoxification
treatment by qualified vendors before
disposal, so as to ensure that wastes are
treated and disposed of in accordance
with the requirements. Through
improved production and breeding
techniques and recycling equipment, the
production of chemical and medical
wastes was lowered.

R RS

Fitness Business

§§

BEXBARAEBREANBERESE
TP

The Fitness Business had no significant
emission of hazardous and non-
hazardous wastes.
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2. Use of Resources

The Group adheres to the concept of green development and has
been striving to implement the 3R Principle (Reduce, Reuse and
Recycle). Through equipment and technology transformation,
changing the way water is used for production, improving water
recycling utilisation rate, rationalising production layout, and
reducing demand for water in production, the Group continuously
optimises the use of resources, aiming to reduce resource
consumption and improve resource utilisation efficiency in all
possible aspects of business operations, including energy
conservation and water conservation.

Huge amount of water is required during the medicine
manufacturing process and provision of fitness services. Our sources
of water vary and largely depend on the location of our plants and
fitness centres. We are consciously taking steps in reducing our
consumption and contributing towards maintenance and recharge of
water sources. We provide waste recycling bins at all common areas
of our plants to separate wastes by nature for recycling and appoint
recyclable waste collection contractors to help discharge them.

We invest in the enhancement and reformation of the Company’s
power facilities and devices. In particular, we reform street lamps
into energy-saving solar LED street lamps, remove and phase out any
production lines and relevant facilities that have serious pollution
problems with high energy consumption, with a view to reducing
electricity consumption. Since the utilisation of solar power at the
end of 2019, the power generation of clean energy as of year 2021
was approximately 3,910,000 kWh (2020: approximately 2,090,000
kWh) per year. We have completed the replacement or upgrading of
our aged equipment to models that are more efficient. For
machinery with high electricity consumption such as the
refrigeration equipment, we have used the fluoride machines for
cooling and eliminated the ammonia machines, a kind of
refrigeration equipment with high energy consumption, to replace
the refrigerating medium and prevent air pollution. We also adopt
centralised cool storage in the nighttime, and alternatively use
refrigeration equipment for cooling during peak hours of power
consumption to reduce electricity consumption. We have completed
the replacement of LED lights in our plants and offices, providing
energy savings of up to 40% compared to conventional lights.
When constructing or upgrading plants, impacts on the environment
are our key consideration.
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Pharmaceutical Business

Regular energy audit or carbon audit was performed by certain
subsidiaries of the Group to monitor energy usage. All of our
pharmaceutical plants have passed the environmental assessment
certification of the Ministry of Ecology and Environment of the
People’s Republic of China. The Solar Energy Generation Project was
implemented in our plants, and the refrigeration units with
frequency control were adopted, which provide energy savings of up
to 40%. Meanwhile, power distribution facilities were upgraded to
reduce reactive power loss and reduce the utilisation rate of air
conditioning. In order to encourage energy saving among
employees, the Pharmaceutical Business has incorporated the
amount of energy saving into department assessments, providing
performance incentives to projects with significant energy saving. In
addition, employees were guided to use energy-saving lighting
products and electrical appliances for electricity saving. The
electricity consumption is calculated at the end of each month to
reduce electricity consumption according to the target
requirements.

We consumed approximately 13.36 million kWh of electricity in
2021 (2020: approximately 12.96 million kWh). In response to the
ongoing COVID-19 pandemic, one of the active pharmaceutical
ingredients produced by Chongging Kangle was accredited by the
National Medical Products Administration of China in effective
response to COVID-19. Therefore, the increase in production scale
and production volume has led to an increase in electricity
consumption. In addition to SPF, other pharmaceutical subsidiaries,
including Tongfang Pharmaceutical and Shaanxi Life Care, also
experienced an increase in electricity consumption due to the
expansion of production scale.

We replaced water taps by installing water-saving devices and
increased water-saving renovation to improve the water recycling
rate. Water used for cooling in pressure boilers in our experimental
laboratory animal workshops would be recycled for cleaning the
equipment and for the use of the spray absorber, which provides
water savings of up to 1,540 tonnes each year. We are committed
to guiding employees to save water, and have changed the
disinfection mode of the workshop to save more than 2,000 tonnes
of water. Chongqing Kangle controlled the wastewater produced
during the production process. Regular reviews on water
conversation measures were conducted to prevent any act of
wasting water. No water shall be used to wash the floor of
workshops except for process water and water for cleaning of



ZZZ—FF3#H ANNUAL REPORT 2021

BRI 4 ERERERE

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

PRAEVE R A - 5K IEBUE STER IR A fE A
& EKIERESHEKERAEIERE - A
FER L RAEIF SRR KI300M

EREHEA - RPFEKD225,9280 (==
ZZF ¢ 49245,433W) - FEOKE ML EFR
Lo FEARTERAERMSGE R LEE
IKEBLUR DB AREK - HFARFEAEE
FiEA T AERKE

— HEFREE BRAA - REEAK
ERAIOPEER - RABHAR

— HBHRMSEEEX —FREFRZER -
MRS EE (KRBT LEER
RERL  BBUREEREKERD &

— LTHREHKEE FRESERN  RSE
RANKE -

#EXE

BORKDNESEBREANEIEER - B F
FLEDE BB RGN - BMIIMER H 0k
B  HEME RESENE IR
Ko bih  BMMEETERE T - BEKAE
BARAE BHREZE-_ZFE+— AR
IR E S RO RSB EFEKA
HEEEMAEMN XCOVID-19RBFE &
EBHRERON S —FHREE T -
Hit - REERFKERLEFRD  BE2
BHNSBEETER(ZZEZ2F : £913.97
BETERE) - T -—FREKENAEY
258917Mi (= =T 4 : 49385,376MF) * &
HAREREFE BEPL0ETHEN €88
IR D BB -

equipment and special work types. Washing tanks and containers
containing oil, acid liquid, lye or liquid wastes within the factory
area were also prohibited to reduce wastewater and use of water
for floor cleaning. Meanwhile, the highly concentrated wastewater
produced is pretreated at the sewage stations with special
distillation and concentration process to reduce treatment costs, and
centralised pretreatment facilities for wastewater of high salinity will
be established at the sewage stations once the transformation of
these stations is completed and put into use, which is able to
reduce the wastewater used for equipment cleansing by
approximately 300 tonnes each year.

During the Reporting Period, we consumed approximately 225,928
tonnes (2020: approximately 245,433 tonnes) of water, representing
a decrease as compared to last year, which was primarily because
SPF improved its breeding technology and installed water-saving
devices to reduce significant water consumption. During the year,
we continued to implement the following measures to address the
water consumption:

—  the enforcement of clean production, recycling, and prohibiting
the cleaning of workshops by using a large amount of
drinking water (use sweeping instead);

—  the production of diphenylmethyl thioacetamide, amodiaquine
hydrochloride and ecabet sodium significantly dropped due to
market factors, resulting in drop of related water use; and

— the installation of water saving devices, change of disinfection
mode, and improvement of the water recycling rate.

Fitness Business

Electricity and water are the major resources used in the Fitness
Business. Apart from replacing our lighting system with LEDs, we
promote energy saving by putting up posters around the fitness
centres to remind members and staff to consume less water.
Furthermore, we are digitalising our business and transitioning
ourselves into a paper-less office. Since a new fitness centre was
opened in Singapore in November 2020, water and electricity
consumption slightly increased during the Reporting Period. As
affected by COVID-19 pandemic, our fitness centres in Taiwan was
temporarily closed in 2021. As a result, the electricity and water
consumption decreased as compared to last year. The electricity
consumption was approximately 11.52 million kWh (2020:
approximately 13.97 million kWh), while the water consumption in
2021 was approximately 258,917 tonnes (2020: approximately
385,376 tonnes), which was due to the temporary closure of fitness
centres and the decrease in water consumption by members as a
result of the pandemic.
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Key performance indicators Pharmaceutical Business Fitness Business
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2020 2020
A1 REAESHNEERS 13.36B & 12.96 5 & 115288 13978 8
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A.2.1 Direct and/or indirect 13.36 million kWh  12.96 million kWh  11.52 million kWh  13.97 million kWh
energy consumption by
type (e.g. electricity, gas
or oil) in total (in kWh)

A2.2 #HEFEKERZRE (W0 225,92 8MF 245,433 MF 258,917M8 385,376HF
BESEM BHERE
HH) -

A2.2 Water consumption in 225,928 tonnes 245,433 tonnes 258,917 tonnes 385,376 tonnes

total and intensity (e.g.
per unit of production
volume, per facility).
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We adhere to the concept of green development and implement the 3R Principle
(Reduce, Reuse and Recycle). We continuously optimise the use of resources, aiming
to reduce resource consumption and improve resource utilisation efficiency from the

business operations level.

We invest in the enhancement and
reform of the Company’s power facilities
and devices. In particular, we reform
street lamps into energy-saving solar LED
street lamps, remove and phase out any
production lines and relevant facilities
with high energy consumption. In
addition, the Solar Energy Generation
Project is implemented and central air-
conditioning modules with frequency
control are adopted, with energy savings
reaching 40%. The power generation of
clean energy as of the end of 2021 was
3,910,000 kWh per year. Moreover, the
amount of energy saving has been
incorporated into department
assessments, providing performance
incentives to projects with significant
energy saving. The electricity
consumption is calculated at the end of
each month to reduce electricity
consumption according to the target
requirements.

Electricity and water are the major
resources used in the Fitness Business.
Apart from replacing our lighting system
with LEDs, we promote energy saving by
putting up posters around the fitness
centres to remind users and staff to
consume less water. Furthermore, we are
digitalising our business and transitioning
ourselves into a paperless office.
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A2.4  Description of whether ~ We replaced water taps by installing
there is any issue in water-saving devices and increased
sourcing water that is fit ~ water-saving renovation to improve the
for purpose, water water recycling rate. We are committed
efficiency targets set to guiding employees to save water, and
and steps taken to have changed the disinfection mode of
achieve them. the workshop.

Water used for cooling in pressure
boilers would be recycled for cleaning
the equipment and for the spray
absorber, which provides water savings
of up to 1,540 tonnes each year. In
addition, the wastewater produced
during the production process is
controlled, and highly concentrated
wastewater is treated at the sewage
stations with special distillation and
concentration process. Regular reviews
on water conversation measures are
conducted to prevent any act of wasting
water resources.

A25 SHXMAAEERMHAN XHRGEFNVHIERER BHEBE—RBREEBEVNEZENS - RMRAR
BE (LAMETE) RN REZEYAINER  MAEERETNRBERBEL -

A2.5 Total packaging Materials consumed by finished goods are mainly paper boxes, plastics and non-

hazardous wastes which are general commercial wastes. Since the materials
consumed for finished goods and non-hazardous wastes are considered not
significant, the Group has decided not to disclose such information.

materials used for
finished products (in
tonnes)
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3. The Environment and Natural Resources

The Group does not have a significant impact on the environment
and natural its daily operations. The Group is
committed to enhancing environmental sustainability and minimising
the impact on the environment and natural resources through the
above measures to reduce emissions, waste generation and resource
consumption. In case of any pollution accident, the Group will
immediately formulate an emergency plan and report to the
relevant departments to minimise the environmental impact.

resources in

We recognise the environmental responsibilities associated with our
business and are committed to minimising the environmental
impacts of our business operation. Our environmental strategy is to
strike a harmonious balance between our business and the
environment. In order to establish a green working environment, we
request at least one-third of the managed area of our operation
plants to be green.

RERARBIFENZ

Environment and Natural Resources Performance Table

HREARER
Key performance
indicators

A3l RREREBEIRE
RRARERNERY
ELORNEERE —

FENTH - -

CE RS

Pharmaceutical Business

b o

RE X%

Fitness Business

BHANEIZRBHERET

BRERRERMANKEOMERRRE
RETESREFHANERRER

— HRBAEMAXRBELNSERER (FINHRE - Rt ERE)

BBEINER B TIRIBEM
XEFRAGEMELRORFRED

— BRENETRICEER

RBEREA - AREETEREMREREERER  MBZREAAETERER

TR -

— (PFEARAMBRRFREZL)

— (REARAMBARISZRRRE)
— (hEARKMBEKFLEEEZE)
— (BREVGTFESREFEE)

— (EREYE R RMEER)

EREHEARN  RERRMANELFERERBARTDAEZZANERND RESM -
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BAREARER BExK RE XK
Key performance Pharmaceutical Business Fitness Business
indicators

A3.1 Description of the Our major environmental policies are as below:
significant impacts of
business activities on —  To comply with all environmental requirements applicable to our operations
the environment and — To improve the environmental structure according to the industry’s best
natural resources and practices
the actions taken to — To integrate environmental considerations in all stages of business operations

manage them. (e.g. planning, design and manufacturing)

— To enhance environmental awareness of our employees via trainings
— To support environmental activities of the communities where we operate
— To encourage green coverage on lawns

During the Reporting Period, the Group complied with local laws and regulations on
environmental protection. Relevant laws and regulations mainly include but are not
limited to:

—  Environmental Protection Law of the People’s Republic of China* ({(FhZE AR
HAMBIRIFIREE))

—  Atmospheric Pollution Prevention and Control Law of the People’s Republic of
China* ((FhEARKMBEIKRFREBIEE))

—  Water Pollution Prevention and Control Law of the People’s Republic of China*
(R AR HAMBIKTRBIRED)

—  Standards for Pollution Control on Hazardous Waste Storage* ({f&EE¥IiT1E
VIR EIIRYED))

—  Hazardous Waste Pollution Prevention and Control Technology Policy* ({/&f%

&5 28 BT R D)

During the Reporting Period, no reported instance of non-compliance with relevant
environmental laws and regulations was noted in our operation.
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4. RIRE
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4. Climate Change

Climate change leads to frequent extreme weather and has a
significant impact on daily operations. The Group pays attention to
the trend of global climate change and incorporates climate change
mitigation and adaptation into corporate social responsibility
management. Accordingly, the Group has identified and assessed
the risks of climate change and drawn up measures to safeguard
the safety of its employees, including the strict compliance with the
relevant extreme weather guidelines issued by the government. The
Group has formulated emergency guidelines and measures to
reduce future damage from disasters and cope with extreme
weather caused by climate change. The Group regularly reviews its
climate change policy to ensure its effectiveness.

RIRE LA

Climate Change Performance Table

BAREARER
Key performance
indicators

A4l LB KR Ree
BOIANEEFENS
ARIEEEEE - &
JEX1TE) o

A4.1 Description of the
significant climate-
related issues which
have impacted, and
those which may
impact, the issuer,
and the actions
taken to manage
them.

CEES

Pharmaceutical Business

e X%

Fitness Business

R

= EX T

—=

2020

—E-TF
2020

SEHEIZRRRELCHES  BRESCRERERAALEHLEEEEED -
B 35 I 51 AR 88 AR
MiEM B BRI L ERENBENEHRERE(CEHNFEHRR - KEES
E B AT AR BABUR - B HEAR AL

The Group pays attention to the trend of global climate change and incorporates
climate change mitigation and adaptation into corporate social responsibility
management. The Group has identified and assessed the risks of climate change
and drawn up measures to safeguard the safety of its employees. It has formulated
emergency guidelines and measures to reduce future damage from disasters and
cope with extreme weather caused by climate change. The Group regularly reviews
its climate change policy to ensure its effectiveness.

W HIERERARBEINZ 2 - UREHIER=IES
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B. Society
1. Employment and Labour Practices

We recognise our employees as an important asset and we provide
fair and equal opportunities to our employees regardless of their
backgrounds and genders. As at 31 December 2021, the Group had
a total of 1,180 employees (2020: 1,198) from the business
segments. Among those employees, 958 employees (2020: 944)
were from the Pharmaceutical Business and 222 employees (2020:
254) were from the Fitness Business. As a result of the COVID-19
pandemic, Chongging Kangle, which operates our Pharmaceutical
Business, hired more staff due to the expansion of production scale.
However, the headcount of our fitness centres was lowered due to
temporal suspension and reduction of customers. In spite of the
challenges and impacts of the pandemic on the Group, we are
committed to building an open and inspirational working
environment to all our employees.

Employment

The Group has a diverse workforce in terms of gender and age to
balance the culture and communication among employees. The
Group encourages a diverse workforce and welcomes all kinds of
employees to make the principle of fairness a common practice.
During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group had 1,180
employees (2020: 1,198), of which 546 (46%) were male and 634
(54%) were female.

The Group’s total workforce by gender, employment type, age
group and geographical region are as follows:

EE A
Number of
employees

Key performance indicators

Total number of employees 1,180
Total workforce (by gender)

Male 546
Female 634
Total workforce (by employment type)

Full-time 1,178
Part-time 2
Total workforce (by structure)

Senior management 29
Middle management 166
Rank and file employees 985
Total workforce (by age group)

Under 30 years old 209
30 to 50 years old 842
Over 50 years old 129
Total workforce (by geographical region)

The PRC 958
Singapore 222
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EBEAH (AR

Total workfoce (person)

1,500

1,300

2021

EEAH (RMERE D)
Total workforce (by gender)

546
(46 %)

634
(54%)

B4 ®
Male Female
EEAH (RFRARNE D)

Total workforce (by age group)

129
(11%)

209

(18%)
842

(71%)

@ 305AT @ 30E505% @ 505K L
Under 30 30 to 50 Over 50
years old years old years old

—E-FEF

BEAH (ZERED)

Total workforce (by structure)

29
o @%)

166
(14%)

985
(84%)

O SREEE @O@TREEE @OEEAS

Senior Middle Rank and file
management management employees
BEEAH (RIWES D)

Total workforce (by geographical region)

958
(81%)

222
(19%)

@ + @ i
The PRC Singapore
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REAT Retaining Talents
REBHAIRBEIRAREFNAIEZH
BRI - MR ER R RERIER - R —
F -BUHEREERAEN24%  ZHEEER
EHI19% - EERMAKEL21% ©

The Group is committed to maintaining employee turnover rate at
an acceptable low level to facilitate the accumulation of skills and
experience. In 2021, the turnover rate of male employees was
approximately 24%, the turnover rate of female employees was
approximately 19%, and the total turnover rate of employees was
approximately 21%.

AEBIZMER - FikER R SNEE
MR EBIBRIAT :

The Group’s employee turnover rate by gender, age group and
geographical region are as follows:

MK =R

Turnover

REAH
Employee
turnover
—E-—fF
2021

BEEMER

Key performance indicators

i N =]
BERKLER(BERE D)

Employee turnover 21% 250
Employee turnover rate

(by gender)
Lt Male 24% 129
4 Female 19% 121
EERALLE(RFRAERNES) Employee turnover rate
(by age group)

30BR AR Under 30 years old 44% 93
30 £505% 30 to 50 years old 17% 139
5058 A £ Over 50 years old 14% 18

BERALER(RHERTD)

Employee turnover rate
(by geographical region)

H The PRC 14% 135
Frhnig Singapore 52% 115
BB 2 FiaxF We promote fair competition

BZHBOREBTFEERENRA - BIEFF
RERENTIERE  MBERBAEHEE
REBFE - RMFIENERERDBREF
FHERA - KR RESRE - F - BER
RANE T+ o JAAVRIR 5B T AR IREE F N
B AEEHRAEITERR  YREBFX
REGHTE  REITETEMML - TER
B RERERREHERRTAEME AR
B
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We are committed to the principle of equal employment and creating
a working environment which provides equal employment
opportunities, so all employment decisions shall be based on objective
criteria.  Equal opportunities principles are applied in all of our
formulated employment policies, in particular to recruitment, training,
career development and promotion of employees. Remuneration
packages are determined based on responsibilities and performance,
and the Company reviews the work performance of employees on a
regular basis and may carry out performance assessment for employees
on an annual basis or according to its business needs. Working time,
rest periods and defined contributions are in compliance with relevant
labour laws and regulations.
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Pursuant to relevant employment regulations in each region, such as
the Labour Law of the People’s Republic of China* ((FZE AR LM
Bl4%)7%)) and the Labour Contract Law of the People’s Republic
of China* ((FZEARKLFELEA FIE)), the Labor Standards Act
of Taiwan and the Employment Act of Singapore, the employee
handbook of each of our subsidiaries regulates our remuneration
scheme, including basic salary, bonus, social security contribution
and statutory holidays correspondingly. We contribute social security
and provident fund in compliance with local labour law and
regulations, namely the Social Insurance Law of the People’s
Republic of China* ((PEARAMBELERERIE)) and the
Regulations on Management of Housing Provident Funds* (({f¥F 2
Ee BIEIEM)), the National Health Insurance Act and the Labor
Pension Act of Taiwan, and the Central Provident Fund Act of
Singapore, etc. Our remuneration scheme is comparable to peers in
the local industry. Working hours and rest periods are in compliance
with local labour laws and regulations.

During the Reporting Period, no reported instance of non-
compliance with relevant labour laws and regulations was noted.

We do not tolerate discrimination or harassment

We do not tolerate discrimination or harassment against any
employee based on his/her nationality, religion, gender, sexual
orientation, age, race, disability or any status protected by law.
Complaints about discrimination or harassment would be dealt with
impartially on a confidential basis. During the Reporting Period, no
reported instance on discrimination or harassment was noted.

We welcome feedbacks

We encourage our employees to provide feedbacks and address
their concerns to the Company proactively. A number of channels
are in place for our employees to express grievances and complaints
which will be well-handled according to the predetermined
procedures to ensure equality to all employees when related matters
are handled.

2: Health and Safety

We promote occupational safety and health

We are committed to providing a safe working environment to our
employees and to protecting them from occupational hazards.
Environmental, health and safety management systems are
implemented in all sites. Safety guidelines are formulated and
communicated to all employees. Relevant regulations on health and
safety that have significant impact on the Group include but are not
limited to:

— Law of the People’s Republic of China on Prevention and

Control of Occupation Diseases* ({7 ZE A R A0 B B 5w B
SEYED
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—  Work Safety Law of the People’s Republic of China* ({FZE A
RAMBPLZ 2 EEE)

—  Regulations on Work-Related Injury Insurances* ({ T{5% k15
1)) of the PRC

—  Occupational Safety and Health Act of Taiwan
—  Workplace Safety and Health Act of Singapore

The continuation of COVID-19 pandemic has significantly threatened
the public hygiene. In order for the Group to protect its staff from
infection and to diminish the spread of pandemic, the following
measures have been taken, which include:

— to formulate pandemic prevention and control plans to
strengthen the monitoring of employees’ health, such as
disinfection of operation areas, adjustment of employees’
dining time and working hours;

— to strictly implement pandemic prevention and control
measures, and report and inspect body temperature every day;

— to remind its staff to maintain good personal hygiene, for
example, wearing surgical mask properly and washing hands
frequently;

—  to require its staff to declare their health conditions and recent
travel history;

—  to require its staff who have recently travelled overseas to stay
at home for self-quarantine;

—  to adopt flexible work arrangements, allowing its staff to work
from home and strengthening social distancing;

—  to provide anti-pandemic supplies to employees; and

— to continue to pay attention to the development of the
pandemic and strengthen its pandemic prevention measures as
and when necessary.

Relevant trainings are organised regularly and various safety
educations and trainings, including handling of hazardous and
chemical substances, dust explosion prevention, fire safety, fire
protection knowledge trainings and related activities, are
commenced to improve our employees’ awareness on health and
fire safety. We have appointed safety officers to supervise the safety
level of each aspect of operations and provide the Group's
employees with information and training courses about operation of
equipment in office, production facilities, mining tools and
inspection equipment on a regular basis. Spot checks by the
management on the implementation of safety measures are in place.
Regular internal trainings and ad-hoc external trainings are provided
to our physical trainers to ensure that they are well-equipped.
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Key performance indicators
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During the Reporting Period, we organised and held fire drills for
fire incident caused by hazardous and chemical substance.
Particularly, Chongging Kangle carried out firefighting trainings and
on-site fire drills. In addition, annual or semi-annual fire drills were
carried out in each of our fitness centres and organised by the
property management department of the headquarters during the
year, in which all on-site personnel are required to participate. Each
fitness centre was equipped with fire safety manager responsible for
communication with the fire safety officer of the property on any
fire safety issues. Meanwhile, we also provided CPR/AED trainings to
the employees, and were awarded the Bizsafe certificate by the
Occupational Safety and Health Division of Singapore.

For the Pharmaceutical Business, the laboratory is a place where
medical or safety accidents frequently occur, and all staff have the
duty to maintain a healthy and safe working environment. Once the
employee identifies any potential safety hazard, occupational
diseases or work injuries, he/she should immediately report it to the
manager and fill out the form of occupational disease or work
injury, as the case may be. Anyone failing to comply with the health
and safety rules of the Company may be subject to disciplinary
penalty.

For the past three years, the number and rate of work-related
fatalities of the Group were 0 (0%), 3 (0.25%) and 2 (0.13%) in
2021, 2020 and 2019, respectively, and lost days due to work
injury were 301 days, 0 day and 0 day in 2021, 2020 and 2019,
respectively. The Group has strictly complied with the laws and
regulations relating to occupational health and safety and has
implemented practical safety management to effectively eliminate
potential safety risks.

During the Reporting Period, no reported instance of non-
compliance with relevant occupational safety and health laws and
regulations was noted in our operation.

The number and rate of work-related fatalities of the Group
occurred in each of the past three years (including the reporting
year) are as follows:

—E-hAF AoL=E

2021 Percentage 2020 Percentage 2019 Percentage

AT TAS KR
Number and rate of work-related fatalities

N (%) (A) ) (A) (%)
(person) (%) (person) (%) (person) (%)
0 0 3 0.25% 2 0.13%

0 0 3 0.25% 2 0.13%
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AEBATGBEXTIERHEEENT The Group’s lost days due to work injury are as follows:

ARENIER Key performance indicators

EIEERXTERR Lost days due to work injury 301 — —
3 BRRIEFI 3: Development and Training
BIEREEHE We provide learning opportunities

HMAEE D BEERBAE  HEEFMITA  We provide our employees with adequate trainings regarding
REMTI - RMFERNEESRBEEZNE production, skillsets and code of behaviour. We provide appropriate
E EQEEESEERE([GMP)) RBE and ongoing trainings on quality, Good Manufacturing Practice
77 E R Re s A S o BPIEY I E S B R AR ("GMP") of drugs production, and medical skillsets or knowledge to

FrEaEREEZEZIE - RRERIEIIKK our employees. Our system not only ensures that all suitable
employees are trained, but also monitors the effectiveness of the
trainings.

AEBZERREBHEBNE SMZIEER  The percentage of employees trained by gender and employee

DEEBENT : category of the Group is as follows:
Bt E FIAE
Number of
employees
BRENIEE Key performance indicators Percentage trained
—E-—F —E_—F
2021 2021
XollfE B B Total number of employees
trained 93% 1,094
FIEEBE D GRERE D) Percentage of employees
trained (by gender)
B¢ Male 44% 480
ik Female 56% 614
TIEEBSE ZREEERE D) Percentage of employees
trained (by employee
category)
RREEE Senior management 2% 26
FRERE Middle management 14% 153
EEAE Rank and file employees 84% 915
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ZIEET DL
Percentage of employees trained

2%
SRERE
Senior management 14%
HREERRE
Middle management

ZollfEE

Employees trained

84%
EEAB
Rank and file employees

REBEZEERREEBERE D  BEEE T The Group's average training hours completed per employee by

BN REEEIBEOT - gender and employee category are as follows:

15 2 HI R & #8323 B
Average Total training
BREENMIEE Key performance indicators training hours hours
—EB-—£ —_ B
2021 2021

1B B /18325 Average/Total training hours
completed by employees 78 92,261

EETRZIN TGRS (ZEAIES) Average training hours
completed by employees
(by gender)

B4 Male 72 39,487
e Female 83 52,774
EBEEERZINTEHRH Average training hours

(REBERHNE ) completed by employees

(by employee category)

SREIRE Senior management 64 1,864
FRERE Middle management 72 11,976
HEAE Rank and file employees 80 78,421
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4: Labour Standards

Prohibition on child and forced labour

Our employment policy strictly prohibits the employment of children
and forced labour, and strictly complies with the Provisions on the
Prohibition of Using Child Labor* ((ZEIH#ERZETMHRE)), the Special
Protection for Juvenile Workers* ({&RKF LHEFRIRERTE)) in the
Labour Law of the People’s Republic of China* ((FR#E A RLFIE4
&))%)) and other relevant laws and regulations in the labour laws
of the PRC, Singapore and Taiwan. In order to more effectively
prevent the employment of child labour, the Group has established
a rigorous age verification process to ensure that all candidates have
reached the legal age for employment. In addition, we have set up
employee suggestion boxes to allow employees to report child
labour and forced labour, so as to prevent the Group from illegally
hiring child labour or forced labour. Also, the Group has established
a reporting mechanism for child labour and forced labour to
encourage employees to report truthfully. If child labour and forced
labour are found, we will immediately investigate the causes to
ensure that no employees work overtime on an involuntary basis.
During the Reporting Period, no reported instance on child labour or
forced labour was noted.

5: Supply Chain Management

Supply Chain Management

All our raw materials were sourced from the Group’s list of
qualified suppliers. Admission to the list of qualified suppliers must
follow strict standards. After a preliminary screening, potential
suppliers are subject to an on-site audit entailing a comprehensive
assessment of the supplier’s quality management level, capability of
ensuring a stable supply, safety and environmental management,
employee health and social responsibility, corporate culture and
business reputation, etc. The list of qualified suppliers is managed
closely with regular assessments to eliminate unfit suppliers.

The Group has established a set of clear standard procurement
management procedures, which include procedures for evaluating,
selecting and monitoring suppliers to ensure that environmental and
social risks associated with the supply chain are minimised. Before
engaging suppliers, they are required to go through a series of
audit procedures to review their quality, environmental and safety
performance in a comprehensive manner before they can be
adopted. In view of the complexity of the supply chain, each
business unit of the Group must consider different conditions and
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standards when selecting suppliers, including price, service, location,
productivity (service capability) and legal procedures. At the same
time, the Group will also conduct special consultation on a case-by-
case basis and consider suppliers’ performance in social responsibility
and environmental protection. The Group conducts regular review
on suppliers every year. If a supplier is found to be in serious
violation of its agreed responsibilities and operating procedures, the
partnership will be terminated to ensure that the quality,
environment and safety performance of the supply chain are in line
with the Group’s policy.

During the Reporting Period, the Group had a total of 583
suppliers, of which 576 suppliers were located in the PRC, 2
suppliers were in the United States and 5 suppliers were in other
regions.

The number of suppliers of the Group by geographical region is as follows:

HER S E
ARERIER Key performance indicators Number of suppliers
—_ B
2021
Bt EE 5 By region
& The PRC 576
EH The United States 2
Hth Others 5
6: EmEME 6: Product Responsibility
EmEF Product Responsibility
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The Group recognises the importance of safeguarding intellectual
property rights. In order to promote the cultural awareness of
intellectual property rights with respect to knowledge and integrity,
we have established a strict internal control system to manage our
intellectual property, encompassing the administration of trademarks
and patents, the management of proprietary technology and
confidentiality, and intelligence and information gathering, which
includes the compliance with relevant regulations such as the Law
of the People’s Republic of China on Protection of Consumer Rights
and Interests* (P AR LFBIEEE R IRHEX)), the Consumer
Protection Act of Taiwan and the Personal Data Protection Act of
Singapore. Trademarks of newly designed products would be
registered on a timely basis, and detailed descriptions of most of
our products are updated on our websites.
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The Group regards customer information as the guarantee for the
safe operation of the enterprise and the healthy development of
customer relationship. Accordingly, the Group strictly complies with
various confidentiality systems stipulated by the state. The Group
strictly complies with the relevant laws and regulations relating to
product health and safety, advertisement, labelling, methods of
redress and protection of intellectual property rights, as well as the
relevant laws and regulations relating to privacy.

Product quality is one of our main focuses in our business
operation. The Group is committed to providing quality products
and services to its customers, and pays attention to the customers’
feedbacks on the products sold and services provided by the Group.
In addition to the commitment, the Group is also committed to
providing quality pharmaceutical products and fitness services to its
customers at competitive prices. Customers can express their
opinions or complaints through the established communication
channels. The Group will conduct investigations and prepare reports
based on the feedbacks, and take corrective measures if necessary.
The Group has established strict product and service complaint
procedures to better understand customers’ opinions on the Group’s
services, so as to continuously improve the operation process and
service quality and enhance customer satisfaction.

Pharmaceutical Business

We provide medical-related products in accordance with the relevant
pharmaceutical regulations including the Drug Administration Law of
the People’s Republic of China ((F#EARZXMBEREIRE)), the
Regulations for the Implementation of the Drug Administration Law
of the People’s Republic of China* ({(FF#E A R ME 2R EIREE
M 6f1)), GMP, the Good Supply Practice for Pharmaceutical
Products* ((#R& 2 EEEIRRE)) and the Pharmacopoeia of the
PRC* ((FREZ£52)). We apply and adhere to a strict set of quality
standards, and we adopt relevant policies and procedures to
identify, measure, control and sustain product-quality excellence. We
strive continuously to improve these standards in order to enhance
our quality and safety procedures and ensure ongoing compliance
with  GMP. Our manufacturing facilities are inspected by national
authorities. We have adopted GMP in all of our manufacturing
plants. Our chemical drugs production base located in Beijing, the
Chinese medicines production base located in Baoji City, Shaanxi
Province, and active pharmaceutical ingredients and intermediates
active pharmaceutical ingredients production base located in
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Chongging City have all obtained the GMP certification from the
National Medical Products Administration of China. The active
pharmaceutical ingredients and intermediates active pharmaceutical
ingredients production line located in Chongging City holds a valid
FDA certification and the Prequalification (“PQ") of the World Health
Organisation (“WHO"), while Chongging Kangle holds a valid new
WHO PQ for an active pharmaceutical ingredient. The Active
Pharmaceutical Ingredients Chloroquine Phosphate, which was
previously recognised by the National Medical Products
Administration of China (formerly known as the China Food and
Drug Administration), has also been tested and proven to be the
treatment and allopathy of pneumonia infected by COVID-19 by the
Consumable and Industrial Committee of the Ministry of Industry
and Information Technology of the PRC* (FREl T2 Az BALZBH &
fn L% 7)), Chongging Economy and Informatization Commission
and the Economy and Informatization Commission of Changshou
District of Chongqing City* (EEMRSELEFNEE/IEZER). Our
experimental laboratory animal workshop located in Beijing holds a
valid experimental laboratory animal production qualification
certification of the Beijing Municipal Science and Technology
Commission.

Labelling is essential for our brand reputation. To prevent
mislabelling, we separate our production lines for different products.
All of our products are labelled with detailed information in line
with the requirements of relevant labeling laws and regulations.

According to our drug recall policy, our pharmaceutical products are
divided into three categories based on their emergence level of
harmful impacts and consequences. The drug recall policy also
prescribes that affected items shall be recalled immediately, as fast
as 24 hours. To ensure the effectiveness of the recall process, recall
drills are performed every year.

Our experimental laboratory animal workshop breeds over 3 million
mice every year and we sell those mice to domestic and
international research institutions, tertiary institutions and other
pharmaceutical companies to support the life and health science
research. In 2016, SPF, which is principally engaged in the supplies
of standardised laboratory animals and animal indigenous raw
materials, obtained the 2015 Beijing Advanced Laboratory Animals
Industry Award* (LR ERENWITESLESEFELE) issued by the
Beijing Association on Laboratory Animal Care* (It RE BB ¥1TH
#% ). To ensure the laboratory mice being raised humanely, we
provide them with a good living environment with adequate space,
quality food and suitable temperature. Technical updates regarding
the animal welfare are given to related employees from time to
time. We follow the principles of animal welfare and humane
endpoint and implement euthanasia on our laboratory mice.

61



RAEREXEEGRALT TONGFANG KONTAFARMA HOLDINGS LIMITED

R HERERRE

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

125 (%

BN ARFIREEESZRN AN LM
BIREBENEE RS RS - RONESF
DMUREERH I -R_FE=_—F+=A
=+—H 8&F1R2HERPLR2EHMINFR
D FMEEI0MBRIP L - R ERE
REBUARGRRE HEHEFARZESEMW
NIERFERFE BRI EOHEEBENEY
BT24/NEREY BOREFAELRFHAE
HEMKEEZEESL - RMIEBHABLEBRE
FEEERFHNAAGEE - BRI IR
LN E-REE B \FEENEF
L ¥Shape Sports Awards ([ %8 J£ 38 8) K
#£]) URRZZT T FLEGlobal Health &
Pharma ([ GHP J) % i BE 70 3% pg 4 1 42 -

AEBECEADERERBUTRL 2 EE
PRI A B WA BRI T

REEMNER

Key performance indicators
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Total number of products subject to recalls for safety and health reasons

EEEmAR
Total products sold

EERCELXEMBREPER2EREEAMARKNE DL
Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject to recalls for safety and health reasons

BREBREM RGO HAE

Number of products and service related complaints received
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Total number of legal dispute cases
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Fitness Business

We are committed to providing quality fitness service with latest
state-of-the-art cardiovascular training equipment to our customers.
Our fitness centres are located in Taiwan and Singapore. As at 31
December 2021, there were 12 fitness centres and 2 yoga centres
in Taiwan, and 10 fitness centres in Singapore. Free personal
trainers sessions are provided to new customers to help them get
familiar with the correct ways to use the equipment. We provide a
24-hour cooling-off period for each signed contract. Customers are
welcome to cancel any signed contracts within the cooling-off
period. We handle our customers’ private information in accordance
with the relevant privacy protection laws. Our fitness centres in
Singapore are awarded the “Shape Sports Awards” for four
consecutive years from 2015 to 2018 and the “Global Health &
Pharma (“GHP") Distinction Award for Yoga Classes and Facilities”
in 2020.

Total products sold or shipped subject to recalls for safety and
health reasons are as follows:

A BotbE
Number/percentage
—_E_—F

2021

9218

92 items
3,700,00078
3,700,000 items
0.002%
0.002%

313%

313 cases

24°R

24 cases

7: Anti-corruption

Anti-corruption

Honesty and fairness are important assets of the Group’s business.
The Group is committed to maintaining a high level of ethical
corporate culture. By providing integrity and anti-corruption training
and information to directors and employees, such as the Anti-
Corruption System Practice Guidelines for Listed Companies and the
Integrity Practice Guidelines for Directors, the Group ensures that all
employees strictly comply with the relevant laws, industry norms and
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standards, professional ethics and company rules and regulations in
their daily operations. In order to maintain a fair and efficient
business and working environment, we put a great emphasis on
anti-corruption. The Group does not tolerate any forms of
corruption. Also, the Group has formulated the Anti-Corruption
Policy and has adopted relevant code of conduct in employee
handbook, complying strictly with relevant anti-corruption laws such
as the Criminal Law of the People’s Republic of China* ((FF#E AR
HFEAEY), the Anti-unfair Competition Law of the People’s
Republic of China* ((FF#EARKEFBE R NEEFHEFEE)), the Interim
Provisions on Banning Commercial Bribery* ((BERZE I 2 BEEETT
BEEITHE)), the Anti-Money Laundering Law of the People’s
Republic of China* ((F# A RFEAME KR %8%)), the Civil Code of
the People’s Republic of China* ((FZEARZLFMBEREHE)), the
Company Law of the People’s Republic of China* ({F # A R A1
B A®]E)) and the Anti-Corruption Act of Taiwan to prohibit
employees from extorting, charging or accepting any form of
interest from people, companies or organisations which conduct
business with the Group.

We have formulated the Whistleblower Policy and established a
whistleblowing system, under which employees and relevant third
parties (such as customers and suppliers who have dealings with the
Group) can report all forms of suspected illegal acts, and we have
also formulated and implemented an internal integrity system to
strengthen the integrity and honesty of employees in governance
practices. The Group has established effective whistleblowing
procedures to encourage employees, managers, directors and
relevant third parties to report any misconduct or dishonest acts,
such as acts that may lead to incorrect financial reporting,
corruption, fraud and other offences or illegal acts. If employees are
concerned about misconduct or dishonesty within the Group, they
are encouraged to report to the members of the Audit Committee
or the Executive Committee through the secretary of the Audit
Committee as soon as practicable. We will ensure that the reported
content and the information of the whistleblower are kept
confidential to the extent practicable, pending assessment or
investigation by the Audit Committee, the Executive Committee or
other designated investigators.
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In addition, the Group has provided clear guidelines on misconduct,
such as bribery, corruption, embezzlement, insider trading, theft of
the Group’s assets, etc., to ensure that its employees can report
their concerns to the Human Resources Department through various
channels in an absolute and confidential manner. If the case is
found to be true upon investigation, the Group will take
appropriate corrective measures and take disciplinary actions against
the parties involved. If the case involves criminal elements, the
Group will refer the case to the relevant authorities for handling.
During the Reporting Period, the Group has complied with the
provisions on prohibiting corruption and bribery and applicable legal
requirements for listed companies in Hong Kong, and has not been
involved in any legal prosecution cases regarding corruption.

During the Reporting Period, there were no concluded legal cases
regarding corrupt practices brought against the Group and its
employees.

8: Community Investment

Community Investment

In order to better fulfil its social responsibilities, the Group actively
participates in community and charitable activities, and by
encouraging its employees to participate in charitable and social
services, devoting time and effort to support the local community, it
creates a harmonious society and undertakes the responsibility of a
good corporate citizen to contribute to the community. The Group
focuses on the living standards of the community, cultural projects,
education and development, and labour cooperation. During the
Reporting Period, the total amount contributed by the Company for
charity purpose reached approximately HK$210,000.

For people living in poverty, the Group helps them through
donating money or goods. The Group donated nearly RMB500,000
of probiotics products to the Red Cross Society of Yanging District,
Beijing, in order to express its condolences and greetings to the
medical staff and the Party members and cadres working at the
battlefield of pandemic night and day, and makes contributions to
the society. The Group has spent over HK$15.4 million on donation
and charity work since 2008. As part of corporate social
responsibility initiatives, we also provide free personal training
sessions to underprivileged children in Singapore. For the
Pharmaceutical Business, we donate money to staff who are sick
and for poverty alleviation in nearby regions.

i For identification purpose only
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Tongfang Kontafarma Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is
committed to maintaining a high standard of corporate governance
within a sensible framework with an emphasis on the principles of
transparency, accountability and independence. The board (the
“Board”) of directors (the “Director(s)”) of the Company believes
that good corporate governance is essential to the success of the
Company and to the enhancement of shareholders’ value.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

The Board has reviewed the corporate governance practices of the
Company in light of the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG
Code”) contained in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). In the opinion of the
Directors, the Company applied the principles of, and complied
with, all the applicable code provisions of the CG Code throughout
the year ended 31 December 2021 (the “Year”).

THE BOARD

The Board currently comprises seven Directors in total, with four
executive Directors (the “Executive Director(s)”) and three
independent non-executive Directors (the “INED(s)”). The
composition of the Board during the Year and up to the date of
this report is set out as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Chai Hongjie (Chairman)®o©

Mr. Bai Pingyan®™® (appointed on 27 September 2021)
Mr. Huang Yu (President)

Mr. Jiang Chaowen (Chief Executive Officer)

Mr. Wei Bingzhang (ceased to act on 27 September 20217)

INEDs

Mr. Chan Sze Chung
Mr. Zhang Ruibin
Mr. Zhang Junxi Jack

Note:
Mr. Chai Hongjie ceased to act as the Chairman of the Board and Mr. Bai

Pingyan has taken up the role of the Chairman of the Board with effect
from 19 April 2022.
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The brief biographical details of the Directors are set out in the
“BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT" section in the Directors’ Report on pages 94 to
101 of this annual report.

As at the date of this report, to the best knowledge of the Board,
there are no financial, business, family or other material/relevant
relationship among the Directors.

Board Process

During the Year, the INEDs provided the Company and its
subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) with a wide range of
expertise and experience. Their active participation in the Board and
Board committee meetings have brought independent judgement on
issues relating to the Group’s strategy, performance and
management process, taking into account the interests of all
shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”).

Throughout the Year and up to the date of this report, the
Company had three INEDs, representing not less than one-third of
the Board, with two INEDs possessing the appropriate professional
qualifications or accounting or related financial management
expertise as required under Rule 3.10 of the Listing Rules. The
Company has received from each INED an annual confirmation of
his independence and considers that all the INEDs are independent
under the guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

The Board meets regularly to discuss the overall strategy as well as
the operation and financial performance of the Group, and to
review and approve the Group’s annual and interim results and
other ad hoc matters which need to be dealt with. The attendance
records of each Director at Board meetings, Board committee
meetings and shareholders’ meetings of the Company for the Year
are set out below:
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BOKE(TTHER) Mr. Huang Yu (Presicent) 5/5 — — — — /) 0
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Attendances of each of the Directors appointed or resigned during the
Year were made by reference to the number of such meetings held
during their respective tenures.

Mr. Chai Hongjie ceased to act as the Chairman of the Board and a
chairman of each of the executive committee, the nomination
committee, the share dealing committee and the investment
committee of the Board; and remains a member of each of the
executive committee and the share dealing committee of the Board
with effect from 19 April 2022.

Mr. Bai Pingyan was appointed as an Executive Director and a member
of each of the executive committee and share dealing committee of
the Board with effect from 27 September 2021; and has taken up the
role of the chairman of the Board and the chairman of each of the
executive committee, the nomination committee, the share dealing
committee and the investment committee of the Board with effect
from 19 April 2022.

Mr. Wei Bingzhang resigned as an Executive Director and a member

of each of the executive committee and the share dealing committee
of the Board with effect from 27 September 2021.
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The Board has reserved for its decision or consideration matters
covering mainly the Group’s overall strategy, annual operating
budget, annual and interim results, Directors’ appointment or re-
appointment (based on the recommendations made by the
Nomination Committee), material contracts and transactions,
corporate governance, environmental, social and governance as well
as other significant policy and financial matters. The Board has
delegated day-to-day responsibility to the executive management
under the instruction/supervision of the Executive Committee which
has its specific written terms of reference. The respective functions
of the Board and the management of the Company have been
formalised and set out in writing and are reviewed by the Board
from time to time to ensure that they are consistent with the
existing rules and regulations.

Regular Board meetings are scheduled in advance each year to
facilitate maximum attendance of Directors. A notice of a regular
Board meeting of at least 14 days is given to all Directors such that
they are given an opportunity to include matters for discussion in
the agenda. The company secretary of the Company (the “Company
Secretary”) assists the Chairman/the President/the Chief Executive
Officer in preparing the agenda for meetings and ensures that all
applicable laws, rules and regulations are complied with. The
agenda and the accompanying Board papers are sent to all
Directors at least 3 days before the intended date of a regular
Board meeting (and so far as practicable for such other Board
meetings). Draft minutes of each Board meeting are circulated to all
Directors for their comment before being tabled at the following
Board meeting for approval. All minutes are kept by the Company
Secretary and are open for inspection at any reasonable time on
reasonable notice by any Director.

According to the current Board practice, if a substantial Shareholder
or a Director has a conflict of interest in a matter to be considered
by the Board, which the Board has determined to be material, the
matter will be dealt with by the Board at a duly convened Board
meeting. The amended and restated articles of association of the
Company (the "Articles of Association”) also stipulate that save for
the exceptions as provided therein, a Director shall not vote (nor
shall he/she be counted in the quorum) on any resolution of the
Board in respect of any contract, arrangement or proposal in which
such Director or any of his/her close associates has a material
interest.
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Every Director is entitled to have access to Board papers and the
related materials and to the advice and services of the Company
Secretary. The Board and each Director also have separate and
independent access to the Company’s senior management. Directors
are continuously updated on the major development of the Listing
Rules and other applicable regulatory requirements to ensure
compliance and upkeep of good corporate governance practices. In
addition, a written procedure and Independent View Policy were
established by the Company to enable the Directors, in discharge of
their duties, to seek independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstances at a reasonable cost to be borne by the Company.

Directors’ Training and Continuous Professional
Development (“CPD")

In addition to Directors’ attendance at meetings and review of
papers and circulars sent by the management of the Company, the
Company arranged training on topics relating to legal and
regulatory updates which are relevant to the Group’s businesses at
the Company’s expenses. During the Year, the Company Secretary
had also arranged an induction training for the newly appointed
Director. The chart below summarises the participation of each of
the Directors in CPD activities during the Year:

SHGEEXBREED
Participation in CPD activities
HEEEEREGaEZ
g3, Eme
mae g8
Attending trainings/
FEEREH briefings/seminars/
Reading regulatory conference relevant to
Name of Directors updates Directors’ duties
HITEE Executive Directors:
LRk E Mr. Chai Hongjie v 7
BEExE Mr. Bai Pingyan v/ v/
=A LA Mr. Huang Yu v v/
BNk Mr. Jiang Chaowen % v/
BTN & S A e Mr. Wei Bingzhange v 7
BYFHITES: INEDs:
BREBIASL £ Mr. Chan Sze Chung % 7
RImW H £ Mr. Zhang Ruibin 7 Y4
RESRE Mr. Zhang Junxi Jack v %
B3 Note:

FRELAEDBIRTESURESERNITEES
ERORGZESSEMNKE BT =_—FNA
—tEBRER-

Mr. Wei Bingzhang resigned as an Executive Director and a member of each
of the executive committee and the share dealing committee of the Board
with effect from 27 September 2021.
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The Directors confirmed that they have complied with code
provision C.1.4 of the CG Code on directors’ training and have
provided the Company with the records of their training received
during the Year.

ROLES OF CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES

Code provision C.2.1 of the CG Code provides that the roles of the
chairman and the chief executives should be separate and
performed by different individuals.

The roles of the Chairman of the Board, the President and the Chief
Executive Officer are separate. Such division of responsibilities
reinforces the independence and accountability of these Directors.
Mr. Chai Hongjie, the Chairman of the Board, is responsible for
leadership and effective running of the Board while Mr. Huang Yu,
the President, is responsible for strategic development of the Group
and Mr. Jiang Chaowen, the Chief Executive Officer, is responsible
for overall management of the Group. Their respective
responsibilities have been clearly established and set out in written
form as Functions/Roles of the Board and the Senior Management
of the Company.

APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF
DIRECTORS

The nomination policy (the *“Nomination Policy”) specifies the
director nomination process and criteria for the identifications,
selection and recommendation of candidates for directorship of the
Company, details of which are set out in the section headed
“Nomination Policy” of this report.

Every newly appointed Director will receive an induction package
from the Company Secretary or the lawyer of the Company on the
first occasion of his/her appointment. This induction package is a
comprehensive, formal and tailored induction on the responsibilities
and on-going obligations to be observed by a director pursuant to
the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong)
(the “Companies Ordinance”), Listing Rules and Securities and
Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong) (the
“SFO"). In addition, this induction package includes materials briefly
describing the operations and business of the Company, the latest
published financial reports of the Company and the documentation
for the corporate governance practices adopted by the Board.
Directors are continuously updated on any major developments of
the Listing Rules and other applicable regulatory requirements to
ensure compliance and upkeep of good corporate governance
practices.
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All INEDs were appointed for a specific term, but subject to the
relevant provisions of the Articles of Association or any other
applicable laws whereby the Directors shall vacate or retire from
their office but are eligible for re-election. Details of the terms of
appointment of the INEDs are set out in the section headed
“TERMS OF OFFICE FOR THE INEDs” contained in the Directors’
Report on page 101 of this annual report.

According to the Articles of Association, at each annual general
meeting of the Company (the “AGM"), one-third of the Directors
for the time being (or, if their number is not three or a multiple of
three, the number nearest to but not less than one-third) shall retire
from office by rotation. Further, any Director appointed by the
Board to fill a casual vacancy shall hold office only until the first
general meeting of the Company after his/her appointment whilst
for those appointed as an addition to the Board shall hold office
until the next AGM and in both cases, those Directors shall then be
eligible for re-election at the relevant meeting. Every Director shall
be subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTION

The Board is responsible for performing corporate governance duties
in accordance with its terms of reference. The duties of the Board
in respect of the corporate governance functions include:

(i)  developing and reviewing the Company’s policies and practices
on corporate governance;

(i) reviewing and monitoring the training and CPD of Directors
and senior management;

(iii)  reviewing and monitoring the Company’s policies and practices
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

(iv)  developing, reviewing and monitoring the code of conduct and
compliance manual applicable to employees and Directors;
and

(v)  reviewing the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.

During the Year, the Board has performed the abovementioned

corporate governance duties in accordance with its terms of
reference.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established various committees, including the
Nomination Committee, the Remuneration Committee, the Audit
Committee, the Investment Committee, the Risks Management
Committee and the Executive Committee, each of which has its
specific written terms of reference. Copies of minutes of all
meetings and resolutions of the committees, which are kept by the
Company Secretary, are circulated to all Board members and the
committees are required to report back to the Board on their
decisions and recommendations where appropriate. The procedures
and arrangements for a Board meeting, as mentioned in the section
headed “THE BOARD" of this report, have been adopted for the
committee meetings so far as practicable.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee is chaired by the Chairman of the Board
and comprises a majority of INEDs. As at the date of this report,
the Nomination Committee consists of four members, namely Mr.
Chai Hongjie (Chairman of the Nomination Committee), who is an
Executive Director, and Mr. Chan Sze Chung, Mr. Zhang Ruibin and
Mr. Zhang Junxi Jack, who are INEDs.

The primary duty of the Nomination Committee is to make
recommendations to the Board on matters including nomination and
appointment of directors, succession planning and structure,
composition and diversity of the Board. The Nomination Committee
is provided with sufficient resources to discharge its duties and it
can seek independent professional advice according to the
Company’s policy if considered necessary. The major roles and
functions of the Nomination Committee are included in its terms of
reference, which are available on the respective websites of the
Stock Exchange and the Company.

The Nomination Committee will meet as and when necessary in
accordance with its terms of reference and may also deal with
matters by way of circulation. The Nomination Committee dealt with
matters by way of circulation and no meeting was held during the
Year. During the Year and up to the date of this report, the major
work performed by the Nomination Committee was as follows:

(i) assessed the independence of INEDs;
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monitored the implementation and effectiveness of the board
diversity policy of the Company (the “Board Diversity Policy”)
and the measurable objectives under such policy and its
progress, reviewed and recommended for the Board’'s approval
of the Board Diversity Policy;

reviewed and recommended for the Board’s approval of the
Nomination Policy;

reviewed the structure, size, composition of the Board and time
invested by the Directors in performing their duties taking into
account the Board Diversity Policy and the Company's
corporate strategy;

reviewed and recommended for the Board’s approval of the
Functions/Roles of the Board and the Senior Management;

reviewed and recommended for the Board’'s approval of the
proposed resolutions for re-election of Directors at the AGM,;

reviewed and recommended for the Board’s approval of the
renewal of two INEDs’ appointment and relevant term of the
appointment letters;

reviewed and recommended for the Board’s approval of the
appointment of an Executive Director and the relevant term of
the Director’s service contract; and

reviewed and recommended for the Board’s approval of the
new compositions of the Executive Committee and the Share
Dealing Committee subsequent to the change of Executive
Directors.

Nomination Policy

The Board has adopted the Nomination Policy which sets out the
director nomination process and selection criteria to identify, select
and recommend candidates for Directors.

The Director nomination process is as follows:

The Nomination Committee utilises various methods for
identifying director candidates, including recommendations
from Board members, management, and professional search
firms. In addition, the Nomination Committee will consider
director candidates properly submitted by the Shareholders.
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2. All director candidates, including incumbents and candidates
nominated by the Shareholders, are evaluated by the
Nomination Committee based upon the director qualifications.
While director candidates will be evaluated on the same
criteria, the Nomination Committee retains the discretion to
establish the relative weighting of such criteria, which may
vary based on the composition, skill sets, and experiences of
the collective Board rather than on the individual candidate.

3. The evaluation of director candidates may include, without
limitation, the following:

—  review of resume and job history;

—  personal interviews;

—  verification of professional and personal references; and
—  performance of background checks.

4.  The Board will consider the recommendations of the
Nomination Committee and is responsible for designating the
director candidate(s) to be considered by the Shareholders for
their election at the AGM, or appointing any suitable
candidate to act as Director to fill a Board vacancy or as an
additional Director subject to compliance of the Articles of
Association.

5. All appointments of Director should be confirmed by letter of
appointment and/or service contract setting out the key terms
and conditions of the appointment of the Directors.

The selection criteria considered by the Nomination Committee in
evaluating director candidates are as follows:

1. All director candidates will be evaluated based upon the director
qualifications, skills and experience, gender diversity, etc. that
can add to and complement the range of skills, experience
and background of the existing Directors.

2. The Nomination Committee considers the following
qualifications are at a minimum to be required of a director
candidate in recommending to the Board potential new
Director, or the continued service of existing Director:

—  the highest personal and professional ethics and integrity;
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—  proven achievement and competence in the nominee’s
field and the ability to exercise sound business
judgment;

—  the ability to assist and support management and make
significant contributions to the Company’s success;

— an understanding of the fiduciary responsibilities that are
required of a member of the Board and the
commitment of time and energy necessary to diligently
carry out those responsibilities;

— independence: the independent non-executive director
candidates should meet the “independence” criteria as
required under the Listing Rules and the composition of
the Board is in conformity with the provisions of the
Listing Rules; and

—  skills that are complementary to those of the existing
Board and the ability to contribute to the effective
carrying out by the Board of the responsibilities which,
in particular, are set out as follows:

(@) participating in Board meetings to bring an
independent judgement to bear on issues of
strategy, policy, performance, accountability,
resources, key appointments and standards of
conducts;

(b)  taking the lead where potential conflicts of interests
arise;

(¢)  ensuring the committees of the Board on which he
or she serves to perform their powers and
functions conferred on them by the Board; and

(d) conforming to any requirement, direction and
regulation that may from time to time be
prescribed by the Board or contained in the
Articles of Association or imposed by legislation or
the Listing Rules, where appropriate.

Other than the foregoing, there are no stated minimum criteria
for director candidate, although the Nomination Committee
may also consider such other factors as it may deem are in
the best interests of the Company and its Shareholders.
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Board Diversity Policy

The Board has adopted the Board Diversity Policy. The Nomination
Committee has been in charge of the review of the Board Diversity
Policy. The Board Diversity Policy sets out the objectives and
principles regarding board diversity for the purpose of achieving the
Company’s strategic objectives of balanced diversity at the Board as
far as practicable.

For the purpose of implementation of the Board Diversity Policy,
selection of candidates will be based on a range of diversity criteria,
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, knowledge, professional experience and skills. The
ultimate decision will be based on merit and the contribution that
the selected candidates may bring to the Board.

The Board has achieved the measurable objectives under the Board
Diversity Policy for the Year. The Nomination Committee will review
the Board Diversity Policy periodically or, as appropriate, to ensure
its effectiveness and recommend any revisions that may be required
to the Board for consideration and approval. The Nomination
Committee also monitors the implementation of the Board Diversity
Policy.

Remuneration Committee

As at the date of this report, the Remuneration Committee consists
of three members, namely Mr. Zhang Ruibin (Chairman of the
Remuneration Committee), Mr. Chan Sze Chung and Mr. Zhang
Junxi Jack, all being the INEDs.

The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee include making
recommendations to the Board on the Company's policy and
structure for remuneration of all Directors and senior management
of the Group and other matters relating to remuneration, reviewing
the performance of Directors and senior management in discharging
their responsibilities and conducting annual performance evaluation,
and considering the remunerations paid by comparable companies,
time commitment and responsibilities and employment conditions for
other positions in the Group. The remuneration of all Directors is
subject to regular monitoring by the Remuneration Committee to
ensure that their remunerations and compensations are reasonable.
The Remuneration Committee is provided with sufficient resources
to discharge its duties and it can seek independent professional
advice according to the Company’s policy if considered necessary.
The major roles and functions of the Remuneration Committee are
included in its terms of reference, which are available on the
respective websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.
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The Remuneration Committee shall meet at least once a year in
accordance with its terms of reference. One Remuneration
Committee meeting was held in 2021 and the attendance of each
member is set out in the section headed “THE BOARD” of this
report. In addition to the above Remuneration Committee meeting,
the Remuneration Committee also dealt with matters by way of
circulation during the Year. During the Year and up to the date of
this report, the Remuneration Committee had performed the work
as summarised below:

(i) reviewed and recommended for the Board’s approval of the
policy and structure for the remuneration of all Directors and
senior management of the Group;

(i) reviewed and recommended for the Board’s approval of the
discretionary bonus for the year ended 31 December 2020 for
the Executive Directors and the salary increments of the
Executive Directors for the Year;

(iii)  reviewed and recommended for the Board’'s approval of the
increments of remuneration of INEDs for the Year;

(iv)  reviewed and recommended for the Board’'s approval of the
remuneration packages of Directors and senior management
of the Group; and

(v)  reviewed and recommended for the Board’s approval of the
remuneration packages of two INEDs for renewal of the term
of appointments.

Each Director will be entitled to Director’s fee which is to be
proposed for the Shareholders’ approval at the AGM each year.
Further remunerations payable to the Directors (including any service
fees of the INEDs) for their additional responsibilities and services
will depend on their respective contractual terms under their
respective employment contracts or service contracts as approved by
the Board on the recommendation of the Remuneration Committee.
Details of the Directors’ remunerations are set out in note 11 to the
consolidated financial statements of this annual report while the
detailed changes in the information of Directors since the date of
the 2021 Interim Report of the Company and up to the date of this
report are also disclosed in the section headed “CHANGES IN
DIRECTORS’ INFORMATION" of the Directors’ Report. Details of the
remuneration policy of the Group are also set out in the section
headed “"EMPLOYEES” contained in the Management Discussion and
Analysis on page 22 of this annual report.
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Pursuant to code provision E.1.5 of the CG Code, the annual
remunerations of the members of the senior management of the
Group (other than the Directors) during the Year by band is set out
in note 11 to the consolidated financial statements of this annual
report.

Audit Committee

As at the date of this report, the Audit Committee consists of three
INEDs, namely Mr. Chan Sze Chung (Chairman of the Audit
Committee), Mr. Zhang Ruibin and Mr. Zhang Junxi Jack. To retain
independence and objectivity, it is chaired by an INED with
appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related
financial management expertise.

The primary duty of the Audit Committee is to assist the Board in
its oversight of the completeness, accuracy and fairness of the
financial statements of the Company, the effectiveness and
adequacy of risk management and internal control systems, the
independence of the external auditor and the performance and
effectiveness of the Company’s internal audit and compliance
function. The Audit Committee is provided with sufficient resources
to discharge its duties and it can seek independent professional
advice according to the Company’s policy if considered necessary.
The major roles and functions of the Audit Committee are included
in its terms of reference, which are available on the respective
websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

The Audit Committee shall meet at least twice a year in accordance
with its terms of reference. Two Audit Committee meetings were
held during the Year and the attendance of each member is set out
in the section headed “THE BOARD" of this report. In addition to
the above Audit Committee meetings, the Audit Committee also
dealt with matters by way of circulation during the Year.

During the Year and up to the date of this report, the Audit
Committee had performed the work as summarised below:

(i)  reviewed the independent review report/audit completion
report from the external auditor and the management’s
response in relation to the final audit for the year ended 31
December 2020 (the “2020 Final Audit”), the interim results
review for the six months ended 30 June 2021 (the “2021
Interim Results Review”) and the final audit for the Year (the
“2021 Final Audit”);
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reviewed and recommended for the Board’s approval of the
financial reports for the year ended 31 December 2020, for
the six months ended 30 June 2021 and for the Year
together with the relevant management representation letters
and announcements;

reviewed the internal control review reports/summary prepared
by the Internal Audit Department (the “IAD")/business
responsible officers and external consultants respectively, and
instructed that the issues raised would be addressed and
managed by the management;

reviewed and recommended for the Board’s approval of the
updated report on substantiation of the resources,
qualifications and experience of staff of the Company’s
accounting and financial reporting function, and their training
programmes and budget;

formulated, reviewed and recommended for the Board’s annual
review of the Connected Transaction Policies, the Related Party
Transaction Policies and Procedures, the Whistleblower Policy,
the Anti-corruption Policy, the Policy on the Disclosure of
Inside Information and the Code of Conduct and Compliance
Manual; and

reviewed and approved the scope of audit by the external
auditor in respect of the 2020 Final Audit, 2021 Interim
Results Review and 2021 Final Audit, as well as reviewed and
recommended for the Board’s approval of the re-appointment
of external auditor, and their remuneration and terms of
engagement.

Executive Committee

As at the date of this report, the Executive Committee consists of
four Executive Directors, namely Mr. Chai Hongjie (Chairman of the

Executive Committee), Mr.

Bai Pingyan, Mr. Huang Yu and Mr.

Jiang Chaowen.

The Executive Committee is vested by the Board with all the general
powers of management and control of the activities of the Group,
save for those matters which are reserved for the Board’s decision
and approval pursuant to the written terms of reference of the
Executive Committee.
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The Executive Committee will meet as and when necessary to
discuss the operating affairs of the Group and may also deal with
matters by way of circulation. The Executive Committee is mainly
responsible for undertaking and supervising the day-to-day
management and is empowered to:

(i) formulate and implement policies for the business activities,
internal control and administration of the Group; and

(i) plan and decide on strategies to be adopted for the business
activities of the Group within the overall strategy of the
Group as determined by the Board.

CODES FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY
DIRECTORS AND RELEVANT EMPLOYEES

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set
out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its code of conduct
regarding securities transactions by the Directors. All Directors have
confirmed, following a specific enquiry made by the Company, that
they had complied with the required standard as set out in the
Model Code during the Year. Relevant employees who, because of
their office in the Company, are likely to be in possession of inside
information have been requested to comply with the provisions of
the Model Code.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

Financial Reporting

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing, with
the support from the finance department of the Company, the
consolidated financial statements of the Group. In preparing the
consolidated financial statements for the Year, the accounting
principles generally accepted in Hong Kong have been adopted and
the requirements of the Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(which also include Hong Kong Accounting Standards and
Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and the disclosure requirements of the Companies
Ordinance have been complied with. The Directors believe that they
have selected suitable accounting policies and applied them
consistently, and made judgements and estimates that are prudent
and reasonable and ensure that the consolidated financial
statements are prepared on a going concern basis. The reporting
responsibilities of the Company’s external auditor, BDO Limited, are
set out in the Independent Auditor's Report on pages 113 to 121
of this annual report.
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Risk Management and Internal Control

Risk Management and Internal Control

The Board is responsible for ensuring that the Group
establishes and maintains appropriate and effective risk
management and internal control systems. Through
establishing the Audit Committee, Risks Management
Committee and the risk management team (“Risk
Management Team”) under it, the Board reviews the
effectiveness and adequacy of the Group's risk management
and internal control systems and performs its obligations of
continuously supervising and managing the design,
implementation and monitoring of the Group’s risk
management and internal control systems.

The Risks Management Committee currently consists of four
members, namely Mr. Zhang Junxi Jack (Chairman of the Risks
Management Committee), Mr. Chan Sze Chung and Mr.
Zhang Ruibin, who are the INEDs, and Mr. Jiang Chaowen,
who is the Executive Director.

During the Year, the Group has engaged an external
consultant to assist the Group in the assessment of risk
management, performance of its internal audit function and
conducting annual internal control review according to the
requirements of the CG Code. The assistance facilitated
annual review of the Group’s risk management and internal
control systems for the Year. The effectiveness and adequacy
of the Group’s risk management and internal control systems
for the Year was considered and reported by the management
to the Board.

Risk Management Process

The Group’s risk management uses a blended top-down and
bottom-up approach for identifying risks. Through identifying
the internal and external sources of risks in the existing
business of the Group (including pharmaceutical and fitness
businesses), the known possible risk events and their areas of
impact are assessed. The identified risks of the Group are
categorised into 4 main areas which involve financial,
operational, reputation and human resources. A discussion of
the policies and procedures on the management of each of
the major types of risk which the Group is facing is included
in the section headed “Principal Risks and Uncertainties” in
the Directors’ Report on page 89 of this annual report.
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Risks of the Group are ranked as high, medium or low levels
under risk evaluation in terms of five categories of
consequence and five categories of likelihood of occurrence.
Risk level evaluates the residual risk levels based on the
controlling power of existing controls. The result from the risk
analysis is evaluated to determine whether or not identified
risks are within expected tolerance levels. Through the risk
evaluation, risks are transferred, shared, eliminated or
effectively controlled through proposed risk mitigation
measures. For each proposed risk mitigation measure based on
the results of risk evaluation, a risk owner is designated to
follow up on the risk treatment, and an expected completion
date of the relevant mitigation measure should be assigned to
ensure accountability for risk mitigation. The relevant
information of risk evaluation is documented in the top risk
records of the Group, which are put together and escalated to
the Risks Management Committee and the Board for
discussion and approval after the risk registers are being
provided by the operating subsidiaries and consolidated by the
Risk Management Team.

The roles and responsibilities of operating subsidiaries, the Risk
Management Team, Risks Management Committee and the
Board in risk management are as follows:

Summary of the works of risks managements from operating
subsidiaries to the Risk Management Team:

o Preparing and updating the risk register of the operating
subsidiaries semi-annually

o Following up on the remediation status of the proposed
risk mitigation measure documented in the top risk
records semi-annually

o Identifying any significant risks from operating subsidiaries
semi-annually

o Real-time monitoring any risks that exceed the risk
appetite of the Group
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Summary of the works of risks managements from the Risk
Management Team to the Risks Management Committee and
the Board:

o Reviewing the remediation status of top risks annually
° Reviewing any updates to the risk universe annually
o Updating the risk management policy, including risk

assessment criteria annually

° Reviewing top risk identification including top risk
dashboard, risk universe and top risk records annually

o Real-time monitoring any risks that exceed the risk
appetite of the Group

Internal Audit

Internal audit plays an important role in internal controls,
which is to assist the Audit Committee in carrying out analysis
and appraisal of the effectiveness and adequacy of the
Group's internal control systems. During the Year, the Group
engaged an external consultant to facilitate the internal audit
function of the Group. The Company set up a three-years
internal audit work plan according to the risk evaluation
results. The external consultant conducted the review of
internal audit projects for the Year in accordance with the
approved three-years internal audit work plan. The review
included understanding the operation processes of the
proposed scope review through interviews with the
management and the responsible persons; performing walk-
through tests for relevant internal control system processes;
identifying weaknesses of the design and implementation of
the internal control system; providing relevant suggestions for
improvement; making enquiries to the management and
person in charge of the process for remediation; and
reviewing relevant documents to understand and analyse the
implementation situation of review suggestions stated in the
2020 internal audit report which have yet to be rectified. The
above scope of work and review method have been confirmed
and approved by the Audit Committee.
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Through the internal control review report and summary for
the Year provided by the external consultant and IAD/business
responsible officers respectively, the Audit Committee and the
Board analysed the internal control findings and suggestions;
and assessed the adequacy and effectiveness of the internal
audit function. The issues raised in the internal control review
report and summary would be promptly addressed and more
strongly managed by the management. The Audit Committee
and the Board are satisfied that there are effective and
adequate risk management and internal control systems in the
Company for the Year.

Annual Confirmation

The Group's risk management and internal control systems are
designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance
against material misstatement or loss; to manage rather than
completely eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business
objectives. It has a key role in the management of risks that
are significant to the fulfilment of business objectives. The
Board, through the Audit Committee and with the assistance
of the IAD/business responsible officers and the external
consultant, conducted risk management and internal control
reviews of the business operations for the Year and
considered it to be effective and adequate for the Year. The
management has provided a confirmation to the Risks
Management Committee (and the Board) on the effectiveness
of these systems for the Year.

Handling and Dissemination of Inside Information

The Company has a policy with regard to the principles and
procedures for handling and disseminating the inside information of
the Company in compliance with the requirements under Part XIVA
of the SFO and the Listing Rules. The policy regulates the handling
and dissemination of inside information, which includes:

designated reporting channel for relevant officers in possession
of potential inside information to notify the persons
designated by the Board (the “Designated Persons”);

Designated Persons to assess the potential inside information
and provide advice, and where appropriate, to escalate such
information for the attention of the Board to resolve on
further actions so as to comply with applicable laws and
regulations; and

restrictive access to inside information to a limited number of
employees on a need-to-know basis.
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External Auditor’'s Remuneration

The remuneration paid/payable to the Group’s external auditor in
respect of audit services and non-audit services for the Year is set
out as follows:

THERT
HK$’000

BAREERME R Services rendered for the Group
ZE RS Audit services 2,605
FZRBRG (REEMPHAEEREAM) Non-audit services (including review of interim

results and others) 975
et Total 3,580
NEME COMPANY SECRETARY

AERBLLRARRZRABAMERERY
Bk ARt 2 BEFBEHENANFRE100
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ERRzZBE
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BREM BRTHRERFR AERE
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HEMERAARREUEAEE -

BREMEMIN RRARZERAENMREHRE
ERERESTTHERR 2 METERIERR -

Ms. Si Tou Man Wai is the Company Secretary and the Chief
Financial Officer of the Company. Ms. Si Tou’'s brief biographical
details are set out in the section headed “BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS
OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT” in the Director’s
Report on page 100 of this annual report.

Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules stipulates that an issuer’'s company
secretary is required to take no less than 15 hours of relevant
professional training in each financial year. It is confirmed that Ms.
Si Tou has taken no less than 15 hours of relevant professional
training during the Year.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Board recognises the importance of good communication with
Shareholders. Information in relation to the Group is disseminated
to the Shareholders in a timely manner through a number of formal
channels which include interim and annual reports, announcements
and circulars. Such published documents together with the latest
corporate information and news are also made available on the
website of the Company.

In addition to publication of information, the general meetings of

the Company provide important opportunities for constructive
communication between the Board and the Shareholders.
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The 2021 AGM was held on 27 May 2021. Due to the impact of
novel coronavirus pandemic (COVID-19), the Chairman of the Board,
the Chief Executive Officer and the chairman of the Remuneration
Committee were not able to attend the 2021 AGM in person but
by means of video conference. The chairman of the Audit
Committee, who attended the 2021 AGM in person together with
the chairman of the Risks Management Committee, took the chair
of the 2021 AGM. The aforesaid Directors and the representatives
of the external auditor of the Company were present thereat either
in person or by means of video conference to answer questions to
ensure effective communication with the Shareholders. The
attendance record of the Directors at the 2021 AGM is set out in
the section headed “THE BOARD" of this report.

The chairman of any independent Board committee formed as
necessary or pursuant to the Listing Rules (or if no such chairman is
appointed, at least a member of the independent Board committee)
should also be available to answer questions of the Shareholders at
any general meeting to approve a connected transaction or any
other transaction that is subject to independent Shareholders’
approval.

Separate resolutions are proposed at the general meeting for each
substantial issue, including but not limited to the re-election of
Directors and the re-appointment of BDO Limited as the
independent auditor of the Company in the 2021 AGM.

The notice to Shareholders is sent at least 20 clear business days
before the meeting in the case of AGM and at least 10 clear
business days in case of all other general meetings. An explanation
of the detailed procedures of conducting a poll is provided to the
Shareholders at the commencement of the meeting. The chairman
answers questions from the Shareholders regarding voting by way of
a poll. The poll results are published in the manner prescribed
under the requirements of the Listing Rules.

Shareholder(s) holding not less than one-tenth of the paid-up capital
of the Company can request the convening of an extraordinary
general meeting according to Article 64 of the Articles of
Association by written requisition, with stated business proposed to
be transacted, which must be validly served at the head office and
principal place of business of the Company registered in Hong Kong
(the “Head Office”) or at Tricor Secretaries Limited, the branch
share registrar of the Company in Hong Kong (the "Registration
Office”). Besides, Shareholders may make a proposal at a
Shareholders’ meeting by submitting it in written form to the Board
at the Head Office or at the Registration Office in the form of a
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proposed resolution, which shall clearly and concisely set out the
proposal for discussion and be relevant to the Company’s business
scope.

The Board has established a shareholders’ communication policy. A
Shareholder may serve an enquiry to the Board to the Head Office
for the attention of the Board in written form, which shall state the
nature of the enquiry and the reason for making the enquiry. In
addition, Shareholders can contact the Registration Office for any
questions about their shareholdings.

As regards a proposed election of a person as a Director, the
procedures are available on the website of the Company at
http://www.tfkf.com.hk.

DIRECTORS’ AND OFFICERS’ INSURANCE

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance cover in respect
of potential legal actions against its Directors and officers.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

Pursuant to Rule 13.90 of the Listing Rules, the Company has
posted its Articles of Association on the respective websites of the
Stock Exchange and the Company. During the Year, no
amendments were made to the constitutional documents of the
Company.

On behalf of the Board

Chai Hongjie
Chairman

30 March 2022
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The board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of Tongfang
Kontafarma Holdings Limited (the “Company”) presents the annual
report and the audited consolidated financial statements of the
Company and its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) for the year
ended 31 December 2021 (the “Year”).

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The principal
activities and details of its subsidiaries as at 31 December 2021 are
set out in note 56 to the consolidated financial statements of this
annual report.

The Group's revenue for the Year was derived mainly from activities
carried out in the Mainland China, Singapore and Taiwan. An
analysis of the Group’s revenue for the Year is set out in note 5 to
the consolidated financial statements of this annual report.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group and appropriations of the Company are set
out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on pages 122 to 124 of this annual report
and in the accompanying notes to the consolidated financial
statements.

The Board has resolved not to recommend any final dividend for the
Year (2020: Nil).

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2021, the aggregate amount of the
distributable reserves of the Company was approximately
HK$1,242.6 million. Details of the Company’s reserves during the
Year are set out in note 55 to the consolidated financial statements
of this annual report.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

During the Year, the Group acquired property, plant and equipment
totaling approximately HK$201.6 million.

Details of these and other movements in property, plant and
equipment of the Group during the Year are set out in note 17 to
the consolidated financial statements of this annual report.
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BUSINESS REVIEW

The business review of the Group for the Year is set out in the
sections headed “CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT”, “MANAGEMENT
DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS” and “ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND
GOVERNANCE REPORT"” respectively from pages 6 to 8, pages 9 to
22 and pages 23 to 64 of this annual report and the paragraphs
below. The discussion and analysis in the “CHAIRMAN'S
STATEMENT”, "MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS” and
“ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT” form part
of this Directors’ Report.

Principal Risks and Uncertainties
Pharmaceutical Business

In 2021, the COVID-19 in Mainland China has been well contained.
The impact on the pharmaceutical industry of Mainland China is
gradually reducing, yet the pharmaceutical business of the Group
still faces uncertainties brought by the medical reform in Mainland
China. In the face of the current situation, the Group’s
pharmaceutical segment has always maintained a positive trend of
response, and strived to fully utilize its professional advantages in
research and development of new products, market expansion,
capacity upgrading, etc., thereby enhancing its own risk resilience.

Fitness Business

In 2021, due to the outbreak of COVID-19 pandemic in Singapore
and Taiwan, the Group’s fitness centres in these two regions were
required to suspend operation, which led to a significant drop in the
Group's revenue from fitness business as compared with the
pre-COVID-19 pandemic level. Although fitness centres have
reopened, the operation scale is still restricted by pandemic
prevention measures such as capacity restrictions and safe distancing
measures. The Group will pay close attention to any change in
pandemic prevention measures in Singapore and Taiwan, actively
plan on responsive measure, while getting prepared for re-absorbing
members upon the relief of pandemic prevention measures.

Financial Risk

The Group is exposed to a variety of financial risks. A discussion of
the policies and procedures on the management of each of the
major types of financial risks which the Group is facing is included
in note 49 to the consolidated financial statements of this annual
report.
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Compliance with Relevant Laws and Regulations

We have in place compliance procedures to ensure adherence to the
relevant laws and regulations that are relevant to the Group. The
Executive Committee is responsible for reviewing and monitoring the
Group's policies and practices on compliance with legal and
regulatory requirements, with the support and assistance of the
legal consultants of the Company and the company secretarial
department.

Details of compliance with relevant laws and regulations are set out
in “Environmental, Social and Governance Report” on pages 23 to
64 of this annual report.

Relationships with Employees, Customers and
Suppliers

Details of relationships with employees, customers and suppliers are
set out in “Environmental, Social and Governance Report” on pages
23 to 64 of this annual report.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movement in the share capital of the Company during the
Year are set out in note 37 to the consolidated financial statements
of this annual report.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Other than the Company’s share option scheme (the “Share Option
Scheme”) as disclosed under note 38 to the consolidated financial
statements of this annual report, no equity-linked agreements that
will or may result in the Company issuing shares, or require the
Company to enter into any agreements that will or may result in
the Company issuing shares, were entered into by the Company
during the Year or subsisted at the end of the Year.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

(a)

(b)

Share Option Scheme of the Company

The share option scheme of the Company has been expired
on 17 January 2022. The details are set out in note 38 to the
consolidated financial statements of this annual report.

Share Option Scheme of a Subsidiary

Apros Therapeutics, Inc. (“Apros”), the then indirect non-
wholly owned subsidiary of the Company adopted the Apros’
Equity Incentive Plan (the “EIP Plan”) in August 2016. The EIP
Plan was adopted for retaining the services of eligible
recipients and providing incentives for such persons to exert
maximum efforts for Apros’ success. Eligible recipients include
Apros’ and its affiliates’ employees. The EIP Plan is valid and
effective for a period of 10 years and will expire on 4 August
2026.

On 22 October 2021, Tongfang Konta Capital, L.P. (a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company), Swiss Talent Group
Limited ((mAN&EBEBRAA]) and the Company (as the
guarantor of Tongfang Konta Capital, L.P.) entered into the
sale and purchase agreement in relation to disposal of
approximately 79.83% of the issued share capital of Apros.
Completion of the transaction took place on 25 November
2021. Upon the completion, the Group ceased to have any
interest in Apros, and Apros ceased to be a subsidiary of the
Company. For details, please refer to the announcement of
the Company dated 22 October 2021 and the circular of the
Company dated 18 November 2021.

SHARE AWARD SCHEME

Particulars of the share award scheme of the Company are set out
in note 39 to the consolidated financial statements of this annual
report.
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EMOLUMENT POLICY

The remunerations offered to the employees of the Group generally
include salaries, medical benefits and bonus on a performance
related basis. The emoluments of the Directors are recommended by
the Remuneration Committee of the Board and are decided by the
Board, as authorized by shareholders of the Company (the
“Shareholder(s)”) at the annual general meeting of the Company,
having regard to the Group’s operating results, the Directors’
individual performance and comparable market statistics.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the amended
and restated articles of association of the Company (the “Articles of
Association”) or the laws of the Cayman Islands which would oblige
the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing
Shareholders.

BORROWINGS AND INTEREST CAPITALISED

Bank borrowings of the Group which are repayable within one year
are classified as current liabilities. Repayment analysis of bank
borrowings of the Group is set out in note 34 to the consolidated
financial statements of this annual report. The Group had interest
capitalised on assets constructed in progress amounted to
approximately HK$997,000 during the Year.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results as well as the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on page 316 of this
annual report.

TAX RELIEF

The Company is not aware of any relief from taxation available to
the Shareholders by reason of their holding of the Shares.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors during the Year and up to the date of this report
were:

Executive Directors (“Executive Director(s)”)

Mr. Chai HongjieMe® (Chairman)
Mr. Bai Pingyan®™® (appointed on 27 September 2021)

Mr. Huang Yu (President)
Mr. Jiang Chaowen (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Wei Bingzhang (resigned on 27 September 2021)

Independent Non-Executive Directors (the
“INED(s)")

Mr. Chan Sze Chung
Mr. Zhang Ruibin
Mr. Zhang Junxi Jack

Note:

Mr. Chai Hongjie ceased to act as the Chairman of the Board and Mr. Bai
Pingyan has taken up the role of the Chairman of the Board with effect
from 19 April 2022.

Pursuant to Article 108 of the amended and restated articles of
association of the Company (the “Articles of Association”), Mr.
Huang Yu, Mr. Jiang Chaowen, Mr. Chan Sze Chung and Mr.
Zhang Ruibin shall retire from office by rotation and, being eligible,
offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting (the “2022 AGM") to be held on 10 June 2022.

Pursuant to Article 112 of the Articles of Association, Mr. Bai
Pingyan will hold office until the next following annual general
meeting of the Company and shall then be eligible for re-election at
such meeting. As such, Mr. Bai Pingyan shall retire at the 2022
AGM and, being eligible, offer himself for re-election at the 2022
AGM.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Executive Directors

Mr. Chai Hongjie, aged 48, was appointed as an Executive Director
and the Chairman of the Board on 3 September 2020. He is also
the chairman of each of the executive committee, the nomination
committee, the share dealing committee and the investment
committee of the Board. Mr. Chai has extensive experience in
corporate management and strategic planning for business
development. He is currently the chairman of the board of directors
of Shenzhen Waranty Asset Management Co., Ltd.* (ZIIITH # gl T
BEEEHRAE]) (“Shenzhen Waranty”), a controlling shareholder
of the Company, and a director of Shenzhen Huakong Seg Co., Ltd.
(stock code: 000068), the issued shares of which are listed on the
Shenzhen Stock Exchange (“Shenzhen Huakong Seg”). Prior to
joining the Group, Mr. Chai held positions as chairman of the
board, directors and senior management in various companies and
organisations, including Changzhi Division of China Banking
Regulatory Commission* (FEIRITHEBEERZEERAREDR),
Jinshang Bank Co., Ltd. (stock code: 2558), the H shares of which
are listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”), Shanxi Guoxin Investment Group
Co., Ltd.* (WLABEIKEEBEABRAF]), Zhonghesheng Capital
Management Co., Ltd.* (P& BEREAREEFRRAF]), Shanxi Financial
Investment Holding Group Co., Ltd.* (LA B EIEREE AR QD
A]), Shanxi State-owned Capital Operation Co., Ltd.* (ILFAEEEE
KEZAFR AT, and Shanxi Guotou Sports Industrial Group Co.,
Ltd.* (ILFEBEREEEEXEEBERAR) (“Shanxi Guotou Sports”).
He had also been a director of several listed companies, including
Shanxi Securities Company Limited (stock code: 002500), the issued
shares of which are listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange, and
GuangYuYuan Chinese Herbal Medicine Co., Ltd. (stock code:
600771), the issued shares of which are listed on the Shanghai
Stock Exchange. Mr. Chai obtained a bachelor's degree in
Economics from Department of Finance, Shanxi Institute of
Economics* (LU PEE 4 E2BE) (now known as Shanxi University of
Finance and Economics (ILFEBFALKER)) in July 1996. He was
qualified as an intermediate accountant* (FF#HEHAR) in May
1997.
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Mr. Bai Pingyan, aged 50, was appointed as an Executive Director
on 27 September 2021. He is a member of each of the executive
committee and the share dealing committee of the Board. Mr. Bai
has extensive experience in corporate and finance management. He
is currently the chief accountant of Shanxi Construction Investment
Group Co., Ltd.* (LAZEXRKEEEBEBRAF) (“Shanxi
Construction”). Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Bai had been the
deputy head of the finance department and head of equity
investment department of Huayang New Material Technology Group
Co., Ltd.* (EBEFMEREEBEBRAF]) (formerly known as
Yangquan Coal Industry (Group) Co., Ltd.* (FFREZ (£E) GRS
f£/2d))), the chief accountant and director of Shanxi Zhaofeng
Aluminum Industry Co., Ltd.* (LUPEIKEEEREBREMLAR]), the chief
accountant of Yangquan Coal Industry Chemical Group Co., Ltd.*
BREZLELTEBAERELAT]) and the deputy general manager
and chief accountant of Shanxi Yangmei Chemical Investment Co.,
Ltd.* (LLPaF5 (L TIREBR EE A 7). Mr. Bai had also been the
director of Yangmei Chemical Co., Ltd. (B TR MK BR A A)
(stock code: 600691), the issued shares of which are listed on the
Shanghai Stock Exchange, the chairman of the board of directors
and general manager of Yangquan Coal Industry Group Tian’an
Industry Incubator Co., Ltd.* (FBGREEEBMALTEERLEERE
f£/2F]) and the chairman of the board of directors and general
manager of Yangquan Coal Industry Group Huaneng Coal Power
Investment Co., Ltd.* ((BFREFEEERKEEREBREEAA).
Mr. Bai obtained a Master of Business Administration degree at the
Nankai University in June 2009. He was qualified as a senior
accountant* (IE/ & 5HAD) in December 2019.
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Mr. Huang Yu, aged 53, was appointed as an Executive Director
and the President of the Group on 15 March 2014 and 3
September 2020 respectively. He is a member of each of the
executive committee and the share dealing committee of the Board.
He is also a director of certain subsidiaries of the Company. Mr.
Huang served as the Chairman of the Board from July 2014 to
September 2020. He is currently an executive director and general
manager of Shenzhen Aorongxin Investment Development Co., Ltd.*
ORITERBMEREZRE AR AT and the chairman of the
supervisory committee of Penghua Fund Management Co., Ltd* (}i§
EHSEEAFRAF]). Mr. Huang had also been a director and
senior management of several listed companies, including the
chairman of the board and a non-executive director of Neo-Neon
Holdings Limited (stock code: 1868), the issued shares of which are
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, a non-executive
director of Technovator International Limited (stock code: 1206), the
issued shares of which are listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange, the vice chairman and president of Tsinghua Tongfang
Co., Ltd.* (AAFXMDEMRAT) (stock code: 600100), the issued
shares of which are listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange
("Tsinghua Tongfang”) and the chairman of the board of directors
of Shenzhen Huakong Seg. Mr. Huang obtained a master’s degree
in Science from the University of Greenwich.
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Mr. Jiang Chaowen, aged 56, was appointed as the Chief
Executive Officer of the Company, an Executive Director and the
Vice President of the Group on 11 December 2017, 23 January
2018 and 3 September 2020, respectively. He is also a member of
each of the executive committee, the risks management committee
and the share dealing committee of the Board. He joined the Group
in July 2016, and is currently the president of Tongfang
Pharmaceutical Group Co., Ltd* (Rl ZEE LB HFRAF]) and the
chairman of SPF (Beijing) Biotechnology Co., Ltd.* (HTE#& (Jb3R) 4
YIFET AR A R]) (“SPF"), Chongging Kangle Pharmaceutical Co.,
Ltd.* (EEELE AR AA]) (“Chongging Kangle”), Shaanxi
Unisplendour Life Care Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.* (BX7H %% = 7 24
¥BBRAF]) (“Shaanxi Unisplendour”) and Huakong Innovation
(Beijing) Institute of Pharmaceutical Research Co., Ltd.* (ZEJZEIFT
(L) B e BIR A F), all of which are subsidiaries of the
Company. He is also a director of certain subsidiaries of the
Company. Mr. Jiang has over 30 years of extensive management
experience in the pharmaceutical industry. Mr. Jiang is currently a
director of Chongqing Jewelland Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.* (B f&
BEE2 ZBIEL AR A A)) (“Chongging Jewelland”) and Si Chuan
Jewelland Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.* (PUJIIf#EERBEHFR A R]) (“Si
Chuan Jewelland”). Prior to joining the Group, he held positions of
chairman and general manager in The First South-west
Pharmaceutical Factory* (78 Fg &% — &) (Chongging Qingyang
Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.* (EEBHBEEXABRAF])), Chongging
Jiachen Biological Engineering Co., Ltd.* (EBEREWIREAEA
A]), Chongqging Jewelland and Si Chuan Jewelland. Mr. Jiang
graduated from the School of Business Administration of Chongging
University with a postgraduate qualification. He further studied at
the Party School of Chinese Communist Party of Chongging City,
Tsinghua University, Southwest China Normal University, and
Chongging University etc. during working time.
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INEDs

Mr. Chan Sze Chung, aged 52, was appointed as an INED on 20
December 2011. He is the chairman of the audit committee of the
Board and a member of each of the remuneration committee, the
nomination committee, the risks management committee and the
investment committee of the Board. Mr. Chan has been an
independent non-executive director of Da Yu Financial Holdings
Limited (stock code: 1073) since July 2019, the issued shares of
which are listed on the Stock Exchange. Prior to joining the
Company, he had acted as the chief financial officer (from
December 2009 to August 2010) of Coolpoint Energy Limited (now
known as Viva China Holdings Limited) (stock code: 8032), the
issued shares of which are listed on the Stock Exchange, as the
acting chief financial officer (from September 2008 to March 2009)
of Nam Tai Electronic & Electrical Products Limited, the issued
shares of which were previously listed on the Stock Exchange, and
as the vice chief financial officer (from March 2009 to November
2009) of Nam Tai Electronics, Inc. (now known as Nam Tai Property
Inc.) (NYSE: NTP), the issued shares of which are listed on the New
York Stock Exchange. During the period from January 1993 to
August 1997, Mr. Chan was employed by Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu and served as a senior accountant at the time of his
resignation. He graduated from the University of Wales with a
Bachelor of Arts degree in Accounting and Finance in July 1991 and
obtained a Master of Arts degree in Accounting and Finance at the
University of Lancaster in December 1992. Mr. Chan is a certified
public accountant of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and a member of the American Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. Besides, he is recognised as a chartered
financial analyst by the CFA Institute of the United States of
America.
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Mr. Zhang Ruibin, aged 49, was appointed as an INED on 24 July
2014. Mr. Zhang is also the chairman of the remuneration
committee of the Board and a member of each of the audit
committee, the nomination committee, the risks management
committee and the investment committee of the Board. Mr. Zhang
is an external director of Moutai Group Company Limited* (Bl &
MFEBERMEEEREEAAF). Mr. Zhang has been (i) an
independent director of Guizhou Panjiang Refined Coal Co., Ltd.
(stock code: 600395), the issued shares of which are listed on the
Shanghai Stock Exchange, from 18 May 2013 to 23 March 2017
(i) an independent director of China Zhenhua (Group) Science &
Technology Co., Ltd. (stock code: 000733), the issued shares of
which are listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange, from 5 June
2015 to 17 December 2021; (iii) an independent director of
Guizhou Qianyuan Power Co., Ltd (stock code: 002039), the issued
shares of which are listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange, from
12 September 2014 to 20 November 2020; (iv) an independent
director of Poly Union Chemical Holding Group Co., Ltd. (formally
known as Guizhou lJiulian Industrial Explosive Materials Development
Co., Ltd) (stock code: 002037), the issued shares of which are listed
on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange, since 10 March 2016; and (v) an
executive director of Beijing Wudaokou Education & Technology
Co., Ltd.* bR ABAHERHARRQF) since 22 July 2016. Mr.
Zhang holds a doctoral degree in statistics from the Xiamen
University. He was a postdoctoral research fellow at the Renmin
University of China and The Finance Research Institute of the
People’s Bank of China* (I ARIRTTE BIAZEFT). He obtained a
qualification of non-practicing certified public accountant in China.
He was qualified as a senior economist by the Human Resources
Department of Guangdong Province* (& AEEE). He was
qualified as a certified treasury professional of The Association for
Financial Professionals. He has been awarded the research project
second prize by The Securities Association of China and the key
research project third prize by the People’s Bank of China.
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Mr. Zhang Junxi Jack, aged 58, was appointed as INED on 21
August 2015. Mr. Zhang is also the chairman of the risks
management committee of the Board and a member of each of the
audit committee, the remuneration committee and the nomination
committee of the Board. Mr. Zhang has over 30 years of teaching
and research experience in the field of economics, finance and
business management. He graduated from the Nankai University
with a bachelor degree in Physics in July 1983, and obtained a
Master of Business Administration (MBA) degree in July 1986 and a
doctoral degree in the Department of Economics at the University of
Pittsburgh in the United States in August 1992. Since August 1992,
Mr. Zhang has taught in a number of renowned universities
worldwide, including The Chinese University of Hong Kong,
University of Dundee in the United Kingdom, National University of
Singapore and The University of Hong Kong. Mr. Zhang served as a
vice president of the Tianjin University of Finance and Economics
from 2012 to 2018, and he is currently the dean of faculty of
business at Chu Hai College of Higher Education in Hong Kong.
From February 2013 to December 2019, he was an independent
director of China Bohai Bank Co., Ltd. (stock code: 9668), the
issued shares of which are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited since 2020.

Senior Management

Ms. Si Tou Man Wai, aged 44, was appointed as the Chief
Financial Officer and the Company Secretary of the Company on 7
November 2014 and the vice president of the Group on 3
September 2020. She is also a director of certain subsidiaries of the
Company. Ms. Si Tou has more than 20 years of experience in
auditing, accounting, financing and financial advisory services
including mergers and acquisitions, valuation and corporate
restructuring, gained from both professional firm and listed
company. Prior to joining the Company, she worked at Deloitte
Touche Tohmatsu in Hong Kong for around 12 years. From 29 June
2015 to 26 September 2016, she was an independent non-
executive director of Pak Wing Group (Holdings) Limited (now
known as Quantong Holdings Limited) (stock code: 8316), the
issued shares of which are listed on the Stock Exchange. Ms. Si Tou
holds a Master of Commerce degree in Funds Management and a
Bachelor of Commerce degree in Accounting and Finance from the
University of New South Wales. She is a member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a member of the
Institute of Chartered Accountants in Australia.
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Mr. Zhang Jie, aged 38, was appointed as the Vice President and
the Chief Operating Officer of the Group on 3 September 2020.
Mr. Zhang is currently the deputy secretary to the Communist Party
Committee and the board secretary of Shenzhen Waranty and also
a director of certain subsidiaries of the Group. Prior to that, he
worked as the political officer of Shanxi Guotou Sports, and an
officer at Yuncheng Municipal Party Committee of Communist
Youth League* (*EFEEEH ™ Z). Mr. Zhang obtained a
postgraduate qualification (9T 422 fE) in Economics from the Party
School of the Central Committee of the Communist Party of China
(AR R EAR) in July 2013,

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
AGM has an unexpired service contract with the Group which is not
determinable by the Group within one year without payment of
compensation, other than statutory compensation.

On 20 August 2021, with the recommendations from the
Nomination Committee and Remuneration Committee, the Board
approved the renewal of service contract of Mr. Zhang Junxi Jack as
an INED for a term of three years commencing from 21 August
2021.

On 17 January 2022, with the recommendations from the
Nomination Committee and Remuneration Committee, the Board
approved the renewal of service contract of Mr. Chan Sze Chung as
an INED for a term of two years commencing from 18 January
2022.

TERMS OF OFFICE FOR THE INEDs

Mr. Chan Sze Chung was appointed for a specific term of two
years, which shall continue until 17 January 2024, subject to the
relevant provisions of the Articles of Association or any other
applicable laws whereby the Directors shall vacate or retire from
their office.

For Mr. Zhang Ruibin and Mr. Zhang Junxi Jack, their terms of
appointment shall be three years, which commenced on 24 July
2020 and 21 August 2021 respectively, and are subject to the
relevant provisions of the Articles of Association or any other
applicable laws whereby the Directors shall vacate or retire from
their office.
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HEEZEERE

Name of associated corporation

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF
THE COMPANY AND ITS ASSOCIATED
CORPORATIONS

As at 31 December 2021, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and chief executives of the Company in the shares (the
“Share(s)”), underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any
of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance, Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong
Kong (the “SFO")) as recorded in the register required to be kept
under section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model
Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 to the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) were as
follows:

Interests in associated corporation

G B EE RS
BHED L

Approximate

percentage of
interest in the
5% associated

Capacity corporation

EmERA
Beneficial owner

5.47%

Note:

As at 31 December 2021, Mr. Jiang Chaowen owned 5.47% interests in the
registered capital of SPF, an indirect non-wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2021, none of the Directors nor
the chief executives of the Company and their respective associates had any
interests or short positions in the Shares, underlying shares and debentures
of the Company and its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part
XV of the SFO), which were recorded in the register maintained by the
Company pursuant to section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESSES

Pursuant to Rule 8.10 of the Listing Rules, the following Director
has declared interests in the following businesses (other than those
businesses where the Directors were appointed as directors to
represent the interests of the Company and/or any member of the
Group) which are considered to compete or are likely to compete,
either directly or indirectly, with the businesses of the Group during
the Year:

Mr. Jiang Chaowen holds directorship in and has interests in the
share capital of Chongging Jewelland. Chongqging Jewelland
engages in the wholesale of chemical Active Pharmaceutical
Ingredients and its preparations, antibiotic Active Pharmaceutical
Ingredients and its preparations, biochemical drugs and proprietary
Chinese medicines. In addition, he holds directorship in Si Chuan
Jewelland. Si Chuan Jewelland engages in the production and sales
of tablets, medical technology development, and technology transfer
and consultations. The business of the abovementioned companies
is likely to compete with the pharmaceutical business of the Group.

As other members of the Board are independent of the board of
directors of those companies which engage in competing businesses
and no single Director can control the Board, the Group is therefore
capable of carrying on its businesses independently of, and at arm'’s
length from the businesses of those companies.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors (not being the INEDs)
had an interest in any business which competes or is likely to
compete, either directly or indirectly, with the business of the Group
during the Year and up to the date of this report.

DIRECTORS’ MATERIAL INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS OR
CONTRACTS

No transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance in relation
to the Group’s businesses to which the Company or any of its
subsidiaries, fellow subsidiaries, or holding companies was a party
and in which a Director or any entities connected with a Director
had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at
the end of the Year or at any time during the Year.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the Articles of Association, the Directors and every one
of them is entitled to be indemnified out of the assets of the
Company from and against all actions, costs, charges, losses,
damages and expenses which the Directors or any of them, shall or
may incur or sustain by or by reason of any act done, concurred in
or omitted in or about the execution of their duty, or supposed
duty in their offices or otherwise in relation thereto provided that
this indemnity shall not extend to any matter in respect of any
fraud or dishonesty which may attach to any of the Directors.

The Company has taken out and maintained Directors’ liability
insurance throughout the Year which provides appropriate coverage
for legal actions brought against the Directors.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

At no time during the Year was the Company or any of its
subsidiaries a party to any arrangements which would enable the
Directors to acquire benefits by means of acquisition of Shares in, or
debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate with the
exception of granting of share options to subscribe for Shares under
the Share Option Scheme.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts, other than employment contracts, concerning the
management and administration of the whole or any substantial
part of the business of the Company were entered into or executed
during the Year.
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Name of Shareholders

PEEEEEREGRAR ([HEEZE])
China Health Management Investment Limited
("China Health”)

ERREETIE(BE)BRAF
(TE/MTEBE]D

Waranty Assets Management (HK) Limited
(“Waranty Hong Kong")

RYIIEE R 2R
Shenzhen Waranty

BEREREBE-EREREREEGERDE
(ER&aR)([=8HK])

Ningbo Free Trade Zone Sanjin Guotou
Private Equity Fund Partnership Enterprise
(Limited Partnership)*(“Sanjin Guotou”)

IR
Shanxi Construction
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS® AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES

At 31 December 2021, so far as it was known by or otherwise
notified to any Directors or the chief executive of the Company, the
following Shareholders (other than a Director or the chief executive
of the Company) had 5% or more interests in the Shares or
underlying shares as recorded in the register required to be kept
under section 336 of the SFO:

i
Long positions
BAKRER S
Approximate
BB EE percentage of
5% Number of interest in
Capacity Shares shareholding
EmEAA 3,172,778,000M 56.77%
Beneficial owner
RESEERE R 3,172,778,000? 56.77%
Interest of a controlled
corporation
RESEERER 3,172,778,000® 56.77%
Interest of a controlled
corporation
ZPEHEE S 3,172,778,000% 56.77%
Interest of a controlled
corporation
TP HEE RS 3,172,778,000® 56.77%

Interest of a controlled
corporation
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wR
Long positions
BHARERD L

Approximate
X8 E percentage of

BRRER &4 Number of interest in

Name of Shareholders Capacity Shares shareholding

WAESREAREBRAREETAA EEtEE g R 3,172,778,000© 56.77%
(TLAEERAE]) Interest of a controlled

Shanxi Province Expressway Group Limited corporation

Liability Company* (“Shanxi Expressway")

W RBEERERER AR ([LARZAE]) SR H A E S 3,172,778,0007 56.77%
Shanxi Transportation Holdings Group Co., Interest of a controlled
Ltd.* (“Shanxi Transportation”) corporation
WA EERNEELER AR ZREHEE S 3,172,778,000® 56.77%
([EREEZERF]) Interest of a controlled

(FIBLAERBEERNKREELEBRAA) corporation
Shanxi State-owned Capital Operation Co.,

Ltd.* (“State-owned Capital Operation Co.")

(Formerly known as Shanxi State Capital

Investment and Operation Co., Ltd.*)

LWAEARBNEEEEEEEREZES REHEE R 3,172,778,000° 56.77%
(TLAEHEEZE]) Interest of a controlled
State-owned Assets Supervision and corporation

Administration Commission of Shan Xi
Provincial Government
(“Shanxi Government Commission”)

BERSEHEZERAERAR (FERTEHE]) EalEEA 513,994,0000 9.20%
THTF Energy-Saving Holdings Limited Beneficial owner

(“THTF Energy-Saving”)

Resuccess Investments Limited (“Resuccess”) SEPEHE B R 513,994,0000" 9.20%
Interest of a controlled
corporation

777 B £ HEGEEE R 513,994,00012 9.20%
Tsinghua Tongfang Interest of a controlled

corporation
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The figure refers to the legal and beneficial interest of China Health
in 3,172,778,000 Shares.

Waranty Hong Kong owns 100% interests in the issued share capital
of China Health and is therefore deemed to have an interest in the
Shares in which China Health is interested. The figure refers to the
same interests of China Health in the Shares under the SFO.

Shenzhen Waranty, through its wholly-owned subsidiary, namely
Waranty Hong Kong, owns 100% interests in the issued share capital
of China Health and is therefore deemed to have an interest in the
Shares in which China Health is interested. The figure refers to the
same interests of China Health in the Shares under the SFO.

Sanji Guotou owns 45.50% interests in the registered capital of
Shenzhen Waranty and is therefore deemed to have an interest in the
Shares in which Shenzhen Waranty is interested. The figure refers to
the same interests of China Health in the Shares under the SFO.

Shanxi Construction owns 46.38% interests in the registered capital of
Sanjin Guotou and 46.40% interests in the registered capital of
Shenzhen Waranty and is therefore deemed to have an interest in the
Shares in which Shenzhen Waranty is interested. The figure refers to
the same interests of China Health in the Shares under the SFO.

Shanxi Expressway owns 46.38% interests in the registered capital of
Sanji Guotou and is therefore deemed to have an interest in the
Shares in which Sanji Guotou is interested. The figure refers to the
same interests of China Health in the Shares under the SFO.

Shanxi Transportation owns 100% interests in the registered capital of
Shanxi Expressway and is therefore deemed to have an interest in the
Shares in which Shanxi Expressway is interested. The figure refers to
the same interests of China Health in the Shares under the SFO.

State-owned Capital Operation Co. owns 90% interests in the
registered capital of Shanxi Construction and 90% interests in the
registered capital of Shanxi Transportation respectively. State-owned
Capital Operation Co. is therefore deemed to have, via Shanxi
Construction and Shanxi Transportation, an interest in the Shares in
which Shenzhen Waranty is interested. The figure refers to the same
interests of China Health in the Shares under the SFO.

Shanxi Government Commission owns 100% interests in the registered
capital of State-owned Capital Operation Co. and is therefore deemed
to have an interest in the Shares in which State-owned Capital
Operation Co. is interested. The figure refers to the same interests of
China Health in the Shares under the SFO.

The figure refers to the legal and beneficial interests of THTF Energy-
Saving in 513,994,000 Shares.
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(11)  Resuccess owns 100% interests in the issued share capital of THTF
Energy-Saving and is therefore deemed to have an interest in the
Shares in which THTF Energy-Saving is interested. The figure refers to
the same interests of THTF Energy-Saving in the Shares under the
SFO.

(12)  Tsinghua Tongfang, through its wholly-owned subsidiary, namely
Resuccess, owns 100% interests in the issued share capital of THTF
Energy-Saving and is therefore deemed to have an interest in the
Shares in which THTF Energy-Saving is interested. The figure refers to
the same interests of THTF Energy-Saving in the Shares under the
SFO.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2021, the Company
had not been notified by any person (other than a Director or chief
executive of the Company or their respective associate(s)) of any
interest and short position in the Shares and underlying shares
which were required to be recorded in the register required to be
kept under section 336 of the SFO.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the Year, each of the aggregate revenue attributable to the
Group’s five largest customers and the aggregate purchases
attributable to the Group'’s five largest suppliers was less than 30%
of the Group’s total revenue and purchases respectively.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the Year.

CHANGES IN DIRECTORS’ INFORMATION

The following are the changes in the information of Directors
subsequent to the date of the 2021 Interim Report of the
Company, which are required to be disclosed pursuant to rule
13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules:

Major Positions Held

On 27 September 2021, Mr. Wei Bingzhang has resigned as an
Executive Director and a member of each of the executive
committee and the share dealing committee of the Board; and
Mr. Bai Pingyan has been appointed as an Executive Director and a
member of each of the executive committee and the share dealing
committee of the Board.
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On 17 December 2021, Mr. Zhang Ruibin, the INED, ceased to be
an independent director of China Zhenhua (Group) Science &
Technology Co., Ltd. (stock code: 000733), the issued shares of
which are listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange.

On 13 April 2022, Mr. Chai Hongjie, the Executive Director, ceased
to act as the chairman of the board of directors of Shenzhen
Waranty and remains a director of Shenzhen Waranty; and Mr. Bai
Pingyan has been appointed as chairman of the board of directors
and the general manager of Shenzhen Waranty.

On 19 April 2022, Mr. Chai Hongjie ceased to act as the Chairman
of the Board and a chairman of each of the executive committee,
the nomination committee, the share dealing committee and the
investment committee of the Board, and remains a member of each
of the executive committee and the share dealing committee of the
Board; and Mr. Bai Pingyan has taken up the role of the chairman
of the Board and the chairman of each of the executive committee,
the nomination committee, the share dealing committee and the
investment committee of the Board.

Directors’ emoluments

On 19 April 2022, with the recommendation from the
Remuneration Committee, the Board approved to increase the salary
of Mr. Huang Yu, the President of the Group and the Executive
Director, to HK$1,705,737 per annum with retrospective effect from
1 January 2022.

On 19 April 2022, with the recommendation from the
Remuneration Committee, the Board approved to increase the salary
of Mr. Jiang Chaowen, the Chief Executive Officer of the Company
and the Executive Director, to HK$1,705,737 per annum with
retrospective effect from 1 January 2022.

On 19 April 2022, with the recommendation from the
Remuneration Committee, the Board approved to increase the
service fee of each of the INEDs, namely Mr. Chan Sze Chung, Mr.
Zhang Ruibin and Mr. Zhang Junxi Jack, to HK$108,150 per annum
with retrospective effect from 1 January 2022.

Save as disclosed above, there are no other changes in the

information of Directors which are required to be disclosed pursuant
to rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules.
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Group entered into certain transactions with parties regarded as
“related parties” under the applicable accounting standards. Details
of these transactions are disclosed in note 52 to the consolidated
financial statements of this annual report. Certain related party
transactions as disclosed in note 52 to the consolidated financial
statements constitute connected transactions of the Company under
the Listing Rules and the Company had complied with all applicable
rules under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
The Construction Contracts

On 20 April 2021, Chongging Kangle (an indirect non-wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company), entered into a construction
contract and a supplemental agreement (collectively, the
“Construction Contracts”) in respect of the construction project of
high-tech products and chemical drugs production base located at
Changshou Economic and Technological Development District,
Chongging, the PRC (“Chongging Production Base Project”) with
Beijing Qingkong Zhongchuang Construction Co., Ltd.* (Jb /B
Al T2 ZAMRAF) ("Beijing Qingkong”), which is a fellow
subsidiary of the Company, pursuant to which Chongging Kangle
agreed to engage Beijing Qingkong as the general contractor to
carry out the construction works for the Chongging Production Base
Project at the contract price of RMB34,936,651.39 (subject to
adjustments).

Beijing Qingkong is an indirect non-wholly owned subsidiary of
Shenzhen Waranty, which is, through China Health, the controlling
Shareholder and thus a connected person of the Company.
Accordingly, Beijing Qingkong is an associate of Shenzhen Waranty
and a connected person of the Company and the transaction
contemplated under the Construction Contracts constitutes a
connected transaction of the Company and is subject to reporting,
announcement and independent Shareholders’ approval
requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Details of the transaction were set out in the announcement of the
Company dated 20 April 2021 and the circular of the Company
dated 20 May 2021.

The Company has complied with the disclosure requirements in
accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules in respect of the
above non-exempt connected transaction.
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The Shaanxi Construction Contract

On 12 July 2021, Shaanxi Unisplendour (an indirect non-wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company), entered into the Shaanxi
Construction Contract with Shanxi Industrial Equipment Installation
Group Co., Ltd.* (IUFAE TERFELEEBEABR 2 7)) (“Shanxi
Industrial”), pursuant to which Shaanxi Unisplendour agreed to
engage Shanxi Industrial as the general contractor to carry out the
construction works for the Shaanxi production base project at the
estimated contract price of RMB166,000,000 (subject to
adjustments).

Shanxi Industrial is a non-wholly owned subsidiary of Shanxi
Construction, which in turn is indirectly wholly-owned by Shanxi
Government Commission. As Shanxi Government Commission,
together with its subsidiaries, holds approximately 56.77% of the
entire issued share capital of the Company through China Health,
Shanxi Industrial is a connected person of the Company and the
transaction contemplated under the Shaanxi Construction Contract
constitutes a connected transaction of the Company and is subject
to reporting, announcement and Independent Shareholders’ approval
requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Details of the transaction were set out in the announcement of the
Company dated 12 July 2021 and the circular of the Company
dated 18 August 2021.

The Company has complied with the disclosure requirements in
accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules in respect of the
above non-exempt connected transaction.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The 2022 AGM is scheduled to be held on Friday, 10 June 2022.
For determining the entitlement to attend and vote at the 2022
AGM, the register of members of the Company will be closed from
Monday, 6 June 2022 to Friday, 10 June 2022 (both days inclusive),
during which period no transfer of Shares will be registered.

In order for the Shareholders to be eligible to attend and vote at
the 2022 AGM, all transfer forms accompanied by the relevant
share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s branch share
registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Secretaries Limited of Level 54,
Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’'s Road East, Hong Kong for
registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on Thursday, 2 June 2022.
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DONATIONS

The Group made charitable donations of approximately HK$0.2
million during the Year.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard of
corporate governance practices. Information on the corporate
governance practices adopted by the Company is set out in the
Corporate Governance Report on pages 65 to 87 of this annual
report.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information which is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors, the Company
has maintained the prescribed amount of public float during the
Year and up to the date of this report as required under the Listing
Rules.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

The Group’s financial statements for the years ended 31 December
2019, 2020 and the Year have been audited by BDO Limited who
will retire and, being eligible, offer itself for re-appointment. A
resolution to re-appoint BDO Limited and to authorise the Directors
to fix its remuneration will be proposed at the 2022 AGM.

On behalf of the Board

Chai Hongjie
Chairman

Hong Kong, 30 March 2022

* For identification purpose only
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Tel : +852 2218 8288
Fax: +852 2815 2239

25 Floor Wing On Centre
111 Connaught Road Central

www.bdo.com.hk Hong Kong
B35 1 +852 2218 8288 EHTEN1115E
{8H : +852 2815 2239 JKEH>2518

www.bdo.com.hk

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF TONGFANG KONTAFARMA
HOLDINGS LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Tongfang
Kontafarma Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as “the Group”) set out on pages 122 to
315, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2021, and the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated
statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated
financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at
31 December 2021, and of its consolidated financial performance
and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (the “HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in
compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs"”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the “AUDITOR’S
RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS” section of our report. We are
independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's “Code
of Ethics for Professional Accountants” (the “Code”), and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the
Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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AREXEE
Key audit matter

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.

BEMzER N AR ERRERER

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BREZHE  —BBREQXAARRAMBEBRSIIAR2ABFESR (RHEEHE]

Expected credit losses (“ECL") assessment of trade receivables, amount due from an associate and

amounts due from other related parties

BFIKEKESFE  —RBERRARRIREMERE IR RMAEHEBRKEZRR  —HBERARTRRIREMERTT

RZEHREEBENGISBERELFTH  DHNER

AR BHREEBRNEZEFEEE

Y BEEENGAYBRKIEBEEAN - BN EIREHRE Our procedures in relation to ECL assessment of trade

ERENFEHEEBRR SR IBHE M EEE M -

receivables, due from other related parties included:

We identified ECL assessment of trade

receivables, amount due from an associate and amounts

amount due from an associate and amounts due from
other related parties as a key audit matter due to the
significance of balances to the Group’s consolidated
financial position and the involvement of subjective
judgement and management estimates in evaluating the
ECL at the end of the reporting period.

RNZZE-_—F+-A=+—H ' EBEEENEKRZESFIE -
— M= AR R R R HE ARG RR (IR EEEERE)
2 Al 4 7139,946,000% JT ~ 145,803,000 7T &
94,608,000/ JT ©

As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s trade receivables,
amount due from an associate and amounts due from
other related parties, net of allowance for credit losses,
amounted to approximately HK$139,946,000,
HK$145,803,000 and HK$94,608,000 respectively.
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ERHEREN ZRE T (BIEERABEER)
T

Obtaining an understanding of management’s process
of assessing the impairment including the use of
provision matrix;

FBREOMPREIER EEREE S HERE
REBARLEBCHEEE  HEBER B EHE
R EBFEREAOE SR AE M E TR
Testing the integrity of information used by
management to develop the provision matrix and
individual assessment, on a sample basis, by
comparing individual items in the analysis with the
relevant sales agreements, sales invoices and historical
settlement record of debtors;
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EEEERE)VREREEER  EER T ENEBANBR
EENXLAELER R  SABHEUBERANETA
ETOE  RmEtRKE SRENTEREERRE - A&t
BRXRENEBYIRR 2 A ERFRANBRMF2E
SRR RBAEMEERMELAR - R>NRIZATIEILE
FHA K B 2 A R B A AR — RIIRR M bt —
Bl e R AR AR E BT RN FBREEEE -
The management of the Group estimates the amount of
ECL of (i) trade receivables based on provision matrix
through grouping of various debtors that have similar loss
patterns after considering historical default rates and
forward-looking information of respective debtors.
Estimated loss rates are based on historical observed
default rates over the expected life of the debtors and are
adjusted for forward-looking information; and (ii) amount
due from an associate and amounts due from other
related parties based on forward-looking information and
used appropriate models and a number of assumptions of
respective debtors.

TEHE B BB ZFFIBH NG M HRER W 5149 -
Details of the ECL are set out in note 49 to the
consolidated financial statements.

s TCHEEEGEER_-_T-_—F+-A=+—HZE
WEZRACEEEREBEARANEERAE - 8
RERENREEEPERKE ZHHRIASEE TRLEA
AR URERNREEERESERINTAEER
EEHE(W2EZBRTENERAELEER) :
Challenging management’s basis and judgement in
determining credit loss allowance of trade receivables
as at 31 December 2021, including the
reasonableness of management’s grouping of the
trade debtors into different categories in the
provision matrix, and the basis of estimated loss rates
applied in each category in the provision matrix (with
reference to historical default rates and forward-
looking information);

s BHEEEAETKR_-ZTE—F+ZA=t+—HzZ—
IR & N AR K R b BAES 77 RS B B RS P
RANEERHE  BF SESEETREREREBEZE
ERBERCERERN KEZFEBHAZERFIA
ERHREERENHEEERERABRNSEE &
BERPEEBR G TTERREINBEBERR 22
2
Challenging management’s basis and judgement in
determining credit loss allowance of amount due
from an associate and amounts due from other
related parties as at 31 December 2021, including
the appropriateness of the Group’s determination of
whether the debtors have significant increase in
credit risk, whether the receivables from these
debtors are credit-impaired and reasonableness of
significant assumptions, checking to estimation
methodology of ECL and checking the parameters to
external data sources;

e RABEEFNEZHEHRCEEEBNERIL K
Testing the accuracy of management’s calculation of
the expected credit losses; and

. FHE BB B MR W49z B EE BN G 2
BEEIE -
Evaluating the disclosures regarding the ECL
assessment in note 49 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter

REREFORBEHESNBREZARBRELERTXBMESRIREUA(REXK ) ESREE ZBE

fl

Impairment assessment of goodwill allocated to the operating fitness centres and providing consultation
services for fitness and health activities and operating the franchise business for royalty fee income

("Fitness business”)

HREEEZHEBRERY S REXHE  REMAKY RMABRIETREXG HERENGZEFEE

RTREXB HBRENGRESEREREE -

Our procedures in relation to the impairment assessment

We identified the impairment assessment of goodwill of goodwill allocated to the Fitness business included:

allocated to Fitness business as a key audit matter due to

the complexity and significant judgments involved in the e

management’s assessment process.

ﬂﬁﬂﬁw\ﬁﬁk%&%ﬁﬁ‘ﬂﬁﬂ&% ZEE(HBREAD R

BB B &5 546,358, OOO/E,TE)EA—ZE:_T_‘E—f— “A=1— o

HZERMAEAA138,4260008 T  EEEERETEE
f%ﬁi%ﬁﬂ%ﬁﬁaﬁgziﬁﬁﬁiﬁu(Uﬁ@?iﬁuﬁ
Z AT Y Bl & FE o

As disclosed in note 23 to the consolidated financial
statements, the carrying amount of such goodwill, net of
impairment loss of HK$46,358,000 recognised during the
year, was approximately HK$138,426,000 as at 31
December 2021. Determining impairment of goodwill
required the management’s estimation of the recoverable
amount of the cash generating unit (“CGU") to which the
goodwill has been allocated.
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B EEMER e REBI
Evaluating the competence, capabilities and
objectivity of the independent valuers;

w2z EEEZEMEBTEFERAIRRRS
MERRARE FEXHURRERELE 2R
R(BFEBEER AEHERANRLEERX)
Evaluating the assumptions underpinning the
discounted cash flow models, including growth
rates, budgeted sales and operating expenses
through assessing the reasonableness of forecasted
future cash flows by reference to the latest business
plan of the Group;
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Rt ReELELUAINE SR (EREEEREBE Y
HEMBYTECREENEE) R FRAZEFERRE
RURER R BAeELBUAEHERNEER
SXAREMBzRSRARRERR - HEEERHEZ
BB IR RS & K E I I M (i Et e

In estimating the recoverable amount of the CGU which
management determined based on value
calculation with assistance from independent valuers, key
assumptions used include discount rates, growth rates,
budgeted sales and operating expenses and their related
cash inflows and outflows patterns for the CGU.
Significant management judgments and estimates are
required to conclude the impairment loss of goodwill
recognised.

in use

o EBRMSHEBEEAEIURETEHLL
AEERMRAZHEXRERSIE
Assessing the reasonableness of the discount rates
applied in determining the value in use by
benchmarking against market data;

AT {4 B E

J RS TERI R R IR & B B AR [ B R A RV L

R THREFMEREZEZNRE  FERAIRKRES
mMERATRAER &
Evaluating the historical accuracy of the forecasted
future cash flows by comparing them to the actual
results in the current year on a sample basis and
understanding the causes of any significant
variances; and

o FIARAUBWMARMIE2IBHRE S X HEBRMERT
HH R °
Evaluating the disclosures regarding the impairment
assessment of goodwill of Fitness business in note
23 to the consolidated financial statements.
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REMEMAEAHERRL  HHFEWNE
HERE - RERFILBEEMAREEE -
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BERREZAREREFEGHMASRM
ZERBMBREENRRBELE ARG
BREREREAEEM AT RS B
Blx WBE BERAREFIARMREEGS
MBEBEMEBULECABEE  UEHEE
BRI FEERAGFRERMERCE
KRR -

ERHEGAMBHRRE - EQREZER
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OTHER INFORMATION IN THE ANNUAL REPORT

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the Company’s annual report, but does not include the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we
conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing
to report in this regard.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors of the Company determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of
the Company are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors of the Company either intend to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are also responsible for overseeing
the Group's financial reporting process. The audit committee of the
Company (the “Audit Committee”) assists the directors of the
Company in discharging their responsibilities in this regard.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. This report is made
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with the terms of our
engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

3 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and

the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors of the Company.
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o Conclude on the appropriateness of the Company’s directors’
use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on
the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or,
if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a
going concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate
threats or safeguards applied.
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From the matters communicated with the directors of the Company,
we determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period
and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters
in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

BDO Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Ng Wai Man
Practising Certificate Number PO5309

Hong Kong, 30 March 2022
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HE-Z-_—F+=A=1+—HIEFE For the year ended 31 December 2021

—B-—F —TTF
2021 2020
M 5 FHBT T
NOTES HK$’000 HK$'000
HEKEER Continuing operations
WA Revenue 5 961,089 1,009,134
HE KRS A A Cost of sales and services (478,200) (453,385)
EA Gross profit 482,889 555,749
H g A Other income 7 78,870 67,043
E Az & B 18 Other gains and losses 8 33,024 (32,524)
TEEEEEEKRATBE T2 Impairment losses under expected credit
EETE - HIBBREI$%  loss model, net of reversal 9 (26,075) (16,713)
DR HE B R Distribution and selling expenses (356,540) (367,045)
1THER Administrative expenses (132,686) (139,667)
Hith & A Other expenses (45,633) (35,705)
A& B Finance costs 10 (34,175) (31,435)
B 7% A1 E5 18 Loss before taxation (326) (297)
518 Taxation 12 (4,227) (19,788)
SFECEEBANFERIE  Loss for the year from continuing
operations 13 (4,553) (20,085)
ERIEREER Discontinued operation
DR IFREEFEAREEZEIR Loss for the year from discontinued
operation 14 = (195,797)
REEEE Loss for the year (4,553) (215,882)
Hh 2wz () : Other comprehensive income
(expense):
G T EEFH D HEZIE7 Ak Item that will not be reclassified
ZIHEE - subsequently to profit or loss:
HMEYEBEE L Exchange difference arising on
bE X, =R translation to presentation currency 16,871 101,834
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

HE-Z-_—F+=A=1+—HIEFE For the year ended 31 December 2021

—B-—F —T-THF
2021 2020
TET FHET
HK$°000 HK$'000
BERTEEEF B E 82 Bk B H ©  Item that may be reclassified subsequently
to profit or loss:
RGN EBEF ZERZH Exchange difference arising on
translation of foreign operations 2,936 (404)
REEZHMDE W e - HBRTIE Other comprehensive income for the year,
net of tax 19,807 101,430
AEErEKE (L) 85 Total comprehensive income (expense)
for the year 15,254 (114,452)
RNEZ (E18) m M- T (Loss) profit for the year attributable to:
ZAN/NE )35 Owners of the Company
— REFEREE — from continuing operations (15,048) (42,391)
— REERIEREHEE — from discontinued operation — (224,773)
(15,048) (267,164)
FEF5E AR 2 Non-controlling interests
— RERKEREER — from continuing operations 10,495 22,306
— REERIERKE B — from discontinued operation — 28,976
10,495 51,282
RNEEEERTE Total loss for the year (4,553) (215,882)
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HE-Z-_—F+=A=1+—HIEFE For the year ended 31 December 2021

—B-—F —TTF
2021 2020
B 5 FHET T T
NOTE HK$'000 HK$'000
RNEERHEPEE (ZH) Total comprehensive income (expense)
HERE(GTT : for the year attributable to:
. WANEI 1 — Owners of the Company 217 (198,385)
— R — Non-controlling interests 15,037 83,933
15,254 (114,452)
AL Al
FREE Loss per share 15 HK cent HK cent
AR Basic
— REFEREET — from continuing operations (0.27) (0.76)
— REERIEEEFER — from discontinued operation — (4.03)
(0.27) (4.79)
e Diluted
— REFELEER — from continuing operations (0.27) (0.76)
— REERIELEFER — from discontinued operation — (4.03)
(0.27) (4.79)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

RZT=—F+=H=+—H At 31 December 2021

—B-—F —T-THF
2021 2020
B 5 FET T T
NOTES HK$’000 HK$'000
EREBEE Non-current assets
L ] Property, plant and equipment 17 520,681 358,518
EREEE Right-of-use assets 18 589,242 629,125
TR RS Deposit for land use right 19 — 15,471
KEWHE Investment properties 20 4,704 4,740
EES Goodwill 21 358,782 404,265
BIEE Intangible assets 22 277,795 321,213
R—EBE Rz E= Interest in an associate 24 — —
RIERIBE &= Deferred tax assets 41 232 190
Helke Rental deposits 25,747 24,178
B AR Contract costs 28 908 1,784
1,778,091 1,759,484
REEE Current assets
LY EE Biological assets 25 17,044 12,846
EAS Inventories 26 112,146 89,960
W B 5 3 IA Trade receivables 27 139,946 177,124
CRDE:N Contract costs 28 5,048 5,958
Hib W HIE ~ 12 Other receivables, deposits and
R TE T FRIE prepayments 29 75,632 56,809
FHBBEEZRAFEEE  Financial assets at fair value through profit
ZEREE or loss 30 — 8,501
Hihig & Other investment 30 16,000 20,473
R R A TR R Amounts due from intermediate holding
companies 51 290 s
— B & A R R 3K Amount due from an associate 51 145,803 111,108
E B 5 KRR Amounts due from other related parties 52(c) 94,608 134,202
PR HISR 1T Restricted bank deposits 31 6,205 —
BeNREeEFEEY Cash and cash equivalents 31 167,962 165,819
780,684 782,800
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RZZ=Z—F+=FA=+—H At 31 December 2021

—B-—F —TTHF
2021 2020
B 5 FET T T
NOTES HK$’000 HK$'000
RBEE Current liabilities
ENE ZHIERRE Trade and bills payables 32 39,269 59,395
HEEMFEREWRIZES  Other payables and deposits received 33 119,905 123,272
R—EFRNIERAFFIE  Amount due to an intermediate holding
company 51 2,446 33,738
R E fth B8 Bk 75 SRR Amounts due to other related parties 52(c) 113,035 466
MIBRE Tax liabilities 28,089 22,235
—FRNE B ZRITEE Bank borrowings due within one year 34 226,705 167,627
IR IE WA Deferred income 35 242 —
EHEaE Contract liabilities 36 92,995 108,709
HEAE Lease liabilities 43 79,879 117,040
702,565 632,482
MEEESEE Net current assets 78,119 150,318
HBEERABERE Total assets less current liabilities 1,856,210 1,909,802
B2 R & Capital and reserves
% < Share capital 37 11,177 11,177
R 1 i (B K & s Share premium and reserves 40 1,180,841 1,203,009
RNR A IRER B G Equity attributable to owners
of the Company 1,192,018 1,214,186
FEE AR FE o= Non-controlling interests 145,766 139,571
B Total equity 1,337,784 1,353,757
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RZT=—F+=H=+—H At 31 December 2021

—B-—F —T-THF
2021 2020
Mo aE FET FAT
NOTES HK$’000 HK$'000

ERBEE Non-current liabilities
—FRIBZRITEE Bank borrowings due after one year 34 17,097 29,150
EET IR Deferred taxation 41 67,257 76,163
18 JR B AN B Provision for reinstatement cost 42 14,252 13,254
PRI YA Deferred income 35 14,550 —
HEARE Lease liabilities 43 405,270 437,478
518,426 556,045
1,856,210 1,909,802

FIN2BEEFICBELHREVBHRERS The consolidated financial statements on pages 122 to 315 were

T F=ZRA=tHEESSHEREETE approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 30
WHTIEERREZE March 2022 and were signed on its behalf by:
KRR BEX
Chai Hongjie Jiang Chaowen
EZE BEF
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
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mERBEBER
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

HE_Z-_—F+=A=1+—HIEFE For the year ended 31 December 2021

AAARREL
Attributable to the owners of the Company

[

Share
capital
T
HK$'000

Share
premium
TAL
HK$'000

Ex&E

Translation

reserve
T
HK$'000

Al

Other
reserves
T
HK$'000

(P zE40(i)
(note 40(ii))

REE

Retained
profits
T
HK$'000

Total
TAL
HK$'000

RS

Non-
controlling
interests
T
HK$'000

R=F-%4-A-8

REE (BiR)EH

FEEEMZERS
(A%):

— HBRZIEREL
ZERER

— ABENRHES
ZEAER

At 1 January 2020

(Loss) profit for the year

Other comprehensive income (expenses)

for the year:

— Exchange difference arising
on translation to presentation
currency

— Exchange difference arising
on translation of foreign operations
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1,523,949

(65,066)

(76,441)

369,502
(267,164)

1412122
(267,164)

70,095

(1316)

508,926
51,282

31739

912

AERRE(XH)
b
HREAMRE

ERREREIRHARR IR

BARZ B

REA—ZERRRRLE

FEREE TR

AEFHERER 2 RS

L EMBAF (Hidda)

Total comprehensive (expense) income
for the year

Transfer to other reserve

Recognition of equity-settled share-based
payments

Share options lapsed

Deemed contribution from
a non-controlling shareholder

Capital injection from non-controlling
interests

Dividend distribution to non-controlling
interests

Disposal of subsidiaries (note 44(a))

11337

(267,164)
(11,337)

17,544

83,933

8217

23303
(438,182)

RZF-BF+-A=1-B

At 31 December 2020

7

1,523,949

3713

(65,104)

108,545

1,214,186

139,571
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—F+=A=+—HIFE For the year ended 31 December 2021

RRARRES
Attributable to the owners of the Company
HRHA
ARORBT EWzER
B ROEE #EE2RH RRGEE  EXBE  BABE  AARE  HtRE REER B8 FERER RRAE
Shares held Employee
for share  share-based Non-
Share Share award compensation  Translation Spedial Capital Other Retained controlling Total
capital premium scheme reserve reserve reserve reserve reserves profits Total interests equity
FiEn TEn FiEn FiEn FiEn TEn FiEn FiEn FiEn TEn FiEn T
HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
(GEZION (B 3E40(i))
(note 40(i)) (note 40(ii))
W=%=-5-A-B At 1 January 2021 1177 1,523,949 (4,854) 1,038 37113 (392,735) 28,457 (65,104) 108,545 1,214,186 139571 1,353,757
AEE (BR)EH (Loss) profit for the year - = = = = = = - (15049) (15,048) 10495 (4553)
AEEEM2ERS (%) Other comprehensive income (expenses)
for the year:
—HEARZIIERELZEREE — bichange difference arising
on translation to presentation
currency = = = = 13,091 = = = = 13,091 3,780 16,871
— REENEBELZEREE  — Bxchange difference arising
on translation of foreign operations = = = = 2174 = = = = 2,174 762 2,936
FEERE (XL haLE Total comprehensive (expense) income
for the year = = = = 15,265 = = = (15,048) 217 15,037 15,254
BARZ BRE Share options lapsed - - - (1,038) - - - - 1,038 - - -
AR TFEERERZRE Dividend distribution to non-controlling
interests = = = - = = - - - - (14,669)  (14,669)
HE—RIBAA (HiEdb) Disposal of a subsidiary (note 44(b)) = = = = = = = - - - 16,767 16,767
RN B 2 MM ER Acquisition of additional interest
(i sE40(i) in a subsidiary (note 40(ii)) - - - - - - - (22,385) - (22,385) (10,940)  (33325)
RZBZ-FtZA=1-8 At 31 December 2021 1177 1,523,949 (4,854) 5 18,978 (392,735) 28,457 (87,489) 94,535 1,192,018 145,766 1,337,784
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—B-—F —TTF
2021 2020
FHBT T
HK$’000 HK$'000
EEXEK OPERATING ACTIVITIES
REFBCEEB 2 Loss before taxation from continuing operations

B 7% il 5 18 (326) (297)
REERIEREEK 2 Loss before taxation from discontinued operation

B 251 il 5 18 — (157,209)

B % Al & 18 Loss before taxation (326) (157,506)
B TFIIEE fEE 2 % - Adjustments for:
BE T E Amortisation and depreciation 145,133 145,783
W BENEEZFE  Impairment loss on property, plant and

&5 18 equipment — 71,751
AR R EEE Impairment losses on goodwill 46,358 31,191
SEMEERERIE - H% Impairment losses on financial assets, net of

BO45E reversal 26,075 7,463
HE—MWMEAR, %M  (Gain) loss on disposal of a subsidiary/subsidiaries

MEAR (W) BE (51,415) 122,522
X 8 Bh K2 4 B Government grant and subsidy (20) (1,130)
A& AR Finance costs 34,175 149,609
FEWA Interest income (3,353) (5,188)
HE RS E - BB & Net loss on disposal and write-off of property,

B2 BRI plant and equipment 1,188 183
WS EF EE 2 BB %% Net loss on write-off of intangible assets — 6,832
HEBRz W Gain on lease modification (7,841) —
FRIBEEIEAFEEE  Fair value gains on financial assets at fair value

ZEMEEZATE through profit or loss

Wz (15,243) (2,171)
HREE AR M AER 2 Equity-settled share-based payments

(ES — 53
17 & MUR Write-down of inventories — 522
EYEEZ AT ERE Fair value gain on biological assets (8,540) (5,361)
COVID-19 HEH S ER COVID-19-related rent concessions (29,169) —
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—E-—F —T-THF
2021 2020
FHET T T
HK$’000 HK$'000
LEESBBE 2B E Operating cash inflow before movements in working
mA capital 137,022 364,553
BFE (g m)md (Increase) decrease in inventories (19,394) 474
EYEERD Decrease in biological assets 4,401 3,704
FEUE BB A (B 1)  Decrease (increase) in trade receivables 36,332 (276,225)
H i U RIE & M BN  (Increase) decrease in other receivables, deposits and
FRIE (3 a0) Rk 2> prepayments (18,251) 35,629
& KK AR Decrease in contract costs 1,722 424
— AT Bt & 2 ) R SR3E Increase in amount due from an associate (34,553) (43,580)
ABHEECKD) BN (Decrease) increase in contract liabilities (17,013) 55,980
JENZESRERZER Y Decrease in trade and bills payables (21,450) (93,412)
HiEMRE LB WIES  (Decrease) increase in other payables and deposits
ORk4>) 1800 received (1,441) 223,476
i A YT A 38 0 Increase in deferred income 14,590 —
BIRRAEEL IR L)  Increase (decrease) in provision for reinstatement
cost 1,117 (1,733)
CEELECES Cash generated from operations 83,082 269,290
2 TS Hi Income tax paid (8,014) (62,357)
EEXKELE2EHESEHE  NET CASH GENERATED
FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 75,068 206,933
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—E-—F —ZT_TF
2021 2020
TET T T
HK$’000 HK$'000
REXH INVESTING ACTIVITIES
HEWE  BMENKRMEZ  Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and
FriS 508 equipment 274 31,145
RELHGERET 2 Proceeds from refund of deposit for land use right
PRAS 3RIE 15,471 —
LM RETHRE & Placement of deposit for land use right — (14,689)
BEYE HENMKE Purchase of property, plant and equipment (67,193) (155,908)
FREET& Placement of rental deposits (1,569) (9,772)
NEEFEE Addition of intangible assets (23,774) (10,306)
NEFEAEEE Addition of right of use assets (33,416) —
H @A HE T B K Repayment from other related parties — 93,711
& UL E SRR SR Advance of loan receivables — (5,271,203)
ERT—HEE AR Loan to an associate (14,260) —
BEEFBIERRIZATER Purchase of financial assets at fair value through
BremEE profit or loss — (232,060)
BEEMTE Purchase of other investment (16,000) (20,473)
FEREWE R ZFTSFIE  Proceeds from redemption of loan receivables — 5,214,593
BB BIE R AT (EE Proceeds from redemption of financial assets
B2oREEZEFKIE  at fair value through profit or loss 23,744 219,478
FERIHEMIEE ZATSFIE  Proceeds from redemption of other investment 20,468 20,000
FEE P R ZRHIRTT  Placement of pledged and restricted bank deposits
2N (6,205) (45,185)
RIBEEHRRITER Withdrawal of pledged bank deposits — 56,314
HE—BWEB AR, %M  Net cash inflow (outflow) on disposal
WBRARMEELE RS of a subsidiary/subsidiaries
WA OR ) F 58 80,397 (86,953)
PEERERZABHKIE  Proceeds from novation of novated loans 42,348 —
B U F B Interest received 2,958 5,184
REXBESE (FTA) 2B € NET CASH GENERATED FROM (USED IN)
HE INVESTING ACTIVITIES 23,243 (206,124)
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—B-—F —EETF
2021 2020
FET FAT
HK$’000 HK$'000
& FINANCING ACTIVITIES
EAFLE Interest paid (32,790) (38,276)
%ﬂ%ﬁﬁ%% New bank borrowings raised 216,490 382,955
BRETEE Repayments of bank borrowings (174,001) (166,974)
EEHEBE2AE£ES  Repayment of principal portion of lease liabilities (41,645) (64,004)
B IR R 2 2 IR B Dividends paid to non-controlling interests (14,669) (20,365)
RE—MFMNZER/RAAZ  Advance from an intermediate holding company
IR 39,200 50,685
m— AR A RER Repayment to an intermediate holding company (72,874) (117,760)
PR B H i A B 5 K Advance from other related parties 317 —
m) £ fth B B 75 38 3K Repayment to other related parties (19,830) (15,377)
REEERBRRIEE Investment from non-controlling shareholder — 8,217
MEXK (FA)ELRE  NET CASH (USED IN) GENERATED FROM
FE FINANCING ACTIVITIES (99,802) 19,101
HERBEELEE YW (M4)  NET (DECREASE) INCREASE IN CASH AND
EhnFEE CASH EQUIVALENTS (1,491) 19,910
FHA2RERBEESEEY  CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING
OF YEAR 165,819 148,298
[EXREH & Effect of foreign exchange rate changes 3,634 (2,389)
FERZESRRELEEY  CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT END OF YEAR 167,962 165,819
l Represented by
RITHEBRRIRS Bank balances and cash 167,962 165,819
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BAKBEZHBER 2D

GENERAL INFORMATION

Tongfang Kontafarma Holdings Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an exempted company
with limited liability on 21 March 2011 under the Companies
Law, Chapter. 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and
revised) of the Cayman Islands. The shares of the Company
have been listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) since 18 January 2012. Its
substantial shareholder is China Health Management
Investment Limited, a private limited company which was
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands. Its ultimate beneficial
owner is State-owned Assets Supervision and Administration
Commission of Shan Xi Provincial Government* (L& AR
BFTREEELEEEEEZEE) of the People’s Republic of
China (the “PRC"). The address of the registered office and
principal place of business of the Company are disclosed in
the corporate information to the annual report.

The Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as
the “Group”) are principally engaged in the manufacturing
and sales of prescription drugs and laboratory related products
in the PRC and the operation of fitness centres and provision
of consultation services for fitness and health activities and
operating of the franchise business for royalty fee income. The
Group was also engaged in the manufacturing and sales of
cement and clinker and trading of cement which was
discontinued in prior year as disclosed in note 14. The
Company acts as an investment holding company. The
principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 56.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollar (“HK$"”) which is different from the functional
currency of the Company, Renminbi (“RMB”), as the directors
of the Company consider that HK$ will facilitate analysis of
the financial information of the Group.
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2.

HE-Z-_—F+=A=1+—HIEFE For the year ended 31 December 2021

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")

Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year

In the current year, the Group has applied the following
amendments to HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA") for the first time,
which are mandatorily effective for the annual period
beginning on or after 1 January 2021 for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements:

Amendments to HKFRS
9, Hong Kong
Accounting Standard
("HKAS™) 39, HKFRS 7,
HKFRS 4 and HKFRS
16

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform
— Phase 2

In addition, the Group has early applied the Amendment to
HKFRS 16 COVID-19-Related Rent Concessions beyond
30 June 2021.

In addition, the Group applied the agenda decision of the IFRS
Interpretations Committee (the “Committee”) of the
International Accounting Standards Board issued in June 2021
which clarified the costs an entity should include as
"estimated costs necessary to make the sale” when
determining the net realisable value of inventories.

Except as described below, the application of the amendments
to HKFRSs in the current year had no material impact on the
Group’s financial positions and performance for the current
and prior years and/or on the disclosures set out in these
consolidated financial statements.
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2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs"”) (CONTINUED)

2.1 Impacts on early application of

Amendment of HKFRS 16
COVID-19-Related Rent Concessions
beyond 30 June 2021

The Group has early applied the amendment in the
current year. The amendment extends the availability of
the practical expedient in paragraph 46A of HKFRS 16
Leases ("HKFRS 16") by one year so that the practical
expedient applies to rent concessions for which any
reduction in lease payments affects only payments
originally due on or before 30 June 2022, provided the
other conditions for applying the practical expedient are
met.

The application has had no impact to the opening
retained profits at 1 January 2021. During the vyear,
certain lessors agreed to waive/reduce lease payments
on several leases in the Group’s fitness centres in
Singapore beyond 30 June 2021. The Group has
derecognised the part of lease liabilities that have been
extinguished resulting in a decrease in lease liabilities of
HK$29,169,000, which have been recognised as variable
lease payments in “other income” in profit or loss for
the current year.
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HE-Z-_—F+=A=1+—HIEFE For the year ended 31 December 2021

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs"”) (CONTINUED)

2.2 Impacts on application of the agenda
decision of the Committee — Cost
necessary to sell inventories (HKAS 2
Inventories)

In June 2021, the Committee, through its agenda
decision, clarified the costs an entity should include as
“estimated costs necessary to make the sale” when
determining the net realisable value of inventories. In
particular, whether such costs should be limited to those
that are incremental to the sale. The Committee
concluded that the estimated costs necessary to make
the sale should not be limited to those that are
incremental but should also include costs that an entity
must incur to sell its inventories including those that are
not incremental to a particular sale.

The Group's accounting policy prior to the Committee’s
agenda decision was to determine the net realisable
value of inventories taking into consideration incremental
costs only. Upon application of the Committee’s agenda
decision, the Group changed its accounting policy to
determine the net realisable value of inventories taking
into consideration both incremental costs and other cost
necessary to sell inventories. The new accounting policy
has been applied retrospectively.

The application of the Committee’s agenda decision has

had no material impact on the Group’s financial
positions and performance.
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—F+=ZA=+—HIFE For the year ended 31 December 2021

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs"”) (CONTINUED)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but

not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and
amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet

effective:

HKFRS 17

Amendments to HKFRS 3

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 1
and HKFRS Practice
Statement 2

Amendments to HKAS 8

Amendments to HKAS 12

Amendments to HKAS 16

Amendments to HKAS 37

Amendments to HKFRSs

Insurance Contracts and related
Amendments?
Reference to Conceptual Framework'

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture?

Classification of Liabilities as Current
or Non-current and related
amendments to Hong Kong
Interpretation 5 (2020)?

Disclosure of Accounting Policies?

Definition of Accounting Estimates?

Deferred Tax related to Assets and
Liabilities arising from a Single
Transaction?

Property, Plant and Equipment
— Proceeds before Intended Use'

Onerous Contracts — Cost of
Fulfilling a Contract'

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2018-2020 cycle'

L Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

2022

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2023

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be
determined
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HE-Z-_—F+=A=1+—HIEFE For the year ended 31 December 2021

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs"”) (CONTINUED)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but
not yet effective (Continued)

Except for the new and amendments to HKFRSs mentioned
below, the directors of the Company anticipate that the
application of all other new and amendments to HKFRSs will
have no material impact on the consolidated financial
statements in the foreseeable future.

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual
Framework

The amendments:

o update a reference in HKFRS 3 Business Combinations so
that it refers to the Conceptual Framework for Financial
Reporting 2018 issued in June 2018 (the “Conceptual
Framework”) instead of Framework for the Preparation
and Presentation of Financial Statements (replaced by the
Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting 2010
issued in October 2010);

. add a requirement that, for transactions and other events
within the scope of HKAS 37 Provisions, Contingent
Liabilities and Contingent Assets or HK(IFRIC)-Int 21
Levies, an acquirer applies HKAS 37 or HK(IFRIC)-Int 21
instead of the Conceptual Framework to identify the
liabilities it has assumed in a business combination; and

° add an explicit statement that an acquirer does not
recognise contingent assets acquired in a business
combination.

The Group will apply the amendments prospectively to
business combinations for which the date of acquisition is on
or after the beginning of the first annual period beginning on
or after 1 January 2022.
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—F+=ZA=+—HIFE For the year ended 31 December 2021

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs"”) (CONTINUED)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but
not yet effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current and related amendments to Hong
Kong Interpretation 5 (2020)

The amendments provide clarification and additional guidance
on the assessment of right to defer settlement for at least
twelve months from reporting date for classification of
liabilities as current or non-current, which:

3 specify that the classification of liabilities as current or
non-current should be based on rights that are in
existence at the end of the reporting period.
Specifically, the amendments clarify that:

(i) the classification should not be affected by
management intentions or expectations to settle
the liability within 12 months; and

(i) if the right is conditional on the compliance with
covenants, the right exists if the conditions are
met at the end of the reporting period, even if the
lender does not test compliance until a later date;
and

3 clarify that if a liability has terms that could, at the option
of the counterparty, result in its settlement by the
transfer of the entity’s own equity instruments, these
terms do not affect its classification as current or
non-current only if the entity recognises the option
separately as an equity instrument applying HKAS 32
Financial Instruments. Presentation.

In addition, Hong Kong Interpretation 5 was revised as a
consequence of the Amendments to HKAS 1 to align the
corresponding wordings with no change in conclusion.
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HE-Z-_—F+=A=1+—HIEFE For the year ended 31 December 2021

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs"”) (CONTINUED)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but
not yet effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current and related amendments to Hong
Kong Interpretation 5 (2020) (Continued)

Based on the Group’s outstanding liabilities as at
31 December 2021, and the related terms and conditions
stipulated in the agreements between the Group and the
relevant lenders, the application of the amendments will not
result in reclassification of the Group’s liabilities.

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKFRS Practice Statement 2
Disclosure of Accounting Policies

HKAS 1 is amended to replace all instances of the term
“significant accounting policies” with “material accounting
policy information”. Accounting policy information is material
if, when considered together with other information included
in an entity’s financial statements, it can reasonably be
expected to influence decisions that the primary users of
general purpose financial statements make on the basis of
those financial statements.

The amendments also clarify that accounting policy
information may be material because of the nature of the
related transactions, other events or conditions, even if the
amounts are immaterial. However, not all accounting policy
information relating to material transactions, other events or
conditions is itself material. If an entity chooses to disclose
immaterial accounting policy information, such information
must not obscure material accounting policy information.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs"”) (CONTINUED)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but
not yet effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKFRS Practice Statement 2
Disclosure of Accounting Policies (Continued)

HKFRS Practice Statement 2 Making Materiality Judgements
(the “Practice Statement”) is also amended to illustrate how
an entity applies the “four-step materiality process” to
accounting policy disclosures and to judge whether
information about an accounting policy is material to its
financial statements. Guidance and examples are added to the
Practice Statement.

The application of the amendments is not expected to have
significant impact on the financial position or performance of
the Group but may affect the disclosures of the Group’s
significant accounting policies. The impacts of application, if
any, will be disclosed in the Group’s future consolidated
financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 8 Definition of Accounting
Estimates

The amendments define accounting estimates as “monetary
amounts in financial statements that are subject to
measurement uncertainty”. An accounting policy may require
items in financial statements to be measured in a way that
involves measurement uncertainty — that is, the accounting
policy may require such items to be measured at monetary
amounts that cannot be observed directly and must instead be
estimated. In such a case, an entity develops an accounting
estimate to achieve the objective set out by the accounting
policy. Developing accounting estimates involves the use of
judgements or assumptions based on the latest available,
reliable information.

In addition, the concept of changes in accounting estimates in
HKAS 8 is retained with additional clarifications.

The application of the amendments is not expected to have
significant impact on the Group’s consolidated financial
statements.
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HE-Z-_—F+=A=1+—HIEFE For the year ended 31 December 2021

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs"”) (CONTINUED)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but
not yet effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax related to Assets
and Liabilities arising from a Single Transaction

The amendments narrow the scope of the recognition
exemption of deferred tax liabilities and deferred tax assets in
paragraphs 15 and 24 of HKAS 12 /ncome Taxes so that it no
longer applies to transactions that, on initial recognition, give
rise to equal taxable and deductible temporary differences.

The amendments are effective for annual reporting periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2023, with early application
permitted. The Group is still in the process of assessing the
full impact of the application of the amendments.

Amendments to HKAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment
— Proceeds before Intended Use

The amendments specify that the costs of any item that were
produced while bringing an item of property, plant and
equipment to the location and condition necessary for it to be
capable of operating in the manner intended by management
(such as samples produced when testing whether the relevant
property, plant and equipment is functioning properly) and the
proceeds from selling such items should be recognised and
measured in the profit or loss in accordance with applicable
standards. The cost of the items are measured in accordance
with HKAS 2 /nventories.

The application of the amendments is not expected to have

significant impact on the financial position and performance
of the Group.
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—F+=ZA=+—HIFE For the year ended 31 December 2021

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs"”) (CONTINUED)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but
not yet effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 37 Onerous Contracts — Cost of
Fulfilling a Contract

The amendments specify that, when an entity assesses
whether a contract is onerous in accordance with HKAS 37
Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets, the
unavoidable costs under the contract should reflect the least
net cost of exiting from the contract, which is the lower of
the cost of fulfilling it and any compensation or penalties
arising from failure to fulfil it. Costs of fulfilling the contract
include incremental costs and an allocation of other costs that
relate directly to fulfilling contracts (for example, an allocation
of the depreciation charge for an item of property, plant and
equipment used in fulfilling the contract).

The amendments are applicable to contracts for which the
Group has not yet fulfilled all its obligations as at the date of
initial application.

The application of the amendments is not expected to have
significant impact on the financial position and performance
of the Group.
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HE-Z-_—F+=A=1+—HIEFE For the year ended 31 December 2021

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs"”) (CONTINUED)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but
not yet effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2018-2020 cycle

The annual improvements make amendments to the following
standards.

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

The amendment clarifies that for the purpose of assessing
whether modification of terms of original financial liability
constitutes substantial modification under the “10 per cent”
test, a borrower includes only fees paid or received between
the borrower and the lender, including fees paid or received
by either the borrower or the lender on the other’s behalf.

HKFRS 16 Leases

The amendment to lllustrative Example 13 accompanying
HKFRS 16 removes from the example the illustration of
reimbursement relating to leasehold improvements by the
lessor in order to remove any potential confusion.

HKAS 41 Agriculture

The amendment ensures consistency with the requirements in
HKFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement by removing the
requirement in paragraph 22 of HKAS 41 to exclude taxation
cash flows when measuring the fair value of a biological asset
using a present value technique.

The application of the amendments is not expected to have

significant impact on the financial position and performance
of the Group.
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—F+=ZA=+—HIFE For the year ended 31 December 2021

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In addition,
the consolidated financial statements include applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange (“Listing Rules”) and by the
Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong
Kong).

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
the historical cost basis except for certain financial instruments
and biological assets that are measured at fair values and fair
value less costs to sell, as appropriate, at the end of each
reporting period as explained in the accounting policies set
out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants in the principal (or most advantageous)
market at the measurement date, regardless of whether that
price is directly observable or estimated using another
valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or
a liability, the Group takes into account the characteristics of
the asset or liability if market participants would take those
characteristics into account when pricing the asset or liability
at the measurement date. Fair value for measurement and/or
disclosure purposes in these consolidated financial statements
is determined on such a basis, except for share-based
payment transactions that are within the scope of HKFRS 2
Share-based Payment, leasing transactions that are accounted
for in accordance with HKFRS 16, and measurements that
have some similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such
as net realisable value in HKAS 2 /nventories or value in use in
HKAS 36 Impairment of Assets.
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HE-Z-_—F+=A=1+—HIEFE For the year ended 31 December 2021

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the
asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in
the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available
to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant
observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable
inputs. Specifically, the Group categorised the fair value
measurements into three levels, based on the characteristics of
inputs, as follows:

o Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity
can access at the measurement date;

o Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

o Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group determines
whether transfer occur between levels of the fair value
hierarchy for assets and liabilities which are measured at fair
value on recurring basis by reviewing their respective fair value
measurement.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.
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—F+=ZA=+—HIFE For the year ended 31 December 2021

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the
Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the
Company:

. has power over the investee;

. is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

o has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one
or more of the three elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of
a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income from the date the Group gains
control until the date when the Group ceases to control the
subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income of
subsidiaries are attributed to the owners of the Company and
to the non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income
of subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Company
and to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the
non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies in
line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of
the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.
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HE-Z-_—F+=A=1+—HIEFE For the year ended 31 December 2021

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented
separately from the Group’s equity therein, which represent
present ownership interests entitling their holders to a
proportionate share of net assets of the relevant subsidiaries
upon liquidation.

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in
existing subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s interests in existing subsidiaries that
do not result in the Group losing control over the subsidiaries
are accounted for as equity transactions. The carrying amounts
of the Group’s relevant components of equity and the
non-controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in
their relative interests in the subsidiaries, including
re-attribution of relevant reserves between the Group and the
non-controlling interests according to the Group’s and the
non-controlling interests’ proportionate interests.

Any difference between the amount by which the
non-controlling interests are adjusted, and the fair value of the
consideration paid or received is recognised directly in equity
and attributed to owners of the Company.
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—F+=ZA=+—HIFE For the year ended 31 December 2021

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in
existing subsidiaries (Continued)

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the assets
(including any goodwill) and liabilities of that subsidiary at
their carrying amounts at the date when control is lost and
non-controlling interests in the former subsidiary at the date
when control is lost (including any components of other
comprehensive income attributable to them) (if any) are
derecognised. A gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss and
is calculated as the difference between (i) the aggregate of
the fair value of the consideration received and the fair value
of any retained interest, with any resulting difference being
recognised as a gain or loss in profit or loss attributable to
the Group and (i) the carrying amount of the assets
(including goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary
attributable to the owners of the Company. All amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income in
relation to that subsidiary are accounted for as if the Group
had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities of the
subsidiary (i.e. reclassified to profit or loss or transferred to
another category of equity as specified/permitted by applicable
HKFRSs). The fair value of any investment retained in the
former subsidiary at the date when control is lost is regarded
as the fair value on initial recognition for subsequent
accounting under HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments or, when
applicable, the cost on initial recognition of an investment in
an associate or a joint venture.
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HE-Z-_—F+=A=1+—HIEFE For the year ended 31 December 2021

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Business combinations or asset acquisitions
Optional concentration test

The Group can elect to apply an optional concentration test,
on a transaction-by-transaction basis, that permits a simplified
assessment of whether an acquired set of activities and assets
is not a business. The concentration test is met if substantially
all of the fair value of the gross assets acquired is
concentrated in a single identifiable asset or group of similar
identifiable assets. The gross assets under assessment exclude
cash and cash equivalents, deferred tax assets, and goodwill
resulting from the effects of deferred tax liabilities. If the
concentration test is met, the set of activities and assets is
determined not to be a business and no further assessment is
needed.

Asset acquisitions

When the Group acquires a group of assets and liabilities that
do not constitute a business, the Group identifies and
recognises the individual identifiable assets acquired and
liabilities assumed by allocating the purchase price first to
financial assets/financial liabilities at the respective fair values,
the remaining balance of the purchase price is then allocated
to the other identifiable assets and liabilities on the basis of
their relative fair values at the date of purchase. Such a
transaction does not give rise to goodwill or bargain purchase
gain.

151



FAFEREXEEGRLT TONGFANG KONTAFARMA HOLDINGS LIMITED

rE SR
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BE--

=

152

EEETHE(H)
EBastREEWSE (B)

EBE

WIB X B RABEEARR - RER S B
hEEIRERATEE  MATE
DIEAKERMEREE  ARERKK
BIREEAFELERBERAEE AR
Y15 KR T 42 o) A P B Z%$%¥

WEBM A FEAMAE - BRAKE
Z%$*&M§$%Eﬁm$ﬁmo

B TR G - FTREE 2 A #5IE
ERFEEZBBUVBERAHREREZZ)
HBEHRXZELE(R_T—TFTAK
HBEREHIELFDR) TEERE
BZER °

RURE B HE - FTUCRE m] BRI B B P
EREDNZAFERR K TIIHEBEK
S

s EREMBEEXABLREESR
ﬂﬁ%ﬁfﬁZé?iE%%%Hﬁz
REBEFTERE 125075
LEBEHEANEIRIESF
FIVER T E

o BHBWBHURMBER 2R
PR AR B RSB R TT A
Bty BERE 2 N RE PERT L Z A
B RERINRZHBEHEZE
EekEm T A R R HRR
BEMBREEASE 2% LR
RERZ (T XEFHE)

H-

—F+=ZA=+—HIFE For the year ended 31 December 2021

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Business combinations or asset acquisitions
(Continued)

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a business
combination is measured at fair value, which is calculated as
the sum of the acquisition-date fair values of the assets
transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred by the Group to
the former owners of the acquiree and the equity interests
issued by the Group in exchange for control of the acquiree.
Acquisition-related costs are generally recognised in profit or
loss as incurred.

Except for certain recognition exemptions, the identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities assumed must meet the
definitions of an asset and a liability in the Framework for the
Preparation and Presentation of Financial Statements (replaced
by the Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting issued in
October 2010).

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and
the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair value,
except that:

. deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets or liabilities
related to employee benefit arrangements are recognised
and measured in accordance with HKAS 12 /ncome
Taxes and HKAS 19 Employee Benefits respectively;

o liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based
payment arrangements of the acquiree or share-based
payment arrangements of the Group entered into to
replace share-based payment arrangements of the
acquiree are measured in accordance with HKFRS 2
Share-based Payment at the acquisition date (see the
accounting policy below);
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HE-Z-_—F+=A=1+—HIEFE For the year ended 31 December 2021

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Business combinations or asset acquisitions
(Continued)

Business combinations (Continued)

. assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held for
sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-current Assets
Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations are measured
in accordance with that standard; and

3 lease liabilities are recognised and measured at the
present value of the remaining lease payments (as
defined in HKFRS 16) as if the acquired leases were new
leases at the acquisition date, except for leases for
which (a) the lease term ends within 12 months of the
acquisition date; or (b) the underlying asset is of low
value. Right-of-use assets are recognised and measured
at the same amount as the relevant lease liabilities,
adjusted to reflect favourable or unfavourable terms of
the lease when compared with market terms.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if any) over the
net amount of the identifiable assets acquired and the
liabilities assumed as at acquisition date. If, after
re-assessment, the net amount of the identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree and the fair value of the acquirer’'s
previously held interest in the acquiree (if any), the excess is
recognised immediately in profit or loss as a bargain purchase
gain.
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—F+=ZA=+—HIFE For the year ended 31 December 2021

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Business combinations or asset acquisitions
(Continued)

Business combinations (Continued)

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership interests
and entitle their holders to a proportionate share of the
relevant subsidiary’s net assets in the event of liquidation are
initially measured at the non-controlling interests’
proportionate share of the recognised amounts of the
acquiree’s identifiable net assets or at fair value. The choice of
measurement basis is made on a transaction-by-transaction
basis.

When the consideration transferred by the Group in a
business combination includes a contingent consideration
arrangement, the contingent consideration is measured at its
acquisition-date fair value and included as part of the
consideration transferred in a business combination. Changes
in the fair value of the contingent consideration that qualify as
measurement period adjustments are adjusted retrospectively.
Measurement period adjustments are adjustments that arise
from additional information obtained during the
“measurement period” (which cannot exceed one year from
the acquisition date) about facts and circumstances that
existed at the acquisition date.

The subsequent accounting for the contingent consideration
that do not qualify as measurement period adjustments
depends on how the contingent consideration is classified.
Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is not
remeasured at subsequent reporting dates and its subsequent
settlement is accounted for within equity. Contingent
consideration that is classified as an asset or a liability is
remeasured to fair value at subsequent reporting dates, with
the corresponding gain or loss being recognised in profit or
loss.
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HE-Z-_—F+=A=1+—HIEFE For the year ended 31 December 2021

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Business combinations or asset acquisitions
(Continued)

Business combinations (Continued)

When a business combination is achieved in stages, the
Group's previously held equity interest in the acquiree is
remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date (i.e. the date
when the Group obtains control), and the resulting gain or
loss, if any, is recognised in profit or loss or other
comprehensive income, as appropriate. Amounts arising from
interests in the acquiree prior to the acquisition date that have
previously been recognised in other comprehensive income and
measured under HKFRS 9 would be accounted for on the
same basis as would be required if the Group had disposed
directly of the previously held equity interest.

If the initial accounting for a business combination is
incomplete by the end of the reporting period in which the
combination occurs, the Group reports provisional amounts for
the items for which the accounting is incomplete. Those
provisional amounts are adjusted retrospectively during the
measurement period (see above), and additional assets or
liabilities are recognised, to reflect new information obtained
about facts and circumstances that existed at the acquisition
date that, if known, would have affected the amounts
recognised at that date.
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—F+=ZA=+—HIFE For the year ended 31 December 2021

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at
cost as established at the date of acquisition of the business
(see the accounting policy above) less accumulated impairment
losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated
to each of the Group’s cash generating units (“CGU(s)") (or
groups of CGUs) that is expected to benefit from the
synergies of the combination, which represent the lowest level
at which the goodwill is monitored for internal management
purposes and not larger than an operating segment.

A CGU (or group of CGUs) to which goodwill has been
allocated is tested for impairment annually or more frequently
when there is indication that the unit may be impaired. For
goodwill arising on an acquisition in a reporting period, the
CGU (or group of CGUs) to which goodwill has been
allocated is tested for impairment before the end of that
reporting period. If the recoverable amount is less than its
carrying amount, the impairment loss is allocated first to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill and then to the
other assets on a pro-rata basis based on the carrying amount
of each asset in the unit (or group of CGU). Any impairment
loss for goodwill is recognised directly in profit or loss. An
impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in
subsequent period.

On disposal of the relevant CGU or any of the CGU within
the group of CGUs, the attributable amount of goodwill is
included in the determination of the amount of profit or loss
on disposal. When the Group disposes of an operation within
the CGU (or a CGU within a group of CGUs), the amount of
goodwill disposed of is measured on the basis of the relative
values of the operation (or the CGU) disposed of and the
portion of the CGU (or the group of CGUs) retained.

The Group’s policy for goodwill arising on the acquisition of
an associate and a joint venture is described below.
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HE-Z-_—F+=A=1+—HIEFE For the year ended 31 December 2021

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Investments in associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant
influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in
the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee but
is not control or joint control over those policies.

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties
that have joint control of the arrangement have rights to the
net assets of the joint arrangement. Joint control is the
contractually agreed sharing of control of an arrangement,
which exists only when decisions about the relevant activities
require unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates and joint
ventures are incorporated in these consolidated financial
statements using the equity method of accounting. The
financial statements of associates and joint ventures used for
equity accounting purposes are prepared using uniform
accounting policies as those of the Group for like transactions
and events in similar circumstances. Under the equity method,
an investment in an associate or a joint venture is initially
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position
at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group’s share
of the profit or loss and other comprehensive income of the
associate or joint venture. Changes in net assets of the
associate/joint venture other than profit or loss and other
comprehensive income are not accounted for unless such
changes resulted in changes in ownership interest held by the
Group. When the Group’s share of losses of an associate or
joint venture exceeds the Group's interest in that associate or
joint venture (which includes any long-term interests that, in
substance, form part of the Group’s net investment in the
associate or joint venture), the Group discontinues recognising
its share of further losses. Additional losses are recognised
only to the extent that the Group has incurred legal or
constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of the
associate or joint venture.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Investments in associates and joint ventures
(Continued)

An investment in an associate or a joint venture is accounted
for using the equity method from the date on which the
investee becomes an associate or a joint venture. On
acquisition of the investment in an associate or a joint
venture, any excess of the cost of the investment over the
Group's share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets
and liabilities of the investee is recognised as goodwill, which
is included within the carrying amount of the investment. Any
excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value of the
identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of the
investment, after reassessment, is recognised immediately in
profit or loss in the period in which the investment is
acquired.

The Group assesses whether there is an objective evidence
that the interest in an associate or a joint venture may be
impaired. When any objective evidence exists, the entire
carrying amount of the investment (including goodwill that
forms part of the carrying amount of the investment) is tested
for impairment in accordance with HKAS 36 /mpairment of
Assets as a single asset by comparing its recoverable amount
(higher of value in use and fair value less costs of disposal)
with its carrying amount. Any impairment loss recognised is
not allocated to any asset, including goodwill, that forms part
of the carrying amount of the investment. Any reversal of that
impairment loss is recognised in accordance with HKAS 36 to
the extent that the recoverable amount of the investment
subsequently increases.
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HE-Z-_—F+=A=1+—HIEFE For the year ended 31 December 2021

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Investments in associates and joint ventures
(Continued)

When the Group ceases to have significant influence over an
associate or joint control over a joint venture, it is accounted
for as a disposal of the entire interest in the investee with a
resulting gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss. When
the Group retains an interest in the former associate or joint
venture and the retained interest is a financial asset within the
scope of HKFRS 9, the Group measures the retained interest
at fair value at that date and the fair value is regarded as its
fair value on initial recognition. The difference between the
carrying amount of the associate or joint venture and the fair
value of any retained interest and any proceeds from
disposing of the relevant interest in the associate or joint
venture is included in the determination of the gain or loss on
disposal of the associate or joint venture. In addition, the
Group accounts for all amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in relation to that associate or joint
venture on the same basis as would be required if that
associate or joint venture had directly disposed of the related
assets or liabilities. Therefore, if a gain or loss previously
recognised in other comprehensive income by that associate or
joint venture would be reclassified to profit or loss on the
disposal of the related assets or liabilities, the Group
reclassifies the gain or loss from equity to profit or loss (as a
reclassification adjustment) upon disposal/partial disposal of the
relevant associate or joint venture.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Investments in associates and joint ventures
(Continued)

The Group continues to use the equity method when an
investment in an associate becomes an investment in a joint
venture or an investment in a joint venture becomes an
investment in an associate. There is no remeasurement to fair
value upon such changes in ownership interests.

When the Group reduces its ownership interest in an associate
or a joint venture but the Group continues to use the equity
method, the Group reclassifies to profit or loss the proportion
of the gain or loss that had previously been recognised in
other comprehensive income relating to that reduction in
ownership interest if that gain or loss would be reclassified to
profit or loss on the disposal of the related assets or
liabilities.

When a group entity transacts with an associate or a joint
venture of the Group, profits and losses resulting from the
transactions with the associate or joint venture are recognised
in the Group’s consolidated financial statements only to the
extent of interests in the associate or joint venture that are
not related to the Group.
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HE-Z-_—F+=A=1+—HIEFE For the year ended 31 December 2021

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue is recognised to depict the transfer of promised
goods or services to customers in an amount that reflects the
consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled in
exchange for those goods or services. Specifically, the Group
uses a 5-step approach to revenue recognition:

— Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer

— Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the
contract

— Step 3: Determine the transaction price

— Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance
obligations in the contract

— Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies
a performance obligation

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a performance
obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of the goods or
services underlying the particular performance obligation is
transferred to the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or service (or a

bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a series of
distinct goods or services that are substantially the same.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(Continued)

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised
over time by reference to the progress towards complete
satisfaction of the relevant performance obligation if one of
the following criteria is met:

o the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the
benefits provided by the Group’s performance as the
Group performs;

3 the Group’s performance creates or enhances an asset
that the customer controls as the Group performs; or

o the Group’s performance does not create an asset with
an alternative use to the Group and the Group has an
enforceable right to payment for performance completed
to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when the
customer obtains control of the distinct good or service.

Revenue is measured based on the consideration specified in a
contract with a customer, excludes amounts collected on
behalf of third parties, discounts and sales related taxes.

Contract assets and contract liabilities

A contract asset represents the Group's right to consideration
in exchange for goods or services that the Group has
transferred to a customer that is not yet unconditional. It is
assessed for impairment in accordance with HKFRS 9. In
contrast, a receivable represents the Group’s unconditional
right to consideration, i.e. only the passage of time is required
before payment of that consideration is due.
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HE-Z-_—F+=A=1+—HIEFE For the year ended 31 December 2021

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(Continued)

Contract assets and contract liabilities (Continued)

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation to
transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Group
has received consideration (or an amount of consideration is
due) from the customer.

A contract asset and a contract liability relating to the same
contract are accounted for and presented on a net basis.

Contracts with multiple performance obligations
(including allocation of transaction price)

For contracts that contain more than one performance
obligations, the Group allocates the transaction price to each
performance obligation on a relative stand-alone selling price
basis.

The stand-alone selling price of the distinct good or service
underlying each performance obligation is determined at
contract inception. It represents the price at which the Group
would sell a promised good or service separately to a
customer. If a stand-alone selling price is not directly
observable, the Group estimates it using appropriate
techniques such that the transaction price ultimately allocated
to any performance obligation reflects the amount of
consideration to which the Group expects to be entitled in
exchange for transferring the promised goods or services to
the customer.

Output method

The progress towards complete satisfaction of a performance
obligation is measured based on output method, which is to
recognise revenue on the basis of direct measurements of the
value of the goods or services transferred to the customer to
date relative to the remaining goods or services promised
under the contract, that best depict the Group’s performance
in transferring control of goods or services.
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—F+=ZA=+—HIFE For the year ended 31 December 2021

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(Continued)

Existence of significant financing component

In determining the transaction price, the Group adjusts the
promised amount of consideration for the effects of the time
value of money if the timing of payments agreed (either
explicitly or implicitly) provides the customer or the Group
with a significant benefit of financing the transfer of goods or
services to the customer. In those circumstances, the contract
contains a significant financing component. A significant
financing component may exist regardless of whether the
promise of financing is explicitly stated in the contract or
implied by the payment terms agreed to by the parties to the
contract.

For contracts where the period between payment and transfer
of the associated goods or services is less than one year, the
Group applies the practical expedient of not adjusting the
transaction price for any significant financing component.

For advance payments received from customers before the
transfer of the associated goods or services in which the
Group adjusts for the promised amount of consideration for a
significant financing component, the Group applies a discount
rate that would be reflected in a separate financing
transaction between the Group and the customer at contract
inception. The relevant interest expenses during the period
between the advance payments were received and the transfer
of the associated goods and services are accounted for on the
same basis as other borrowing costs.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(Continued)

Contract costs

Incremental costs of obtaining a contract are those costs that
the Group incurs to obtain a contract with a customer that it
would not have incurred if the contract had not been
obtained. The Group recognises such costs (sales commissions)
as an asset if it expects to recover these costs.

The asset so recognised is subsequently amortised to profit or
loss on a systematic basis that is consistent with the transfer
to the customer of the goods or services to which the assets
relate.

Capitalised contract costs are stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation and impairment losses. Impairment losses are
recognised to the extent that the carrying amount of the
contract cost asset exceeds the net of (i) remaining amount of
consideration that the Group expects to receive in exchange
for the goods or services to which the asset relates, less (ii)
any costs that relate directly to providing those goods or
services that have not yet been recognised as expenses

The Group applies the practical expedient of expensing all
incremental costs to obtain a contract if these costs would
otherwise have been fully amortised to profit or loss within
one year.
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—F+=ZA=+—HIFE For the year ended 31 December 2021

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(Continued)

Principal versus agent

When another party is involved in providing goods or services
to a customer, the Group determines whether the nature of
its promise is a performance obligation to provide the
specified goods or services itself (i.e. the Group is a principal)
or to arrange for those goods or services to be provided by
the other party (i.e. the Group is an agent).

The Group is a principal if it controls the specified good or
service before that good or service is transferred to a
customer.

The Group is an agent if its performance obligation is to
arrange for the provision of the specified good or service by
another party. In this case, the Group does not control the
specified good or service provided by another party before
that good or service is transferred to the customer. When the
Group acts as an agent, it recognises revenue in the amount
of any fee or commission to which it expects to be entitled in
exchange for arranging for the specified goods or services to
be provided by the other party.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Leases
Definition of a lease

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the
right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of
time in exchange for consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified on or after the date of
initial application of HKFRS 16 or arising from business
combinations, the Group assesses whether a contract is or
contains a lease based on the definition under HKFRS 16 at
inception, modification date or acquisition date, as
appropriate. Such contract will not be reassessed unless the
terms and conditions of the contract are subsequently
changed.

The Group as a lessee

Allocation of consideration to components of a contract

For a contract that contains a lease component and one or
more additional lease or non-lease components, the Group
allocates the consideration in the contract to each lease
component on the basis of the relative stand-alone price of
the lease component and the aggregate stand-alone price of
the non-lease components.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption
to leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less from
the commencement date and do not contain a purchase
option. It also applies the recognition exemption for lease of
low-value assets. Lease payments on short-term leases and
leases of low-value assets are recognised as expense on a
straight-line basis or another systematic basis over the lease
term.
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—F+=ZA=+—HIFE For the year ended 31 December 2021

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessee (Continued)

Right-of-use assets
The cost of right-of-use asset includes:

. the amount of the initial measurement of the lease
liability;

3 any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, less any lease incentives received,;

o any initial direct costs incurred by the Group; and

3 an estimate of costs to be incurred by the Group in
dismantling and removing the underlying assets,
restoring the site on which it is located or restoring the
underlying asset to the condition required by the terms
and conditions of the lease.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted
for any remeasurement of lease liabilities other than
adjustments to lease liabilities resulting from COVID-19-related
rent concessions in which the Group applied the practical
expedient.

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is reasonably certain to
obtain ownership of the underlying leased assets at the end of
the lease term are depreciated from commencement date to
the end of the useful life. Otherwise, right-of-use assets are
depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of its
estimated useful life and the lease term.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessee (Continued)

Right-of-use assets (Continued)

The Group presents right-of-use assets that do not meet the
definition of investment property as a separate line item on
the consolidated statement of financial position. Right-of-use
assets that meet the definition of investment property are
presented within “investment properties”.

The Group applies HKAS 36 to determine whether a
right-of-use asset is impaired and accounts for any identified
impairment loss.

When the Group obtains ownership of the underlying leased
assets at the end of the lease term upon exercising purchase
options, the carrying amount of the relevant right-of-use asset
is transferred to property, plant and equipment.

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted under HKFRS 9
Financial Instruments (“HKFRS 9”) and initially measured at fair
value. Adjustments to fair value at initial recognition are
considered as additional lease payments and included in the
cost of right-of-use assets.
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—F+=ZA=+—HIFE For the year ended 31 December 2021

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessee (Continued)

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group recognises
and measures the lease liability at the present value of lease
payments that are unpaid at that date. In calculating the
present value of lease payments, the Group uses the
incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement date
if the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily
determinable.

The lease payments include:

fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments)
less any lease incentives receivable;

o variable lease payments that depend on an index or a
rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at the
commencement date;

o amounts expected to be payable by the Group under
residual value guarantees;

o the exercise price of a purchase option if the Group is
reasonably certain to exercise the option; and

3 payments of penalties for terminating a lease, if the lease
term reflects the Group exercising an option to
terminate the lease.

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are adjusted by
interest accretion and lease payments.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessee (Continued)

Lease liabilities (Continued)

The Group remeasures lease liabilities (and makes a
corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-use assets)
whenever:

3 the lease term has changed or there is a change in the
assessment of exercise of a purchase option, in which
case the related lease liability is remeasured by
discounting the revised lease payments using a revised
discount rate at the date of reassessment.

o the lease payments change due to changes in market
rental rates following a market rent review/expected
payment under a guaranteed residual value, in which
cases the related lease liability is remeasured by
discounting the revised lease payments using the initial
discount rate.

The Group presents lease liabilities as a separate line item on
the consolidated statement of financial position.

Lease modifications

Except for COVID-19-related rent concessions in which the
Group applied the practical expedient, the Group accounts for
a lease modification as a separate lease if:

3 the modification increases the scope of the lease by
adding the right to use one or more underlying assets;
and

o the consideration for the leases increases by an amount
commensurate with the stand-alone price for the
increase in scope and any appropriate adjustments to
that stand-alone price to reflect the circumstances of the
particular contract.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessee (Continued)

Lease modifications (Continued)

For a lease modification that is not accounted for as a
separate lease, the Group remeasures the lease liability, less
any lease incentives receivable, based on the lease term of the
modified lease by discounting the revised lease payments
using a revised discount rate at the effective date of the
modification.

The Group accounts for the remeasurement of lease liabilities
by making corresponding adjustments to the relevant
right-of-use asset.

COVID-19-related rent concessions

In relation to rent concessions that occurred as a direct
consequence of the COVID-19 pandemic, the Group has
elected to apply the practical expedient not to assess whether
the change is a lease modification if all of the following
conditions are met:

o the change in lease payments results in revised
consideration for the lease that is substantially the same
as, or less than, the consideration for the lease
immediately preceding the change;

o any reduction in lease payments affects only payments

originally due on or before 30 June 2022; and

o there is no substantive change to other terms and
conditions of the lease.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessee (Continued)

COVID-19-related rent concessions (Continued)

A lessee applying the practical expedient accounts for changes
in lease payments resulting from rent concessions the same
way it would account for the changes applying HKFRS 16 if
the changes are not a lease modification. Forgiveness or
waiver of lease payments are accounted for as variable lease
payments. The related lease liabilities are adjusted to reflect
the amounts forgiven or waived with a corresponding
adjustment recognised in the profit or loss in the period in
which the event occurs.

The Group as a lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit or
loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant
lease.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment, including buildings and
structures owned by the Group and held for use in the
production or supply of goods or services, or for
administrative purpose, and other than construction in
progress, are stated in the consolidated statement of financial
position at cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses, if any.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Properties in the course of construction for production, supply
or administrative purposes are carried at cost, less any
recognised impairment loss. Costs include any costs directly
attributable to bringing the asset to the location and
condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the
manner intended by management and, for qualifying assets,
borrowing costs capitalised in accordance with the Group’s
accounting policy. Depreciation of these assets, on the same
basis as other property assets, commences when the assets are
ready for their intended use.

When the Group makes payments for ownership interests of
properties which includes both leasehold land and building
elements, the entire consideration is allocated between the
leasehold land and the building elements in proportion to the
relative fair values at initial recognition. To the extent the
allocation of the relevant payments can be made reliably,
interest in leasehold land is presented as “right-of-use assets”
in the consolidated statement of financial position. When the
consideration cannot be allocated reliably between non-lease
building element and undivided interest in the underlying
leasehold land, the entire properties are classified as property,
plant and equipment.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of
assets, other than construction in progress, less their residual
values over their estimated useful lives, using the straight-line
method. The estimated useful lives, residual values and
depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate
accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any
gain or loss arising on disposal or retirement of an item of
property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference
between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset and is recognised in profit or loss.



ZT " —FF 3 ANNUAL REPORT 2021

e ISR M

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

EEEHE(H)

REWR

REMERRBRNES R HIEE AR
EMHEZME -

BRENENIERA (BREIMERE
B H)FE - ROTHERE  RED
KL ANRBE R RAT T E RAEA REHR
BEEIIEK AEESRINE 5
REEMEZEAAIERFRARN (EE
BEMAFTRREER) EREREME
BEMERA -

BREMENHE SR A BER M
EREERHRT S ELTAARKEERN
R IETER - RUIEERMERMELEZ
EAkERER(RZEEZHERS
REFRERASRZERAE)NZ
VERIEERZBEFTABRRR -

BEEE
BRI BT AR

ERRBEAERAIERAFHIELEE
AR R AT 3H AR REHRUEE 1R
Sk - AERAERFHZETLEEHS
HNBEMGF AIERFHANERLE
o fhET A A B R SE T AN &
SRR - MEMGTESH T ER
AREBERAAR © BRI EAAERA
R 82 B & ERAANREFRIBER
REPBERBEII -

HE-Z-_—F+=A=1+—HIEFE For the year ended 31 December 2021

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/
or for capital appreciation.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost, including
any directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial
recognition, investment properties are stated at cost less
subsequent accumulated depreciation and any accumulated
impairment losses. Depreciation is recognised so as to write
off the cost of investment properties over their estimated
useful lives and after taking into account of their estimated
residual value, using the straight-line method.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when
the investment property is permanently withdrawn from use
and no future economic benefits are expected from its
disposals. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the
property (calculated as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is
included in the profit or loss in the period in which the
property is derecognised.

Intangible assets
Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired
separately are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation
and any accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation for
intangible assets with finite useful lives is recognised on a
straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives. The
estimated useful life and amortisation method are reviewed at
the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any
changes in estimate being accounted for on a prospective
basis. Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives that are
acquired separately are carried at cost less any subsequent
accumulated impairment losses.
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—F+=ZA=+—HIFE For the year ended 31 December 2021

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Intangible assets (Continued)

Internally-generated intangible assets — research and
development expenditure

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an expense
in the period in which it is incurred.

An internally-generated intangible asset arising from
development activities (or from the development phase of an
internal project) is recognised if, and only if, all of the
following have been demonstrated:

° the technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset
so that it will be available for use or sale;

o the intention to complete the intangible asset and use or
sell it;

3 the ability to use or sell the intangible asset;

3 how the intangible asset will generate probable future
economic benefits;

o the availability of adequate technical, financial and other
resources to complete the development and to use or
sell the intangible asset; and

o the ability to measure reliably the expenditure attributable
to the intangible asset during its development.

The amount initially recognised for internally-generated
intangible asset is the sum of the expenditure incurred from
the date when the intangible asset first meets the recognition
criteria listed above. Where no internally-generated intangible
asset can be recognised, development expenditure is
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which it is
incurred.

Subsequent to initial recognition, internally-generated
intangible assets are reported at cost less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses (if any), on
the same basis as intangible assets that are acquired
separately.
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HE-Z-_—F+=A=1+—HIEFE For the year ended 31 December 2021

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Intangible assets (Continued)

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination are
recognised separately from goodwill and are initially
recognised at their fair value at the acquisition date (which is
regarded as their cost).

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets acquired in
a business combination with finite useful lives are reported at
cost less accumulated amortisation and any accumulated
impairment losses, on the same basis as intangible assets that
are acquired separately. Intangible assets acquired in a
business combination with indefinite useful lives are carried at
cost less any subsequent accumulated impairment losses.

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no
future economic benefits are expected from use or disposal.
Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible
asset are measured at the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are
recognised in profit or loss in the period when the asset is
derecognised.

Impairment on property, plant and equipment,
right-of-use assets, contract costs and
intangible assets other than goodwill

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its property, plant and equipment,
right-of-use assets, intangible assets with finite useful lives and
contract costs to determine whether there is any indication
that these assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such
indication exists, the recoverable amount of the relevant asset
is estimated in order to determine the extent of the
impairment loss (if any). Intangible assets with indefinite useful
lives and intangible assets not yet available for use are tested
for impairment at least annually and whenever there is an
indication that they may be impaired.
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—F+=ZA=+—HIFE For the year ended 31 December 2021

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Impairment on property, plant and equipment,
right-of-use assets, contract costs and
intangible assets other than goodwill
(Continued)

The recoverable amount of property, plant and equipment,
right-of-use assets and intangible assets are estimated
individually. When it is not possible to estimate the
recoverable amount individually, the Group estimates the
recoverable amount of the CGU to which the asset belongs.

In testing a CGU for impairment, corporate assets are
allocated to the relevant CGU when a reasonable and
consistent basis of allocation can be established, or otherwise
they are allocated to the smallest group of CGUs for which a
reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be established.
The recoverable amount is determined for the CGU or group
of CGUs to which the corporate asset belongs, and is
compared with the carrying amount of the CGU or group of
CGUs.

Before the Group recognises an impairment loss for assets
capitalised as contract costs under HKFRS 15, the Group
assesses and recognises any impairment loss on other assets
related to the relevant contracts in accordance with applicable
standards. Then, impairment loss, if any, for assets capitalised
as contract costs is recognised to the extent the carrying
amounts exceeds the remaining amount of consideration that
the Group expects to receive in exchange for related goods or
services less the costs which relate directly to providing those
goods or services that have not been recognised as expenses.
The assets capitalised as contract costs are then included in
the carrying amount of the CGU to which they belong for the
purpose of evaluating impairment of that CGU.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of
disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the asset (or a CGU) for which the estimates of future cash
flows have not been adjusted.
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HE-Z-_—F+=A=1+—HIEFE For the year ended 31 December 2021

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Impairment on property, plant and equipment,
right-of-use assets, contract costs and
intangible assets other than goodwill
(Continued)

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a CGU) is estimated
to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of
the asset (or a CGU) is reduced to its recoverable amount. For
corporate assets or portion of corporate assets which cannot
be allocated on a reasonable and consistent basis to a CGU,
the Group compares the carrying amount of a group of
CGUs, including the carrying amounts of the corporate assets
or portion of corporate assets allocated to that group of
CGUs, with the recoverable amount of the group of CGUs. In
allocating the impairment loss, the impairment loss is allocated
first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill (if
applicable) and then to the other assets on a pro-rata basis
based on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit or the
group of CGU. The carrying amount of an asset is not
reduced below the highest of its fair value less costs of
disposal (if measurable), its value in use (if determinable) and
zero. The amount of the impairment loss that would
otherwise have been allocated to the asset is allocated pro
rata to the other assets of the unit or the group of CGUs. An
impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or a CGU or a group of CGUs) is
increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount,
but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed
the carrying amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or a CGU or a
group of CGUs) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment
loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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—F+=ZA=+—HIFE For the year ended 31 December 2021

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Biological assets

Biological assets represent laboratory mice which is measured
on initial recognition and at each end of the reporting period
at their fair value less costs to sell. A gain or loss arising on
initial recognition of biological asset at fair value less costs to
sell and from a change in fair value less costs to sell of a
biological asset is included in profit or loss for the period in
which it arises.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is calculated using the weighted average method.
Net realisable value represents the estimated selling price less
all estimated cost of completion and costs necessary to make
the sale. Costs necessary to make the sale include incremental
costs directly attributable to the sale and non-incremental
costs which the Group must incur to make the sale.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from profit/loss before tax because
of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other
years and items that are never taxable or deductible. The
Group's liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period.
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HE-Z-_—F+=A=1+—HIEFE For the year ended 31 December 2021

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax
bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
difference. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all
deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which
those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from the initial recognition (other
than in a business combination) of assets and liabilities in a
transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit. In addition, deferred tax liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, and
interests in associates and joint ventures except where the
Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will
not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets
arising from deductible temporary differences associated with
such investments and interests are only recognised to the
extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient taxable
profits against which to utilise the benefits of the temporary
differences and they are expected to reverse in the
foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability
is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rates (and tax
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period.
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—F+=ZA=+—HIFE For the year ended 31 December 2021

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Taxation (Continued)

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period,
to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and
liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes
levied to the same taxable entity by the same taxation
authority.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the
current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively. Where
current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial accounting
for a business combination, the tax effect is included in the
accounting for the business combination.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of
those assets until such time as the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they are incurred.
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HE-Z-_—F+=A=1+—HIEFE For the year ended 31 December 2021

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recognised in
the respective functional currency (i.e. the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates) at
the rates of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the
transactions. At the end of the reporting period, monetary
items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the
rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried at
fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing on the date when the fair
value was determined. Non-monetary items that are measured
in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting consolidated financial
statements, (i) the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into RMB; and (ii) the assets and
liabilities of the Group denominated or translated in RMB are
then translated into the presentation currency of the Group
(i.e. HK$), using exchange rates prevailing at the end of each
reporting period. Income and expense items are translated at
the average exchange rates for the period, unless exchange
rates fluctuate significantly during that period, in which case
the exchange rates at the dates of the transactions are used.
Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity under the
heading of translation reserve (attributed to non-controlling
interests as appropriate). The accumulated exchange
differences arising from translation into presentation currency
will not be recycled to profit or loss.
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—F+=ZA=+—HIFE For the year ended 31 December 2021

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is, a disposal of
the Group’s entire interest in a foreign operation, or a
disposal involving loss of control over a subsidiary that
includes a foreign operation, or a partial disposal of an
interest in a joint arrangement or an associate that includes a
foreign operation of which the retained interest becomes a
financial asset), all of the exchange differences accumulated in
equity in respect of that operation attributable to the owners
of the Company are reclassified to profit or loss.

In addition, in relation to a partial disposal of a subsidiary
that does not result in the Group losing control over the
subsidiary, the proportionate share of accumulated exchange
differences are re-attributed to non-controlling interests and
are not recognised in profit or loss. For all other partial
disposals (i.e. partial disposals of associates or joint
arrangements that do not result in the Group losing
significant influence or joint control), the proportionate share
of the accumulated exchange differences is reclassified to
profit or loss.

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there s
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with the
conditions attaching to them and that the grants will be
received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on a
systematic basis over the periods in which the Group
recognises as expenses the related costs for which the grants
are intended to compensate. Specifically, government grants
whose primary condition is that the Group should purchase,
construct or otherwise acquire non-current assets are
recognised as deferred income in the consolidated statement
of financial position and transferred to profit or loss on a
systematic and rational basis over the useful lives of the
related assets.
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HE-Z-_—F+=A=1+—HIEFE For the year ended 31 December 2021

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Government grants (Continued)

Government grants related to income that are receivable as
compensation for expenses or losses already incurred or for
the purpose of giving immediate financial support to the
Group with no future related costs are recognised in profit or
loss in the period in which they become receivable. Such
grants are presented under “other income”.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to Mandatory Provident Fund and state-managed
retirement benefit schemes are recognised as an expense
when employees have rendered service entitling them to the
contributions. Payments made to state-managed retirement
benefit schemes are dealt with as payments to defined
contribution plans where the Group’s obligations under the
plans are equivalent to those arising in a defined contribution
retirement benefit plan.

Short term employee benefits

Short term employee benefits are recognised at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid as
and when employees rendered the services. All short-term
employee benefits are recognised as expenses unless other
HKFRSs requires or permits the inclusion of the benefit in the
cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees

(such as wages and salaries, annual leave and sick leave) after
deducting any amount already paid.
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—F+=ZA=+—HIFE For the year ended 31 December 2021

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Provision and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing or
amount when the Group has a legal or constructive obligation
arising as a result of a past event, which it is probable will
result in an outflow of economic benefits that can be reliably
estimated.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably,
the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote. Possible
obligations, the existence of which will only be confirmed by
the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events, are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote.

Provision for reinstatement cost

A provision for reinstatement cost is made for the estimated
costs of dismantlement, removal restoration of plant and
equipment arising from acquisition or use of assets, which are
capitalised and included in the cost of plant and equipment
and recognised when the Group has a present obligation
(legal or constructive) as a result of a past event and it is
probable that the Group will be required to settle that
obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of
the consideration required to settle the present obligation at
the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks
and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When a
provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle
the present obligation, its carrying amount is the present
value of those cash flows (where the effect of the time value
of money is material).
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HE-Z-_—F+=A=1+—HIEFE For the year ended 31 December 2021

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Provision for reinstatement cost (Continued)

Provisions for the costs to restore leased assets to their
original condition, as required by the terms and conditions of
the lease, are recognised at the date of inception of the lease
at the directors’ best estimate of the expenditure that would
be required to restore the assets, estimates are regularly
reviewed and adjusted as appropriate for new circumstances.

Related parties

(@) A person or a close member of that person’s family is
related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is a member of key management personnel of the
Group or the Company’s parent.

(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions apply:

(i) The entity and the Group are members of the same
group (which means that each parent, subsidiary
and fellow subsidiary is related to the others).

(i) One entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is a
member).

(ili)  Both entities are joint ventures of the same third
party.

(iv)  One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and
the other entity is an associate of the third entity.
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—F+=ZA=+—HIFE For the year ended 31 December 2021

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Related parties (Continued)

(b) (Continued)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of the employees of the Group or an
entity related to the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a).

A person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of key
management personnel of the entity (or of a
parent of the entity).

The entity, or any member of a group of which it
is a part, provides key management personnel
services to the group or to the group’s parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be influenced
by, that person in their dealings with the entity and include:

(i) that person’s children and spouse or domestic partner;

(i) children of that person’s spouse or domestic partner; and

(iii)  dependents of that person or that person’s spouse or
domestic partner.
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HE-Z-_—F+=A=1+—HIEFE For the year ended 31 December 2021

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Equity-settled share-based payment to
employees

Equity-settled share-based payments to employees and others
providing similar services are measured at the fair value of the
equity instruments at the grant date.

The fair value of the equity-settled share-based payments
determined at the grant date without taking into
consideration all non-market vesting conditions is expensed on
straight-line basis over the vesting period, based on the
Group’s estimate of equity instruments that will eventually
vest, with a corresponding increase in equity (employee
share-based compensation reserve). At the end of each
reporting period, the Group revises its estimate of the number
of equity instruments expected to vest based on assessment of
all relevant non-market vesting conditions. The impact of the
revision of the original estimates, if any, is recognised in profit
or loss such that the cumulative expense reflects the revised
estimate, with a corresponding adjustment to the employee
share-based compensation reserve. For equity instruments that
vest immediately at the date of grant, the fair value of the
equity instruments granted is expensed immediately to profit
or loss.

When share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in employee share-based compensation reserve will
be transferred to share premium. When the share options are
forfeited after the vesting date or are still not exercised at the
expiry date, the amount previously recognised in employee
share-based compensation reserve will be transferred to
retained profits.
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—F+=ZA=+—HIFE For the year ended 31 December 2021

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a
group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the instrument. All regular way purchases or sales of financial
assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of
financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time
frame established by regulation or convention in the market
place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at
fair value except for trade receivables arising from contracts
with customers which are initially measured in accordance
with HKFRS 15. Transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities (other than financial assets or liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss (“FVTPL"”)) are added to or deducted
from the fair value of the financial assets or financial
liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction
costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets
or financial liabilities at FVTPL are recognised immediately in
profit or loss.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability and of
allocating interest income and interest expense over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts and payments
(including all fees paid or received that form an integral part
of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other
premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the
financial asset or financial liability, or, where appropriate, a
shorter period to the net carrying amount on initial
recognition.
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HE-Z-_—F+=A=1+—HIEFE For the year ended 31 December 2021

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at amortised cost:

. the financial asset is held within a business model whose
objective is to collect contractual cash flows; and

o the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
on the principal amount outstanding;

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income (“FVTOCI"):

. the financial asset is held within a business model whose
objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash
flows and selling; and

o the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
on the principal amount outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at FVTPL,
except that at initial recognition of a financial asset the Group
may irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes in fair
value of an equity investment in other comprehensive income
("OClI") if that equity investment is neither held for trading
nor contingent consideration recognised by an acquirer in a
business combination to which HKFRS 3 Business
Combinations applies.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets (Continued)

A financial asset is held for trading if:

° it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling
in the near term;

o on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of identified
financial instruments that the Group manages together
and has a recent actual pattern of short-term
profit-taking; or

3 it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as
a hedging instrument.

In addition, the Group may irrevocably designate a financial
asset that are required to be measured at the amortised cost
or FVTOCI as measured at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or
significantly reduces an accounting mismatch.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets (Continued)

(@

Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest
method for financial assets measured subsequently at
amortised cost and debt instruments subsequently
measured at FVTOCI. Interest income is calculated by
applying the effective interest rate to the gross carrying
amount of a financial asset, except for financial assets
that have subsequently become credit-impaired. For
financial assets that have subsequently become
credit-impaired, interest income is recognised by
applying the effective interest rate to the amortised cost
of the financial asset from the next reporting period. If
the credit risk on the credit-impaired financial instrument
improves so that the financial asset is no longer
credit-impaired, interest income is recognised by
applying the effective interest rate to the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset from the beginning of the
reporting period following the determination that the
asset is no longer credit-impaired.
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—F+=ZA=+—HIFE For the year ended 31 December 2021

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets (Continued)

(i)

(iii)

Debt instruments classified as at FVTOCI

Subsequent changes in the carrying amounts for debt
instruments classified as at FVTOCI as a result of interest
income calculated using the effective interest method,
and foreign exchange gains and losses are recognised in
profit or loss. All other changes in the carrying amount
of these debt instruments are recognised in OCl and
accumulated under the heading of FVTOCI reserve.
Impairment allowances are recognised in profit or loss
with corresponding adjustment to OCI without reducing
the carrying amounts of these debt instruments. The
amounts that are recognised in profit or loss are the
same as the amounts that would have been recognised
in profit or loss if these debt instruments had been
measured at amortised cost. When these debt
instruments are derecognised, the cumulative gains or
losses previously recognised in OCI are reclassified to
profit or loss.

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for being
measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI or designated as
FVTOCI are measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at
the end of each reporting period, with any fair value
gains or losses recognised in profit or loss. The net gain
or loss recognised in profit or loss includes any dividend
or interest earned on the financial asset and is included
in the “other gains and losses” line item.
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HE-Z-_—F+=A=1+—HIEFE For the year ended 31 December 2021

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets subject to impairment
assessment under HKFRS 9

The Group performs impairment assessment under expected
credit loss (“ECL") model on financial assets (including trade
receivables, other receivables and deposits, amounts due from
an associate, intermediate holding companies or other related
parties, other investment, restricted bank deposits and cash
and cash equivalents) which are subject to impairment under
HKFRS 9. The amount of ECL is updated at each reporting
date to reflect changes in credit risk since initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all
possible default events over the expected life of the relevant
instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL (“12m ECL") represents
the portion of lifetime ECL that is expected to result from
default events that are possible within 12 months after the
reporting date. Assessment are done based on the Group’s
historical credit loss experience, adjusted for factors that are
specific to the debtors, general economic conditions and an
assessment of both the current conditions at the reporting
date as well as the forecast of future conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade receivables
without significant financing component. The ECL on these
assets are assessed collectively using a provision matrix with
appropriate groupings.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the loss
allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless when there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, the
Group recognises lifetime ECL. The assessment of whether
lifetime ECL should be recognised is based on significant
increases in the likelihood or risk of a default occurring since
initial recognition.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets subject to impairment
assessment under HKFRS 9 (Continued)

(@

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group compares
the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the reporting date with the risk of a
default occurring on the financial instrument as at the
date of initial recognition. In making this assessment,
the Group considers both quantitative and qualitative
information that is reasonable and supportable, including
historical experience and forward-looking information
that is available without undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has
increased significantly:

o an actual or expected significant deterioration in
the financial instrument’s external (if available) or
internal credit rating;

° significant deterioration in external market
indicators of credit risk, e.g. a significant increase
in the credit spread, the credit default swap prices
for the debtor;

3 existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are expected
to cause a significant decrease in the debtor’s
ability to meet its debt obligations;

° an actual or expected significant deterioration in
the operating results of the debtor; or
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HE-Z-_—F+=A=1+—HIEFE For the year ended 31 December 2021

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets subject to impairment
assessment under HKFRS 9 (Continued)

(i) Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

° an actual or expected significant adverse change in
the regulatory, economic, or technological
environment of the debtor that results in a
significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet
its debt obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment,
the Group presumes that the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition when contractual
payments are more than 30 days past due, unless the
Group has reasonable and supportable information that
demonstrates otherwise.

Despite the foregoing, the Group assumes that the
credit risk on a debt instrument has not increased
significantly since initial recognition if the debt
instrument is determined to have low credit risk at the
reporting date. A debt instrument is determined to have
low credit risk if (i) it has a low risk of default, (ii) the
borrower has a strong capacity to meet its contractual
cash flow obligations in the near term and (iii) adverse
changes in economic and business conditions in the
longer term may, but will not necessarily, reduce the
ability of the borrower to fulfil its contractual cash flow
obligations. The Group considers a debt instrument to
have low credit risk when it has an internal or external
credit rating of “investment grade” as per globally
understood definitions.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets subject to impairment
assessment under HKFRS 9 (Continued)

(@

(ii)

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the
criteria used to identify whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk and revises them as
appropriate to ensure that the criteria are capable of
identifying significant increase in credit risk before the
amount becomes past due.

Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group considers
an event of default occurs when information developed
internally or obtained from external sources indicates
that the debtor is unlikely to pay its creditors, including
the Group, in full (without taking into account any
collaterals held by the Group).

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers that
default has occurred when a financial asset is more than
90 days past due unless the Group has reasonable and
supportable information to demonstrate that a more
lagging default criterion is more appropriate.
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HE-Z-_—F+=A=1+—HIEFE For the year ended 31 December 2021

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets subject to impairment
assessment under HKFRS 9 (Continued)

(iii) Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more
events of default that have a detrimental impact on the
estimated future cash flows of that financial asset have
occurred. Evidence that a financial asset is
credit-impaired includes observable data about the
following events:

(@)  significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the
borrower;

(b) a breach of contract, such as a default or past due
event;

(c) the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the borrower
a concession(s) that the lender(s) would not
otherwise consider;

(d) it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; or

(e) the disappearance of an active market for that
financial asset because of financial difficulties.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets subject to impairment
assessment under HKFRS 9 (Continued)

(iv)

(v)

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is
information indicating that the counterparty is in severe
financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of
recovery, for example, when the counterparty has been
placed under liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy
proceedings, or in the case of trade receivables, when
the amounts are over two years past due, whichever
occurs sooner. Financial assets written off may still be
subject to enforcement activities under the Group’s
recovery procedures, taking into account legal advice
where appropriate. A write-off constitutes a
derecognition event. Any subsequent recoveries are
recognised in profit or loss.

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability
of default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the
loss if there is a default) and the exposure at default.
The assessment of the probability of default and loss
given default is based on historical data and
forward-looking information. Estimation of ECL reflects
an unbiased and probability-weighted amount that is
determined with the respective risks of default occurring
as the weights. The Group uses a practical expedient in
estimating ECL on trade receivables using a provision
matrix taking into consideration historical credit loss
experience, and forward looking information that is
available without undue cost or effort.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets subject to impairment
assessment under HKFRS 9 (Continued)

(v)

Measurement and recognition of ECL (Continued)

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all
contractual cash flows that are due to the Group in
accordance with the contract and the cash flows that
the Group expects to receive, discounted at the effective
interest rate determined at initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL for trade receivables are considered on a
collective basis taking into consideration past due
information and relevant credit information such as
forward looking macroeconomic information.

For collective assessment, the Group takes into
consideration the following characteristics when
formulating the grouping:

Past-due status;

° Nature, size and industry of debtors; and

External credit ratings where available.

The grouping is regularly reviewed by management to
ensure the constituents of each group continue to share
similar credit risk characteristics.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset unless the financial asset is
credit impaired, in which case interest income is
calculated based on amortised cost of the financial
asset.
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—F+=ZA=+—HIFE For the year ended 31 December 2021

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets subject to impairment
assessment under HKFRS 9 (Continued)

(v) Measurement and recognition of ECL (Continued)

Except for investments in debt instruments that are
measured at FVTOCI, the Group recognises an
impairment gain or loss in profit or loss for all financial
instruments by adjusting their carrying amount, with the
exception of trade receivables, other receivables and
deposits, amounts due from other related parties and
amount due from an associate where the corresponding
adjustment is recognised through a loss allowance
account. For investments in debt instruments that are
measured at FVTOCI, the loss allowance is recognised in
OCl and accumulated in the FVTOCI reserve without
reducing the carrying amount of these debt instruments.
Such amount represents the changes in the FVTOCI
reserve in relation to accumulated loss allowance.

Derecognition/modification of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.
If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the
transferred asset, the Group recognises its retained interest in
the asset and an associated liability for amounts it may have
to pay. If the Group retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the
Group continues to recognise the financial asset and also
recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds
received.
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HE-Z-_—F+=A=1+—HIEFE For the year ended 31 December 2021

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Derecognition/modification of financial assets
(Continued)

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised
cost, the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and
the sum of the consideration received and receivable is
recognised in profit or loss.

On derecognition of an investment in a debt instrument
classified as FVTOCI, the cumulative gain or loss previously
accumulated in the FVTOCI reserve is reclassified to profit or
loss.

A modification of a financial asset occurs if the contractual
cash flows are renegotiated or otherwise modified.

When the contractual terms of a financial asset are modified,
the Group assesses whether the revised terms result in a
substantial modification from original terms taking into
account all relevant facts and circumstances including
qualitative factors. If qualitative assessment is not conclusive,
the Group considers the terms are substantially different if the
discounted present value of the cash flows under the new
terms, including any fees paid net of any fees received, and
discounted using the original effective interest rate, is at least
10 per cent different from the discounted present value of the
remaining cash flows of the original financial asset, after
reducing gross carrying amount that has been written off.

For non-substantial modifications of financial assets that do
not result in derecognition, the carrying amount of the
relevant financial assets will be calculated at the present value
of the modified contractual cash flows discounted at the
financial assets’ original effective interest rate. Transaction
costs or fees incurred are adjusted to the carrying amount of
the modified financial assets and are amortised over the
remaining term. Any adjustment to the carrying amount of the
financial asset is recognised in profit or loss at the date of
modification.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity

Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either financial
liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance of the
contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial
liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities (including trade and bills payables, other
payables and deposit received, amount due to an intermediate
holding company, amounts due to other related parties and
bank borrowings) are subsequently measured at amortised
cost, using the effective interest method.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or
have expired. The difference between the carrying amount of
the financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid
and payable is recognised in profit or loss.
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4.

HE-Z-_—F+=A=1+—HIEFE For the year ended 31 December 2021

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which
are described in note 3, the directors of the Company are
required to make judgments, estimates and assumptions about
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not
readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and
underlying assumptions are based on historical experience and
other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results
may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both current
and future periods.

Critical judgements in applying accounting
policies

The following are the critical judgements, apart from those
involving estimations (see below), that the directors of the
Company have made in the process of applying the Group's
accounting policies and that have the most significant effect
on the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial
statements.

Determination of lease term of contracts with renewal
options

The Group applies judgment to determine the lease term for
lease contracts in which it is a lessee that include renewal
option, specifically, the leases relating to offices and fitness
centres. The assessment of whether the Group is reasonably
certain to exercise renewal options impacts the lease term,
which significantly affects the amount of lease liabilities and
right-of-use assets recognised. Re-assessment is performed
upon the occurrence of either a significant event or a
significant change in circumstances that is within the control
of lessee and that affects the assessment.
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4.

—F+=ZA=+—HIFE For the year ended 31 December 2021

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (CONTINUED)

Critical judgements in applying accounting
policies (Continued)

Determination of lease term of contracts with renewal
options (Continued)

When assessing reasonable certainty, the Group considers all
relevant facts and circumstances including economic
incentives/penalties for exercising or not exercising the
options. Factors considered include:

o contractual terms and conditions for the optional periods
compared with market rates (e.g. whether the amount
of payments in the optional periods is below the market
rates);

3 the extent of leasehold improvements undertaken by
Group; and

o costs relating to termination of the lease (e.g. relocation
costs, costs of identifying another underlying asset
suitable for the Group’s needs).

Method of measuring progress for performance
obligation satisfied over-time

Under HKFRS 15, revenue from contracts with customers is
recognised by a single method for each performance
obligation satisfied over time and the method should be
applied consistently to similar performance obligations in
similar circumstances. The Group has considered that the
output method, which is to recognise revenue on the basis of
direct measurements of the value of services transferred to the
customers to date relative to the remaining services promised
under the contract, would faithfully depict the Group’s
performance towards complete satisfaction of the performance
obligation. Accordingly, revenue recognised from provision of
membership packages in fitness centres is based on output
method.
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4.

HE-Z-_—F+=A=1+—HIEFE For the year ended 31 December 2021

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (CONTINUED)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of
the reporting period, that have a risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year.

Provision of ECL for trade receivables, amount due from
an associate and amounts due from other related parties

The Group uses provision matrix to calculate ECL for trade
receivables. The provision rates are based on internal credit
ratings as groupings of various debtors that have similar loss
patterns. The provision matrix is based on the Group’s
historical default rates taking into consideration
forward-looking information that is reasonable and
supportable available without undue costs or effort. At every
reporting date, the historical observed default rates are
reassessed and changes in the forward-looking information are
considered.

The Group assesses ECL for amount due from an associate
and amounts due from other related parties by taking
reference to individual ageing profile and credit rating of
respective debtors to determine whether there is significant
increase in credit risk and whether the balances are credit
impaired so as to project the individual loss rate. At every
reporting date, these loss rates are reassessed and changes in
the forward-looking information are considered.
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—F+=ZA=+—HIFE For the year ended 31 December 2021

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (CONTINUED)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)

Provision of ECL for trade receivables, amount due from
an associate and amounts due from other related parties
(Continued)

The provision of ECL is sensitive to changes in estimates. The
information about the Group’s trade receivables, amount due
from an associate and amounts due from other related parties
are set out in notes 27, 51 and 52(c) respectively.

As at 31 December 2021, the carrying amount of trade
receivables is HK$139,946,000 (2020: HK$177,124,000) (net
of credit losses of HK$2,355,000 (2020: HK$2,782,000)).
Details of the allowance for credit losses are set out in note
49.

As at 31 December 2021, the carrying amount of amount due
from an associate is HK$145,803,000 (2020:
HK$111,108,000) (net of credit losses of HK$30,246,000
(2020: HK$15,890,000)). The carrying amount of amounts due
from other related parties are HK$94,608,000 (2020:
HK$134,202,000) (net of credit losses of HK$12,351,000
(2020: HK$5,227,000)). Details of the allowance for credit
losses are set out in note 49.
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HE-Z-_—F+=A=1+—HIEFE For the year ended 31 December 2021

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (CONTINUED)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)

Impairment of goodwill and intangible assets

Determining whether goodwill, trademark, franchise
agreement and customer relationship are impaired requires an
estimation of the recoverable amount of the CGUs to which
goodwill, trademark, franchise agreement and customer
relationship have been allocated, which is the higher of value
in use or fair value less costs of disposal. The value in use
calculation requires the Group to estimate the present value of
the future cash flows expected to arise from the CGUs
containing goodwill, trademark, franchise agreement and
customer relationship using suitable discount rates. Where the
actual future cash flows are less than expected, or change in
facts and circumstances which results in downward revision of
future cash flows or upward revision of discount rate, a
further impairment loss may arise. Furthermore, the estimated
cash flows and discount rate are subject to higher degree of
estimation uncertainties in the current year due to uncertainty
on how the COVID-19 pandemic may progress and evolve and
volatility in financial markets, including potential disruptions of
the Group’s fitness business. Details of the recoverable
amount calculation are set out in note 23.

As at 31 December 2021, the carrying amounts of goodwill,
trademark, franchise agreement and customer relationship are
approximately HK$358,782,000, HK$92,876,000,
HK165,476,000 and HK$1,452,000 (2020: HK$404,265,000,
HK$92,876,000, HK171,986,000 and HK$4,937,000)
respectively. Details of the impairment of goodwill, trademark,
franchise agreement and customer relationship are disclosed in
note 23.
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—F+=ZA=+—HIFE For the year ended 31 December 2021

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (CONTINUED)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)

Fair values of biological assets

The biological assets are valued at fair value less costs to sell.
The fair value is determined based on the market-determined
prices at the end of the reporting periods with reference to
the species, ages, growing conditions and costs incurred to
reflect differences in characteristic and/or stages or growth of
biological assets. Any changes in the estimates may affect the
fair value of biological assets significantly.

The management review the assumptions and estimates
periodically to identify any significant changes in the fair value
of biological assets. As at 31 December 2021, the carrying
amount of biological assets is approximately HK$17,044,000
(2020: HK$12,846,000) and gain arising from changes in fair
value less costs to sell recognised in profit or loss during the
year is HK$8,540,000 (2020: HK$5,361,000). Details of the
biological assets are set out in note 25.
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—Z-_—F+=-HA=+—HIEFE For the year ended 31 December 2021

REVENUE

(A) Disaggregation of revenue from contracts

with customers

An analysis of the Group's revenue for the year from

BFRAZDTHET : continuing operations is as follows:
HEKEER Continuing operations
—g--f —T-ZF
2021 2020
BREEY REEH #st BEXL BH%K st
Pharmaceutical Fitness Pharmaceutical Fitness
business business Total business business Total
TRET TER TR FiEn FiET TEL
HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ERNBREEAE 1S REERMN Revenue from contracts with
RAEFENZBA customers within the scope of
HKFRS 15
RIZERARBERAS Disaggregated by major products or
services lines
HWERHERHERERZMEMEER  Manufacture and sales of prescription
drugs and laboratory related products 799,807 = 799,807 846,383 = 846,383
WERFRORRHEEIMEREANR  Operation of fitness centres and provision
R#% of consultation services for fitness and
health activities
— RAFI&RE — personal training classes - 58,273 58,273 — 42,028 42,028
— BHER — membership packages = 65,213 65,213 = 67,205 67,205
BEESRERRE2ETEBRA  Royalty fee income in relation to fitness
and health activities i 37,79 37,79 e 53,518 53,518
B Total 799,807 161,282 961,089 846,383 162,751 1,009,134
WARZEE Timing of revenue recognition
R-HRH Point in time 799,807 58,273 858,080 846,383 42,028 888,411
BE R R Over time - 103,009 103,009 e 120,723 120,723
BE Total 799,807 161,282 961,089 846,383 162,751 1,009,134
HETE Geographical markets
T E A Mainland China 781,490 = 781,490 702,551 = 702,551
R Singapore - 123,486 123,486 678 109,233 109,911
=) | Taiwan 691 37,796 38,487 213 53,518 53,731
BB Russia 4,659 - 4,659 85,211 — 85,211
BERE Morocco 351 = 351 15913 = 15,913
BiuE Uruguay 7 - 7 6,301 — 6,301
Wt Switzerland 38 = 38 21,120 = 21,120
Hith QOthers 12,507 - 12,507 14,396 — 14,396
it Total 799,807 161,282 961,089 846,383 162,751 1,009,134
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5.

—F+=ZA=+—HIFE For the year ended 31 December 2021

REVENUE (CONTINUED)

(B) Performance obligations for contracts with

customers

For manufacture and sales of prescription drugs and
laboratory related products, revenue is recognised when
control of the goods has transferred, being when the
goods have been delivered to the designated location
(delivery). The normal credit period is 30 to 180 days
upon delivery. The Group requires certain customers to
provide upfront deposits.

For provision of personal training classes in fitness
centres, revenue is recognised at point in time when the
customers obtain the services. For provision of
membership packages in fitness centres, revenue is
recognised over time when the control of the services
have been transferred to the customers. Trade
receivables mainly represent receivables from financial
institutions in relation to the payment settled through
using credit cards by individual customers of which the
settlement is normally 15 days from transaction date.
Transaction price is always received in advance in full for
prepaid membership packages or personal training
classes and this will give rise to contract liabilities in
which revenue has not been recognised. Royalty fee
income in relation to fitness and health activities is
recognised over time when the control of the services
have been transferred.
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—T-_—F+=A=+—HIEFE For the year ended 31 December 2021

REVENUE (CONTINUED)

(C) Transaction price allocated to the

remaining performance obligation for
contracts with customers

The transaction price allocated to the remaining
performance obligations (unsatisfied or partially
unsatisfied) as at 31 December 2021 and 2020 and the
expected timing of recognising revenue are as follows:

—E-—F —E-TF
2021 2020
FHET T
HK$’000 HK$'000
—FR Within one year 91,232 118,802
—FP EETBBERE More than one year but not more
than two years 16,215 30,397
M F LA _E{B R iR A A More than two years but not more
than five years 4,508 6,917
111,955 156,116
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6. DEER
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6.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Information reported to the chief executive of the Company,
being the chief operation decision maker (the “CODM"), for
the purpose of resource allocation and assessment of segment
performance focuses on business units. During the year ended
31 December 2020, the Company disposed of the interests in
cement business segment which was presented as
“discontinued operation”. The following segment information
of the Group’s business units does not include the
discontinued operation.

Segment revenue, result, assets and liabilities

The Directors have chosen to organise the Group around
differences in products and services. The Group is principally
engaged in pharmaceutical and fitness business.

o Pharmaceutical business — manufacture and sales of
prescription drugs and laboratory related products.

o Fitness business — operate fitness centres and provide
consultation services for fitness and health activities and
operate the franchise business for royalty fee income.

The Group’s reportable segments are strategic business units
that offer different products or services. They are managed
separately because each business requires different technology
and marketing strategies.
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

DB AREE (i) Segment revenue and results
AT B 1L A] 2 B & 5 20 8 A The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and
EEFBSEEBHBAFERSR results from continuing operations by reportable and
B DT o operating segments.
HEKEER Continuing operations:
BEEK REEHK W
Pharmaceutical business Fitness business Total
—B--F ZT-TF -B--F ZT-TF ZT--F —T-THF
2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020
TERT FET TERT FHBT TER FHET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
INRBEEDEUA  Segment revenue from
external customers 799,807 846,383 161,282 162,751 961,089 1,009,134
DEEE Segment results 64,806 121,917  (101,768) (93,152) (36,962) 28,765
AABEERA  Unallocated corporate
income 79,040 6,636
RABEERT Unallocated corporate
expenses (42,404) (35,698)
B AT E1E Loss before taxation (326) (297)

R B e IR B R 3 At
MARBNEFBERER - 24
FKEREARDRERLDRRAMEA
X BIREHE D BB ERER A A (3R
MER) AR AKEETEES
REBERENTTE - AMEERD
FEMKRIRFFEAE -

BE_ T - —FR_ZFT_FTF
+—A=t+—"HIEFERTESD
EPFEIEHE o

The accounting policies of the operating segments are
the same as the Group’s accounting policies described in
note 3. Segment results represent the profit earned by
(loss from) each segment without allocation of certain
corporate income and expenses. This is the measure
reported to the CODM of the Group for the purposes of
resource allocation and performance assessment.

There was no inter-segment sales during the years
ended 31 December 2021 and 2020.

215



FAFEREXEEGRLT TONGFANG KONTAFARMA HOLDINGS LIMITED

e ISR

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HE-Z-_—F+=A=1+—HIEFE For the year ended 31 December 2021

6. EER (H)
(i) %

AT R 2

HEEREE

WAMEE D EE A
aN

SENEERBENDN

BEREER

SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

(ii) Segment assets and liabilities

The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and
liabilities by reportable and operating segments:

Continuing operations:

BREXK BEER ok

Pharmaceutical business Fitness business Total
“E--f -Z-%F ZB--F Z—Z-TF ZB--F -T-TF
2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020
TER FTAT TER FTAT TER FTAT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AEEE Segment assets 1,346,899 1145578 1,110,506 1,294,600 2,457,405 2,440,178
EETREEE Deferred tax assets 232 190
APBREEBE Unallocated corporate assets 101,138 101,916
RREE Consolidated assets 2,558,775 2,542,284

BREEYK REEK ok

Pharmaceutical business Fitness business Total
B -E-TF ZB--f -T-TF ZB--F -T-TF
2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020
TER FTHEL TER FTHEL TER FTHEL
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
HHMEE Segment liabilities 506,720 358,559 600,029 712,786 1,106,749 1,071,345
RBEEE Tax liabilities 28,089 22,235
EEHEAG Deferred tax liabilities 67,257 76,163

APECERE Unallocated corporate

liabilities 18,896 18,784
ReaE Consolidated liabilities 1,220,991 1,188,527
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For the purposes of monitoring segment performance
and allocating resources between segments:

o all assets are allocated to operating segments other
than deferred tax assets and unallocated corporate
assets as these assets are managed on a group
basis; and

° all liabilities are allocated to operating segments
other than tax liabilities, deferred tax liabilities and
unallocated corporate liabilities as these liabilities
are managed on a group basis.
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HE-_ZT_-_—&+_A=+—HIFE For the year ended 31 December 2021
6. ZHEH ) 6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
(iii) H b FB&E R (iii) Other segment information
FERKEHEK Continuing operations:
BEEE R FOE @t
Pharmaceutical business Fitness business Unallocated Total
“g--% C"E-FF C-B--% -Z-%F <-B--§ -B-3F <-B--f C"E-Ef
2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020
TER THL TET FiBx TET Tix TER THL
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FASHEE G FEESE  Amounts included in the measure of
e segments results or seqment assets:
REFRBEE Addition to non-current assets* 248,664 57,246 9,959 205,761 31,184 8,493 289,807 271,500
BHRNE Amortisation and depreciation 39,870 26,158 104,621 98,372 642 79 145,133 125,324
EMEEATERE Fair value gain on biological assets (8,540) (5,361) - = - = (8,540) (5,361)
BREEEREAETZ Impairment losses under expected credit
REEE NRBOSE loss model, net of reversal 4,366 (328) 19,010 17,041 2,699 = 26,075 16,713
BERERE Impairment loss on goodwill - = 46,358 31,191 - — 46,358 31,191
TFEMR GTAHE RRHMA)  Write-down of inventories
(included in cost of sales and
services) - 522 - - - . = 522
HERMENE  BEREEZ  Net loss (gain) on disposal and write-off
B8 () F8 of property, plant and equipment 146 1,644 1,082 (1,461) - — 1,188 183
HE—MB AR k& Gain on disposal of a subsidiary — = — — (51,415) - (51,415) -
ERAENRMAERZHF  Equity-settled share-based payments = 36 = = = 17 = 53
UON Interest income (2,553) (270) — (39) (800) (507) (3,353) (816)
HMERX Interest expenses 9,174 8,932 22,566 22,015 2,435 488 34,175 31,435
FHRATTEZERZEE  Amounts reqularly provided
VAR DR E 2 to the CODM but not included
25 in the measure of segment results:
FERE (Bg) Income tax expenses (credit) 6,281 19,991 (2,054) (203) — — 4,227 19,788
FRESFEATEREZSR  Fair value (gain) losses on financial assets
BEZDTE(RE)/BE at FVTPL = = — = (15,243) 2,017 (15,243) 2,017
* IERBEETREESREEK o The non-current assets exclude financial assets and
R IBE E deferred tax assets
(iv) BEBXEEZEF2EH (iv) Information about major customers

BE-_ZT-_—FR-_T_TF
+—A=+—BItFEE BEH

MEFPEMAEE10%H A LD

WA o

None of the external customers contributed 10% or
more of the Group's revenue during the years ended
31 December 2021 and 2020.
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—Z-_—F+=HA=+—HIEFE For the year ended 31 December 2021
DEEFR () 6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
(v) EEHR (v) Geographical information

AEBZEEMNTBEAM -
M- 5B RENESRE (X
B BREAKEFRDEEN
BRDEREEZHEMEZS -

The Group’s operations are located in the Mainland
China, Singapore, Taiwan and the United States of
America (the “USA"). Information about the Group's
non-current assets is presented based on the
geographical location of the assets.

FREBEE

Non-current assets
—E-—fF —EETF
2021 2020
FTHEx FHIT
HK$°000 HK$'000
Rl A Mainland China 873,724 669,305
AN Singapore 865,482 1,026,721
BB Hong Kong 12,906 676
e The USA — 38,414
1,752,112 1,735,116

Wi ERBEETRERTH AL
ERSBMIA-

Note: Non-current assets excluded deferred tax assets and
financial instruments.
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HE-Z-_—F+=A=1+—HIEFE For the year ended 31 December 2021

H bW A 7. OTHER INCOME
—E-—F —E-FF
2021 2020
TET FHT
HK$’'000 HK$'000
HEREER Continuing operations
RERITZFEMA Interest income from banks 2,561 365
REAK T MEEZENARERZ  Interest income from loan to an
A B U A associate 395 —
REHEMKTEZFBERA Interest income from other
investment 397 451
3,353 816
BT #65 Bh B = Bl Government grant and subsidy
— IRIEH AR D (F5E35) — release from deferred income
(note 35) 20 1,130
— BRI (M) — related to expenses (note i) 7,001 20,218
— B R (M aEii) — related to employment (note i) 22,954 16,981
COVID-19/8 & B = COVID-19-related rent concessions
(B =) (note iii) 29,169 16,495
Ha WA Rental income 757 1,195
AR 75 U A Service income 1,904 5,530
FHIEWA Sundry income 13,712 4,678
78,870 67,043
MizE: SEERHELEEENREIRA Note i: The amount represented financial subsidies received for
7N £ (B4R £ B BF B KR B ) B W B compensating expenses already incurred or giving immediate
T5REE o N0 A BT B KM IR financial support to the Group. There are no unfulfilled
SR EIR - F BN IR R AR R BT R conditions or contingencies in relation to the grants and the
2HEMIFARTE ° grants were determined at the sole discretion of relevant
government authorities.
Mzt B2 -_—F+-A=+—H1IE Note ii: During the year ended 31 December 2021, the government

FE EARESBNRFHES
FR #7003 BR T B B ¥ COVID-195& 1
i AR B A B (TR 5h % 51
2 )EE - 4/518,215,000/% T
(ZZ =% :12,998,000/87T) ° 1%
MENBABEFIREFTSERY %
M¥BBEWREE GhiEERE
KABR) - REBEBEENIBREE
BRI HEEB 25 ATH Uk
Al mIERADHBEBRY - BEXZE
S BN B B S R R A IR s s AR
£IF -

grant related to employment mainly arose from the Job
Support Scheme (“JSS”) introduced by the Singapore
government in response to COVID-19 pandemic of
approximately HK$18,215,000 (2020: HK$12,998,000). The
JSS provided wage support to employers, helping enterprises
retain their local employees (Singapore citizens and
permanent residents). The Group has elected to present this
government grant separately in profit or loss as “other
income”, rather than reducing the related expense. There are
no unfulfilled conditions or contingencies attached to the
receipts of those subsidies.
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7.

—F+=ZA=+—HIFE For the year ended 31 December 2021

OTHER INCOME (CONTINUED)

Note iii:

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group was
eligible for the Rental Support Scheme (the “RSS”) provided
by the Singapore government. The RSS provided rental
support to tenants, helping the small and medium
enterprises grapple with evolving pandemic situation. The
Group has early applied the Amendment to HKFRS 16
COVID-19-Related Rent Concessions beyond 30 June 2021
and applied the practical expedient not to assess whether a
rent concession occurring as a direct consequence of the
COVID-19 pandemic is a lease modification.

Hi W=k EsE 8. OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES
—E=— —ETF
2021 2020
FHExT FHET
HK$'000 HK$°000
BHEKSEEL Continuing operations
b5 (E18) W= F 5 Net foreign exchange (loss) gain (2,874) 1,610
BRBREEATFERE 2 Fair value gain (losses) on financial
CREEATENE (BE) assets at FVTPL 15,243 (2,017)
S RIS - WS K& 2 Net loss on disposal and write-off of
1835 property, plant and equipment (1,188) (183)
HEREEECEETHE Net loss on disposal of intangible
assets — (6,832)
e — R B A E 2 K Gain on disposal of a subsidiary
(B 5 44(b)) (note 44(b)) 51,415 —
£ & ERNFERE (Fi7E25)  Fair value gain on biological assets
(note 25) 8,540 5,361
B R E A (P EE23) Impairment loss on goodwill
(note 23) (46,358) (31,191)
HEE MRz W Gain on lease modification 7,841 —
H At Others 405 728
33,024 (32,524)
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AHAEEEEEAE NZEE 9.

BR - AIREE S

IMPAIRMENT LOSSES UNDER EXPECTED

CREDIT LOSS MODEL, NET OF REVERSAL

—E-—fF —TFTF
2021 2020
FET T T
HK$'000 HK$'000
FREREEK Continuing operations
AT S EER ZBERE ©  Impairment losses recognised on:
— EWE S FIE — Trade receivables (3,886) (1,154)
— HEfbW I RIES — Other receivables and deposits (589) (1,776)
— —fEEE R R — Amount due from an associate (14,514) (12,412)
— HhEauE 5 R 5K — Amounts due from other related
parties (7,086) (1,371)
(26,075) (16,713)

B T (4 A IS BN MY E49 S B R R

Details of impairment assessment are set out in note 49 under

A o “Credit Risk”.
Bl & XA 10. FINANCE COSTS
—E-—F —TTF
2021 2020
FET FHEIT
HK$'000 HK$'000
BEREEK Continuing operations
AMERER Interests on:
— RITEX — Bank loans 10,877 8,017
— RE—EARNMERARZ  — Loans from an intermediate
B holding company 2,382 2,298
HESENE Interests on lease liabilities 21,913 21,120
35,172 31,435
W EREIRER SR Less: Amount capitalised under
construction in progress (997) —
34,175 31,435

221



FAFEREXEEGRLT TONGFANG KONTAFARMA HOLDINGS LIMITED

e M RAR R
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e

11.

222

— = —

—_=_

EE - BRETBRAR - EER
EBREBAEME

REEZESE RRTHRAE - EER
SREEAEMSBE LRARES
N EMEBIFT R E 2 B A K EE & R EE N
TS @

EERBESTBRAEMNE

ENENAE(ZT_SF A8 E
ELRERRTESEAZMENT

—F+=ZA=+—HIFE For the year ended 31 December 2021

11. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S,
EMPLOYEES’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
EMOLUMENTS

Emoluments of directors, chief executive, employees and senior
management for the year, disclosed pursuant to the applicable
disclosures required by the Listing Rules and Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance are as follows:

Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments

The emoluments paid or payable to each of the five (2020:
five) directors and the Chief Executive Officer were as follows:

BE-B--F+t-A=t-HLEE
For the year ended 31 December 2021

¥e/MHE BRRRHHE BHRER
EZhe REMERN 24 SRR Henm
Emoluments paid or payable in respect of
REAREES (FRAH a person’s services as a director, whether Salaries/service Retirement
ARAREME A RAEY) of the Company and fee and other Performance  benefits scheme Total
BEEAAEMFNME its subsidiary undertakings Directors' fees benefits  related bonuses contributions emoluments
T FHT FET T FHT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BRUTERATES: Chief Executive Officer and Executive
Director:
BEN A Mr. Jiang Chaowen 10 1,432 1,098 63 2,603
HTES: Executive Directors:
b Mr. Huang Yu 10 1,664 119 92 1,885
BRELLE (K a) Mr. Wei Bingzhang (note a) - - - - -
ERNEAE (3T b) Mr. Chai Hongjie (note b) — - — — -
REERE(HE o Mr. Bai Pingyan (note ¢) = = = = =
BUKUTES: Independent Non-Executive Directors:
BRELE Mr. Chan Sze Chung 10 105 = = 115
R 7 Mr. Zhang Ruibin 10 105 — - 115
REZEE Mr. Zhang Junxi Jack 10 105 — — 115
50 341 1,217 155 4,833
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EE - BRETBRAR - EER
EREEAEME (B)

HE-Z-_—F+=A=1+—HIEFE For the year ended 31 December 2021

11. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S,

EMPLOYEES' AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
EMOLUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments
(Continued)

HE-Z-Z5+-A=+-HLEE
For the year ended 31 December 2020

5%/ BEE RRRHE RKER
Y0k REMAEF] 2 BHES Hens
Emoluments paid or payable in respect of a
REAETES (TwA person’s services as a director, whether of Retirement
ARRHENBRRAER) the Company and its subsidiary Salaries/service fee Performance  benefits scheme Total
BBENSEMOHE undertakings Directors' fees and other benefits related bonuses contributions emoluments
TAT TAT TET TAT ThAT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BEGTERBTES: Chief Executive Officer and Executive
Director:
Bk Mr. Jiang Chaowen 10 1,543 398 4 1,955
HiTES: Executive Directors:
ik Mr. Huang Yu 10 773 110 44 937
BImE LA (M3 a) Mr. Wei Bingzhang (note a) — — — — —
SRAGEHE D) Mr. Chai Hongjie (note b) = = — — —
BUFHTES: Independent Non-Executive Directors:
REBLE Mr. Chan Sze Chung 10 100 — — 110
Rt 7t Mr. Zhang Ruibin 10 100 = = 110
REEEE Mr. Zhang Junxi Jack 10 100 — — 110
50 2,616 508 43 3,222

ARREBZERESITRABNE M
MEEEEE  ETRZEEARANLT

58Y -

ATBEREBRKEEE  AARR
RELUTSBIEERE

BE_T_—FR-_F-_FF+-A
=+t HILFE  BRAXQFESEX
DLUERREELE NP SLEYSIPN
ARBER IR - NERBEBARE -

The remuneration of directors and the chief executive of the
Company were determined by the remuneration committee
having regard to the performance of individual and market
trends.

Bonus was determined with reference to the Group’s
operating results, individual performance and comparable
market statistics.

No emoluments have been paid to directors of the Company
as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office during the years ended
31 December 2021 and 2020.
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EE - BETBRAE - EER
EREEAEME (B)

ITHRAEME (&)

e
it
X
]
ot

(@ BREEER-_ZT_TFALA=RAE
ZERPTES YR -_FT-—FA
A+ tABERTES -

(b) REREER-_ZT_TFNA=HE
ZERATEZREZTEER °

(©) BYEEHER—_ZE-_—FLA=-++
ZEBRTES °

EEME
AEBREESFMALTHFERE (=

T_TF WMB)BEARAEERERE
HITE  BEZHECRNEXHE - &
BB (CE_TF: ZR)BRFTHMA
TZMEmT

—F+=ZA=+—HIFE For the year ended 31 December 2021

11. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S,

EMPLOYEES’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
EMOLUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments
(Continued)

Notes:

(@) Mr. Wei Bingzhang has been appointed as an executive director
on 3 September 2020 and resigned as an executive director on
27 September 2021.

(b)  Mr. Chai Hongjie has been appointed as an executive director
and as the Chairman of the board of directors on 3 September
2020.

(©) Mr. Bai Pingyan has been appointed as an executive director on
27 September 2021.

Employees’ emoluments

Among the five individuals with the highest emoluments in
the Group, two (2020: two) were the directors and the Chief
Executive Officer of the Company whose emoluments are
included in the disclosure above. The emoluments of the
remaining three (2020: three) highest paid individuals were as
follows:

—E-—F —EFF

2021 2020

FHExT FHE T

HK$'000 HK$'000

e REMBEF Salaries and other benefits 3,348 5,528

BRIRFTE 2040 Performance related bonuses 303 1,941
R ORAE FIFT S 51 Retirement benefits scheme

contributions 182 277

EmEE ARG BEMR 2 F50  Equity-settled share-based payments — 2

3,833 7,748
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EE - BRETBRAR - EER

EREEAEME (A)

EBEM<E (&)

WEZHEN TR TFIAR

11. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S,

EMPLOYEES' AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
EMOLUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Employees’ emoluments (Continued)

Their emoluments were within the following bands:

21,000,000 7T
1,000,001/ 7L 2 1,500,000/ 7T
1,500,001% 7c £ 2,000,000 7T
2,000,001& T £2,500,0007% 7T
B iE2,500,0005% 7T

Nil to HK$1,000,000
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000
Above HK$2,500,000

—E-—fF —EEF
2021 2020
EE®A EE&E
Number of Number of
employees employees
1 —

1 1

1 1

— 1

3 3

HE_ZT-_ k=T -_ZTF+_H8
=t+—HIEFE AEEHRERNAEZR
SEHMA LTI HEMENE - AER TSI
HEMAIRIMARNE B 1% 2 HE) LB

BwmfE -

No emoluments were paid by the Group to the five highest
paid individuals as an incentive payment for joining the Group
or as compensation for loss of office for the years ended
31 December 2021 and 2020.
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HE-Z-_—F+=A=1+—HIEFE For the year ended 31 December 2021

11.

BREEAEME (&)

§$ ES{TBRAE -{EEN 11. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S,

EMPLOYEES’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
EMOLUMENTS (CONTINUED)

SREEAEME Senior management’s emoluments

AEBERERABRFAEEA(ZEZ Among the senior management of the Group, four (2020:
TE MR BARRES  FEZM four) were directors of the Company whose emoluments are
SERLEXBEE BHE_TE=_—F1+= included in the disclosure above. The emoluments of the
A=+—HLtFE HHEmR(ZEZ remaining two (2020: seven) individuals for the year ended

ZE LR ATZBENT

31 December 2021 were as follows:

—E-—F —EETHF
2021 2020
FExT T T
HK$’000 HK$'000
e REMBF Salaries and other benefits 1,598 7,430
BRBFTE Performance related bonuses 227 2,352

BAREFET B4 5K Retirement benefits scheme
contributions 89 355

R iEE ARG BER 25K Equity-settled share-based

payments — 2
1,914 10,139

BEZME N BN THAER -

Their emoluments were within the following bands:

—B-—F —E-FF

2021 2020

EE=A EE#A

Number of Number of

employees employees

#£% 1,000,000/ 7T Nil to HK$1,000,000 1 4
1,000,001 7L % 1,500,000 7T HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 — 1
1,500,001 4702 2,000,000 7 HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1 1
B 82,000,000% 7T Above HK$2,000,000 — 1
2 7
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12. HIE 12. TAXATION
ERERRERNAEHAT - Income tax has been recognised in profit or loss as follows:
—BC-—F —B_TF
2021 2020
THEx FHET
HK$’'000 HK$'000
HERKEEK Continuing operations
BN A 75 18 Current tax
— FEIREMEH — PRC Enterprise Income Tax 8,644 21,813
— FIE L EFTSE — Singapore Corporate Income Tax (33) 30
— BEBLEMEH — Taiwan Corporate Income Tax 5,669 8,028
14,280 29,871
BAEFE (BEEAME) BET R (Over) under provision in prior years
— B EMER — PRC Enterprise Income Tax 27 (1,187)
— N EEH — Singapore Corporate Income Tax (422) —
(395) (1,187)
RIET IR (P EE41) Deferred tax (note 41) (9,658) (8,896)
4,227 19,788
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12. TAXATION (CONTINUED)

HE-Z-_—F+=A=1+—HIEFE For the year ended 31 December 2021
12. HE (&)
PEEEREHR

228

PR EATEHRIERPBRARELEZ K
ST FERRBUR A FTE U 2 B E - BREE T HT
BRARAIZHEBHEIIN NEEBEFHEH
Rt 2 1% B BT B A ) — AR A A R B 1
XS HER25% °

BRMNEHR

REMNGHMASG CEREEERE
28 &8 Ui N 5 428.25% B Bt K &
B REB2ESETH G A K IE
16.5% B RBTH - TR & MARBIFIF
MERZEBEERB Z a NS #EER
16.5% 2 8] —H XK HIE - AREFR
AEBEEBELBEELTRAERT G
A BRI BB AF E TR F BN SR
B(ZE_FTF 8|)-

303 4 35 P 15 Bt

AN AR XS5 M E B 2 fh =t e
RbLE AIR1T %A E -

BELEREH

BELEMEHIMEFE B ER
Bl IR 15% 51 & o

PRC Enterprise Income Tax

The PRC Enterprise Income Tax represents tax charged on the
estimated assessable profits arising in Mainland China. In
general, the Company’s subsidiaries operating in Mainland
China are subject to the PRC Enterprise Income Tax rate of
25% except for certain subsidiaries which are entitled to
preferential tax rates.

Hong Kong Profits Tax

Under the two-tiered profits tax rates regime, the first HK$2
million of profits of the qualifying group entity will be taxed
at 8.25%, and profits above HK$2 million will be taxed at
16.5%. The profits of group entities not qualifying for the
two-tiered profits tax rates regime will continue to be taxed at
a flat rate of 16.5%. No provision for Hong Kong profit tax
was made as the Group did not generate any assessable
profits arising in Hong Kong during the year (2020: Nil).

Singapore Corporate Income Tax

Singapore Corporate Income Tax is calculated at 17% of the
estimated assessable profits for both years.

Taiwan Corporate Income Tax

Taiwan Corporate Income Tax is calculated at 15% of the
estimated assessable profits for both years.
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12. BIE () 12. TAXATION (CONTINUED)
Hith Bz EE Others jurisdictions
BEREHERABELHES ([REE Pursuant to the rule and regulations of the Cayman Islands
TSR B RRG - ANEEHAK and the British Virgin Islands (“BVI"), the Group is not subject
MAEHERABRZHESNEMFAE to any income tax in the Cayman Islands and the BVI.
REEHESZ HHEGEGERREMEME The taxation charge for the year can be reconciled to the loss
WeasRANZ BT ATE B RAT ¢ before taxation per the consolidated statement of profit or

loss and other comprehensive income as follows:

—E-—F —E-TF
2021 2020
TET FHBIT
HK$'000 HK$'000
BHEKEEE Continuing operations
& B R BT 48 Loss before taxation (326) (297)
Tﬁl I*Jﬁﬁ/e TR E25% Tax at the domestic income tax
—E T :25%)HE 2 HE  rate of 25% (2020: 25%) (81) (74)
AR S Bz imEs & Tax effect of expenses not
deductible 11,590 8,302
HERBRIMA Z B2 Tax effect of income not taxable
for tax purpose (16,665) =
RERMIEBE  HIEBELE Tax effect of tax losses not
recognised 15,610 15,933
BEMEZHIETE Tax effect of preferential tax rate (9,410) (14,671)
KERAREREZE 2 RIEFZ Tax effect of deductible temporary
differences not recognised 445 3,437
TEHMEEEER TR R 2 22  Effect of different taxation rates in
other jurisdictions 7,183 8,319
BEFEBRER Overprovision in prior years (395) (1,187)
BRBARER ZHIAEER Utilisation of tax losses previously
not recognised (4,050) (271)
REEHREBESL H Taxation charge for the year 4,227 19,788
Mizk : AKX ERNTREEE T EEE A Note: The domestic tax rate represents the statutory tax rate of the

BZREME

major group companies operating in the PRC.
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HE-Z-_—F+=A=1+—HIEFE For the year ended 31 December 2021

13. XFEFIE 13. LOSS FOR THE YEAR
REFFHBLEEEEERTINME (G Loss for the year from continuing operations has been arrived
AN) BB IBEZER : at after charging (crediting):

—E-—F —E-THF
2021 2020
FET FHEIT
HK$’000 HK$'000
BEREER Continuing operations
BEIRA(BREEER Staff costs (including Directors’ and senior
SREEEMS) management’s emoluments)
— Fre REMKA — Salaries and other costs 167,697 144,166
— BREEARN BER — Equity-settled share-based payments
Z R = 53
— RIREFIFT S5 — Retirement benefits scheme contributions 16,212 11,314
BWETRA Total staff costs 183,909 155,533
W BEENMEZFEESRE Less: amounts capitalised in inventories (31,952) (21,621)
BB TR (FFAEE &R Total staff costs (included in cost of sales and
A - i RIHE R AN services, distribution and selling expenses
THRER) and administrative expenses) 151,957 133,912
BiH R AT E Amortisation and depreciation
— EREEEE — Amortisation of intangible assets
(GTATTHRER) (included in administrative expenses) 10,734 10,914
— REWERE — Depreciation of investment properties
(GFATTHLER) (included in administrative expenses) 166 156
— FREEENE (GTAE  — Depreciation of right-of-use assets
KRS RITEER) (included in cost of sales and services
and administrative expenses) 87,408 79,979
— WE  BERZEITE — Depreciation of property, plant and
(T ASHE RIRTEAK A equipment (included in cost of sales
DR HE B R EITI and services, distribution and selling
=] expenses and administrative expenses) 46,825 34,275
BERITELTE Total amortisation and depreciation 145,133 125,324
ZE R & Auditor’s remuneration
— ZERT — Audit service 4,378 5,468
— EZE R — Non-audit service 1,466 761
BRAEZHZHFEKAE Cost of inventories recognised as expenses 273,075 259,984
FE 5 e (k) F5 Net foreign exchange loss (gain) 2,874 (1,610)
MERESIWA - FIHBZEFH  Property rental income, net of negligible
ZH outgoing expenses (757) (1,195)
TFEMOR (FT ASHE KBRS AN)  Write-down of inventories
(included in cost of sales and services) — 522
EMEREESE GTAEMUEZE R  Impairment loss on goodwill
E51E) (included in other gains and losses) 46,358 31,191
e FEER (G AEMER) Research and development expenses
(included in other expenses) 45,633 35,705
REBEAEZHENIE Lease payments for low-value assets 563 —
MHHIEE 2 HEFIE Lease payments for short-term lease 2,109 58
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R=ZZE—ZTF+—A+=H ARQAZ
EEZEWNBARESHAERAG(E
A RREERER AR ([EH 1)
BEEWmZ((EEWHZE] UREFHEEW
J&B /A & Real Jade Limited ([Real Jadel)
HMEIETRMD ([HERD]) - B
RPERZ I AKI E44()

HEZFR(HEEFHRIR _ZT_FF
tTZAZt—B(x=XBH]) Tl kB
P& 78 B 15 i 5 E R R S SR AF E M E Ay
HRBEERBEUIEERFETHER
IHREXE  AATEREKEREH
HERBARKEES —EXBELHR -

HE-Z-_—F+=A=1+—HIEFE For the year ended 31 December 2021

14. DISCONTINUED OPERATION

On 13 November 2020, Fortunate Gold Limited (the
“Vendor”), a direct wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
and Mingyi Holdings Limited (the “Purchaser”), an
independent third party, entered into a sale and purchase
agreement (the “Sale and Purchase Agreement”) to sell the
entire issued share (the “Sale Share”) of the subsidiary, Real
Jade Limited (“Real Jade”), to the Purchaser. Detailed
information of the transaction is set out in Note 44(a).

The disposal (the “Disposal”) was completed on 21 December
2020 (the “Date of Completion”) and constitutes a
discontinued operation under HKFRS 5 Non-current Assets
Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations as the Disposal
Group, which mainly consisted of the cement business,
represented one of the major lines of business of the Group.
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HE-Z-_—F+=A=1+—HIEFE For the year ended 31 December 2021

14. ERULEREXK (HF) 14. DISCONTINUED OPERATION (CONTINUED)
BRI EEBNREE 2D - Analysis of the results of the discontinued operation:
H_T_TF
—HA—HB=%
SERK B B 2 HARE
Period from
1 January 2020 to
the Date of
Completion
FHIT
HK$'000
WA Revenue 494,486
=933 Expenses (529,173)
FR 75 A1 B3 18 Loss before tax (34,687)
IR Taxation (38,588)
&S B A |l 2 B 18 (M 5E44(a)) Loss on disposal of subsidiaries
(note 44(a)) (122,522)
ERIEREEB 2 RNFR 2B Loss for the year from discontinued
operation (195,797)
EEHEEMA Operating cash inflows 19,930
"ERS R Investing cash outflows (22,330)
BERS WA Financing cash inflows 8,865
e RAFEE Net cash inflows 6,465
i & 5 B P EE A A9 £9122,522,000/8 70 A loss of approximately HK$122,522,000 arose on disposal of
R EEE - BN S EEMETERIER the Disposal Group, being the proceeds of the Disposal less
HEEBTASEMNFEENRAME - the carrying amount of the Disposal Group's net assets to the
HESHEYEELETBERNER - Group. No tax charge or credit arose from the Disposal.
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16.

A IR B 2 G IR B R 54
TR T MIRE H -

15.

HE-Z-_—F+=A=1+—HIEFE For the year ended 31 December 2021

LOSS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic and diluted loss per share
attributable to owners of the Company is based on the
following data:

—E=-—F —TETF
2021 2020
FET T
HK$'000 HK$'000
FRAGTE ARG IREREN Loss for the year for the purposes of
BRERNREEER Y basic and diluted loss per share
FEBE attributable to owners of the
Company
— REFELEER — from continuing operations (15,048) (42,391)
— REBERIEEEFEL — from discontinued operation — (224,773)
(15,048) (267,164)
—E=-—F —T_TF
2021 2020
& 4 gk
Shares Shares
&g S 4] Number of shares
FBAFTES/RERNESEIE  Weighted average number of ordinary
2 AR AN T A B shares for the purposes of basic
and diluted loss per share 5,578,713,777 5,578,713,777

EXHIRZ BB N F A BTN kR
Anw fetn 22 Ehat 8 ([ Ry 82E) st 81 1)
FBZBMERER -

=+ —HILFE - EEEQE%%(T/EE
Hﬁ%&&&%ﬁﬁﬁ*ﬁ%]\lﬂﬁﬁ&%%

BOEE  MEREEERESNER

EAREIE o

Hﬁ/%\
EEeTRBLKNBE_T_—F+=

A=+—HUEFEZRERB(ZE=
TF  4E)

AAANBE-F-—FT-A=+—
I 0 S 4 T (=

16.

The weighted average number of ordinary shares shown
above has been arrived at after deducting the shares held by
the share award scheme of the Company (the “Share Award
Scheme”).

For the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020, diluted
loss per share equals to basic loss per share as the potential

ordinary shares in issue were not included in the calculation
of diluted loss per share because they are anti-dilutive.

DIVIDEND

The Board does not recommend the payment of a final
dividend for the year ended 31 December 2021 (2020: Nil).

No dividend was declared or paid by the Company during the
year ended 31 December 2021 (2020: Nil).
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HE-Z-_—F+=A=1+—HIEFE For the year ended 31 December 2021

17. ¥ - BERRE

17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

GR - %E
BEREEN BELE BEREE ERIE e RE B5%E -t
Furniture,
Buildings and Leasehold Plant and ~ Construction  fixtures and Motor Fitness
structures improvements machinery  in progress  equipment vehicles  equipment Total
TEx T THET TEx TR THET TEx TEx
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
2% cosT
KRZZ-F%-f-H At 1 January 2020 439,175 103,961 310,242 10,077 44,516 12,841 10,365 931,177
EiES Exchange differences 27,595 3,985 19,511 (11,982) 3,768 1,289 655 44,821
hE Additions 296 21,827 14,723 101,993 10,581 1,984 4,504 155,908
i 3 Disposals and write-off (12,852) (13,647) (11,167) (13,578) (5,537) (2,265) (7,037) (66,083)
HEME A A (FrEa4() Disposal of subsidiaries
(note 44(a) (256,562) (3.341) (258,636) (52,262) (9,183) (4,378) — (584,362)
RZZZFF+=A=1+—H At 31 December 2020 197,652 112,785 74,673 34,248 44,145 9471 8,487 481,461
ERZE Exchange differences 5,529 925 1,495 1177 956 343 3,796 14,221
RE Additions 2,782 8,216 20,218 155,385 12,673 1,365 1,004 201,643
ENNR Reclassification 29 19,675 9,348 (29,099) 47 - - -
TS Disposals and write-off (115) (3,274) (1,826) — (1,061) - (2,721) (8,997)
WZZF=—%+=A=+—H At 31 December 2021 205,877 138,327 103,908 161,711 56,760 11,179 10,566 688,328
WERBE DEPRECIATION AND
IMPAIRMENT
RZZ-FF-f-H At 1 January 2020 83,065 41,491 149,674 = 23,036 5,861 6,347 309,474
ERER Exchange differences 11,197 2,859 14,310 — 1,963 372 (597) 30,104
TERRE Provided for the year 8,869 16,009 16,704 = 6,731 1,875 2,841 53,029
TS R 3 4 3 Eliminated on disposals and
write-off (4,912) (12,391) (8,160) = (4,84 (1,268) (2,469) (34,042)
HEMB A A (FiF44() Disposal of subsidiaries
(note 44(a) (70,354) (1,143) (227,49) = (6,135) (2,45) = (307,373)
HE Impairment = = 71,751 = — — — 71,751
WZZZZF+=A=1+—H At 31 December 2020 27,865 46,825 16,783 = 20,753 4,595 6,122 122,943
Efz® Exchange differences 1,246 2,849 563 = 480 118 158 5,414
REEERE Provided for the year 8,851 19,193 7975 — 6,698 1,443 2,665 46,825
FML 6 Jo S 5 4 Eliminated on disposals and
write-off — (3,215) (1,603) — (800) — (1,917) (7,535)
WZEZ—F+ZA=1—H At 31 December 2021 37,962 65,652 23,718 = 27,131 6,156 7,028 167,647
REE CARRYING AMOUNTS
WZZ=—-%+=A=+—H At 31 December 2021 167,915 72,675 80,190 161,711 29,629 5,023 3,538 520,681
WZZZZF+=A=1—H At 31 December 2020 169,787 65,960 57,890 34,248 23392 4,876 2,365 358,518
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TIABEAERE T FRITE - DASHEK
AR BEHERN AL BFRANFIERER:

BFNEEY 2.5%-9%
HEHEE 4.5%—18%
R = K i 25 5%-9%
R - BB REME 9%-20%
RE 18%—33.3%
i &% 14.3%
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HE-Z-_—F+=A=1+—HIEFE For the year ended 31 December 2021

17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(CONTINUED)

The above property, plant and equipment other than
construction in progress are depreciated on a straight-line
method to allocate their costs to their residual values over
their useful lives, which are the following rates per annum:

Buildings and structures 2.5%-9%
Leasehold improvements 4.5%-18%
Plant and machinery 5%-9%
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 9%—-20%
Motor vehicles 18%-33.3%
Fitness equipment 14.3%

The buildings of the Group are situated on the leasehold land
in the PRC.

Impairment assessment

The Group recognised an impairment of HK$71,751,000 on
plant and machineries in cement business included in the
results of the discontinued operation during the year ended
31 December 2020. The management of the Group estimated
the recoverable amounts for these plant and machineries
based on value in use calculation. The Group estimated the
present value of the future cash flows expected to arise from
the CGU containing the plant and machineries of cement
business by discount rate of 13.4% per annum.

Details of the pledge of the Group’s property, plant and
equipment are set out to note 50.

235



FAFEREXEEGRLT TONGFANG KONTAFARMA HOLDINGS LIMITED

e M RAR R
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HE-Z-_—F+=A=1+—HIEFE For the year ended 31 December 2021

18. ERHEEE 18. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS
THERE R ’EHH WAE RE BE g
Land use Fitness Fitness Motor
right  equipment centres Offices vehicles Plant Total
THT THAL T T THET T T
HK$'000 HK$:000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$:000 HK$'000 HK$'000
RZBZ-F+-F=1+-R Asat 31 December 2021
il Carrying amounts 143,064 6,914 402,793 32,879 12 3,580 589,242
RZB-ZE+-H=1-H  As at 31 December 2020
il Carrying amounts 110,470 9,500 506,434 2,630 91 — 629,125
H#Z-F--F+-B=1-H For the year ended 31 December
LEE 2021
TERY Depreciation charge 2,962 1173 79,341 2,847 78 1,007 87,408
BEEELEFBNEY Expense relating to low-value assets 563
BEAREERNRY Expense relating to short-term leases 2,109
RERSRLLE Total cash outflow for leases 99,646
fEREEEL M (FsE) Additions to right-of-use assets
(note) 64,390
HE-ZS-EE+-F=1-H For the year ended 31 December
LEE 2020
FERX Depreciation charge 3,616 78 74,010 2,99 38 = 81,398
BESEEERNAT Expense relating to short-term leases 58
HERSRILAR Total cash outflow for leases 85,306
A AL m (FsE) Additions to right-of-use assets
(note) 168,168
HEMBAR (F144() Disposal of subsidiaries (note 44(a)) 7,483
M : SEREARMIIEEMELNGR Note: Amount includes right-of-use assets resulting from new leases.

REEE -
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HE-Z-_—F+=A=1+—HIEFE For the year ended 31 December 2021

18. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (CONTINUED)

The Group leases various fitness equipment, fitness centres,
offices, motor vehicles and plant for its operation. Lease
contracts are entered into for fixed term of 1 year to 7 years,
but may have extension. The Group assesses at lease
commencement date whether it is reasonably certain to
exercise the extension options. Certain leases of fitness
equipment and motor vehicles were accounted for as finance
leases during the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020
and carried interest ranging from 4% to 16%. Lease terms are
negotiated on an individual basis and contain a wide range of
different terms and conditions. In determining the lease term
and assessing the length of the non-cancellable period, the
Group applies the definition of a contract and determines the
period for which the contract is enforceable.

Land use rights comprise prepaid lease payments for the
leasehold land in the PRC under medium-term lease and is
released on a straight-line basis over the remaining term of
leases.

The lease agreements do not impose any covenants other than
the security interests in the leased assets that are held by the
lessor. Leased assets may not be wused as security for
borrowing purposes.

Details of the pledge of the Group's right-of-use assets are set
out to note 50.
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HE_ZT—_—F+ZA=1+—HIEFE For the year ended 31 December 2021
19. THERAEZRE
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R-ZE-_TF+—-_A=+—H BHE
T RMEXERZEEBRERMRE
BEHEBEABERMRE B AR
13,000,0007T (48 & 7 %£15,471,0007%8
TO) WIS BB R R BEREE B
H RN E XA RS ST
KRB - BIZERKLARE - EFARELL
B ([5z i) 2 T FA#E o

RZZFEZ—F—HA=+=H ' AQFHE
B2 EMBARIKRAR LRI EXSR
RARHEEHENERERMBEE /I
BEEZAMERELZEEGR NG
B % K B A R #25,700,0007t (3% X
B ]) W BBz £t 2 £+ i 4 - RNEB
AETHEEEREREZLE - B9
HeEEED  MIFERE LR
N ZREBEEIMBA - WER
BREE SR S H B AR AR E R
BRERRAIFEREEE] -

19. DEPOSIT FOR LAND USE RIGHT

As of 31 December 2020, a deposit amounting to
RMB13,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$15,471,000)
was paid to Natural Resources and Planning Bureau of Baoji
Hi-tech Industrial Development District* (8 % &= 37 3 i 2= 2 59
Em B RERFIREID) (“Baoji Natural Resources and Planning
Bureau”) for obtaining the land use right of land located at
south side of Keji Xincheng Hi-tech Avenue, east side of
Chuangye Road, and north side of Industrial Avenue, Hi-tech
Industrial Development District, Baoji City, Shaanxi Province,
the PRC* (the “Land”) (% BUBR P& B8 % 1 = 8 FR 100 728 35 5 3%
[ BT S # KB IUA R~ BB LAR - EERE L),

On 22 January 2021, Shaanxi Unisplendour Hi-tech
Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.* (BREESLKSHFEEABRAF]), an
indirect non wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered
into the State-owned Construction Land Use Rights
Assignment Contract (B4 2% A E A HZESR) with Baoji
Natural Resources and Planning Bureau in respect of the
acquisition of land use rights of the Land at a consideration
of RMB25,700,000 (“Consideration”). Upon the acquisition of
the Land through bidding process in the open market, the
deposit paid has been refunded instead of being transferred
to the payment for the land use right. The Consideration was
then paid by two instalment and has been recognised as
“right-of-use assets” upon receipt of title deeds by Shaanxi
Unisplendour Hi-tech Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd*.
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20. REWHE

20. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

T

HK$'000
KA COST
R_T_ZTF—H—H At 1 January 2020 5,142
bE W =% Exchange differences 322
RZZE_ZF+-_A=+—H At 31 December 2020 5,464
bE i =% Exchange differences 152
R-EBE-_—E+=-A=+—H At 31 December 2021 5,616
e DEPRECIATION
RZZE-_ZTF—H—H At 1 January 2020 527
b =% Exchange differences 41
RNEZHBR Charge for the year 156
R_ZE_ZTF+_A=+—H At 31 December 2020 724
bE H, =R Exchange differences 22
AN E bR Charge for the year 166
R-ZEBE_—F+_-_HA=+—H At 31 December 2021 912
BREE CARRYING AMOUNTS
R=—E=——F+=-A=+—H At 31 December 2021 4,704
R-ZE—_ZTFE+=-_A=+—8H At 31 December 2020 4,740
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HE-Z-_—F+=A=1+—HIEFE For the year ended 31 December 2021

21 B8 21. GOODWILL
FHT
HK$'000

BRIEE CARRYING AMOUNT
RZZE-_ZFF—H—H At 1 January 2020 433,600
RAFERERZBEEE Impairment loss recognised in the year (31,191)
ME H =5 Exchange differences 1,856
R_ZE_ZTF+_-_A=+—H At 31 December 2020 404,265
RAFEER BMEEE Impairment loss recognised in the year (46,358)
bE H, =R Exchange differences 875
R-ZB_—+_A=+—H At 31 December 2021 358,782

R 2 R E R FE B R FE23 o Details of impairment assessment on goodwill are set out in
note 23.
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HE-Z-_—F+=A=1+—HIEFE For the year ended 31 December 2021

b3 ¢ BfER ER¥WE [l Bt EFBER HRER ERE4 st
Mining Club Product Franchise Customer Development ~ Computer
right membership license  Trademark  agreement relationship  expenditure  software Total
THET THET TR THET THET THET TR THET TR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
(Mt a) (Mt b)
(note a) (note b)
2% costT
WZZ=ZF-A—-H At 1 January 2020 11,249 278 6,536 92,876 195,316 17,422 47,463 173 371,313
ERER Exchange differences 703 = 409 = = — 4,345 40 5,497
RE Additions — — = — — — 8,779 1,527 10,306
HE Disposal = = = = = = (9,840) - (9,840)
HEME A A (FrEa4() Disposal of subsidiaries
(note 44(a)) (11,952) — — — — - N o (11,952)
At 31 December 2020 - 278 6,945 92,876 195,316 17,422 50,747 1,740 365,324
Exchange differences = = 245 = = = 343 (40) 548
Additions — — 3411 — - — 18,313 2,050 23,774
Disposal of a subsidiary
(note 44(b)) — — — — — — (56,728) o (56,728)
WZZZ—F+ZA=+—H At 31 December 2021 - 278 10,601 92,876 195,316 17,422 12,675 3,750 332,918
5 AMORTISATION
RZZ-%5-f-A At 1 January 2020 3,024 - 1,092 — 16,820 9,001 7,085 o 37,022
EREE Exchange differences 204 = 781 = = - 381 35 1,401
REEMBR Charge for the year 286 — 110 — 6,510 3,484 807 3 11,200
HE Disposal — — — — — — (1,998) — (1,998)
HERE A A (E44() Disposal of subsidiaries
(note 44(a)) (3,514) = = = = = = = (3,514)
RZZZFFFZA=+—H At 31 December 2020 — — 1,983 — 23,330 12,485 6,275 38 44111
ERER Exchange differences = = 67 = = — 175 36 218
REEMR Charge for the year = = 719 = 6,510 3,485 - 20 10,734
WZZZ—F+ZA=+—H At 31 December 2021 - - 2,769 - 29,840 15,970 6,450 9% 55,123
REE CARRYING AMOUNTS
WZZ=—F+-A=1—H At 31 December 2021 - 278 7,832 92,876 165,476 1,452 6,225 3,656 271,795
RZZZZE+ZA=+—H At 31 December 2020 = 218 4,962 92,876 171,986 4,937 44472 1702 321213
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22. B EE (&)
GEE
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(b)  PAFERUEETFKT True Holdings ([True
Cayman]) X K B 2 & ([True
Cayman%E [ ]) 251% % 4 ([ Truellt
BEE|R® AfEmE2ERHINZER
BRARREKNBAF ([True Yogate
B ) B RIRER A B R
ZHEBREN BT —tFHA
—+NBRAH304  MTrue Yogate
B ASNEHEE - ARAES
R A e A A R AT
LBEIHENAOERAR  TEK#E
TEE R A 3750 A F BT -
REBEEZE-_T-_—F+=-HA=+—HL
FE ERBIAFFES KA
37,796,000 T (Z T =& F :
53,518,000/ 7T) °

REERAERFH EMERNEE
SN BB EREAVER A T HATE #8H -

PRI 504F
EmET A& 5-74F
FEET ek 304
EEBIE 54
HEEH 10-184F
B 34
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22. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (CONTINUED)

Notes:

(@) The Group's trademark has a definite legal term but is continually
renewable upon expiry at minimal cost. The directors of the
Company are of the opinion that the Group would renew the
trademark continuously and has the ability to do so. As a
result, the trademark is considered by the directors of the
Company as having an indefinite useful life because it is
expected to contribute to net cash inflows indefinitely. The
useful life of trademark with indefinite life is reviewed annually
to determine whether the indefinite life assessment continues
to be supportable. If not, the change in the useful life
assessment from indefinite to finite is accounted for on a
prospective basis. The trademark will not be amortised until its
useful life is determined to be finite. Instead it will be tested
for impairment annually and whenever there is an indication
that it may be impaired. Particulars of the impairment testing
are disclosed in note 23.

(b) Upon completion of the acquisition of 51% equity interest in
TFKT True Holdings (“True Cayman”) and its subsidiaries (the
“True Cayman Group”) (the “True Acquisition”), the Group
grants and provides True Yoga Holdings Limited and its
subsidiary (“True Yoga Group”) with non-exclusive rights to
operate the franchise business in Taiwan for a term of 30 years
commencing from 29 May 2017 and True Yoga Group shall
pay a monthly franchise fee. The directors of the Company
determined the useful life of the franchise agreement to be
same as the contractual period of the franchise agreement and
an annual review has been performed to support the useful life
assessment. During the year ended 31 December 2021, royalty
fee income of HK$37,796,000 (2020: HK$53,518,000) is
recognised.

Other than the club membership and trademark, which have
indefinite useful lives, the intangible assets are amortised on a
straight-line basis over the following periods:

Mining right 50 years
Product license 5-7 years
Franchise agreement 30 years
Customer relationship 5 years
Development expenditure 10-18 years
Computer software 3 years
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HE-Z-_—F+=A=1+—HIEFE For the year ended 31 December 2021

23. IMPAIRMENT ASSESSMENT ON GOODWILL

AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS

For the purposes of impairment assessment of goodwill, the
carrying amount of goodwill in note 21 have been allocated
to two groups of CGUs as follows:

—E-—F —E-FTF
2021 2020
FHET T
HK$’000 HK$'000
BERHER T ENERE Manufacturing and sales of
HEEER([EARAD) prescription drugs and laboratory
related products (“Unit A”) 220,356 219,481
e 5 AR & Operating fitness centres and
2 BR =5 5 AR 75 DA R A8 2 s & providing consultation services
X ABGBRTERE A for fitness and health activities and
([#84zB]) operating the franchise business
for royalty fee income (“Unit B"”) 138,426 184,784
358,782 404,265

SBEFENS EEREREZY
X BELRE BYEERERESR
ERRBREFXEENK) BZRMEMB
2 Nt ARRIREEEEN -

B R 22 P 2 AN SR B 2E G °F P °8 M R 3
B BEXBcETEERENEM
T fE R R AR BT R R R 3
EEEBRAR(RTEE]) 260% K
EREANBEEIEZEEERAX
SEK B A B R MG R RHIERA -

For the purpose of impairment assessment, property, plant and
equipment, intangible assets and right-of-use assets (including
allocation of corporate assets) that generate cash flows
together with the related goodwill are also included in the
respective CGU.

Product license and development expenditure of the Group as
set out in note 22, certain production facilities and related
land use rights in the pharmaceutical business and goodwill
arising as a result of the acquisition of 60% of the equity
interest in Tongfang Pharmaceutical Group Co., Ltd*
(“Tongfang Pharmaceutical”) in prior years are allocated to
Unit A which management expected the Group would benefit
from the synergies of the combination.
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23. HEREBFEERENE (F&)
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23.

IMPAIRMENT ASSESSMENT ON GOODWILL
AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS (CONTINUED)

Trademark, franchise agreement, computer software and
customer relationship of the Group as set out in note 22,
certain leased and owned fitness facilities in the fitness
business and goodwill arising as a result of the completion of
True Acquisition in prior years are allocated to Unit B which
management expected the Group would benefit from the
synergies of the combination.

To support the management to determine the recoverable
amount of CGUs as at 31 December 2021, the Company
engaged independent professional valuers to perform the
valuation. The basis of determining the recoverable amounts
of the above CGUs and their major underlying assumptions
are summarised below:

The recoverable amounts of the above CGUs have been
determined based on a value in use calculation. That
calculation uses expected cash flow projections based on
financial budgets approved by the management covering a
five-year period, and discount rates for Unit A and Unit B are
14.62% and 18.69% respectively (2020: 15.02% and
18.58% for Unit A and Unit B respectively). The average
annual revenue growth rates for the first five-year period are
19.8% (2020: 14.0%) for Unit A and 9.0% (2020: 9.8%) for
Unit B. The cash flows beyond the five-year period are
extrapolated using a steady growth rate of 3% for both Unit
A and Unit B (2020: 3% for both Unit A and Unit B). These
growth rates are based on the forecasts of the relevant
industries and do not exceed the average long-term growth
rate for the relevant industries. Other key assumptions for the
included budgeted operating
expenses and their related cash inflows and outflows patterns,
estimated based on the units’ historical performance and the
management’s expectation of the market development and the
impact of COVID-19.

value in use calculations
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23.

HE-Z-_—F+=A=1+—HIEFE For the year ended 31 December 2021

IMPAIRMENT ASSESSMENT ON GOODWILL
AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS (CONTINUED)

Management of the Group determined that there were no
impairment on Unit A containing goodwill during the years
ended 31 December 2021 and 2020 as the recoverable
amount of Unit A as at 31 December 2021 of approximately
HK$1,083,787,000 (2020: HK$815,093,000) is higher than its
carrying amount with headroom of approximately
HK$370,256,000 (2020: HK$166,390,000). Management
believes that any reasonably possible change in any key
assumptions would not cause the recoverable amount of Unit
A to fall below its carrying amount.

Due to the outbreak of the COVID-19 pandemic in the second
quarter of 2021 in Singapore and Taiwan, the operation of
the fitness centres in these two regions were suspended for
approximately 10 weeks and 9 weeks respectively, which
resulted increase in segment loss for the six months ended 30
June 2021. The directors of the Company have consequently
determined impairment indicator exist for Unit B. Based on the
assessment performed at 30 June 2021, the recoverable
amount of Unit B as at 30 June 2021 is determined to be
approximately HK$504,333,000. The carrying amount of Unit
B has been reduced to the recoverable amount and
accordingly, an impairment loss on goodwill of approximately
HK$46,358,000 (year ended 31 December 2020:
HK$31,191,000), which represented 51% (the Company's
initial shareholding in the Singapore fitness business) of the
impairment loss of approximately HK$90,899,000 (year ended
31 December 2020: HK$61,159,000), has been recognised
and included in profit or loss in other gains and losses for the
six months ended 30 June 2021. Based on the assessment
performed at 31 December 2021, the recoverable amount of
Unit B as at 31 December 2021 is determined to be
approximately HK$557,461,000 (2020: HK$601,446,000)
which is higher than its carrying amount with headroom of
approximately HK$54,730,000. There were no additional
impairment nor reversal in Unit B subsequent to the
impairment loss of HK$46,358,000 recognised in interim
period. No write-down of other assets of Unit B is considered
necessary. Management believes that any reasonably possible
change in any key assumptions would not cause the
recoverable amount of Unit B to fall below its carrying
amount. Management believes that the COVID-19 pandemic
will be gradually getting under control, more people tend to
improve their health and wellness through exercise and an
increasing number of consumers are opting to return to gyms,
which will boost the revenue and profitability of Unit B.
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24, A—EBE LRI ZER 24. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE
—E-—F —EETHF
2021 2020
FET F7& 7T
HK$'000 HK$'000
KERA  FELE™ Cost of investment, unlisted 21,640 21,640
FEAE W12 R Share of post-acquisition reserves (21,640) (21,640)

AEERRERR2E—BEQF BN
Eﬁxﬁ%EﬂﬁﬁXiz BERIERBR

The Group’s only associate at the end of the reporting period

NFE] o REBINERBR AR Z229% /%
AESRENR _ZT—+tFEREA-_tNHMH
ANEBEUEE - True Yogale BEA K
LSRR O RBHRES MR RSN
fR7% - 2 EEPNIER AR A A 2 B0
S 8

is True Yoga Holdings Limited which was incorporated in the
Cayman Islands. 29% equity interest in True Yoga Holdings
Limited was acquired by the Group on 29 May 2017. True
Yoga Group is engaged in operating fitness centres and
providing consultation services for fitness and health activities
in Taiwan. Details of True Yoga Holdings Limited is as
follows:

AEEES
ARER it BEHH BREMER RRE ERREER TEXK
Place of Place of Paid up Effective equity interest
Name of company registration operations registered capital Voting power attributable to the Group Principal activities
B “2-FF -“B--F "Z°%F
2021 2020 2021 2020
% % % %
2ERPERERRE  HEHES =) 165,245,000 & 29 29 29 29 REZK
True Yoga Holdings Cayman Islands Taiwan New Taiwan dollar Investment holding
Limited 165,245,000

AREBEEHAEREEBMIIERERER
BE-_ZTZ-_—F+-A=1+— Eliiﬁ
Z%%azzzmoooﬂ%n(—:f?i
12,622,000 7T) - —EZ—F
+=—A=+— EIZE%.:HREE RIEAL B 18
Bl 548,641,000 T (=T T F :
26,411,000/ 7T) °

The Group has not recognised loss for the year ended
31 December 2021 amounting HK$22,230,000 (2020:
HK$12,622,000) for True Yoga Holdings Limited and the
accumulated unrecognised share of loss as at 31 December
2021 amounted to HK$48,641,000 (2020: HK$26,411,000).
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AEEREEREEERIBEER -
R=ZE=——F+=-—A=+—H" Nil
A 49271,000ENE (= -2 F ¢
246,000 /N8R - HERXEMIGERE
REBEE—_ZT-_—F+-_A=+—HLHF
B8RP R LT AUk 2 & &
BR AT AW A8,540,000/8 L (=
—F4 :5361,000/87T) °
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25. BIOLOGICAL ASSETS

The Group is engaged in breeding and selling of laboratory

mice. As at 31 December 2021,

the Group owns

approximately 271,000 mice (2020: 246,000 mice) which had
a fair value gain of HK$8,540,000 (2020: HK$5,361,000),
with reference to their market prices, recognised in profit or
loss and included in other gains and losses for the year ended

31 December 2021.

FHEIT
HK$'000
RZE=ZTF—H—H At 1 January 2020 10,447
AZEE Increase due to breeding 52,370
HEE TR Decrease due to sale/mortality (56,074)
EERESHERQAFERBEERANES) Gain arising from changes in fair value less
i EE A B IR & costs to sell attributable to price change 5,361
bE i =% Exchange difference 742
RZEBEZZFEF+-_A=+—HEFK At 31 December 2020 and 1 January 2021
—E_—%—H—H 12,846
EHEF 1 m Increase due to breeding 63,991
HEE LR Decrease due to sale/mortality (68,391)
EHEREZESHEH N VERHEEKNE Gain arising from changes in fair value less
i /2 4E ) W 2 costs to sell attributable to price change 8,540
b W =% Exchange difference 58
RN-ZE-—&FE+=-A=+—~” At 31 December 2021 17,044

~
-

NEDBEARKR BEEEHHEER
IF R —FARAHE  BDEAREE
EeBRNBEZAFEREMSHEL
PEEATFESEHE=H - HERITE
F—EERAETEST - NMEFTED
BEMNATER  EMEENZS M&
ERBAENRAR -

Mice are classified as immature until they are ready for sale
and classified as current assets if they are to be sold within
one year. The fair value of laboratory mice is categorised into
level 3 of the fair value hierarchy under market comparable
approach. There has been no change from the valuation
technique used in the prior year. In estimating the fair value
of the biological assets, the highest and best use of the

biological assets is their current use.
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26. F& 26. INVENTORIES
—EB-—&F — T T F
2021 2020
THET FAT
HK$’000 HK$'000
FER Raw materials 29,502 24,600
& Work in progress 35,687 31,985
2URK i Finished goods 46,957 33,375
112,146 89,960

27.

248

FA - FEKAN D RI273,075,0007%8 7T
NEBHBT(ZZZZF : 259,984,000/
JC 307,484,000 ) ERER ARISE
MEEBREDRIECEXEBRT - 52
—E- -+ HA=+—HItEE " #H
R EEFEREERKE  AEEE
MIFECEEBERTERESET
(ZZE—F4 : 522,000/ 7T) °

During the year, cost of inventories of HK$273,075,000 and
HK$Nil (2020: HK$259,984,000 and HK$307,484,000) are
recognised as expenses for continuing operations and
discontinued operation respectively. During the year ended
31 December 2021, the Group has recognised an allowance
for inventories of HK$Nil (2020: HK$522,000) for continuing
operations due to drop in net realisable value below cost.

EWE S MKIE 27. TRADE RECEIVABLES
—E-—F —EFF
2021 2020
FE T FHETT
HK$'000 HK$'000
EUE 5 5E Trade receivables 142,301 179,906
B EEEBERE Less: Allowance for credit losses (2,355) (2,782)
JEURE 5 5B 58 Net trade receivables 139,946 177,124
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27. EWE ZRIE ()

BREBRIESSFBERERREE
NEE RN E S IEN - NEE Z R
RETHESEF—HKNTF30E2180K
ZEEH RBREHRERBEZAHE
52 FEWE 5508 Bk EEEIERE)
ZERESITUT

HE-Z-_—F+=A=1+—HIEFE For the year ended 31 December 2021

27. TRADE RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)

Other than the trade receivables in relation to the payment to
be settled through credit cards for customers in fitness
business, the Group has a policy of allowing its trade
customers credit periods normally from 30 to 180 days. The
aged analysis of trade receivables, net of allowance for credit
losses, is presented based on the invoice date at the end of
the reporting period as follows:

—E-—fF —EEF

2021 2020

THET FE T

HK$’000 HK$'000

0ZF90K 0 to 90 days 85,918 111,417
91 & 180K 91 to 180 days 25,617 42,273
181%F 365K 181 to 365 days 21,791 10,668
BiB1F Over 1 year 6,620 12,766
139,946 177,124

NR-ZB-—F+=-HA=+—8 ' B:itA
EWE ZHIBEEARASERARE
W 2= 156,364,000 L (ZE —_F F :
5,274,000/ 7) F tERREHENE S
RIEZ A - REBRIFERREERER
HE2REREE - 1B ERKEE 2R
BHRELVR—F -

BRAEWE ZFIERES G ZFBEER
BifsE49 o

As at 31 December 2021, included in total trade receivables
are bills receivable amounting to HK$6,364,000 (2020:
HK$5,274,000) held by the Group for future settlement of
trade payables. The Group continues to recognise their full
carrying amounts at the end of the reporting period. All bills
receivables are with a maturity period of less than one year.

Details of impairment assessment of trade receivables are set
out in note 49.
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—F+=ZA=+—HIFE For the year ended 31 December 2021

28. CONTRACT COSTS

—E_—F —E-FF

2021 2020

FHExT T T

HK$’000 HK$'000

B ER Current 5,048 5,958
JEENER Non-current 908 1,784
5,956 7,742

AEEHRENS S8 RAAIIKR
REARARE D02 EEANELY
ERZEEBERS -

BN EREE S EHE RAAG
MARWABER GG ESREMEME
WaREREDEREEER 2 — %
B FRN  RBERERZERNEK A
£ 853,138,000 L (ZE =_Z F :
4,690,000/ 7T) © B ALK A 2 F )45
BRSF N E AN A R E - TEER S
R—FANERZENRAEDERERE
BE o

HWASEREEAZEESRFENR—F
HAR - AIRNEEERBEREE XA
RS EEESRERILAIRREZA
M2 BRRIBX AR ELR R R

The Group incurred incremental sales commission to
employees in connection with obtaining contracts with
customers for use of fitness centres, in the form of monthly
membership and personal training classes.

Contract costs are recognised as part of distribution and
selling expenses in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income in the period in which
revenue from the related membership sales and personal
training classes are recognised. The amount of capitalised
costs recognised in profit or loss during the year was
HK$3,138,000 (2020: HK$4,690,000). There was no
impairment in relation to the opening balance of capitalised
costs or the costs capitalised during the year. Contract costs
that are expected to be recognised within one year have been
classified as current assets.

The Group applies the practical expedient and recognises the
incremental costs of obtaining contracts relating to the sale of
membership and personal training classes as an expense when
incurred if the amortisation period of the assets that the
Group otherwise would have recognised is one year or less.
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29. B EWIE - IRE LB 29. OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS AND

b1 | PREPAYMENTS
—E-—fF —TFTF
2021 2020
FHxT FAT
HK$’'000 HK$'000
MR Rt 2 2K Advance to suppliers 41,425 31,799
[EENE&0 Deposits paid 7.313 5,909
TET R Prepayments 5,821 2,548
H th & W KA Other receivables 21,029 16,306
JE YR B A Interest income receivable 44 247
75,632 56,809
HMEWHIERIZES 2 BB FFIBE Details of impairment assessment of other receivables and
HIEE49 © deposits are set out in note 49.

30. ZFERERERALAFEEE2E 30. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FVTPL, OTHER

MmEE - HRE INVESTMENT
—E=-—F —T_FTF
2021 2020
s FBT FHT
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B 7 E BB REAF  Financial assets mandatorily
BEEEEZLMEE .  measured at FVTPL:
REA LM ZRAES Equity security listed
in Hong Kong (a) = 8,501
HRE Other investment (b) 16,000 20,473
EHAig B 2R ER A FFIBEES N M FE49 o Details of impairment assessment of other investment are set

out in note 49.
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30. EBERKREATFEREZSE

31.
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BMEE - HtbiRE (&)
GEE
@ BAES

BAFSRATFEIE  MZAFE
TRBERBEXZMMBZHSE
ABETE °

() HERE

RERBITRIZELES - EEH
RABBREABE - BRBAKRE
RERME - ARBERSEZESE
el

ERHFBRTER - REREAE
EEY

ZRHERITER

R-ZE-_—F+-_A=+—8  #Hws
A B S 3R R B RE53(b) [ 31 A = 1H | P #it
E o MATEEERRARIZHBARIZ &
BEEEFEBANSREE  RE TR
1T 482 #96,205,000/8 7 (ZE T 4F :
) o

RERBTEEY

AEERB 2 RITHERIIE TG M E5
B FERESN F0.00%%E0.35% (ZF
—Z4F :0.00%%20.30%) °

BIRBIRITE R RIRTT G ERBUE R AR
TEE R E49

30.

31.

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FVTPL, OTHER
INVESTMENT (CONTINUED)

Notes:
(@) Equity securities

Equity securities are stated at fair value which is determined
based on the quoted market bid price available on the relevant
stock exchanges.

(b) Other investment

Amount represented a fixed interest fund set up by a bank.
The fund will be matured in six months from its subscription
with guaranteed return of principal and interest. The Group
intends to hold the fund until maturity.

RESTRICTED BANK DEPOSITS, CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS

Restricted bank deposits

As at 31 December 2021, bank balances of approximately
HK$6,205,000 (2020: Nil) were frozen by two of the financial
institutions which were related to the Shanghai Legal
Proceedings against a Company’s subsidiary as disclosed in
note 53(b) “Contingencies” of these consolidated financial
statements.

Cash and cash equivalents

Bank balances held by the Group carried interest at market
rates which range from 0.00% to 0.35% (2020: 0.00% to
0.30%) per annum.

Details of impairment assessment of restricted bank deposits
and bank balances are set out in note 49.
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32. ERESRERERE 32. TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES
RBERARENEZHHES 2 AEH An aged analysis of the Group’s trade and bills payables,
ENESRERERZEREDTIT presented based on the invoice date, at the end of the

33.

reporting period is as follows:

—E—— —TFF
2021 2020
FET FHT
HK$'000 HK$'000
0ZE90K 0 to 90 days 16,262 45,510
912180k 91 to 180 days 17,021 6,913
1812365k 181 to 365 days 687 3,749
3814 Over 1 year 5,299 3,223
39,269 59,395
BEERRRBEHEEHR30E180 The credit period on purchases of goods and services is 30 to
R RNEERBUBRARERBE - A 180 days. The Group has financial risk management policies in
BWRAEERNRENMEERREE - place to ensure that all payables are settled within the credit
timeframe.
HttENREREWES 33. OTHER PAYABLES AND DEPOSITS RECEIVED
—E-—F —E_TF
2021 2020
FTHEx FHET
HK$’'000 HK$'000
BEWE  BENMREBEMZIE Payables for acquisition of property,
plant and equipment 8,329 13,218
H fth fE 1~ 1518 Other tax payables 8,324 6,321
o FE A 5RI8 (M EE) Other payables (note) 43,606 39,155
HMEt g Other accrued operating expenses 14,752 20,225
FE S MKEE Rental and utilities payables 44,038 44,071
BEtESER Accrued expenses for advertising 687 40
JE A1 B Interest payable 169 242
119,905 123,272
Mizt: W-ZT-_—F+-_HA=+—H "t Note: As at 31 December 2021, included in other payables mainly
A E b FE A 5RIE A & 78 & B f5 B8 represented the quality guarantee deposit of approximately
424,026,000 T(ZE = F HK$24,026,000 (2020: HK$18,232,000) for pharmaceutical
£ 118,232,000/ 70) M & 2 1R & business.
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34. RITEE 34. BANK BORROWINGS
—E-—F —EFTF
2021 2020
THET FHEIT
HK$’'000 HK$'000
RITER Bank loans 243,802 196,777
B A Secured 167,046 104,364
A Unsecured 76,756 92,413
243,802 196,777
FRITEEZ B EBERADT The maturity profile of the above bank borrowings is as
follows:
—E-—fF —TTHF
2021 2020
FHET FHET
HK$'000 HK$'000
RITERZRASBEAEEE The carrying amount of bank loans
AR are repayable as follows:
—F R Within one year 226,705 167,627
—F LA E BB BMRF More than one year but not
exceeding two years 6,933 29,150
MF LA _E BB R R T More than two years but not
exceeding five years 10,164 —
243,802 196,777
B —FRB SR ER K Less: Amounts due within one year or
T ARE) B E 2 KIE on demand and shown under
current liabilities (226,705) (167,627)
—F R LA EREAME  Amounts due after one year and
ZFRIB shown under non-current liabilities 17,097 29,150
RZEZ—FR_ZB-_ZFF+H As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, all bank borrowings were
=+—H FARTEEAARE RS denominated in RMB and SGD with fixed borrowing interest
METEE - BEBEMENF2.70% rates range between 2.70% and 4.65% (2020: range
F465%(ZFE_FF : N F2.69%F between 2.69% and 5.66%).
5.66%) °
AEBAESFETERMKIF 2 EEF Details of the assets of the Group pledged to secure bank
TEH R FE50 © loans are set out in note 50.
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35. DEFERRED INCOME

IR I 478 B

Government

grant

FHET

HK$'000

R-ZEZZTF—-—H—H At 1 January 2020 1,120
bE H, =R Exchange differences 10
REREER (M5E7) Recognised in profit or loss (note 7) (1,130)
R-_ZE_TF+_-_A=+—H At 31 December 2020 —
NE Additions 14,590
MEH =5 Exchange differences 222
RIEz=RFER (M7E7) Recognised in profit or loss (note 7) (20)
RN-ZE-—&FE+=-A=+—H At 31 December 2021 14,792

AT R SRS E 2 B A DT -

The following is the analysis of the deferred income for
financial reporting purposes:

—E-—F —E-FF

2021 2020

FET T T

HK$'000 HK$'000

EREEE Non-current liabilities 14,550 —
mBARE Current liabilities 242 —
14,792 =

ZNE =TS iWEHﬁZHXE&ZV%ﬁB)JZ’J
12,783, 000/%71:&1 807,000 7T -
BIEEER ME’JELEXﬁ&%E%F
BRI - Z B ERR/ELT R A
VEFEEHEEENERFHZERR
REEMBU AL -

During the year, the Group received government subsidies of
approximately HK$12,783,000 and HK$1,807,000 towards the
cost of construction of its production facilities and purchase of
certain equipment respectively. These subsidies have been
recognised as deferred income and transfer to profit or loss as
“other income” over the useful lives of the relevant assets.
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EFE W A (%)

—F+=ZA=+—HIFE For the year ended 31 December 2021

35. DEFERRED INCOME (CONTINUED)

MR TRRMNAERD  FAEEERE There was no transfer to profit or loss for the government
TREBACBE#H TSR = EBmiR subsidy relating to the construction of production facilities
F oo SERERBTMBNE ZG4E during the year as the construction is still in progress. The

ERAR LA REEAED
BRRETE -

XA EE primary condition for qualifying this government subsidy is the

completion of construction of production facilities which
management consider there is reasonable assurance the Group
would comply with.

REEER WERWEEBEEERE At end of reporting period, there is no unfulfilled condition
Z BRSBTS 2 - - NEENE attached to the government subsidy for purchase of
BEXEREMER ZBATEE - equipment and there is no other form of government

BRERE

assistance from which the Group has directly benefited.

36. CONTRACT LIABILITIES

—E-—F —EFF
2021 2020
FET FHEIT
HK$'000 HK$’000

RER SO REHRES M
i B % s AR 7%

HRERHER T ENRERE
6 B8 EE an

Operation of fitness centres and

provision of consultation services

for fitness and health activities 35,985 43,606
Manufacture and sale of prescription

drugs and laboratory related

products 57,010 65,103
92,995 108,709
i) Current 92,995 108,709
BT EEASBEREERARNEE Contract liabilities, that are not expected to be settled within
ZEHNBERBEASEERNEFEZEM the Group’s normal operating cycle, are classified as current
SRz EEREESERRE RIERE and non-current based on the Group’s earliest obligation to
BfE- transfer goods or services to the customers.
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BREE(E)

BHABRERERIMAIIRRIESL
HER 7 B B R =R E MR
R RFREFERBANEE BEER

FTECERANEESENAL MK
AT

RERghPORREHAESNEE
w5 o8 PR %5

BENEREERRLAIRREZRHE
—ERBEBDMEE SRS EKRE
RBAZARWER -

RENGEERLERERZHEA
Em

AEBEZRETEFPRHEAMPZRE - 1
REMRFEEH AR EZS - HR
BHHNEHANARE  EEMEBEYN
FtER s BB T S5

FAFABGNEAEREE_T-—F
T A=+ HULEFENERERAKSA
108,709,000 T (Z &2 =T &F
51,864,000/8 7T) °

HE-Z-_—F+=A=1+—HIEFE For the year ended 31 December 2021

36. CONTRACT LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)

Contract liabilities represent advances received for the
membership packages or personal training or for sales of
prescription drugs and laboratory related products. These
advances are recognised as contract liabilities until the
transactions are completed.

Typical payment terms which impact on the amount of
contract liabilities recognised are as follows:

Operation of fitness centres and provision of
consultation services for fitness and health
activities

Transaction price is always received in advance for prepaid
membership packages or personal training classes and this will
give rise to contract liabilities in which revenue has not been
recognised.

Manufacturing and sale of prescription drugs
and laboratory related products

The Group requires certain customers to provide upfront
deposits. A deposit received before the goods have been
delivered to the designated location will give rise to contract
liabilities at the start of a contract until the revenue
recognised on the relevant contract exceeds the amount of
the deposit.

Revenue recognised during the year ended 31 December 2021

that was included in the contract liabilities at the beginning of
the year is HK$108,709,000 (2020: HK$51,864,000).
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7. BRA 37. SHARE CAPITAL
f&1n & B EE
Number of
shares Value
FHT
HK$’000
SREE0.002F T2 E B Ordinary shares of HK$0.002 each
EE Authorised
N_E_TF—H—A- At 1 January 2020, 31 December
—ZE-FTF+-—A=+—HFK 2020 and 31 December 2021
- —%+=-A=+—H 100,000,000,000 200,000
ERTRAR Issued and fully paid
NA—_ET_FTF—H—H" At 1 January 2020, 31 December
—FE-ZFF+_A=+—HK 2020 and 31 December 2021
T —F+=-H=+—H 5,588,571,777 11,177

38.

258

R-ZBE-_—F+_-_A=+—8" BKH
REET 835 H 2 R 1D 4 259,858,000
f% (== ==4 : 9,858,0000%) °

fBRRERT

R Az R El ([FERRERTE ) R
—T——FNA-+/\HERH  FE-
E)J/,\%J%$%l1’ﬁﬂjaliﬁ RIZEFNS

BUBEERGEBEESM AR IE

CARRANIEBAEEEE 2 AT
éf/ﬁ EEgnFAEBEHNBERNER
RBENKE  REFHEHAEEED
EHEE TR - kERTIELS - 1735
HBLEMEEEEERABEASEE
BEANBRZEMENAL  BIAEE
EFRAKERAFRIZEE SHABKE R
P ERRKR (BEAEEEHAKE
RAZEAMBITHIERNTES) - BT
AIREBAR ARG 2 BIRHE - BARERT
ST ——F—B+\BEBF+FR
B WER-_Z-_—_F—A++HE
i ©

38.

As at 31 December 2021, the aggregated number of shares
held for the Share Award Scheme was 9,858,000 (2020:
9,858,000).

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The share option scheme of the Company (the “Share Option
Scheme”) was adopted on 28 April 2011 for the purpose of
providing incentives to participants to contribute to the Group
and to enable the Group to recruit and retain high-calibre
employees and attract and retain human resources that are
valuable to the Group. The board of directors may grant an
option to subscribe for the shares in the Company to any
individual being an employee, officer, agent, consultant or
representative of any members of the Group (including any
executive or non-executive director of any member of the
Group) who, as the board of directors may determine in its
absolute discretion, has made valuable contribution to the
business of the Group based on his/her performance, years of
service, or is regarded to be a valuable human resource of the
Group based on his/her working experience, knowledge in the
industry and other relevant factors. The Share Option Scheme
shall be valid and effective for a period of ten years
commencing from 18 January 2012 and has been expired on
17 January 2022.
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38. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED)

The limit on the total number of the Company’s shares which
may be issued upon exercise of all outstanding options
granted and yet to be exercised under the Share Option
Scheme and any other share option scheme(s) of the
Company (excluding lapsed or cancelled options) must not
exceed 30% of the total number of the Company’s shares in
issue from time to time. In addition, the total number of the
Company’s shares which may be issued upon exercise of all
options to be granted under the Share Option Scheme,
together with all options to be granted under any other share
option scheme(s) of the Company (excluding lapsed options),
must not represent more than 10% of the total number of
the Company’s shares in issue as at the date of
commencement of the listing of shares of the Company on
the Stock Exchange (the “Scheme Mandate Limit”) or as at
the date of approval of the refreshed Scheme Mandate Limit.

As a result of the subdivision of the ordinary shares in 2016
(the “Share Subdivision”), the total number of shares available
for issue under the Share Option Scheme was adjusted. As at
31 December 2021, the total number of shares available for
issue under the Share Option Scheme was 330,000,000
(2020: 330,000,000), representing approximately 5.90%
(2020: 5.90%) of the total number of shares of the Company
in issue (i.e. 5,588,571,777) as at 31 December 2021 (2020:
5,588,571,777) and the date of issuance of these
consolidated financial statements.

The total number of shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of the options granted to each participant, together
with all options granted and to be granted to him/her under
any other share option scheme(s) of the Company within the
12-month period immediately preceding the proposed date of
grant (including exercised, cancelled and outstanding options)
shall not exceed 1% of the total number of the Company’s
shares in issue as at the proposed date of grant. Any further
grant of options to a participant in excess of the 1% limit
shall be subject to the shareholders” approval of the Company
with such participant and his/her associates abstaining from
voting.
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38. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED)

Any option to be granted under the Share Option Scheme to
a director, chief executive or substantial shareholder of the
Company or any of their respective associates must be
approved by independent non-executive Directors (excluding
independent non-executive Director who is the grantee). In
addition, any option to be granted to a substantial
shareholder of the Company or an independent non-executive
Director or any of their respective associates which will result
in the shares issued and to be issued in excess of 0.1% of the
issued shares or with an aggregate value (based on the
closing price of the shares at the date of the grant) in excess
of HK$5,000,000 within any 12-month period is subject to
approval by the shareholders of the Company in general
meeting.

An offer for grant of options must be accepted within 28
days from the date of grant. The amount payable by each
grantee of options to the Company on acceptance of the
offer for the grant of options is HK$1.00. The exercisable
period will be determined by the board of directors and in any
event must not be more than 10 years from the date of the
grant of the option.

The exercise price for the Company’s shares on the exercise of
options under the Share Option Scheme shall be at least the
highest of: (a) the closing price of the shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date of grant,
which must be a business day; (b) the average closing price of
the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations
sheet for the 5 business days immediately preceding the date
of grant; and (c) the nominal value of the share.

On 22 July 2016 (the “Grant Date”), the board of directors
has resolved to grant to certain eligible participants (the
“Grantees”), subject to acceptance by such Grantees, a total
of 148,500,000 share options (the *“Share Options”) to
subscribe for a total number of 148,500,000 ordinary shares
of HK$0.002 each of the Company in the share capital of the
Company under the Share Option Scheme. All the Share
Options shall be vested in accordance with their respective
vesting conditions of the share options. Further details
regarding the grant of Share Options are set out in the
Company’s announcement dated 22 July 2016.
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38. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED)

RAGIRBERET B 2 ERER The details of the movements of the Company's share options
FRZEEFFIBOT - under the Share Option Scheme during the year are as
follows:
BRE%A
Number of share options
R=B-%% R=B=-%
RZBZBF +=h +=8
ERA BB BRIEE RE BEA -A-H FREU =[] FREXR ==
As at As at As at
Exercise price Vesting 1 January Lapsed during 31 December Lapsed during 31 December
Grantees Date of grant per share  Exercise period period 2020 the year 2020 the year 2021
B
HKS
ERHTERBAES
Chief Executive Officer and Executive Director
BaXEE “T-AELAZtZA 068 “2-AELAZTZRZ M1 12,000,000 (12,000,000) = = =
“Z2-FFELA-T-H
Mr. Jiang Chaowen 22 July 2016 22 July 2016 to 21 July 2020 Note 1
BUFHTES
Independent Non-Executive Directors
REBLE “ERELAZtZH 068 “2-AELAZTZRZ (i 1,000,000 (1,000,000) = = =
“E-RELA-1-H
Mr. Chan Sze Chung 22 July 2016 22 July 2016 to 21 July 2020 Note 1
Rintt 5t 4 ZE-REtAZtTZH 0.68 “E-~EtAZtzHE BizE1 1,000,000 (1,000,000) — = —
ZE-ERELA-T-H
Mr. Zhang Ruibin 22 July 2016 22 July 2016 to 21 July 2020 Note 1
REELE “T-AELAZtZA 068 “E-AELAZTZRE (i 1,000,000 (1,000,000) = = =
“Z2-FFELA-T-H
Mr. Zhang Junxi Jack 22 July 2016 22 July 2016 to 21 July 2020 Note 1
15,000,000 (15,000,000) = = =
HitfEg ZZ-R"EtAZtZH 0.68 “E-~5tAZtZHE BizE1 69,300,000 (69,300,000) — = -
ZECTELACt-H
Other employees 22 July 2016 22 July 2016 to 21 July 2020 Note 1
—E-"EtA=tZ=H 0.68 “E—+&tA=tzHE MizE2 6,300,000 (2,000,000) 4,300,000 (4,300,000 —
B —%tA-+-H
22 July 2016 22 July 2017 to 21 July 2021 Note 2
ag 90,600,000 (86,300,000) 4,300,000 (4,300,000) -
Total
RERTTE 89,025,000 4,300,000 =

Exercisable at the end of the year
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38. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED)

Notes:

- —F+=A=+—HIEFJE For the year ended 31 December 2021
EREE (&)
it
(1) BEREZERBAE-_ZT—A~FtA

“+-HE-_E-_ZTF+H-_+—
B BHoE#tE T EEBEHEE :

(i) P T AN 2 25 % B8 B AE A %

HHEAFUEE TR —F

—~NFtAZ+ZHE=_Z—
TELH =+ — B HITE

(i) BFERAZ25%EBRERER
HHBRIBEE BRI TUS
B ¥R _-_FT—+tFtA
—t+ZRE-_Z-_ZE+ A
—+— B AT

B FERAZ25%BRERR
L HBMBFE R TUE
B YR _Z—-—N\NE+A
—t+tZHEZZE_ZTFL A
—+—BAHITE: &

(iii)

ﬁ%%ﬁAZE%%&%FW
ﬁE%ﬁBﬂi“E ﬁ?

hitﬂf+f5 =
*:%itﬂ:+—5ﬂﬁﬁ
& °

(iv)

BREZERBHAEA=-ZT—XFLA
—t-HBE_ZE-_—FtA=+—
B EHoWE#E TS SEBEEHES -

(i) BRTARAZ25%0RERIE
HEMBIAFERSE IR
:f +tFEELA-+T-RHE"

T+ H -+ BAf#T
(3

(ii) ﬁ%%ﬁAZE%%&%FW
HHERAFEFERERE IR
—%7A¢tﬂf+fai:
TS+ A=-+—HBA 1T
fi

BT AR A Z225%0 R IX
HAEMRIAFERSE IR
:f NFEELA-+-RHE"
== e Hl = Helft1T
(E3

(iii)

BT AR A Z25% B IE R IR
HHBRIAFEREE TR
—E-TFELA-F+-—HE_
TS+ A=-+—HBA#tfT
f# o

(1)

Share Options are valid from 22 July 2016 to 21 July 2020 and

shall

be vested

in four tranches in accordance with the

following vesting dates:

@)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

25% of the Share Options so granted to the Grantees
shall become vested on the Grant Date and shall be
exercisable from 22 July 2016 to 21 July 2020;

25% of the Share Options so granted to the Grantees
shall become vested on the 1st anniversary of the Grant
Date and shall be exercisable from 22 July 2017 to
21 July 2020;

25% of the Share Options so granted to the Grantees
shall become vested on the 2nd anniversary of the Grant
Date and shall be exercisable from 22 July 2018 to
21 July 2020; and

25% of the Share Options so granted to the Grantees
become vested on the 3rd anniversary of the Grant Date
and shall be exercisable from 22 July 2019 to 21 July
2020.

Share Options are valid from 22 July 2016 to 21 July 2021 and

shall

be vested

in four tranches in accordance with the

following vesting dates:

@)

(iii)

25% of the Share Options so granted to the Grantees
become vested on the 1st anniversary of the Grant Date
and shall be exercisable from 22 July 2017 to 21 July
2021;

25% of the Share Options so granted to the Grantees
become vested on the 2nd anniversary of the Grant Date
and shall be exercisable from 22 July 2018 to 21 July
2021;

25% of the Share Options so granted to the Grantees
become vested on the 3rd anniversary of the Grant Date
and shall be exercisable from 22 July 2019 to 21 July
2021; and

25% of the Share Options so granted to the Grantees
become vested on the 4th anniversary of the Grant Date
and shall be exercisable from 22 July 2020 to 21 July
2021.
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39.

HE-Z-_—F+=A=1+—HIEFE For the year ended 31 December 2021

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED)

The fair value of these share options at the Grant Date was
amounting to HK$33,492,000, which have been arrived on the
basis of a valuation carried out by Norton Appraisals Limited,
a firm of independent and qualified professional valuers not
connected with the Group. For the year ended 31 December
2021, nil was recognised as equity-settled share-based
payments to the profit or loss (2020: HK$53,000).

SHARE AWARD SCHEME

On 20 September 2016 (the “Adoption Date”), the Company
adopted the Share Award Scheme for the purpose of
providing incentives to selected employees (the “Selected
Employees”) in order to retain them for the continual
operation and development of the Group and to attract
suitable personnel for the growth and further development of
the Group. The board of directors may award shares of the
Company, pursuant to the terms of the Share Award Scheme,
to the Selected Employees including without limitation, the
Directors, executives, officers and other employees, whether
full-time or part-time, of any member of the Group from time
to time who the board of directors considers, in its absolute
discretion, has contributed or will contribute to the business
development of the Group.

The board of directors shall not make any further award of
shares which will result in the total number of Shares
awarded (the “Awarded Shares”) and approved by the board
of directors under the Share Award Scheme, to be in excess
of 10% of the total number of issued Shares as at the
Adoption Date.

The maximum number of Awarded Shares which may be
awarded to a Selected Employee under the Share Award
Scheme shall not exceed 1% of the total number of issued
Shares as at the Adoption Date.
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39.

40.

—F+=ZA=+—HIFE For the year ended 31 December 2021

SHARE AWARD SCHEME (CONTINUED)

As the total number of Shares in issue was 4,950,000,000
Shares as at the Adoption Date, the maximum number of
Awarded Shares that may be awarded under the Share Award
Scheme is 495,000,000 shares and the maximum number of
Awarded Shares that may be awarded to a Selected Employee
is 49,500,000 shares.

No share was awarded to Selected Employees under the Share
Award Scheme during the years ended 31 December 2021
and 2020. The acquired shares was recognised and
accumulated in equity under the heading of “Shares held for
share award scheme”.

SHARE PREMIUM AND RESERVES

The amounts of the Group’s share premium and reserves and
the movement therein for the current and prior years are
presented in the consolidated statement of changes in equity.

(i) The special reserve represents the difference between the
nominal amount of the shares issued by the Company
and the nominal amount of the shares of subsidiaries
acquired pursuant to a corporate reorganisation in the
preparation for the listing of the Company’s shares on
the Stock Exchange in previous years.

(i)  Other reserves as at 31 December 2021 comprise the
following:

1. reserve fund of HK$46,591,000 (2020:
HK$46,591,000) which is used to expand the
enterprise’s working capital. When the enterprise
suffers losses, the reserve fund may be used to
make up unrecovered losses under special
circumstances;
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40. SHARE PREMIUM AND RESERVES
(CONTINUED)

40. B 0mfE R @ (&)

Gy (&) (ii) (Continued)

RZE—tFLAH FI&
ERER_ZT—t i Gil
A& ZEE &
# [ TFKT True Holdings
¥ & 5,000,000 7T (1HE
738,750,000 7T) °
bt AE B RTFKT True
Holdings < ## A% & 151 % 1&
INZE54% o FEFERERIRE
& B8 B REAR VR W B — R B B
NEfEIMER 2 BERNRER
B 2 = %i2,666,0007% JT
B H At 15 8 I B R A
7 Bl &2 A2,104,00078 7T &
562,000/ TT

R=F—NF—F - KEI
R T EZXEBBRA

HE240% Az 3E¢?&%
SR £ %8115,215,000
BT ERKESEENRE
N 1{E 2 Z%58231,179,000
PSR E Ath R4 S BB R
R B4R 113,799,000
BT} 2,165,000/ 7T : &

R = —%— A
ANEBUWBTFKT True
Holdings 10,000 % & 13
(4918.77% P& AN #E 25)
R {8 54,300,000 JT (18
& 733,325,000/ 7T) °
H g+ RNEERTFKT True
Holdings 2 #5 i% & H1 54 % 1
INZE73% o IEFE RS BR M
SHHEENREQAFEZ
ZRE R E M E AR
22,385,0008 7T °

in July 2017, the Group further injected
US$5,000,000 (equivalent to HK$38,750,000) in
TFKT True Holdings pursuant to the sales and
purchase agreement signed in May 2017.
Consequently, the Group’s shareholding in TFKT
True Holdings was increased from 51% to 54%.
The difference between the carrying amount of the
non-controlling interests and the fair value of
consideration paid in relation to the deemed
acquisition of additional interest in a subsidiary of
HK$2,666,000 has been credited to the other
reserves and translation reserve at the amount of
HK$2,104,000 and HK$562,000, respectively;

in January 2018, the Group acquired the remaining
40% equity interest in Tongfang Pharmaceutical
Group Co., Ltd*, the difference between the
carrying amount of the non-controlling interests of
HK$115,215,000 and the fair value of
consideration paid in relation to the acquisition of
HK$231,179,000 has been debited to the other
reserves and translation reserve at the amount of
HK$113,799,000 and HK$2,165,000, respectively;
and

in January 2021, the Group acquired 10,000 shares
(approximately 18.77% equity interest) in TFKT
True Holdings with a consideration of
US$4,300,000 (equivalent to HK$33,325,000).
Consequently, the Group’s shareholding in TFKT
True Holdings was increased from 54% to 73%.
The difference between the carrying amount of the
non-controlling interests and the fair value of
consideration paid has been debited to the other
reserves at the amount of HK$22,385,000.
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40. SHARE PREMIUM AND RESERVES

41.

(CONTINUED)

The remittance of retained profits of the subsidiaries
established in the PRC outside the PRC is subject to approval
of the local authorities and the availability of foreign
currencies generated and retained by these subsidiaries.

DEFERRED TAXATION

At the end of the reporting period and during the current and
prior years, deferred tax liabilities (assets) were recognised in
respect of the temporary differences attributable to the
following:

RPERF (%A
MERBHE CEFRERE ZENB 2 ATFEAE Hit Eok]

Withholding Fair value

Allowance tax on adjustments

Accelerated tax for credit undistributed on business
depreciation losses earnings combination Others Total
TEL FHEL THEL TEL FHEL THEL
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
RZZ-F5—-A—A At 1 January 2020 33,615 (19,853) 6,496 79,905 (113) 100,050
ER =S Exchange differences 2,059 (1,157) 305 1,471 (90) 2,588
HE—RIM B A (Mf£44() Disposal of subsidiaries (note 44(a)) (29,741) 16,751 (4,897) — (454) (18,341)
RiEEER GTA) Mk (Credit) charge to profit or loss (166) 596 (1,904) (5,256) (1,594) (8,324)
R=ZF-ZTF+=-A=+—H At 31 December 2020 5,767 (3,663) = 76,120 (2,251) 75,973
[ERESE Exchange differences 1M1 = — 683 (84) 710
REREA Credit to profit or loss (876) (4,270) = (3,083) (1,429) (9,658)
RZT=Z—F+ZA=+—H At 31 December 2021 5,002 (7,933) — 73,720 (3,764) 67,025

B A AAMITHER A KRR IAE E
HEPVAR R A EEE  METHEER
— M RERIER - BEXH AR ERRT
HMIRBER T -
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Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset when
there is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and when the deferred tax relates
to the same fiscal authority.
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HE-Z-_—F+=A=1+—HIEFE For the year ended 31 December 2021

DEFERRED TAXATION (CONTINUED)

The following is the analysis of the deferred tax assets and
liabilities, after set off certain deferred tax assets against

AN ERBNEEHIEE EEER) 9 - deferred tax liabilities of the same taxable entity, for financial
reporting purposes:
e T

2021 2020

FHET T

HK$’000 HK$'000

FRETIE A &= Deferred tax assets 232 190
RIETIR A B Deferred tax liabilities (67,257) (76,163)
(67,025) (75,973)

AR IERN R EH A Fith &
;E :Fffi@ﬁﬁTRIEFETE199,856,OOOE’§
75(_7 — T4 : 164,298,000/ 7T ) fE
RIELEREEE - RERRIBABBRE
8518 #766,819,000/8 T (—Z T — T 4
22,271,000 T) r HAig E& 5%
FERAELPRAETF - HBHAERH
TH [E5 18 ] £ R BR 45

No deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of
certain unused tax losses of HK$199,856,000 (2020:
HK$164,298,000) due to the unpredictability of future profit
streams. Included in unrecognised tax losses are losses of
approximately HK$66,819,000 (2020: HK$22,271,000) that
may be carried forward for a period of five to ten years from
their respective year of origination. The remaining
unrecognised tax losses may be carried forward indefinitely.

BIRRAEE 42. PROVISION FOR REINSTATEMENT COST
FHT
HK$'000
R-ZEZZTF—-—H—H At 1 January 2020 61,028
bE H =5 Exchange differences 2,372
BHINEAE Additional provision 4,327
EUba R L] Utilisation of provision (627)
BB Reversal of provision (5,433)
& BT E A7) (M 5E44(a)) Disposal of subsidiaries (note 44(a)) (48,413)
RZEZEF+-A=+—H At 31 December 2020 13,254
P & =5 Exchange differences (119)
KEINE Additional provision 2,770
BB E Utilisation of provision (1,653)
R—ZE-_—F+=-_A=+—H At 31 December 2021 14,252
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42. EREARE (&)

43.
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RIFREXT R ZHEHREZGH - &
SERNBREERRINRBERRE
RigshogfERnBEESL - &F
RANEE A - Hit  RI|BEHRE
ATEAR  AEECERBFELZ
BIRBAPIE 2 SR EEfG ST AT R B

42. PROVISION FOR REINSTATEMENT COST
(CONTINUED)

Under the terms of the rental agreements signed with
landlords, the Group should remove and re-instate the rented
premises for fitness centres or office at the Group’s cost upon
expiry of the relevant rental agreements. Provision is therefore
made for the best estimate of the expected reinstatement
costs to be incurred after 12 months from end of the
reporting period.

HEAE 43. LEASE LIABILITIES
—E-—F —EFF
2021 2020
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$'000
ENEERE: Lease liabilities payable:
—F R Within 1 year 79,879 117,040
—FUEEREA After 1 year but within 2 years 81,074 82,246
MEAEBRER After 2 years but within 5 years 218,888 238,945
AFE After 5 years 105,308 116,287
485,149 554,518
B =8 A B HAE B FKIE Less: Amount due for settlement
GIARBER) with 12 months shown under
current liabilities (79,879) (117,040)
+ =@ A& B HEE KB Amount due for settlement after
(FIAFERBERE) 12 months shown under non-
current liabilities 405,270 437,478
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HE-Z-_—F+=A=1+—HIEFE For the year ended 31 December 2021

LEASE LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)
Rent concessions

During the year, the Group received rent concessions in the
form of a waiver on fixed payments during the period of
severe social distancing and travel restriction measures
introduced to contain the spread of COVID-19.

These rent concessions occurred as a direct consequence of
COVID-19 pandemic, which met all of the conditions in
HKFRS 16.46B, the Group applied the practical expedient not
to assess whether the changes constitute lease modifications.
Accordingly, rent concessions totalling HK$29,169,000 (2020:
HK$16,495,000) have been accounted as negative variable
lease payments and recognised in the profit or loss, with a
corresponding adjustment to the lease liabilities.

DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

(@) On 13 November 2020, the Vendor and the Purchaser
entered into the Sale and Purchase Agreement pursuant
to which the Vendor conditionally agreed to sell and the
Purchaser conditionally agreed to purchase the Sale
Share at the consideration of HK$349,648,865.3 to be
settled by way of (i) payment in cash for the sum of
HK$2,000,000 by the Purchaser to the Vendor; and (ii)
assumption of all liabilities and obligations by the
Purchaser under the debts for the sum of
HK$347,648,865.3 due by the Vendor to Real Jade
(“Novated Debt”) upon completion of the disposal of
Sale Share (“Completion”). Upon Completion, the Group
ceased to have any beneficial interest in the Disposal
Group, and all the companies in the Disposal Group
ceased to be subsidiariessmembers of the Company. The
financial results of the Disposal Group was no longer
consolidated into the consolidated financial statements
of the Company.
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HEME QT (&) 44. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)
(@ (%) (@)  (Continued)
EEBETOMEGRETIEEK All conditions in the Sale and Purchase Agreement have
RZZERTHK BT - HE been fulfilled and the transaction was completed on the
SEEGAREERNKRERS o Date of Completion. The Disposal Group is included in
REEE R - 5B Real Jade #) the Group's cement business. The aggregate amounts of
BERBBEABEOT : assets and liabilities attributable to Real Jade on the
date of disposal were as follows:
FET
HK$'000
HAE: Total consideration:
BURIRERE Cash consideration received 2,000
EERER Debts novated 347,649
349,649
BAEEHECEERABL: Analysis of assets and liabilities over
which control was lost:
ERY LAV Property, plant and equipment (note 17) 276,989
EREE (M &22) Intangible assets (note 22) 8,438
BERRE RS Deposits for equipment and machineries 28,109
Eﬁﬁfﬁﬁﬁm Pledged bank deposits 62,852
EREEE (H:E18) Right-of-use assets (note 18) 7,483
F{EHEMF Properties held for sale 2,301
g Inventories 32,087
JEUE 5508 Trade receivables 478,854
Hith e Y 50IE ~ e RIBRIFRIA Other receivables, deposits and prepayments 887,596
RNEE KK Amount due from the Group 347,649
FEAE 5 ~ Loan receivables 77,423
ERBEHREATERECSMEE  Finandal assets at fair value through profit or loss 78,175
ReRBESEED Cash and cash equivalents 88,953
B 5 7B kB Trade and bills payables (153,755)
H b 50 & B ik e Other payables and deposits received (618,446)
BIR R AR (MY u£42) Provision for reinstatement cost (note 42) (48,413)
FNLIENGE S S d) Dividend payable to non-controlling shareholders
of the subsidiaries (26,241)
R B DRI IEE R AR R 2 3K Amount due to a non-controlling shareholder
of the subsidiary (174)
MIEEE Tax liabilities (106,240)
RITREMEE Bank and other borrowings (487,115)
SHEE Contract liabilities (6,185)
%ﬁ‘%ﬁ% Lease liabilities (1,646)
BEIEBE (M 5E41) Deferred taxation (note 41) (18,341)
BHEZERHE Net assets disposed of 910,353
HEWE DR 2 &8 Loss on disposal of subsidiaries
B R R E Consideration received and receivable 349,649
EHEEEFE Net assets disposed of (910,353)
3H P = Non-controlling interests 438,182
HEZEE Loss on disposal (122,522)
HEEEZRERH T Net cash outflow arising on disposal:
BEHEZRERESEEY Cash and cash equivalents disposed of (88,953)
W AR WELZ KB Less: Consideration received by cash 2,000
(86,953)
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44. HEWE QR (F)

(b)

RZEBEZ—F+HA=+=H" ' &
RANEENBRARIRAERE
AIEAFDEBIYE=ZFaAE
BERAE ([BEAH]) RAAR (E
BRFRFERZERAN)FIMNE
Eipaz ([AprosE & ]) @ ik
()VEERg M B En Em L -
BEARFNEEIFZENER
BlApros Therapeutics, Inc.
([Apros]) & #EaT &l NMREHFTA
BHHEERT EFERERE
LEREFBRKHEREEE
9,500,000f% A X 3| 1B % & %
([AprossH & &2 ])  HE R
AprosE BT RR AN 4979.83% : &
(VZRER R BHEIKER
BERERFEE(ERERA) R
Apros (TERIEF ) IRIEHN A€ 4
%8 /55,000,000 TH ERE K E
BERF(EBEER]  mMEAEK
HREBEZEZRER  #NAE
%16,000,0003 7t (#H & R &Y
124,000,000 7T) c R =& = —
F+—A-_ftaABEBEKLEE
([Aprosti & HE ) - REA £ -
RNEB T B Apros A LA E 5

s o

44. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

(b)

On 22 October 2021, Tongfang Konta Capital, L.P. (the
“Seller”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
Swiss Talent Group Limited GaANEEERAR) (the
“Buyer”), an independent third party and the Company
(as the guarantor of Tongfang Konta Capital, L.P.)
entered into a sale and purchase agreement (“Apros
Sale and Purchase Agreement”) pursuant to which (i) the
Seller conditionally agreed to sell and the Buyer
conditionally agreed to purchase 9,500,000 shares of
Series A Preferred Stock (“Apros Sale Shares”) of Apros
Therapeutics, Inc. (“Apros”), an indirect non-wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company, representing
approximately 79.83% of the issued share capital of
Apros, on an as-converted and fully diluted basis and
assuming that all the shares reserved under the equity
plan of Apros have been issued; and (ii) the Seller
conditionally agreed to procure the novation of, and the
Buyer conditionally agreed to purchase, the loans
(“Novated Loans”) for an aggregated principal amount
of US$5,000,000 provided by Tongfang Pharmaceutical
(as lender) to Apros (as borrower) to be novated to the
Buyer pursuant to the novation agreements, at a total
consideration of US$16,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$124,000,000). The disposal was
completed on 25 November 2021 (“Date of Disposal of
Apros”). Upon completion, the Group ceased to have
any beneficial interest in Apros.
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44, HEME LT (&)

44. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

(b) (#&)

Apros B B R M AT B IR E
ERK R 5 E R AprosH & BHHIE
X o Aprost &t A AN & B &) K 2 B
7% o MEEEH  AprosfE{H A

(b)  (Continued)

All conditions in the Apros Sale and Purchase
Agreement have been fulfilled and the transaction was
completed on the Date of Disposal of Apros. Apros is
included in the Group’s unallocated business. The

BEABEASBNT aggregate amounts of assets and liabilities attributable
to Apros on the date of disposal were as follows:
FET
HK$'000

HMRE ! Total consideration:

BRE Total consideration 124,000

W BEBRERZRE Less: Consideration for the Novated Loans (42,348)

AprostH & fxfn 2 KB Consideration for Apros Sale Shares 81,652

EREEGIEZEEREBBED N : Analysis of assets and liabilities over

which control was lost:

‘R EE (M5E22) Intangible assets (note 22) 56,728

Hith R FRIE « 12 & R TR FKIE Other receivables, deposits and prepayments 1,063

ReRkBEEED Cash and cash equivalents 1,255

EE- Accrued expenses (3,228)

BN AEE KRR Amount due to the Group (42,348)

BHEEEFH Net assets disposed of 13,470

& — R R ARz W Gain on disposal of a subsidiary

Bl Rk ERRE Consideration received and receivable 81,652

BEHESEFSE Net assets disposed of (13,470)

FEPE IR i Non-controlling interests (16,767)

HE 2 Kz Gain on disposal 51,415

HEELEZRERAFE Net cash inflow arising on disposal:

NRE WMz RE Consideration received by cash 81,652

BEHEZREMREEEY Less: Cash and cash equivalents disposed of (1,255)
80,397
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45.

HE-Z-_—F+=A=1+—HIEFE For the year ended 31 December 2021

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES

The PRC employees of the Group are members of
state-managed defined contribution retirement benefits
schemes operated by the local government. The Group is
required to contribute certain percentage of their payroll costs
to the retirement benefits schemes to fund the benefits. The
only obligation of the Group with respect to the retirement
benefits schemes is to make the specified contributions.

The Company’s subsidiaries in Singapore participate in a
defined contribution scheme operated by Central Provident
Fund board of directors in Singapore. The assets of the
scheme are held separately in funds under the control of
trustees. The expenses recognised in these subsidiaries
represent contributions paid and payable to the plan by these
subsidiaries at rates specified in the rules of the plan.

The Group also operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”). All qualifying
employees in Hong Kong are required to join the MPF
Scheme. The assets of the scheme are held separately from
those of the Group, in funds under the control of trustees.
Both employees’ and the Group's contributions are calculated
at 5% of the employee’s monthly relevant income with the
mandatory cap, and the Group will make 5% top-up
contribution if an employee’s monthly basic salary exceeds the
mandatory cap.

The Group’s contribution to the above retirement benefits
schemes are charged to profit or loss as they become payable

under the applicable laws and regulations.

The retirement benefits scheme contributions for the years
ended 31 December 2021 and 2020 are stated in note 13.
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46. RREHERH 46. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS
AEBEREEAA The Group as lessor
AEBRBECEHAENHIEEWE - % The Group leases out investment properties under operating
EHE—MIZVFHRR20FET - B leases. The leases typically run for an initial period of about
EERERENRNENEEMEGRERE 20 years, with an option to renew the lease after that date at
BEHE -BIEAERSTEHEEMNN - which time all terms are renegotiated. None of the leases
includes variable lease payments.
RMERR  NEBERATHEHEZE At the end of the reporting period, the Group had contracted
WoRBE IR E RN M P ET L& 4 - with tenants for the following undiscounted lease payments
receivable on leases:
—E-—F —E-FF
2021 2020
THET FHEIT
HK$’'000 HK$'000
—FR Within 1 year 399 386
—FIRERFEN After 1 year but within 2 years 417 388
MERE=ZFNA After 2 years but within 3 years 417 406
= FEENFR After 3 years but within 4 years 417 406
MFEZBRFAN After 4 years but within 5 years 417 406
hF1& After 5 years 382 777
2,449 2,769
47. BEREIE 47. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS
NEE B AT E A The Group had the following capital commitments:
—B-—F —EFF
2021 2020
FHET FHET
HK$'000 HK$'000
BRI HERNEFE BB Capital commitments contracted
B 2 B AEIE - for but not provided in the
consolidated financial statements:
— BEYE BEREE — Acquisition of property,
plant and equipment 118,572 14,589
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48.

HE-Z-_—F+=A=1+—HIEFE For the year ended 31 December 2021

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the
Group will be able to continue as a going concern while
maximising the return to owners of the Company through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The Group's
overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debts, which
mainly includes the bank borrowings disclosed in note 34 and
equity attributable to owners of the Company, comprising
issued share capital, reserves and retained profits. The
Directors review the capital structure on an annual basis. As
part of this review, the Directors consider the cost of capital
and the risks associated with each class of capital. Based on
recommendations of the Directors, the Group will balance its
overall capital structure through issuance of new shares and
share buy-back as well as the issuance of new debts or the
redemption of existing debts.
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49. €@ T A 49. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
SRMIAEZER Categories of financial instruments
—E-—fF ZEERF
2021 2020
TET FHT
HK$°000 HK$°000
SRMEE Financial assets
EHIEEBEEERRATE Financial assets mandatorily measured
RIEFECEMEE at FVTPL (note 30)
(KM$7%30) — 8,501

REENATEZERIEE Financial assets at amortised cost

FEW B & 1A (FiEE27) Trade receivables (note 27) 139,946 177,124
M EBGRIA R B fHiE® Other receivables and deposits paid
(5H A E A Ug 7008 (included in other receivables,
%& RIEMKE) (FiFE29) deposits and prepayments)
(note 29) 28,342 22,215
JEUS F B U A (RFAEH A Interest income receivable (included
EWGRIA ~ e R in other receivables, deposits and
KIE) (M15E29) prepayments) (note 29) 44 247
R A FR K Amounts due from intermediate
(BFEE51) holding companies (note 51) 290 —
— B & QR R K (MsE51) Amount due from an associate
(note 51) 145,803 111,108
H b BB 7 R 3R (M 7E52(0)) Amounts due from other related
parties (note 52(c)) 94,608 134,202
Hin & (H45£30) Other investment (note 30) 16,000 20,473
X R HISRITEK (M 5E31) Restricted bank deposits (note 31) 6,205 —
ReRREEED (FE31) Cash and cash equivalents
(note 31) 167,962 165,819
HEZS Rental deposits 25,747 24,178
624,947 655,366
624,947 663,867
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49. €T A (&) 49. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)
eI A ZER (&) Categories of financial instruments (Continued)
—E-—F —E-TF
2021 2020
FHBT THTT
HK$'000 HK$'000
tRMmERE Financial liabilities

BEENAGTEZSRIBE Financial liabilities measured at
amortised cost

JENE S HRIARERE Trade and bills payables (note 32)
(MH3E32) 39,269 59,395
HEMFIARE Wike Other payables and deposits
(FF A E b 3138 & B W received (included in other
#e)(FzE33) payables and deposits received)
(note 33) 87,813 83,468
BEYWE - MENLKREENMTK  Payables for acquisition of property,
T8 (Fr A E A FE T 5RIE K plant and equipment
BYIES) (H5E33) (included in other payables and
deposits received) (note 33) 8,329 13,218
R—FEFR NI R R FIA Amount due to an intermediate
(FfF7ES1) holding company (note 51) 2,446 33,738
R EAth BE B 75 FRIR Amounts due to other related
(MF&E52(c)) parties (note 52(c)) 113,035 466
RITEE (M5E34) Bank borrowings (note 34) 243,802 196,777
494,694 387,062
HE&E (MH5E43) Lease liabilities (note 43) 485,149 554,518
979,843 941,580

277



FAFEREXEEGRLT TONGFANG KONTAFARMA HOLDINGS LIMITED

e M RAR R
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HE-F-

—_=_

49.

278

£RMIE(E)
SREAKBEEEERBE

AEEZTESMTAHN EX - %F
TR TAFBRERMNEARE - AR
ZEERMTAZRARBRED SRR (7
XEk ERREEMEBSRR)
EERRERBIERLE - B B FRE
ZERRZBRENTX -EREEE
BREZZERR  UBRRKAEBX
HWERBUEE 15

E 11
FAEmB

AEBEZAFENXRREIERETE
BHEERE  RITEE (F2HME34)
REMKERR -

AEBEZRERENEABREZETE
RITHERBEE -

R ER 18 30 2K {5 PR A AR ) 2R 4 HR DURUE B
E8 2R XERR - AT EEESER
AR - A TR E 5 E AR R
R Z BRI R 1TE o

AEEES 2 ERBENERARZFS
FRREBERR D c AEEZRER
ENEREREBRRTRRITEERZF
KRB 2 E K o

—F+=ZA=+—HIFE For the year ended 31 December 2021

49. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies

The Group's major financial instruments are listed above.
Details of these financial instruments are disclosed in the
respective notes. The risks associated with these financial
instruments include market risk (interest rate risk, foreign
currency risk and other price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk.
The policies on how to mitigate these risks are set out below.
The management manages and monitors these exposures to
ensure appropriate measures are implemented in a timely and
effective manner.

Market risk

Interest rate risk

The Group’s fair value interest rate risk relates primarily to
certain fixed-rate lease liabilities, bank borrowings (see note
34 for details of these bank borrowings) and other
investment.

The Group’s cash flow interest rate risk primarily relates to
variable-rate bank balances.

The Group has not used any interest rate swaps to mitigate its
exposure associated with interest rate risk. However, the
management monitors interest rate exposure and will consider
necessary actions when significant interest rate exposure is
anticipated.

The Group’s exposures to interest rates on financial liabilities
are detailed in the liquidity risk. The Group’s cash flow
interest rate risk is mainly concentrated on the fluctuation of
interest rates on bank balances.
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49. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the value of a financial
instrument will fluctuate because of changes in foreign
exchange rate. The Group’s operations are mainly in the PRC,
Hong Kong and Singapore. As at 31 December 2021, the
Group has bank balances, amount due from an associate, and
amounts due from other related parties (2020: bank balances,
time deposits, trade receivables, amounts due from other
related parties, and amount due to an intermediate holding
company) denominated in currencies other than the functional
currencies of the respective group entities. The Group
currently does not have a foreign currency hedging policy.
However, the management monitors foreign exchange
exposure closely and will consider hedging significant foreign
currency exposure should the need arises.

The carrying amounts of monetary assets and monetary
liabilities that are denominated in currencies other than the
functional currency of the group entities are as follows:

BE =i
Assets Liabilities
—B--F ZT-TF ZB-—-F ZFT-TF
2021 2020 2021 2020
FHET FHE T FHET FHET
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
xTT Us$ 112,029 112,956 — 11,935
BT HK$ 25,222 5,061 — —
ESIIE S Singapore dollar
(¥ l) (“SGD") 21 21 — —
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49. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

Foreign currency risk (Continued)

The following table details the Group’s sensitivity to a 5%
increase and decrease in the functional currency of the
Group’s entities against the relevant foreign currencies. 5%
sensitivity rate represents the management’s assessment of the
reasonably possible change in foreign exchange rate. The
sensitivity analysis includes the financial assets and financial
liabilities denominated in the relevant foreign currencies, and
adjusts their translation at the end of the reporting period for
a 5% change in foreign currency rate. A positive or negative
number below indicates an increase or a decrease in profit for
the year where functional currency of the Group’s entities
strengthen 5% against the relevant foreign currencies. For a
5% weakening of functional currency of the Group’s entities
against the relevant foreign currencies, there would be an
equal and opposite impact on the result for the year.

—_EF_— —E-FF
2021 2020
FHET FHET
HK$'000 HK$'000

RNEFEE Result for the year
ETT us$ (5.602) (5,051)
BT HK$ (1,261) (253)
N T SGD (1) (1)
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49. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Credit risk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to trade
receivables, other receivables and deposits, other investment,
amount due from an associate, amounts due from
intermediate holding companies, amounts due from other
related parties, rental deposits, restricted bank deposits and
bank balances and cash.

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk which will cause
a financial loss to the Group due to failure to discharge an
obligation by the counterparties is the carrying amount of the
respective recognised financial assets as stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

Trade receivables arising from contracts with customers

In order to minimise credit risk, the management of the Group
has delegated a team to be responsible for the determination
of credit limits, credit approvals and other monitoring
procedures to ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover
overdue debts. Independent companies are engaged to
investigate the credibility of customers, and guarantees or
pledges of assets provided by them on a needed basis. In
addition, the Group performs impairment assessment under
ECL model under HKFRS 9 on trade receivables based on
provision matrix.

Other investment, restricted bank deposits and cash and
cash equivalents

The credit risk on liquid funds are limited because the Group’s
other investment, restricted bank deposits and bank balances
are deposited with banks of high credit ratings in Hong Kong,
the PRC, the USA and Singapore.

Amount due from an associate
The Group regularly monitors the business performance of the
associate. The Group's credit risks in the balance is mitigated

through the Group’s power to participate in the relevant
activities of the associate.
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—F+=ZA=+—HIFE For the year ended 31 December 2021

49. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

The Group has concentration of credit risk on amount due
from a non-controlling shareholder of the Company’s
subsidiary amounted to HK$71,830,000 (2020:
HK$112,558,000) and amount due from an associate
amounted to HK$145,803,000 (2020: HK$111,108,000)
representing 11.5% (2020: 17.2%) and 23.3% (2020:
17.0%) of total financial assets at amortised cost, respectively,
as at 31 December 2021. The Group monitors the level of
exposure to ensure that follow up actions and/or corrective
actions are taken promptly to lower the risk exposure.

Other than concentration of credit risk mentioned above, the
Group does not have any other significant concentration of
credit risk. Trade receivables consist of a large number of
customers, spread across diverse industries and geographical
areas.
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49. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

policies (Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and

The Group's internal credit risk grading assessment comprises

Al the following categories:
W EB1S AR RT AR it FEWE 5 A Hit e & E
Internal credit rating  Description Trade receivables Other financial assets
1K [ Bz REFFENRREE e 2FENBHEEEE 12EAEHREESE
HeH — EERRE
Low risk The counterparty has a low risk of Lifetime ECL — not 12m ECL
default and does not have any credit-impaired
past-due amounts
BREaE EBALBEINNARER BRE 2G80ENEEEBE 2@ ABRBEEERE
EHEE — EERRIE
Watch list Debtor frequently repays after due Lifetime ECL — not 12m ECL
dates but usually settle in full credit-impaired
AJ &E BBAABHAENEASIIITERY 2HFEPRACERFE 2FEHEHEEBR
FHERIAK - 15 A b B Z 18 N — BERRE — EERRE
Doubtful There have been significant increases Lifetime ECL — not Lifetime ECL — not
in credit risk since initial recognition credit-impaired credit-impaired
through information developed
internally or external resources
[SEC| BEBRPBEEFEEERE 2EEPEREERE 2FEHREHEERR
— BERRIE — BERRE
Loss There is evidence indicating the asset Lifetime ECL — credit- Lifetime ECL — credit-
is credit-impaired impaired impaired
A ERBRAGEBARNBRENMBEE RIBEME TXIE B M
5% - A S B WRAT R T
Write-off There is evidence indicating that the ~ Amount is written off Amount is written off

debtor is in severe financial
difficulty and the Group has no
realistic prospect of recovery
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49, €@ T A (&) 49. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)
cRAKEEEEREE (E) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)
FERR (&) Credit risk (Continued)
TRFMBLBEREEBET GEAR The tables below detail the credit risk exposures of the
SEsmEENEERRER Group's financial assets which are subject to ECL assessment:
—E--F —TCZE
2021 2020
2R 2 FEH
(i SNBERTR  ABERTE  BEHCEESR REAHE Fmes
External Internal credit Gross carrying Gross carrying
Note credit rating rating  12-month or lifetime ECL amount amount
TET TET
HK$'000 HK$'000
RRHERATENEREE
Financial assets at amortised cost
—EBERARK 51 TER (1) 2 FESRBEEHR 176,049 126,998
Amount due from an associate N/A (Note 1) Lifetime ECL
Hib@iZEH R % 52(c) TER (1) 2FEREHEEESR 82,925 116,250
Amounts due from other related parties N/A (Note 1) Lifetime ECL
RARESEEERE 24,034 23,179
12m ECL
@t 106,959 139,429
Total
PANERR AR 51 @R (Fizx1)  12EAEBEEER 290 =
Amounts due from intermediate holding N/A (Note 1) 12m ECL
companies
RBRHIRTER 31 AAZBBB (Fz3)  12EARBEEER 6,205 =
Restricted bank deposits AA to BBB (Note 3)  12m ECL
RITEE 31 AAZBBB (F:3)  12fEAEBEEER 167,962 165,819
Bank balances AA to BBB (Note 3)  12m ECL
HEtRRHEREZE 29 TER (1) 2 HFEBRDEEHR 3,779 3,677
Other receivables and deposits N/A (Note 1) Lifetime ECL
REARHACEEER 29,160 22,638
12m ECL
@t 32,939 26,315
Total
BB 508 — Em kRS 27 TEh (f:F2) 2FENBRHEESE 142,301 179,906
Trade receivables — goods and services N/A (Note 2) Lifetime ECL
HEiRE 30 A- (F&3)  12EAEBEEER 16,000 20,473
Other investment A- (Note 3)  12m ECL
HERSE TER (fzx1) 2@ AEBEEER 25,747 24,178
Rental deposits N/A (Note 1) 12m ECL

284



— T ——F 4% ANNUAL REPORT 2021

e M AR R
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HE-Z-_—F+=A=1+—HIEFE For the year ended 31 December 2021

49. £Ei T A (&) 49. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

TREREEBRERBER (B)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

FERK (&) Credit risk (Continued)
B 5T - Notes:
1. EAREERRERSE  AEEE 1. For the purposes of internal credit risk management, the Group

RAMEMTH B Ve fERE T &
MEECEERREDEEZEM -

uses past due information to assess whether the credit risk of
following financial assets has increased significantly since initial

recognition.
—E-—fF 2021
KRB EEE
B B @t
Not past due/
No fixed
repayment
Past due terms Total
FHET FHET FHET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000
—[EE & R El R K Amount due from an associate 157,352 18,697 176,049
H A BB 5 R Amounts due from other
related parties = 106,959 106,959
PR A R R K Amounts due from
intermediate holding
companies — 290 290
Hi W HRIEREZES Other receivables and deposits 3,779 29,160 32,939
HEZRS Rental deposits — 25,747 25,747
—ETF 2020
REHl EEE
B H B 5t
Not past due/
No fixed
repayment
Past due terms Total
FHET FHET T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
— Bt & R R R Amount due from an associate 122,290 4,708 126,998
A B B 75 KGR Amounts due from other
related parties = 139,429 139,429
Eh pE R IE R iR @ Other receivables and deposits 3,677 22,638 26,315
HEZRS Rental deposits - 24,178 24,178
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49. €/ T A ()
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TREREEBRERBER (B)

49. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

FERR (&) Credit risk (Continued)

MisE - (&) Notes: (Continued)

2. MEKESGRIEMS AKSBEEHA 2. For trade receivables, the Group has applied the simplified
BB E R E SRR L 7 AR approach in HKFRS 9 to measure the loss allowance at lifetime
EXTFENEHEEE RN EIRRE ECL. Except for debtors with credit-impaired which assess
# - BRABEERENED ARESR expected credit losses on individual basis, the Group determines
RAFBTEREEEEIN  NREBK the expected credit losses on these items by using a provision
FA #2380 B IR 88 o5 4B B0 5 4B 4B [ 7B T 7% matrix, grouped by past due status.

EHEMBHEERR -
ERAEEEERREEN—IK K As part of the Group’s credit risk management, the Group uses
EEBABEHEANKRRTIGHEZTFH debtors’ aging to assess the impairment for its customers
WA REAZEEFIHIEERS because these customers consist of a large number of small
B/ NEIE SR - iR SR A A R customers with common risk characteristics that are
BERIEE NIERERFT A B RIE representative of the customers’ abilities to pay all amounts
WERRBISE - TRIEHARER due in accordance with the contractual terms. The following
BOFBEFERBHEM  ZFERE table provides information about the exposure to credit risk for
RZEZ—FR-_Z-_ZTF+-A trade receivables which are assessed based on provision matrix
ST —HEERBEEREEIHEFE as at 31 December 2021 and 2020 within lifetime ECL.
HEREEERE -
IRE# Gross carrying amount
—B2-—F =R
2021 2020
FHEEE BERESNRE FHEBRE ERESHE
Average Trade Average Trade
loss rate receivables loss rate receivables
% T % FH&IT
% HK$'000 % HK$'000
BNEA (R AR) Current (not past due) 0.5 90,522 0.5 110,409
BHA1ZE 90K 1-90 days past due 4.5 29,103 3.6 45,482
#HIOR E M F 90 days—2 years past
due 2.8 22,676 2.4 24,015
142,301 179,906

BB R E TR B ER AR A FH
MESLBREZOEMGE  TEREE
B % R A3 55 ) BN AT 1S /0 BT RE 1
AERENRE - EEETHRT AR
DA AR EES ANEBE R
R¥TEH -

The estimated loss rates are estimated based on historical
observed default rates over the expected life of the debtors and
are adjusted for forward-looking information that is available
without undue cost or effort. The grouping is regularly
reviewed by management to ensure relevant information about
specific debtors is updated.
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49, €RT B (&) 49. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)
cHRRAKEEEEREE (&) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

FERK (&) Credit risk (Continued)

FfeE : (#8) Notes: (Continued)

3. EERBER FRAERRSEFA 3. The credit risk is limited because the counterparties are banks
BERFZBTRCREE EFR and financial institutions with high reputation, the directors
AEAREHEEES - consider no ECL is provided.

TRABATBIES AR ERE S 2E The following table shows the movement in lifetime ECL that

TR FERTEEEEERNESS has been recognised for trade receivables under the simplified

Mo approach.

@t
Total
FHT
HK$'000

R_T_ZTF—H—H As at 1 January 2020 4,444

B R BB (E E 18 Impairment losses recognised 1,384

il 25 Write-offs (689)

HENB AR Disposal of subsidiaries (2,460)

bE N, =5 Exchange differences 103

RZE_TE+-_A=+—H As at 31 December 2020 2,782

EERH R EEE Impairment losses recognised 3,886

g Write-offs (4,404)

MEH =58 Exchange differences 91

RN-ZE-_—F+-_A=+—H As at 31 December 2021 2,355
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49. £ T A (&)

TREREEBRERBER (B)

49. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Financial risk management objectives and

policies (Continued)

FERR (&) Credit risk (Continued)
T 3R R8N Bt L A FE U Sk IE RHY The following table shows reconciliations of loss allowance
EEBER LR - that has been recognised for other receivables and deposits.
12 MATEHE Z7FEHEH
EEEE EEEE et
12m ECL Lifetime ECL Total
FET T T T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
R-ZE_TF—H—H As at 1 January 2020 23,158 10,062 33,220
B 7 B /R EE R Impairment losses reversed (7,210) — (7,210)
i sH Write-offs (585) = (585)
HEE AR Disposal of subsidiaries (13,996) (6,601) (20,597)
bE 5, 7 RE Exchange differences (1,191) 216 (975)
RZZZTF+=A=+—H As at 31 December 2020 176 3,677 3,853
B R BB (E E 18 Impairment losses
recognised 589 = 589
bE 5, = RR Exchange differences 9 102 111
R-ZFE—_—F+_-_A=+—H As at 31 December 2021 774 3,779 4,553
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HE-Z-_—F+=A=1+—HIEFE For the year ended 31 December 2021

49. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

cHRRAKEEEEREE (&) Financial risk management objectives and

policies (Continued)

FERK (&) Credit risk (Continued)
TRETHEWER - a5, — The following table shows reconciliation of loss allowances
FETBSE &8 B) R SRR R s e B S B S BR - that has been recognised for loan receivables, amount(s) due
from other related parties/an associate:
FEREF Loan receivables
12 & A 78 &7 > FEH
EEEE BHEEEE et
12m ECL Lifetime ECL Total
FHT FHT FHT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
RZZE-_ZTF—H—H As at 1 January 2020 8 35,233 35,241
B R BB (A B 18 Impairment losses
recognised 46 — 46
HENBA A Disposal of subsidiaries (53) (34,605) (34,658)
PE X =58 Exchange differences (1) (628) (629)

R_E_ZEFR T ——F
F=F=4F—FE

As at 31 December 2020
and 2021 = — =
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49, €/ T R (&) 49. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)
TREREEEBERBEK (&) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)
FERR (&) Credit risk (Continued)
B i B 5 5 R 5k Amounts due from other related parties
1218 A 78 58 2FER
EEEBE BHEEEE @t
12m ECL Lifetime ECL Total
FHET T T T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
RZZE-_ZTF—H—H As at 1 January 2020 4,291 — 4,291
B1218 AFEE = E &85  Transfer from 12m ECL to
ErFENBRBEEER lifetime ECL (132) 132 —
(BE#&RL) BHERHNEMMEREE  Impairment losses (reversed)
recognised (2,729) 3,560 831
MEH =5 Exchange differences 105 — 105
MRZZZTF+=A=+—H As at 31 December 2020 1,535 3,692 5,227
(B0 BHERRMMERE  Impairment losses (reversed)
recognised (317) 7,403 7,086
bE 5, = RR Exchange differences 38 — 38
MRZZTZ—F+=A=+—H As at 31 December 2021 1,256 11,095 12,351
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49, €@ T A (&) 49. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)
cHRRAKEEEEREE (&) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)
FERK (&) Credit risk (Continued)
— B E R B R Amount due from an associate
12 & A 78 &7 2 EH
EEEBE BHEEEBRE et
12m ECL Lifetime ECL Total
FHT FHT FHIT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
RZZE-_ZFTF—H—H As at 1 January 2020 2,977 — 2,977
B12 MABEHEEEEER Transfer from 12m ECL to
ErFENARBEEER lifetime ECL (2,977) 2,977 =
B R BB (E E 18 Impairment losses
recognised = 12,412 12,412
MEH 5 Exchange differences = 501 501
RZZE_TF+-_H=+—H As at 31 December 2020 — 15,890 15,890
B RERE E 1R Impairment losses
recognised — 14,514 14,514
P& & =R Exchange differences — (158) (158)
MR-ZE-_—F+_-_A=+—H As at 31 December 2021 = 30,246 30,246
B R R Liquidity risk
RERREMERRRE  AEBERRA In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors
HERERRBEUNANEEEERES and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed
ERAERETERDTEZES IR adequate by the management to finance the Group’s
SEBYKT - REEKBRITEEE operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash
REZERDPESWIR - BIEEERIRIT flows. The Group relies on bank borrowings as a significant
BEEZERER - source of liquidity. The management monitors the utilisation of

bank borrowings.
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49. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

The following tables detail the Group’s remaining contractual
maturity for its financial instruments. The tables have been
drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial
instruments based on the earliest date on which the Group
can be required to pay. The tables include both interest and
principal cash flows. To the extent that interest flows are
floating rate, the undiscounted amount is derived from
interest rate at the end of the reporting period.

Liquidity and interest risk tables

mETY  RERZD AURRE
ERA= W3R 3EAZ1E 1255 BBSE mEARE BESHE
Weighted
average On demand Total
effective or less than 3 months Over undiscounted Carrying
interest rate 3 months to 1 year 1-5 years 5 years cash flows amount
% TET TR TER TR TER TR
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
RZZZ-£+ZA=t—H At 31 December 2021
ENESFERZER Trade and bills payables and
H At fE T3R8 other payables - 135,411 - - — 135,411 135,411
R—ERNERARFE Amount due to an intermediate
holding company = 2,446 = = = 2,446 2,446
RE A B 7 BOE Amounts due to other related
parties — 113,035 — — — 113,035 113,035
BIEE — T8 Bank borrowings — fixed rate 4.18 57,164 173,113 18,418 — 248,695 243,802
HERE Lease liabilities 3.93 23,905 72,485 335,862 110,093 542,345 485,149
331,961 245,598 354,280 110,093 1,041,932 979,843
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EET A (&) 49. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)
cREAREEEEREE(E) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)
B L B () Liquidity risk (Continued)
B E LR FE R () Liquidity and interest risk tables (Continued)
METFY  RERHD RURRE
- (YIES R3EA 3EAZIEF 1255 BB F nEREk FELE
Weighted
average On demand or Total
effective  less than 3 3 months undiscounted Carrying
interest rate months to 1 year 1-5 years  Over 5 years cash flows amount
% T THET TET T T TR
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

R=Z=FF+=A=+—H At 31 December 2020
ERNESHERZEREME Trade and bills payables and

N8 other payables = 156,081 = = = 156,081 156,081
R—BRNERARFHE Amount due to an intermediate
holding company = 33,738 = = = 33,738 33,738
RE % A 5OE Amounts due to other related
parties — 466 — — - 466 466
RITEE — T8 Bank borrowings — fixed rate 5.24 61,780 108,130 32,931 — 202,841 196,777
HEaE Lease liabilities 4.01 35,958 108,677 338,017 150,018 632,670 554,518

288,023 216,807 370,948 150,018 1,025,796 941,580

e} B A R B RPN R EHAREE 2 4 The amounts included above for variable interest rate
quflJTijE%EE\ At A LI IEPT &S instruments for non-derivative financial liabilities are subject to
MEECFETAZEBEXEEH - change, if changes in variable interest rates differ to those

estimates of interest rates determined at the end of the
reporting period.
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49. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Fair value measurements of financial
instruments

This note provides information about how the Group
determines fair value of various financial assets.

Some of the Group’s financial assets are measured at fair
value at the end of each reporting period. The following table
gives information about how the fair values of these financial
assets are determined (in particular, the valuation techniques
and inputs used), as well as the level of the fair value
hierarchy into which the fair value measurements are
categorised (levels 1 to 3) based on the degree to which the
inputs to the fair value measurements is observable.

294

REER NFEER MERTRFEHAE
Fair value
EREE Financial assets Fair value at hierarchy Valuation technique and key inputs
% Z—Z_ZF
2021 2020
FTHERT TET
HK$’000 HK$'000
ZBERFERAFEE  Financial assets at
BreREE FVTPL
MNEE EMZRAES  Equity security listed in — 8,501 H—#M MIZFME A o
Hong Kong
Level 1 Quoted bid prices in market.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Fair value measurements of financial
instruments (Continued)

There were no transfers among Levels 1, 2 and 3 during the
year ended 31 December 2021 and 2020.

The Directors consider that the carrying amount of the
Group’s financial assets and financial liabilities recorded at
amortised cost in the consolidated financial statements
approximate their fair values. Such fair values have been
determined in accordance with generally accepted pricing
models based on a discounted cash flow analysis.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 December 2021, the Group's bank borrowings of
HK$167,046,000 (2020: HK$104,364,000) and lease liabilities
of HK$4,776,000 (2020: HK$6,169,000) were secured by the
following:

—E-—F —EETF

2021 2020

FE T FHEIT

HK$’'000 HK$'000

BFREEY Buildings and structures 98,586 41,775
EREEE Right-of-use assets 24,563 24,320
e E 5 5IE Trade receivables 20,123 30,827
RITEE R Bank balance 889 1,552
144,161 98,474
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DA R (FKE)

—RBERRRREE BRI ER
A R R B A R 32 £ /911,810,000
T(ZZZZFF : &) (IR EEFER
%2,450,0007%8 T ) Ky 4K 4 « F 5 =X
5.5% RB—FREENER - BRZERK
LA4N - BRI {E559,0008 T (T - =
F 1 224,0007% 0) (FOBRZ B BB & B
116,000 L) (ZFE ZF 4 : 1,000/8
JT)) M RREE B MR IR B IR Bk EE -
RBREHRERBEZA 27 2 FE U
ENETEEIAR61,114,000%
(=T =T : 126,773,000/ ) B
FERERZT R EEBEREE) 2Kk
DT -

AMOUNT(S) DUE FROM (TO) AN
ASSOCIATE/INTERMEDIATE HOLDING
COMPANIES

Amount due from an associate mainly represented the
receivable of royalty fee income and loans to an associate
with carrying amount of HK$11,810,000 (2020: Nil) (net of
allowance for credit losses of HK$2,450,000) which were
unsecured, interest bearing of 5.5% per annum and repayable
within one year. Except for the loans, the remaining balance
with carrying amount of HK$559,000 (2020: HK$224,000)
(net of allowance for credit losses of HK$116,000 (2020:
HK$1,000)) was unsecured and repayable on demand. The
aged analysis of royalty fee income receivable from an
associate with gross carrying amount of HK$161,114,000
(2020: HK$126,773,000), net of allowance for credit losses is
presented based on the invoice date at the end of the
reporting period as follows:

—E-—F —ETF

2021 2020

FET FHEIT

HK$'000 HK$’000

0E90K 0-90 days 11,215 16,724
91E 180K 91-180 days 2,960 12,520
1812365k 181-365 days 20,760 27,939
BiE 1 Over 1 year 98,499 53,701
133,434 110,884

R—EPNIZRAFRZBEET BT
(ZZ =4 : 31,310,000/ 7T) KK
. ERR56%ET7.5%NBIRENKE
ERE I - #2%82,446,0008 7T (=
T 1 2,428,0008 ) BEEA - &

BNARBERER -

T EERR A B R 50290,00008 T (ZF =
TEB)SERW THERAKRE

Amount due to an intermediate holding company included
loans of HK$Nil (2020: HK$31,310,000)
unsecured, interest bearing of 5.6% to 7.5% per annum and
were repayable on demand. The remaining balance of
HK$2,446,000 (2020: HK$2,428,000) was unsecured,
non-interest bearing and was repayable on demand.

which were

Amounts due from intermediate holding companies of
HK$290,000 (2020: Nil) were unsecured, non-interest bearing
and were repayable on demand.
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52. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND

BALANCES
Braz% v?/\ﬁﬁkat&%ﬁq,ﬁ\{ﬁ*liﬁﬁﬂﬁﬂg In addition to the transactions, balances and commitments
LR R RRESN - 2N 5 B B g B disclosed elsewhere in these consolidated financial statements,
FZ?Q%&%?%QD—F : the Group had transactions and balances with related parties
as follows:

(a) XREZM/E

(@) Summary of transactions

(WA &R
(Income) Expenses
—E=-—F —T_THF
2021 2020
B 5 FBT FHETT
Notes HK$’'000 HK$'000
ANAE—MEHEBARZ Non-controlling shareholder of
FE 12 B AR R the Company’s subsidiary
— FEHRA — Interest income — (827)
—EH & AR An associate
— BEBRA — Royalty fee income (i) (37,796) (53,518)
— FB WA — Interest income (395) —
—EHR N ERA A An intermediate holding
company
— HeEH — Rental expense (ii) 2,083 1,165
— FERX — Interest expense (ii) 2,382 2,298
— HEEM — Sale of products (ii) (11) —
RXRRER 2 B Related parties of the ultimate
shareholder
— HEEM — Sale of products (i) (408) (959)
— MERX — Interest expense (ii) — 422
— REE — Service fee (ii) 296 —
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52. Bt AR5 RiEeR (&) 52. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND
BALANCES (CONTINUED)
(b) TEEEEBAEHE (b) Key management personnel compensation
—E-— —E-FF
2021 2020
FE T FET
HK$'000 HK$'000
o M HE MR HEF Salaries and other short-term
benefits 6,503 12,956
B B3 12 B AN Post-employment costs 244 403
BmEE AR BER 2 Equity-settled share-based
(A payments — 2
6,747 13,361
(c) #EHBE (c) Summary of balances
— —TEF
2021 2020
B 5 FET FET
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
RBEE Current assets
— BRI R Amount due from
a shareholder (iii) 106 206
b4 S /NI Amount due from subsidiaries
YNCIDSEN of the ultimate holding
company (iii) 22,672 21,438
KARIMEARZ—2% Amount due from a non-
FEFERR AR 3R 5K controlling shareholder of
the Company’s subsidiary (iii) 71,830 112,558
H b BB 5 R EK Amounts due from other
related parties 94,608 134,202
REBEE Current liabilities
REARIERR A R — KB  Amount due to a subsidiary
N A2 FHIE of the ultimate holding
company (iii) 113,035 —

REZANEINBAT—% Amount due to an entity
IFPERRAR RIS 2 —f  controlled by a non-

B 7 FIH controlling shareholder of
the Company’s subsidiary (iii) — 466
R E fth B Bk 75 SR IE Amounts due to other
related parties 113,035 466
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(o)

R E (&)
fia -

(i) ZERHIERBTrue Yogak &
B EREAEERERE
T B 8 BT IR R A K FE T
ZREB-ZEXHATEKX L
MRAFETHNAZET 2 BER
5

(il ZEXZEXARBEZER
RETETRAUNETTHAZIET
BRI - FEEB KA R
BREZHER D FHERE

i)y R-—TE-_—F+-F=+—
A &% AEEKRE. T8 K
BEREREEZE RN-T_ZTF
+—A=+—0B B&E®E—&
SEERFF —HENBARRK
D 1E &I G 2 FE U AR R )T
B A A IR R RE
112,558,000 7T5) + 88 T &6k
BB PR B RAREXK
His -

53. WAER

(a)

R=ZFE—AFNA+=ZH ' E&Q
Al Patrick John Wee Ewe
Seng ¥t & ([PIWAE &£ |) K Active
Gains Universal Limited ([ Active
Gains NDtEBRE AN (HGEIRE
AN AZEBSEERE A QA
MARGHZENBART Fester
Global Limited ([ Fester Globall)
ERHEABLENERSMK (E
Mok  SEERRGRR A
146972019 (EERRF D) »

HEZ

T-—F+_-H=+—HIEFE For the year ended 31 December 2021

52. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND
BALANCES (CONTINUED)

(c) Summary of balances (Continued)

Notes:

(i) These transactions represent payments from True Yoga
Group in consideration of the right and license granted
by the Group for its operation in Taiwan. These
transactions do not constitute connected transactions
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

(ii) These transactions constitute connected transactions/
continuing connected transactions of the Company that
are fully exempt from shareholders’ approval, annual
review and all disclosure requirements under Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules.

(i) As at 31 December 2021, the balances were unsecured,
non-interest bearing and were repayable on demand. As
at 31 December 2020, except for amount due from a
non-controlling shareholder of the Company’s subsidiary
amounting to HK$112,558,000 which a group entity
held the shares in a subsidiary as collateral, the
remaining balances were unsecured, non-interest bearing
and were repayable on demand.

53. CONTINGENCIES

(a)

On 13 August 2019, the Company was served a writ of
summons (the “Writ”) filed by Mr. Patrick John Wee
Ewe Seng (“Mr. PJW”) and Active Gains Universal
Limited (“Active Gains”) as the plaintiffs (collectively as
the “Plaintiffs”) against the Company and Fester Global
Limited (“Fester Global”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company, as the defendants under High Court
Action No. 1469/2019 (the “Legal Proceedings”) in the
High Court of Hong Kong.
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(a)

(&)

REARBALKRF 2B R
Fester GlobaliR #&Fester Global
(EBEHR) ARal (IEREH
R A) * Active Gains (BIFRPIW %t
EEFINER  EREH) RPIW
EEWERERTRBAIRE
—t+tFRANBRILZEE
([EEW:=]) WK EETrue Cayman
BI51% I & o A BE L i W i B9 &F
BN AARBHAEA-_ZT—+
FRAEtHE - ZZE—tFHA
—+thBRER-ZZE—+tF+A
ZHNBRAERBE K (FEZ
EXH]) RIEEE o REABL (HAF
BE)ATSHERERR :

() Z B E (B #:%583,500,000
=TT

(i) EBFActive Gains & PJW L
A LAZAS /A B & Fester Global
A=z ABE True Caymanfe
BREZz—_T—+tF+_A
=t —BIEMBFEEELD
BARBEENK : &

(i) 2 BFActive GainsNPIW %k
A LAZR R 7] & Fester Global
A=z ABE True Caymante
EREE_ZE-N\FE=F
—NWE+ZA=+—HIH
BEEELHABFRERT
BAEM - BREBEZEXHF
BT 4 B8 32 5 15 & B 16 5K -
Active Gainsi% B #7171 R
Jh BA%E » LA[AIFester Global
H %= True Caymanz & T %
7 o

53. CONTINGENCIES (CONTINUED)

(a)

(Continued)

The Plaintiffs’ allegations in the Writ are related to the
acquisition by Fester Global of 51% equity interest in
True Cayman pursuant to the sale and purchase
agreement dated 6 May 2017 (“SPA”) made between
Fester Global (as purchaser), the Company (as
purchaser’s guarantor), Active Gains (being an entity
controlled by Mr. PJW as vendor), and Mr. PIW (as
vendor’s warrantor) (the “Transaction Agreement”).
Details of the said acquisition were disclosed in the
announcements and circular of the Company
respectively dated 7 May 2017, 29 May 2017 and
28 July 2017 (collectively, the “Documents”). The
Plaintiffs claim for, among others, the following:

(i)  payment of balance of the purchase price, being
US$3,500,000;

(i)  a declaration that the profit guarantee given by
Active Gains and Mr. PJW in favour of the
Company and Fester Global in respect of True
Cayman Group for the financial year ended
31 December 2017 had been met; and

(ili) a declaration that the profit guarantee given by
Active Gains and Mr. PJW in favour of the
Company and Fester Global in respect of the True
Cayman Group for the financial years ended
31 December 2018 and 2019 ceases to have
effect and that Active Gains be entitled to exercise
the put option so as to sell certain shareholding in
True Cayman to Fester Global according to the
terms of the Transaction Agreement as disclosed in
the Documents.



ZT " —FF 3 ANNUAL REPORT 2021

e ISR M

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HE-Z-_—F+=A=1+—HIEFE For the year ended 31 December 2021

53. HAEE (F)

(a)

(#8)

RARRARERZZE—NFE+=A
+T—HREESEEARREREN
OBEBRAOMBEREREAZ
MR- RZEBE-_—F—F HRN
Active Gains7RBERL B B & HIR
FREEBERANEBELEE -
REBEBFNNTROBL S
N ZHER o LAFester Global &% %
A #910,000A%True Cayman
f&% 17 B 8% F Fester Global * {E&
HEEBH TARIRFLZHEETH
B ER R BN FRIE - A ItE - A&
ERREAZEHRERABFTE
FIRFBEREZGR - FREARR
KEFIEE  RERNMERE
ROREHERMEAERE - R =
T F—-—AW@HE - ARAR
Fester Global 2R (a)&EFI R AR
MFEERRBEER  ROKEIEE
MRAZENHERAFRAORER
mEz &5 -

ERFBDERNSHE  RE
ABEAMBREREGE - B A
/Y REE - RIEAAAERE
BEEBFEROTR SR
S5 EA T B 2 A1 B K AR VO
R -

53. CONTINGENCIES (CONTINUED)

(a)

(Continued)

The Company has filed the Defence to the High Court
of Hong Kong on 12 December 2019 and has been
vigorously defending and opposing the Plaintiffs’ claims.
In January 2021, the Group has enforced its right under
a share charge agreement since Active Gains has failed
to compensate the Group in respect of the profit
guarantee shortfalls under the SPA. 10,000 shares in
True Cayman charged in favour of Fester Global were
transferred to Fester Global as partial settlement of the
amounts due and payable under the profit guarantee
arrangement. Subsequently, the Group issued
Counterclaim against the Plaintiffs to recover the
balance of the profit guarantee shortfalls, and in
response, the Plaintiffs filed their Amended Reply,
Defence to Counterclaim and Counterclaim to
Counterclaim. On 4 January 2022, the Company and
Fester Global filed (a) Re-Amended Defence and
Counterclaim and (b) Rejoinder to Amended Reply and
Reply to Defence to Counterclaim and Defence to
Counterclaim to Counterclaim.

The Legal Proceedings are still at a preliminary stage and
the date of trial has not been fixed up to the date of
issuance of these consolidated financial statements.
Based on the opinion of the management of the
Company in consideration of the latest development, the
possibility of any significant economic outflow in relation
to the Legal Proceedings is remote.
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(b)

B £ SRt & SN

R-ZZE-_—F=F KRR
EEMBRARIEEREREER
AR ([EERL ) EELEEMR
fEE ARZER ([RERZER ] B
EEERRERFNR ([ LEERE
BF])  ARBBLEEENES
fHBR AR (8GRI IEH
EEREEREEAN) RERETT
EERYLE PSR T ——
FRHATNBREITNFRELSGE
HB AR (&ERE]) @ i)
HEERLIELBER - LBERK
ERERBLRIEEERZE I
HEEREARBERESEA
R #49,000,0007T & A &%
BFrEEMNAE EERLDE
FA2RD - W BRI 5 B8R
MER - R_ZT—-—F+—A
—+HAB GRERERBEALZE
fREEEF R A RMA L EBEE
RENEIMNALT R —F
—B=—+—H RBFHAEAL
ERERBREBE  UHBREEE
BREEZR -HEAGEMBR
*TEAH  MAEBET KK
MBS - BHE_E-_—F+=
B=+—H EER&LEMA
BIETHNE TEERERSTED
6,205,000/ 7T # $R 17 45 &4 (BT &
31) RBRM{E4769,198,0007 7LHY
MERBEE R LS EEERM
R - REBEARAEEELES
ERFERMNER  BEEEFD
B2 R ERLEINT R ] 5
B/ -

AEBR_ZT=_—%F

T-A=t—HEBEMERKARAE -

—F+=ZA=+—HIFE For the year ended 31 December 2021

53. CONTINGENCIES (CONTINUED)

(b)

In March 2021, Chongging Kangle Pharmaceutical Co.,
Ltd.* (EEREZRZZAFRE A F]) (“Chongging Kangle”), a
non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, received
a court summons* ({£28) attaching a statement of civil
claim* (RZE#571K) (the “Shanghai Legal Proceedings”)
from the Shanghai Xuhui District People’'s Court* (/&
MRER A RART) (“Xuhui District Court”) in relation to
the claim made by Shanghai Haixin Pharmaceutical Co.,
Ltd.* (L& EMEZR K BRR AR (“Shanghai Haixin")
against Chongging Kangle as defendant for the alleged
non-performance of a cooperation agreement on project
for Hydroxychloroquine Sulfate* (WiBA¥SEMEIE H & 1EH
%) signed on 19 May 2011 between Chongging Kangle
and Shanghai Haixin (the “Cooperation Agreement”).
Shanghai Haixin sought for court order to terminate the
Cooperation Agreement, and claimed against Chongging
Kangle for the damages in the amount of
RMB49,000,000 and the costs incurred in connection
with the Shanghai Legal Proceedings. Chongging Kangle
has engaged lawyers and intends to vigorously defend
Shanghai Haixin’s claims. On 25 November 2021, the
Xuhui District Court added Xi'an Haixin Medical
Production Co., Ltd.* (FAZBREESRE A A]) as an
additional party to the Shanghai Legal Proceedings. All
parties to the proceedings exchanged evidence online
and expressed their views on examination of evidence
on 21 January 2022. The date of the next hearing and
trial has not been fixed up to the date of issuance of
these consolidated financial statements. As of
31 December 2021, certain assets legally owned by
Chongging Kangle comprising bank balances in the
aggregate amount of approximately HK$6,205,000 (note
31) and property and plant with carrying value of
approximately HK$69,198,000 have been frozen due to
the Shanghai Legal Proceedings. Based on the opinion of
the management of the Company in consideration of
the latest development, the possibility of any significant
economic outflow in relation to the Shanghai Legal
Proceedings is remote.

Except for the above, the Group did not have any material
contingent liabilities as at 31 December 2021.
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54, MEXKFTEEXEEBZYHER 54. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING
FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

TERAMAEEREXEBFAEEARZ The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities
B (BRERERIFRSEE) - EF arising from financing activities, including both cash and
BREEBBEZHEREELIRRK non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities
BeRefeRNAEBGAEERIPR are those for which cash flows were, or future cash flows will
NOHEAMEXZBHERE be, classified in the Group’s consolidated statement of cash

flows as cash flows from financing activities.

R—F
R R REM
(E) ERTHIS FERTAR & HERE RAFE  WEATE am
Amount due
toan  Amounts due
intermediate to other
Interest Dividend Lease holding related
Borrowings payables payables liabilities company parties Total
FAL FAL FEL FAL FAL FEL FAL
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
(FrzE34) (GEZE) (HaFs1)  (KFEES2(c)
(note 34) (note 43) (note 51) (note 52(c)
i S-S R = At 1 January 2020 455,408 112,383 — 442,628 100,813 37,927 1,149,159
BERSR Financing cash flows 215,981 (17,032) — (85,248) (67,075) (35,742) 10,884
HEEEM Addition of new leases = = = 168,168 = = 168,168
HE Disposal = = = (185) — - (185)
EREE Exchange differences 12,503 39,305 — 9,557 — 1,373 62,738
HER B A A (i 744) Disposal of subsidiaries
(note 44(a)) (487,115) (262,779) — (1,646) a (26,415) (777,955)
FERX Interest expenses = 128,365 = 21,244 = = 149,609
PDIRTIEERER 2 RS Dividend distribution to
non-controlling interests = = = = = 23,323 23323
R-BZEE+-A=t-H At 31 December 2020 196,777 242 — 554,518 33,738 466 785,741
x—H
R ER REA
RE EAFIR EiRE HERR ARAFE  HEATE Xl
Amount due
to an Amounts due
intermediate to other
Interest Dividend Lease holding related
Borrowings payables payables liabilities company parties Total
THEL TER THET THEL TER THET THEL
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
(K&E34) (K&Ea3) (B&E51)  (MES52(c)
(note 34) (note 43) (note 51)  (note 52(c))
WZE-—5-f—H At 1 January 2021 196,777 242 = 554,518 33,738 466 785,741
BERSR Financing cash flows 42,489 (10,877) (14,669) (63,558) (33,674) (19,513) (99,802)
TERIREM Addition of construction in
progress - - - - - 130,389 130,389
MAEEM Addition of new leases = = = 29,578 — — 29,578
BMERECOVID-19 FAEMEEE  COVID-19-related rent concessions
B received = = = (29,169) — - (29,169)
HEBT Modification of leases - - — (21,775) - — (21,775)
ERER Exchange differences 4,536 (73) = (6,358) = 1,693 (202)
FER% Interest expenses — 10,877 — 21,913 2,382 — 35,172
DIRTIEERER 2 RS Dividend distribution to
non-controlling interests - - 14,669 - - - 14,669
R=B=-f+=fA=t-H At 31 December 2021 243,802 169 — 485,149 2,446 113,035 844,601
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55. ZAN D7) 2 B AR R &

55. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF

THE COMPANY

—E-—fF s
2021 2020
FET FET
HK$'000 HK$'000
ERBEE Non-current assets
e N Property, plant and equipment 265 676
ERAEEE Right-of-use assets 12,641 —
KRB AR Z2"E Investments in subsidiaries 437,091 472,874
EIENGIVSE Amounts due from subsidiaries 734,581 803,616
EEFIAE B Deferred tax assets — 2,707
1,184,578 1,279,873
REBEE Current assets
E A & Y RIB R TS 5B Other receivables and prepayments 7,180 13,280
FRBERRRAFEERE S/ Financial asset at FVTPL
BE = 8,501
— A & R R R K Amount due from an associate 12,369 224
HEmwE Other investment 16,000 20,473
BERBREEEY Cash and cash equivalents 52,560 4,688
88,109 47,166
RBEE Current liabilities
Hih eI R ETE R Other payables and accrued expenses 6,234 6,840
R—EHRNIER A B FRIE Amount due to an intermediate
holding company = 11,935
HESE Lease liabilities 1,442 —
7,676 18,775
REEEFE Net current assets 80,433 28,391
HWEERABEE Total assets less current liabilities 1,265,011 1,308,264
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55. &RQF) 2 AR &R () 55. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF
THE COMPANY (CONTINUED)
—EB-—F —E T4
2021 2020
FET FE T
HK$'000 HK$'000
B2 X & Capital and reserves
[N Share capital 11,177 11,177
[& 10 v 8 M e (BIRE) Share premium and reserves (note) 1,242,611 1,297,087
RSB Total equity 1,253,788 1,308,264
ERBEE Non-current liabilities
BRI A Provision for reinstatement cost 626 —
HEARE Lease liabilities 10,597 —
11,223 =
1,265,011 1,308,264
KRR ZHBEARRARER T _F= The statement of financial position of the Company was
A=+BHEESEgHERBA ALK approved by the board of directors on 30 March 2022 and
REE: was signed on its behalf by:
RN BEX
Chai Hongjie Jiang Chaowen
EFE EZE
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
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55. KA T ZMBEMRREK (E)

55.

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF

306

THE COMPANY (CONTINUED)

BT 5E - Note:
R BEEREEE SHARE PREMIUM AND RESERVES
RIRG B WARR 17
HERA BERZ
Rt 5 B 2R EERERE EXEE 25 ER e
Shares held Employee
for share  share-based
Share award compensation  Translation ~ Accumulated
premium scheme reserve reserve losses Total
THT FHT FHT FHT FHT FHT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
R-Z-T£—A-H At 1 January 2020 1,523,949 (4,854) 18529  (65471) (175,397) 1,296,756
AARAEEER Loss for the year of the Company — — — — (26,703)  (26,703)
RARZIIEHELCERZE Exchange difference arising
on translation to presentation currency — — — 26,981 — 26,981
AEE2ERE (BX) 8% Total comprehensive income (expense) for the year = = — 26,981 (26,703) 278
e B E AR AZERE 25 Recognition of equity-settled share-based payments - — 53 — — 53
B Bk Share options lapsed — — (17,544) — 17,544 —
RZZZZE At 31 December 2020
+=-A=+-H 1,523,949 (4,854) 1,038 (38,490) (184,556) 1,297,087
ADARFEEHE Loss for the year of the Company = = — — (66,874)  (66,874)
RAREIEKELEZERESE  Exchange difference arising
on translation to presentation currency = = = 12,398 = 12,398
AEERE(FY) haesE Total comprehensive (expense) income for the year — — — 12,398 (66,874)  (54,476)
BRMZ BRE Share options lapsed = = (1,038) = 1,038 =
RZBZ—F At 31 December 2021
+-A=+—-H 1,523,949 (4,854) = (26,092) (250,392) 1,242,611
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ADAFANBRTAR =B —FR=
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56. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of all

subsidiaries of the Company as at

31 December 2021 and 2020 are as follows:

ERTRARE
BRRA
E#REMEAR

Paid up issued
ordinary share capital/
paid up registered

mend

AEEEEZ
ERBAER

Effective equity interest

IEXRK

Name of company registration Place of operations capital  attributable to the Group  Principal activities
—R--f —“T-%H
2021 2020
% %
Fester Global Limited EBERIHS BE 1% 100 100 HEZR
British Virgin Islands Hong Kong Us$1 Investment holding
ERARAHF RERTHE BB (EI 100 100 ®REZR
Fortunate Gold Limited British Virgin Islands Hong Kong US$1 Investment holding
EMzERAR BB 0 187 100 100 #%EEK
Fully Fine Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$1 Investment holding
Gratwick Limited RERTHE BB (EI 100 100 ®REZR
British Virgin Islands Hong Kong Uss$1 Investment holding
Greater Vision Limited EBERTHS BE 1% 100 100 HEZR
British Virgin Islands Hong Kong Us$1 Investment holding
ARREARATF Bt BB 1B 100 100 REZR
Kingway Hong Kong Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$1 Investment holding
BEERAA B BB 187 100 100 #®EEK
Kingwood Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$1 Investment holding
FRBRAEEARAR REMSE BB 10057 90 90 KEERK
Konta Investment Management ~ Cayman Islands Hong Kong US$100 Investment holding
Co., Limited
o B8 (B M) £ R B R B (FE3) HE = 55.43¢ 5543%  BEERTHAHER
NG| The PRC (Note 3) The PRC Trading of laboratory
related products
DRAF(ER) EnRiiAR  RE () HE = 80% 8o EEEX
NG| The PRC (Note 1) The PRC Inactive
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HE-T—

BB A B & ()

NGIE

MR/ B

Place of incorporation/

—F+=ZA=+—HIFE For the year ended 31 December 2021

56. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES

(CONTINUED)

BEARBRE
AR/
BRRAMER

Paid up issued
ordinary share capital/
paid up registered

AR

AREEHZ

Effective equity interest

Name of company registration Place of operations capital  attributable to the Group Principal activities
Z8--% “T-ZF
2021 2020
% %
Sharkview Limited KBRS £ (E 100 100 HEER
British Virgin Islands Hong Kong Uss$1 Investment holding
EhE G E) HE AR 100 100 REERAREERFEERS
120,000,007 &

The PRC (Note 1) The PRC RMB 120,000,000 Investment holding and
manufacturing and sales of
prescription of drugs

FREH (LR ENARRER  TE (HE2) HE AKH10,000,0007T 100 100% HEBEER
NG The PRC (Note 2) The PRC RMB10,000,000 Research and development of
medical products
AR EEERAF Rl (fEE3) hE ARH5,360,0007C 100% 100% BUE R A& R 7 B

The PRC (Note 3) The PRC RMB5,360,000 Manufacture and sales of

prescription drugs
REZXREEXERAA Bl (Fst4) HE ARE 66* 66" BERHERS &
18,007,322.357L

The PRC (Note 4) The PRC RMB18,007,322.35 Manufacture and sales of
prescription drugs

EERAREERAT i (fiEs) HE ARHE21,814,1187 59.42% 59.42% BUERHER S E

The PRC (Note 5) The PRC RMB21,814,118 Manufacture and sales of

prescription drugs
HEROLR) ENREERAR  HE (FiEd) HE AR H8,400,0007C 55.43# 5543% BEEREHHEM

The PRC (Note 4) The PRC RMB8,400,000 Trading of laboratory related

products
ERERRELEVHAERAT  FE (fe) HE =# 59.42% 59.424 HBBEEmM

The PRC (Note 6) The PRC Research and development of

medical products

AEEBECEERZARI)  FE (M) HE =# 100 100 REERRORER
BRAR The PRC (Note 7) The PRC Investment holding and

corporate advisory

AEEMRERER A e (M5E7) HE =# 100 100 REERRLRER
(FINBRAR The PRC (Note 7) The PRC Investment holding and

corporate advisory
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56. fiEBARIER (&) 56. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES

(CONTINUED)
BRIRARE
BRBE/ AEBEERZ
EL: MR BRI Y EfRARALR EBRAEE  EEEE

Place of incorporation/

Paid up issued
ordinary share capital/
paid up registered

Effective equity interest

Name of company registration Place of operations capital attributable to the Group Principal activities
“8--F -—T-%F
2021 2020
% %
ITRELRRERREERAR  HE(ME2) e ARH60,000,0007C 100 100 REEK
NG| The PRC (Note 2) The PRC RMB60,000,000 Investment holding
FERAICRUD EHERL  RE (HES) HE ARH10,000,0007C = 100 BEE%
BRAR The PRC (Note 8) The PRC RMB10,000,000 Inactive
RBZEERLA Bt BE 157 100 100 REER
Glorious Mark Investments Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$1 Investment holding
Limited
TFKT True Holdings REHS Hnsg 5,050,000% 7% 73 54 HEER
Cayman Islands Singapore US$5,050,000 Investment holding
Profit Heaven Management KERETHS g 1% 73 54 BREZR
Limited British Virgin Islands Singapore Uss$1 Investment holding
True Fitness Holdings (Singapore) %7 13 Hnsg 13T 73 54 HEER
Pte. Ltd. Singapore Singapore SGD1 Investment holding
True Fit Pte. Ltd. GIE R 13 T 73 54 AR ORI AR
Singapore Singapore SGD1 Operating of fitness centres
and provision of
consultation services
True Fitness Pte. Ltd. A A 4,474,003 T 73 54 FERHHORREANRE
Singapore Singapore SGD4,474,000 Operating of fitness centres
and provision of
consultation services
True Yoga Pte. Ltd. s Hnsg 1,000,000%7 M3 7T 73 54 RSO RIEE RS
Singapore Singapore SGD1,000,000 Operating of fitness centres

and provision of
consultation services
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56. FiE 2 &R (&)

NER

Name of company

ML B

Place of incorporation/
registration

56. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES

(CONTINUED)
BEIRSRE
BRRE, AEBEEZ
R EgREMER ERRAES  EEEE

Paid up issued
ordinary share
capital/paid up
registered capital

Effective equity interest

Place of operations attributable to the Group Principal activities

“E--F —T_TF
2021 2020
% %
True Fitness (STC) Pte. Ltd. K 0 1,700,000%7 J3% 7T 73 54 e HthL RIBHHAR
%

Singapore Singapore SGD1,700,000 Operating of fitness centres
and provision of
consultation services

True Yoga Holdings Pte. Ltd.  ¥7A0% Gk 1% T 73 54 HREER

Singapore Singapore SGD1 Investment holding

FHREBR AT REHE BB 100% 7T 100 100 REZR
Taisheng Investment Cayman Islands Hong Kong Us$100 Investment holding
Co., Ltd.
Tongfang Konta Capital, LP. ~ F2#S Bt E 100 100 REER
Cayman Islands Hong Kong US$1 Investment holding
Apros Therapeutics, Inc. XE % 1,166 7T = 81.48 HEEREMR
The USA The USA US$1,166 Research and development
of medical products
EREZRREHZARAE  HH I AR #800,0007T 100 100 BEe%
The PRC The PRC RMB800,000 Inactive
REZASHEXBRAR  FHE HE = 66 66 TEZX
The PRC The PRC Inactive

RER - MBARMEZTEAELRE

= o

o ZERRARTEERRFE RES -

* ZERAARTEREXSEARA
A A EE MR EMER
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None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at the
end of the year.

Remarks:

i These companies are held and controlled by Tongfang
Pharmaceutical.

* These companies were set up by Tongfang Kontafarma Holdings
Limited and there was no paid up registered capital.
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R

BREERQA (RINEE)
BEREERFCEABE)

BEREEAR GEEAANRE IR
ENEE)

EBREERA
BEREERE (BRARE HIZER)

BEREEAR (EAARE SIZERAE
ABE)

EREERR(BRBBREANEBEE)

BEREEAF(BERARESEASE
&)

HE-Z-_—F+=A=1+—HIEFE For the year ended 31 December 2021

56. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES

(CONTINUED)

Notes:
(1) limited liability company (sino-foreign equity joint ventures)
(2)  limited liability company (wholly owned by a legal person)

(3) limited liability company (sole proprietorship that is not invested
or held by a natural person)

(4) other limited liability company
(5)  limited liability company (invested or held by a natural person)

(6) limited liability company (sole proprietorship invested or held by
a natural person)

(7) limited liability company (solely invested by corporation in
Taiwan, Hong Kong or Macau)

(8) limited liability company (invested by a natural person or wholly
owned by a legal person)
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57. EEE RKFEIEREZR MBS 57. DETAILS OF SUBSIDIARIES THAT HAVE

A ZFH 15 MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS
TRETARAHEBEANIFZERER 2 The table below shows details of non-wholly owned
BB AR ZFE subsidiaries of the Company that have material

non-controlling interests:

FERERRAZ
BEEREERR DEEIFER
RERELD) tan 2 )i M (B 1R) REtERRER

Proportion of
ownership interest

and voting rights Accumulated
held by non-controlling Profit (loss) allocated to non-controlling
NGIEY Name of company interests non-controlling interests interests
“EB-—% "T-TF ZB-—f§ _—T-TF —T--F _—ZT-TF
2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020
% % FTET FHET THERT TET
% % HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
EBBAACOEEMR AT Shanghai Allied Cement N/A N/A
Co., Ltd.* TEA i@ A — 28,259 — —
SEREHEGMRAA  Chongging Kangle
Pharmaceutical
Co., Ltd.* 41 41 9,615 45,798 68,255 71,369
RAEEZEMIERZE  Other non-wholly owned
WA Al subsidiaries of
Tongfang 20 to 45 20 to 45
Pharmaceutical 20Z45 20£45 19,185 3,642 75,200 54,258
True Cayman % [# True Cayman Group 27 46 (17,092) (25,589) 2,311 29,583
RAz3E2 &K B2Ra  Non-wholly owned
subsidiaries of N/A
Tongfang TiE A 19 (1,213) (1,545) - (15,639)
145,766 139,571
EEARRIEREANEERER B Summarised financial information in respect of the Company’s
NEIZHEERBLEZEHY| LT o LATEF subsidiaries that have material non-controlling interests is set
BERBREZREEANKIER < 25 - out below. The summarised financial information below

presented amounts before intra-group eliminations.
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57. EEERFEIEREZR Z2KHEY 57. DETAILS OF SUBSIDIARIES THAT HAVE

m 215 (&) MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS
(CONTINUED)

EREH#REFRAA Chongging Kangle Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.*
—B=——% —TTF
2021 2020
FE T FHET
HK$’000 HK$'000
mEEE Current assets 149,848 197,478
ERBEE Non-current assets 155,815 145,905
mEBAE Current liabilities (140,038) (169,755)
FERBEE Non-current liabilities (2,845) (3,202)

ANA BB R (L R Equity attributable to owners

of the Company 94,525 99,057

IEE RS Non-controlling interests 68,255 71,369
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57. BREAFEREZZHEL

A Z#F15 ()

ERREKREFRATF (A)

57. DETAILS OF SUBSIDIARIES THAT HAVE

MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

(CONTINUED)

(Continued)

Chongqging Kangle Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.*

—E-—F —EB_TF
2021 2020
THEx FHT
HK$’'000 HK$'000
WA e 174,962 317,760
ZH 5 Net expenses (151,011) (204,901)
N S i A Profit for the year 23,951 112,859
NN AR R B4 Y F Profit attributable to owners
of the Company 14,336 67,061
FE1E IR &5 B 8 R A Profit attributable to non-controlling
interests 9,615 45,798
AN [ 5 Profit for the year 23,951 112,859
ARaRREMEMEMEUEZ  Other comprehensive income
attributable to owners
of the Company 2,280 5,684
JEIE RS b 2 EUkzE  Other comprehensive income
attributable to non-controlling
interests 1,939 3,970
AEEHAM 2 E WS Other comprehensive income
for the year 4,219 9,654
A B R A 2 R s 48 Total comprehensive income
attributable to owners
of the Company 16,616 72,745
FEFE AR A 25 B (h 2 T R e 48 Total comprehensive income
attributable to non-controlling
interests 11,554 49,768
NEZ2HEKHEE Total comprehensive income
for the year 28,170 122,513
DR T IR E R 2 IR A Dividend distribution to
non-controlling interests 14,669 =
BEER2ES (RE) Net cash (outflow) inflow from
MAFE R operating activities (11,568) 44,327
REXBzRERLFHE Net cash outflow from investing
activities (22,801) (18,554)
BMEXK2HE ORd) Net cash (outflow) inflow from
A FERE financing activities (29,716) 29,428
B (Rt mRAFRE Net cash (outflow) inflow (64,085) 55,201
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57. DETAILS OF SUBSIDIARIES THAT HAVE
MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

(CONTINUED)

Shanghai Allied Cement Co., Ltd.*

ZEERF
— 5 — &=
SERk B HA EA
Period from

1 January 2020
to the Date of

Completion
T
HK$'000
WA Revenue 69,511
E=Jhe Net expenses (12,995)
7N HA g A Profit for the period 56,516
N B AR R B4 i A Profit attributable to owners of the Company 28,257
FEVE AR A 25 FE (G V2 Profit attributable to non-controlling interests 28,259
7N HA F g A Profit for the period 56,516
AN A ARER B 4 H i 2 TE W a Other comprehensive income attributable
to owners of the Company 24,739
R EEEGEMEE RS Other comprehensive income attributable
to non-controlling interests 24,751
7N HA F L Ath 2 T W e Other comprehensive income for the period 49,490
RAFIRER E(L 2 H IR 2 5 Total comprehensive income attributable
to owners of the Company 52,996
RS M SRR Total comprehensive income attributable
to non-controlling interests 53,010
N2 E KA Total comprehensive income for the period 106,006
DK T IR 2 R R Dividend distribution to non-controlling interests 22,542
EEXR 2B RLFRE Net cash outflow from operating activities (112,149)
WEXEBZRERAFE Net cash inflow from investing activities 139,310
MEER RS R FE Net cash outflow from financing activities (20,771)
WEmMAFE Net cash inflow 6,390
* (EREE * For identification purpose only

315



FAFEREXEEGRLT TONGFANG KONTAFARMA HOLDINGS LIMITED

MBEHE

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

HE-Z-_—F+=A=1+—HIEFE For the year ended 31 December 2021

BE+T-A=T—-HLHFBEE

Financial year ended 31 December

T+ ZE-NF ZE-nF ZZZTF CZB--F§
2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
FTAT TAET FTAT TAT TET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
(& E35)
(Re-presented)
£ Results
A Revenue 1,344,336 2,093,724 921,148* 1,009,134 961,089
BB ATE (E18) Profit (loss) before taxation 35,970 108,866 79,083* (297) (326)
A Taxation (119) (37,354) (14,805)* (19,788) (4,227)
FERMN(BE): Profit (loss) for the year:
REFELEER From continuing operations 64,278 (20,085) (4,553)
REBRIELEXK From discontinued operation 933 (195,797) —
35,851 71,512 65,211 (215,882) (4,553)
FRERMN(BE) EHEF Profit (loss) for the year
attributable to:
AREIRE Owners of the Company (1,806) 32,499 36,102 (267,164) (15,048)
R ER Non-controlling interests 37,657 39,013 29,109 51,282 10,495
35,851 71,512 65,211 (215,882) (4,553)
GREARRH (EE) Basic earnings (loss) per share
(L) (HK cent) (0.04) 0.60 0.65 (4.79) (0.27)
W+=ZRA=+—H
At 31 December
“E—+% ZE-N\f ZE-NF ZEZTF ZB--F
2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
TAL TAL TAL TAL TET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BEREE Assets and liabilities
BEE Total assets 3,444,210 3,342,464 4,000,172 2,542,284 2,558,775
FEN=E Total liabilities 1,595,498 1,433,403 2,079,124 1,188,527 1,220,991
R ER Non-controlling interests 624,689 515,680 508,926 139,571 145,766
ARERREGER Equity attributable to owners of
the Company 1,224,023 1,393,381 1,412,122 1,214,186 1,192,018

3 RZZF_EF+-_A=+—H  ~AEEAK J
REBEELEE UHREBEE-_ZT-_TF+=
A=+—BLFEEINRBRIEEEET
MBE_Z—hE+-_A=+—BILEEW
Lh BB FEAEEES -

On 21 December 2020, the cement business of the Group was
disposed of and is presented as discontinued operation for the year
ended 31 December 2020 and comparatives for the year ended 31
December 2019 have been re-presented accordingly.
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